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Important

The Board, the Supervisory Committee, Directors, Supervisors and the senior management of the Company
warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the annual report, in which there is no false representation,
misleading statement or material omission and for which they will assume joint and several liabilities.

This report was considered and approved at the second meeting of the fifth session of the Board and the second
meeting of the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee. All Directors and Supervisors were present at the
respective meetings. No Directors, Supervisors or the senior management declared that they could not guarantee nor
had any objection to the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of this report.

The annual financial report for the year ended 31 December 2024 prepared by the Company in accordance with PRC
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises was audited by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP ({2 7k & &l
CETENBEFE%RE @A), and an auditor’s report without reservation opinions was issued by them. All amounts
set out in this report are expressed in Renminbi (RMB) unless otherwise indicated.

The Company’s Chairman Mr. Chu Kairong and supervisor of finance Mr.Jia Fuhua declare that they warrant the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the financial report contained in this annual report.

Forward-looking statements including future plan and development strategy involved in this report do not constitute
the Company’s substantive commitment to investors. Investors should be aware of the investment risks.

Annual Report 2024 3

sM noqy

uoljewIoU| [eloueUIl ( 90oUBUIBAOK) 81BI0dI0D ( suonipuo) Buneiedo (




Chairman’s Statement

The return of spring heralds the beginning of the new year. At this wonderful moment when everything takes on a
new look, on behalf of Holly Futures, | would like to extend my most sincere new year wishes to our Shareholders,
partners and investors for your valuable care and support for us. My heartfelt gratitude also goes to all the staff for
your contribution and dedication.

2024 was a year full of both challenges and opportunities. In the complex and volatile market with strict regulation
policies, Holly Futures formulated the operation policy of “stabilising revenue, controlling costs, preventing risks and
strengthening assessment”, closely adhering to the main working line of “strengthening supervision, preventing risks
and promoting high-quality development”, to make progress against challenges. We have seen a steady upward
trend in our overall development.

In this year, we have accomplished remarkable growth in our operating results. In terms of financial data, in 2024,
we have seen a steady growth in operating income. Our total operating income in 2024 was RMB2.876 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 48%. Our net profit has also significantly increased to RMB29.8262 million,
an increase of 283% over previous year. What we have accomplished is the result of the united and concerted efforts
of all the staff of Holly Futures.

In terms of business development, we focus on “benchmarking” and “upgrading”. On the one hand, we continuously
consolidate the foundation of traditional brokerage business, stabilize our market position, and constantly optimize
the customer service experience, which enable us to gain more trust and support from customers; on the other hand,
we actively expand into innovative business areas and establish a development model of “using futures and spot
business as the initiating factor, trading as the core, and investment and research as the driving force”, providing
diversified supply chain integration services for real enterprises. Through in-depth implementation of tasks such as the
“Industry Comprehensive Visit and Profile”, we accurately grasp the needs of enterprises and have established long-
term and stable cooperative relationships with numerous real enterprises, contributing to enhancing the resilience
and security of the industrial chain and supply chain. For example, for large industrial customers, we implement the
strategy of “one enterprise, one team, one policy”, and tailor risk management solutions for them, effectively helping
enterprises avoid market risks and achieve stable development.

At the same time, we actively respond to the national rural revitalization strategy and continuously explore and
innovate in service models such as “insurance + futures”. In collaboration with institutions including banks,
insurance companies, and leading enterprises, we have innovatively launched the “insurance + futures + N” model,
through which we bring futures knowledge to rural areas, enhance the risk management awareness of farmers and
enterprises, provide financial support for the development of rural industries, and contribute to the in-depth and
practical implementation of rural revitalization.

In terms of internal management, we have been constantly improving the governance system and strengthening team
building. The leadership of the Party has been comprehensively enhanced, providing a solid political guarantee for the
development of the Company; our development approach has become increasingly clear, enabling us to identify the
right direction in market competition; the talent pool has been continuously expanded, and the professional qualities
and business capabilities of employees have been steadily improved, injecting a continuous stream of impetus into
the development of the Company.

4 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Chairman’s Statement

As an “A+H” listed company, Holly Futures has received the care and attention from all sectors of society. We deeply
feel the heavy responsibility on our shoulders and realize that we are far from perfect. Looking ahead to 2025, our
focus will fall into the following major aspects. Firstly, we will strengthen Party building and gather joint forces, and
give full play to the role of Party organizations as strong fortresses and the vanguard and exemplary role of Party
members, cohere with all the staff to work together for our shared aspiration. Secondly, we will clarify the direction of
our future development and concentrate on our main businesses, closely focus on serving the real economy, position
ourselves appropriately, continuously improve the quality and efficiency of services, and realize our own value through
assisting the development of real enterprises. Thirdly, we will build a competent team and enhance our capabilities,
continuously strengthen talent cultivation and introduction, improve the overall effectiveness of the team, and provide
talent support for the development of the Company. Fourthly, we will proactively take on social responsibilities through
effective actions, further enhance the effectiveness of serving the real economy, and contribute more to the national
economic development. Last but not least, we will attach importance to compliance and intensify supervision, build a
solid safety lifeline, strengthen the prevention and control of compliance risks, and ensure the stable operation of the
Company.

On this new journey, Holly Futures will always adhere to the original aspiration of serving the real economy, uphold the
concepts of innovation, coordination, and win-win cooperation. We will join hands with all Shareholders and partners

to forge ahead together and create a brighter future!

For the Year of the Snake, | wish you all the great luck of good health, promising career and infinite happiness to you
and your families!

Chu Kairong
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC
28 March 2025
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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following

meanings:

A Share Offering

A Share(s)

A Shareholder(s)
A Shares Prospectus

Articles of Association

AUM

Board

CFA or China Futures Association

CFFE

Chairman

Chief Risk Officer

Companies Ordinance

Company Law or PRC Company
Law

S Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

initial public offering of 100,777,778 A Shares of the Company which are
listed on the Main Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 5 August
2022. The Company has completed the A Share Offering and of which all of
its 657,300,000 Domestic Shares have been converted into A Shares, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 4 August 2022 for details
domestic listed ordinary shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each in the
share capital of the Company, which are listed and traded on the Main Board
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 001236). As at the end of the
Reporting Period, the Company has issued a total of 758,077,778 A Shares
holder(s) of A Shares

the prospectus in relation to the A Share Offering published on 5 July 2022

the Articles of Association of the Company currently in force, as amended,
supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time

the amount of assets under management

the board of directors of the Company

China Futures Association (T B Ei & %2 1 &)

China Financial Futures Exchange (f B¢ B EIE 2 5 F)
the chairman of the Company

the chief risk officer of the Company

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

Company Law of the PRC ({FE AR KEME A FE)), as amended,
supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time



Company, our Company, we or
Holly Futures

Controlling Shareholder, SOHO
Holdings

Corporate Governance Code

CSRC

DCE

Director(s)

Fixed income+

FOF

Definitions

Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (GA¥HAE R M BR A F]), a joint stock limited
company established in Jiangsu, the PRC under the laws of the PRC on 29
November 2012 and carrying on business in Hong Kong as “Holly Futures”,
its H Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and its A Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange

Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (L&E& # 2 EEE AR A F)
(formerly known as Jiangsu Silk Group Company Limited (T & & 44475 B
BBR72 7)), a wholly state-owned company established under the laws of the
PRC on 29 April 1994, which is the Controlling Shareholder and one of the
promoters of the Company

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules

China Securities Regulatory Commission
Dalian Commodity Exchange (K38 5422 5 F)
director(s) of the Company

an investment strategy that consists of two types of investments, namely
fixed income and floating income. Fixed income refers to the fixed income
part, which is mainly invested in fixed income investment such as bonds,
generally accounting for approximately 80% of the investment ratio. “+”
means to increase income, which is mainly invested in funds, stocks, etc.,
generally not exceeding 20%

a fund specially invests in other investment funds. It does not directly invest
in stocks or bonds. With its investment limited to other funds only, it holds
securitized assets such as stocks and bonds indirectly by holding other
securities investment funds, becoming a new type of fund that combines
fund product innovation with sales channel innovation

Annual Report 2024 7
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Definitions

Futures and Derivatives Law

GFE
Group, our Group, us or we

H Share Offering

H Share(s)

H Shareholder(s)

H Shares Prospectus

High Hope Corporation

High Hope International

HK$ or HKD or Hong Kong dollars

Holly Capital

8 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

the Futures and Derivatives Law of the People’s Republic of China,
implemented on 1 August 2022

the Guangzhou Futures Exchange
the Company and its subsidiaries

the global offering of 227,000,000 H Shares offered by the Company and
22,700,000 H Shares offering by the selling shareholders which are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 December 2015

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company
has issued a total of 249,700,000 H Shares

holder(s) of H Shares

the prospectus in relation to the H Share Offering published on 16 December
2015

Jiangsu High Hope International Group Corporation (T % & B B & [ i%
AR AR (formerly known as Jiangsu High Hope Corporation) (I &FE
SBR% (3 BBRAA)), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 13
October 1992 which was subsequently converted to a joint stock limited
company in 1994

Jiangsu High Hope International Group Co., Ltd. (LE#[EBEEEE AR A
Al), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 18
December 1996 and one of the promoters of the Company, which was de-
registered on 23 September 2015 as a result of the merger with High Hope
Corporation by way of absorption

the lawful currency of Hong Kong
Holly Capital Management Co., Ltd. GAEEAREIEFR AR, a limited

liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 25 June 2013
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company



Holly Corporation, SOHO Holly

Holly International Asset
Management

Holly International Financial

Holly Logistics

Holly Su Industrial

Hong Kong Stock Exchange or
HKEX

Hong Kong

Hong Rui Growth

Definitions

Soho Holly Corporation (85 shE X (3 BB 2 7)) (formerly known as Jiangsu
Holly Corporation ((L#ks5AZ M B MR A R]), a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on 30 June 1994 and one of the
promoters and a Shareholder of the Company

Holly International Asset Management Company Limited (543 BB & &= & 18
BBR A7) (formerly known as Holly Su Asset Management Company Limited
GLEREEBIEARAF), a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong with limited liability on 7 July 2016 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Holly International Financial, which is licensed to carry on Type 4 (advising
on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO, and changed its name in December 2019

Holly International Financial Holdings Limited (543 B & Bl I AR A 7))
(formerly known as Holly Su Futures (Hongkong) Co., Limited (SA#RERE (&
B)BBR/AR]), a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with
limited liability on 20 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company which is licensed to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities) and
Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities under the SFO, and
changed its name in December 2019

Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation (T#rsh¥BEE Y RE
[RA7A]) (formerly known as Jiangsu Pengcheng International Storage &
Transportation Company Limited (T#IET2EE B AR A ), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 12 February 1996
and one of the promoters and a Shareholder of the Company

Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. (IT&rsABE X ER A7), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 23 February 2011

and one of the promoters and a Shareholder of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Jiangsu Hong Rui Growth Venture Investment Co., Ltd. (T #ksAkmAk =A%
BB R A7), ajoint stock company of the Company

Annual Report 2024 9
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Definitions

Hong Rui New Era

Hongrui Venture Capital

Jiangsu AIC

Jiangsu Holly

Jiangsu SASAC

Jiangsu Securities Bureau

Listing Rules

lot

Model Code

MOF

10 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Hong Rui New Era Venture Investment Co., Ltd. (T# LI Al
EILEBMR AT, ajoint stock company of the Company

Jiangsu Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (T oAImEHZ IR EBR A
7)), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on
29 September 2002 and one of the promoters and a Shareholder of the
Company

Jiangsu Administration of Industry and Commerce (T & & LE{THEE D)

Jiangsu Holly Futures Brokerage Company Limited (T#rshA¥HIE&4H
R A7\]) (formerly known as Jiangsu Jinling Futures Brokerage Company
Limited (L& & EHEKL AR AR, Jiangsu Holly Futures Brokerage
Company Limited (T& A HIE &4 AR A7) and Jiangsu Holly Futures
Company Limited (I#sAZHEFRR A A]), a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on 31 July 1995 and the predecessor
of the Company and, where the context refers to any time prior to its
establishment, the business which its predecessors were engaged in

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
Jiangsu People’s Government (L& & ARBNBEBEEEEEBIELZES)

Jiangsu Securities Bureau of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (7
BEsEEEREZEGIHEER)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to

time

the standardized quantity of futures as set out by the PRC Futures Exchange,
and represents the minimum quantity of that futures that may be traded

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules

Ministry of Finance of the PRC (7 # A R F£ AN B0 B L 3F)



Net Capital

PRC Futures Exchanges

PRC or China

PTA

R&D

Report

Reporting Period

RMB or Renminbi

SAT

Settlement Reserve Funds

SFC

SFO

Definitions

equals net assets minus asset adjustment value plus liability adjustment value
minus the deposits which the clients fail to fully replenish minus/plus other
adjustment items recognised or approved by the CSRC

China Financial Futures Exchange ({ B & Bt 83 & 32 5 FfT), Dalian Commodity
Exchange (A3E RS 5 FfT), Shanghai Futures Exchange (/8 EIE 3 5F),
Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange (&1 3 5 F), Shanghai International
Energy Exchange (/8BRS H 01) and Guangzhou Futures
Exchange (B/NEIE R 5 F0)

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this report,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

pure terephthalic acid

research and development

this annual report for 2024 of the Company

the year ended 31 December 2024

the lawful currency of the PRC

State Administration of Taxation of the PRC (FF# A R A MBE KRR E4E )
unrestricted and unutilised cash balances reserved for the settlement
and clearing of the futures trading, which are deposited with the futures
exchanges and commercial banks. Settlement reserve funds include client
settlement reserve funds and our own settlement reserve funds

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

Annual Report 2024 11
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Definitions

Shanghai Mingda

Share(s)

Shareholder(s)

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
SHFE

SOHO Culture Group

State Councll
Supervisor(s)
Supervisory Committee
ZCE

Zhong Shan Company

QDLP

12 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Mingda Industrial (Group) Company Limited (_E/& 8 K& % (5 F)
BBR72 7)), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC
on 26 December 2002 and one of the promoters and a Shareholder of the
Company

A Share(s) and H Share(s)

holder(s) of the Shares

the Shenzhen Stock Exchange

Shanghai Futures Exchange

SOHO Culture Group Company Limited (# =Xt EBER A7) (formerly
known as Artall Culture Group Company Limited (EEX/LEBABRE A
A1), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 26
January 1999 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company’s Controlling
Shareholder

State Council of the PRC (2 A F& H #1 Bl B 7 B%)

supervisor(s) of the Company

supervisory committee of the Company

Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange (Z5 ) & 222 5 FFT)

Zhong Shan Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
in 1985, the shareholding of which is ultimately held by the People’s

Government of Jiangsu Province

Qualified Domestic Limited Partner
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Company Profile

Basic Information about the Company
Name of Company

Chinese name: SAERRERN AR AR (a joint stock limited company established in Jiangsu, the PRC
on 29 November 2012 under the PRC laws, and carrying on business in Hong Kong as
“HOLLY FUTURES”)

Chinese abbreviation (in the PRC): SAZHi &
English name: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Legal Representative

Mr. Chu Kairong

Authorized Representatives of the Company

Mr. Chu Kairong and Mr. Huang Haiging

Registered Capital

RMB1,007.777778 million

Qualifications for Businesses in China

Commodity futures brokerage, financial futures brokerage, futures investment consulting, asset management,
sales of funds, trading participant for stock options, inter-bank bond transactions

Head Office in China

Registered address of the Company: Building 3, No. 399 Jiang Dong Zhong Road, Jianye District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC (Postal code: 210019)
Office address of the Company: Building 3, No. 399 Jiang Dong Zhong Road, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC (Postal code: 210019)
Website of the Company: www.ftol.com.cn
Email address: zgb@ftol.com.cn

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Annual Report 2024 13
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Company Profile

Il. List of Board, Supervisory Committee and Special Committees

(8) Board
Executive Directors Mr. Chu Kairong
Mr. Zhao Weixiong (Appointed on 6 September 2024)
Non-executive Directors Mr. Xue Binghai
Ms. Jiang Haiying (Appointed on 18 February 2025)
Mr. Jiang Lin (Resigned on 18 February 2025)
Independent non-executive Directors Mr. Huang Dechun

Mr. Lo Wah Wai
Mr. Zhang Hongfa

(9) Special Committees of the Board

Audit Committee Mr. Lo Wah Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Xue Binghai
Mr. Huang Dechun

Remuneration Committee Mr. Huang Dechun (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Kairong (Appointed on 6 September 2024)
Mr. Zhang Hongfa

= =

. Zhang Hongfa (Chairman)
. Chu Kairong (Appointed on 6 September 2024)
Mr. Huang Dechun

Nomination Committee M

S

Risk Management Committee Mr. Zhao Weixiong (Chairman) (Appointed on 6 September 2024)
Mr. Xue Binghai
Ms. Jiang Haiying (Appointed on 18 February 2025)
Mr. Lo Wah Wai (Appointed on 6 September 2024)
Mr. Zhang Hongfa
Mr. Chu Kairong (Resigned on 6 September 2024)
Mr. Jiang Lin (Resigned on 18 February 2025)

Strategic and ESG Committee Mr. Chu Kairong (Chairman) (Appointed on 6 September 2024)
Mr. Zhao Weixiong (Appointed on 6 September 2024)
Mr. Xue Binghai

. Jiang Lin (Appointed on 6 September 2024 and resigned on

18 February 2025)

Ms. Jiang Haiying (Appointed on 18 February 2025)

Mr. Huang Dechun (Appointed on 6 September 2024)

Mr. Lo Wah Wai (Appointed on 6 September 2024)

Mr. Zhang Hongfa

<
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ll.
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IV.
(13)

(14)

Company Profile

Supervisory Committee

Mr. Huang Dongyan (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee) (Appointed on 6 September 2024)

Mr. Chen Liang

Ms. Gong Qi (Appointed on 18 February 2025)

Ms. Yu Hong (Chairlady of the Supervisory Committee) (Resigned on 17 July 2024, and the resignation came
into effect on 6 September 2024)

Ms. Zhang Lei (Resigned on 18 February 2025)

Contact Information
Secretary to the Board

Secretary to the Board: Mr. Huang Haiging

Address: Building 3, No. 399 Jiang Dong Zhong Road, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
(Postal code: 210019)

Tel: 025-52278884

Email: zgb@ftol.com.cn

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Huang Haiging and Ms. Chan Yin Wah

Other Information

Statutory Audit Institutions of the Company

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP ({E7k R A& 5t BT B IEFTEFR LB A )

Public Interest Entity Auditor recognised in accordance with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
Legal Advisers of the Company

As to Hong Kong Law:  DeHeng Law Offices (Hong Kong) LLP
As to PRC Law: Allbright Law Offices Nanjing
Jingtian & Gongcheng Law Firm in Beijing
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Company Profile

(15) Principal Bankers

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation
Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

Bank of Nanjing Company Limited

China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Hangzhou Co., Ltd.

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China) Limited
Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited

V. Brief Description of the Company’s Shares

Types of Shares Listed Exchanges Stock Code Share Registrar
A Shares Shenzhen Stock 001236 China Securities Depository and
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited,
Shenzhen Branch
H Shares Hong Kong Stock 03678 Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Exchange Services Limited

16 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Company Profile

VI. Development History
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The Company is formerly known as Jiangsu Jinling Futures Brokerage Company Limited (7T &k < B 2 &5 454
BBR A7) (“dinling Futures”), which was established on 31 July 1995 upon the approval of the CSRC. Upon
its establishment, its registered capital was RMB10.00 million and its equity interest was held as to 60% by
Jiangsu Metallurgy Commodities Trading Market (T & )8 ¥ ER 5 5) (‘Metallurgy Commodities”)
and as to 40% by Jiangsu Nonferrous Metal Industrial Company Limited (T &% B &8 T 22 7)) (“Jiangsu
Nonferrous”).

In 1999, 60% equity interest as held by Metallurgy Commaodities and 30% equity interest as held by Jiangsu
Nonferrous in Jinling Futures were transferred to Jiangsu Crafts Import & Export Trading Group Co., Ltd. (T
A TERENNEBRRHGBRAR) (Jiangsu Crafts”, and now known as Jiangsu Holly Corporation (T &
sLERD B BRAT]), and 10% equity interest as held by Jiangsu Nonferrous in Jinling Futures was transferred
to Jiangsu Pengcheng International Storage & Transportation Company Limited (T #/lET2 BB FEE B R A 7))
(“Pengcheng International”, and now known as Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation (JT %x5h %
B m AR A 7). Upon the transfer, the registered capital of the Company was RMB10.00 million, of which
RMB9.00 million or 90% and RMB1.00 million or 10% were contributed by Jiangsu Crafts and Pengcheng
International respectively.

In 1999, the Company changed its name to Jiangsu Holly Futures Brokerage Company Limited (T #r A3 HA
B4 B R AT]). Its registered capital increased to RMB30.00 million, and RMB19.20 million and RMB0.80
million of the capital increase were contributed by Jiangsu Crafts and Pengcheng International respectively.
After the completion of the capital increase, 94% of its registered capital or RMB28.20 million and 6% or
RMB1.80 million were contributed by Jiangsu Crafts and Pengcheng International respectively.

In 2001, Holly Corporation transferred 48% equity interests in Jiangsu Holly to Jiangsu Holly International
Group Investment Management Company Limited (T#fsA¥ BB EBIREEEREGMRAR]) (“Holly
Investment”). After the equity transfer, 48% of the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly or RMB14.40 million
was contributed by Holly Investment; 46% or RMB13.80 million by Holly Corporation; and 6% or RMB1.80
million by Pengcheng International.

In 2006, retain profit of RMB8.00 million of Jiangsu Holly was converted into paid-up capital and the registered
capital of Jiangsu Holly increased to RMB38.00 million. After the completion of the capital increase, 48%
of the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly or RMB18.24 million was contributed by Holly Investment; 46% or
RMB17.48 million by Holly Corporation; and 6% or RMB2.28 million by Pengcheng International.

uoljewIoU| [eloueUIl ( 90oUBUIBAOK) 81BI0dI0D ( suonipuo) Buneiedo (
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In 2007, the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly increased to RMB50.00 million, and RMB3.195 million,
RMB3.955 million, RMB2.45 million and RMB2.40 million of the capital increase were contributed by
Holly Investment, Holly Corporation, Hongrui Venture Capital and Shanghai Mingda respectively. After
the completion of the capital increase, 42.87% of the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly or RMB21.435
million was contributed by Holly Investment; 42.87% or RMB21.435 million by Holly Corporation; 4.56% or
RMB2.28 million by Pengcheng International, 4.90% or RMB2.45 million by Hongrui Venture Capital; and
4.80% or RMB2.40 million by Shanghai Mingda. In 2008, the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly increased
to RMB108.00 million, of which RMB20.00 million was converted from audited capital reserve for 2007 of
RMB4.92 million and retained profit of RMB15.08 million. Meanwhile, shareholders of Jiangsu Holly made
cash contribution of RMB38.00 million to the capital. After the capital increase, the shareholding of each
shareholder remained unchanged.

In 2009, the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly increased to RMB138 million. After the completion of the
capital increase, 44.42% of the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly or RMB61.2996 million was contributed
by Holly Investment; 44.42% or RMB61.2996 million by Holly Corporation; 3.57% or RMB4.9248 million by
Pengcheng International, 3.83% or RMB5.292 million by Hongrui Venture Capital; and 3.76% or RMB5.184
million by Shanghai Mingda.

In 2011, the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly increased to RMB380 million. After the completion of the
capital increase, 21.75% of the registered capital of Jiangsu Holly or RMB82.65 million was contributed by
Holly Investment; 21.75% or RMB82.65 million by Holly Corporation; 21.34% or RMB81.0812 million by
SOHO Holdings; 21.11% or RMB80.218 million by Holly Su Industrial; 10.00% or RMB38.00 million by High
Hope International; 1.39% or RMB5.292 million by Hongrui Venture Capital; 1.36% or RMB5.184 million by
Shanghai Mingda; and 1.30% or RMB4.9248 million by Holly Logistics. In 2011, Jiangsu Holly changed its
name into Jiangsu Holly Futures Company Limited (T #k5A2£EFE B R A 7)), where its registered capital and
shareholding structure remained unchanged.

In 2012, the 21.75% equity interest in Jiangsu Holly as held by Holly Investment was transferred to SOHO
Holdings, and SOHO Holdings held 43.09% equity interest in Jiangsu Holly after the transfer.

On 29 November 2012, the whole of Jiangsu Holly was transformed into Holly Futures Co., Ltd. After the
overall transformation, the total share capital of the new company amounted to 680,000,000 shares, of which
292,992,674 shares or 43.09% were held by SOHO Holdings; 147,900,000 shares or 21.75% were held by
Holly Corporation; 143,548,000 Shares or 21.11% were held by Holly Su Industrial; 68,000,000 Shares or
10.00% were held by High Hope International; 9,469,895 Shares or 1.39% were held by Hongrui Venture
Capital; 9,276,631 Shares or 1.36% were held by Shanghai Mingda; and 8,812,800 Shares or 1.30% were
held by Holly Logistics.

In 2015, High Hope International was deregistered as a result of the merger with High Hope Corporation

by way of absorption. The 68,000,000 shares of the Company as held by High Hope International were
transferred to High Hope Corporation.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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On 18 August 2015, the CSRC issued the Reply on Approving Holly Futures Co., Ltd.’s Offering of Overseas
Listed Foreign Shares (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2015] No. 1963) (B IZ LR ERMD AR A REITHEIN LT
SNERRHHETE ) (FBESEFRI[2015] 19635%)) to approve the Company’s offering of no more than 261,050,000
overseas listed foreign shares, all of which are ordinary shares of a nominal value of RMB1 each. On 30
December 2015, the shares issued by the Company overseas were listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock abbreviation: Holly Futures; and stock code: 03678). According to the Reply
Concerning Transfer of State-owned Equities of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (Guo Zi Chan Quan [2015] No. 411)
(KRR SAEBIE RN AR A FIB A REFA R EMILE) (B EER[2015] 41157)) by State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council, after the completion of such offering of
the Company, the state-owned shareholders Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (L& & grsx ke
B AR AR, Jiangsu High Hope International Group Co., Ltd. (T &kfEBEERE @7 AR A 7)), Jiangsu
Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (I#ksAInRHE A2 E AR A R]) and Jiangsu Holly International Logistics
Corporation (‘T&x5L% BB AR A A)) transferred their respective 17,535,897 shares, 4,069,866 shares,
566,782 shares and 527,455 shares (22,700,000 shares in total) to National Council for Social Security
Fund. Upon the listing, the total share capital of the Company amounted to 907,000,000 shares, which were
held by Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (T& & EHRIEAEREBRAF)) as to 275,456,777 shares
or 30.37%, by Jiangsu Holly Corporation ((T#&kshZE D AR F]) as to 147,900,000 shares or 16.31%,
by Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. (T#kcA#RE Z AR A 7)) as to 143,548,000 shares or 15.83%, by
Jiangsu High Hope International Group Co., Ltd. (L& &SI S E AR BR A F]) as to 63,930,134 shares
or 7.05%, by Jiangsu Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (T &,k EIAIZEKREBRR A7) as to 8,903,113
shares or 0.98%, by Shanghai Mingda Industrial (Group) Company Limited (/&8 K E % (EE)ER A R) as
t0 9,276,631 shares or 1.02%, by Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation (T #x5A B R AR A
7)) as to 8,285,345 shares or 0.91%, by Jiangsu Holly Yongchang (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (T & 5A %k & (&
75)EBR 72 F)) as to 8,300,000 H Shares or 0.92% and by public shareholders of H Shares as to 241,400,000
H Shares or 26.61%.

On 23 June 2022, according to the “Approval of the Initial Public Offering of Shares by Holly Futures Co.,
Limited” (Securities Regulatory Permit No. [2022] 1135) approved by the CSRC, the Company was permitted
to issue up to 100,777,778 A Shares. On 5 August 2022, the A Shares of the Company were officially
listed and trading on the Main Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with the stock code 001236. Upon
completion of the issuance, the registered capital and share capital of the Company are RMB1,007,777,778,
with a total of 758,077,778 A Shares and 249,700,000 H Shares were issued, which were held by Jiangsu
SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (T & g IE i EEHR A7) as to 275,456,777 A Shares or 27.33%; by
Jiangsu Holly Corporation (T &5k 25 AR A 7)) as to 147,900,000 A Shares or 14.68%; by Jiangsu Holly
Su Industrial Co., Ltd. (T#f5LERE £ BR A 7)) as to 143,548,000 A Shares or 14.24%; by Jiangsu High
Hope International Group Co., Ltd. (TERIERBIFREE D BRAT)]) as to 63,930,134 A Shares or 6.34%;
by Shanghai Mingda Industrial (Group) Company Limited (/&8 KB (EB)AR A R) as to 9,276,631
A Shares or 0.92%; by Jiangsu Hongrui Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (T &k oA RHZEIEREBRAR]) as to
8,903,113 A Shares or 0.88%; by Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation (/T &k54 % B BR A
7)) as to 8,285,345 A Shares or 0.82%; and by public shareholders of H Shares as to a total of 249,700,000
H Shares or 24.78%.
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VII. Organizational Structure
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VIIl. Subsidiaries

Registered and office

address

Room 201, Block A,
No. 1 Qianwan Road 1,
Qianhai Shenzhen Hong
Kong Cooperative District,
Shenzhen, the PRC

Holly International ~~ Room 03-05, 20/F, Jubilee
Financial Centre, No. 46 Gloucester

Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Holly Capital”

Principal activities

Basis trading, cooperation
hedging, warehouse
recelpts senvices, OTC
derivatives husiness, market
making business

dealing in futures contracts,
dealing in securities

Company Profile

Place of

incorporation

and principal

place of Date of

Registered Shareholding

operation incorporation  capital ratio Remarks

PRC 25 June RMB500 milion ~ 100%
2013

20 Qctober
2011

Hong Kong HKD240milon~ 100%

Holly Infemational ~ Room 1301, 13/F, Jublee Asset management, aovising  Hong Kong Ty HKD20millon ~ 100% Established and wholly
Asset Centre, No. 46 Gloucester on securties 2016 owned by Holly
Management Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong International Financial

Note:
1. Holly Capital is registered as domestic enterprise under PRC law, whose legal entity is limited liability company.
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IX. Distribution of Futures Branches and Sub-branches

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had established 33 futures branches and 5 sub-branches

in the PRC with the approval from the CSRC. The details are set out in the following table:

Serial

Branch/

No. Sub-branch

1

10

11

12

13

Beijing Branch

Changshu
Branch

Changzhou
Branch
Changsha
Branch
Chongaing
Branch
Fuzhou Branch

Guangzhou

Branch

Hangzhou
Branch

Hefei Branch

Huai’an Branch

Jinan Branch

Jiangyin Branch

Lianyungang
Branch

Business Address

Unit B2, 901, 9th Floor, 118 Jianguo Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing City

Room A617, A618, A620, No. 45 Haiyu North Road
(Changshu World Trade Center), Changshu City,
Jiangsu Province

Room 1003, Building 2, Tianning Times Square,
19 Zhulin West Road, Changzhou City

1405, Changfang Dongjun Building, 99 Renmin East
Road, Furong District, Changsha City

Unit 5, 18/F, 1 Qingyun Road, Jiangbei District,
Chongaing City

Unit 1907-1908, 19th Floor of Lippo Tianma Plaza,
1 Wuyibei Road, Gulou District, Fuzhou City,
Fujian Province

Room 2208 (self-designated), 22nd Floor, 5-32/F,
No. 406-1, Huasui Road, Tianhe District,
Guangzhou City

Unit 1007, Block 1, Shipping International
Administration Mansion, Shangcheng District,
Hangzhou City

Room 707, Block 1, Wucai Commercial Plaza,
No. 129 Wangjiang West Road, Shushan District,
Hefei City

Room 1111, 1112, office building of Huaihai City
One, Qinghe District, Huai’an City

910, Tower C, Shimao International Plaza, Daminghu
Sub-district, Lixia District, Jinan City, Shandong
Province

Unit A, 14/F, Hailan International Trade Building,
No. 118 Chengjiang Middle Road, Jiangyin City

Room 907 & 908, No. 26. Hailian East Road,
Haizhou District, Lianyugang City, Jiangsu
Province

Date of
Establishment

2 February 2005

23 July 2013

24 September 2002

11 December 2008

30 December 2011

10 November 2008

8 March 2011

20 February 2008

26 December 2007

8 May 2012

7 August 2009

23 July 2013

16 September 2011
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Serial

Branch/

No. Sub-branch

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Nanning Branch

Nantong
Branch
Ningbo Branch

Qingdao
Branch

Shanghai
Branch
Shenyang
Branch

Suzhou Branch

Sugian Branch

Taiyuan Branch

Taizhou Branch

Wuxi Branch

Wuhu Branch

Xiamen Branch

Xi’an Branch

Xuzhou Branch

Yancheng
Branch

Company Profile

Business Address

No. 2518, No. 2519, No. 2520, Building 1 Nanning
Qingxiu Wanda Plaza West, No. 118 Dongge
Road, Qingxiu District, Nanning City

No. 6 Yaogang Road, Nantong City

Building 1, Wante Business Center, High-tech Zone,
Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province

Room 2301, Building No. 1, No. 10 Xianggang
Zhong Road, Shinan District, Qingdao City,
Shandong Province

Room 1210, 1211, No. 1589 Century Avenue, China
(Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone

Unit 05-06, 5/F, Zhuoyue Building, No. 10 Huigong
Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang City

Room 2160, Bojin Building, No. 1338 Sanxiang
Road, Gusu District, Suzhou City

No. 301, 303, 305, 307, 3/F, Zone B, Sugian Daily
Newspaper, No. 64 Development Avenue, Sugian
City, Jiangsu Province

Room 608, Building 3, No. 106 Fuxi Street, Sangiao
Sub-district, Xinghualing District, Taiyuan City,
Shanxi Province

Room 205, Room 106, No.607, Gulou South Road,
Hailing District, Taizhou City

Room 1706, 1707, No. 531 Zhongshan Road,
Wuxi City

Room 1004, 1005, Weixing Times Financial Centre,
Jinghu District, Wuhu City, Anhui Province

Room 1304, No. 820 Xiahe Road, Siming District,
Xiamen City, Fujian Province

Room G, 13/F, New Times Plaza, No. 55 Beida
Street, Lianhu District, Xi’an City

Room 1-3903, 3904, 3905, Podium Building A,
Suning Plaza, 29 Huaihai East Road, Gulou
District, Xuzhou City

Room 3A07, 3A08, 4/F, Huabangdong Mansion,
No. 1 Renmin South Road, Yancheng City

Date of
Establishment

19 September 2008

6 September 2007

7 July 2011

26 November 2007

15 August 2007

11 October 2010

18 December 2001

5 May 2010

2 February 2012

3 July 2008

12 December 2003

28 June 2012

18 November 2013

10 April 2009

4 January 2008

16 June 2009
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Serial Branch/
No. Sub-branch

30 Yangzhou
Branch

31 Yixing Branch

32 Zhangjiagang
Branch

33 Zhenjiang
Branch

34 Beijing Sub-
branch

35 Northeast Sub-
branch

36 Nanjing Sub-
branch

37 Shanghai Sub-
branch

38 Zhengzhou
Sub-branch

Business Address

Room 808, Zijin Plaza, No. 10 Wenchang West
Road, Yangzhou City

Room 1501 & 1502, No. 113, Wanda Plaza, Yicheng
Street, Yixing City

No. 178 Chengbei Road, Zhangjiagang City

17/F, No. 8 Guan Cheng Road, Runzhou District,
Zhenjiang City

Unit C1, 901, 9th Floor, 118 Jianguo Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing City

Room 2310, Dalian Futures Building, Block A, Dalian
International Finance Center, No. 129 Exhibition
Road, Sha He Kou District, Dalian City

4th Floor, Holly Tower, No. 50 Zhonghua Road,
Nanjing

Unit 01, 23rd Floor (Nominal Floor, Actual Floor:
21st Floor), No. 759 Yanggao South Road, China
(Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone

Room 1303, Futures Tower, No. 30 Business Outer
Ring Road, Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou
Area of Henan Pilot Free Trade Zone

Date of
Establishment

25 October 2002

23 August 2013

6 September 2013

31 October 2008

24 January 2017

26 November 2008

6 December 2016

15 October 2016

1 July 2008

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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. Major accounting data and financial indicators

sM noqy

(Unless otherwise specified, the accounting data and financial indicators contained in this annual report are

prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the MOF, financial
data are presented in whole figure. Difference exists in the mantissa between the total of some tables and the
direct addition of various values which is due to rounding of numbers.)

Major accounting data and financial indices for the past five years

2024 as compared to 2023

Change in
[n RMB’0,000 2023 amount
Total operating income 287,579 194,322 93,257 48% 152,775 163,986 156,138
Total profit 3,829 1,047 2,182 266% 1,591 10,921 9,270
Net profit - attributable to
shareholders of the Company 2,983 779 2,204 283% 1,238 8,021 6,632

Net cash generated from
operating activities

inflows/(outflows) 234,808  -161,715 396,523 245% 192,509 123,561 80,307
Earnings per share

(RMB/share)
Basic earnings per share 0.0296 0.0077 0.0132 0.0884 0.0731
Diluted earnings per share 0.0296 0.0077 0.0132 0.0884 0.0731

Profitability indicators
Weighted average return on

net assets 1.60% 0.42% 0.71% 4.84% 4.07%
2024 as compared to 2023

As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31

Scale indicators December  December  Changein December  December ~ December

(RMB’0,000) 2024 2023 amount Change 2022 2021 2020

Total assets 1,169,937 931,308 238,629 26% 1,048,393 808,310 634,916

Total liabilities 982,259 746,558 235,701 32% 864,660 640,093 470,249

Customers’ equity payable 883,889 684,087 199,802 29% 807,393 593,063 428,784
Equity attributable to

shareholders of the Company 187,678 184,749 2,929 2% 183,732 168,217 164,667

Total share capital ('000) 1,007,778 1,007,778 1,007,778 907,000 907,000

Net assets value per share
attributable to shareholders

uoljewIoU| [eloueUIl ( 90oUBUIBAOK) 81BI0dI0D ( suonipuo) Buneiedo (

of the Company
(RMB per share) 1.86 1.83 1.82 1.85 1.82
Gearing ratio Mot 34% 25% 24% 22% 20%

Note 1: Gearing ratio = (Total liabilities — Customers’ equity payable)/(Total assets — Customers’ equity payable)
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Net profit — attributable to Operating income
shareholders of the Company (RMB100 million) a8
(RMB10 million)
8.02
6.63 19.43
156 1640 oo
2.98
1.24
- 0.78
|
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Weighted average return on net assets Gearing ratio
4.84% 34%
4.07%
249 5%
22%
20%
1.60%
0.71%
- 0.42%
e
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Scale indicators
(RMB100 million) 116.99
104.84
93.13
80.83
63.49 I
16.47 16.82 18.37 18.47 18.77

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

™ Total assets ™ Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
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Net capital and relevant risk control indicators of the
Company

The Net capital of the Company as at the end of 2024 amounted to RMB914 million, representing an increase
of RMB73 million as compared with RMB841 million as at the end of 2023. During the Reporting Period,
various risk control indicators of the Company including the net capital met regulatory requirements. The
following table sets out the net capital and the major risk control indicators prepared by the Company in
accordance with PRC Accounting Standards and the regulatory requirements in the PRC.

As of As of

31 December 31 December
2024 2023 Warning level - Supervision level
Net capital (RMB million) 914 841 36 30
Net capital/total risk capital reserves (%) 253% 266% 120% 100%
Net capital/net assets (%) 48% 45% 24% 20%
Current assets/current liabilities (%) 449% 439% 120% 100%
Total liabilities/net assets (%) 13% 18% 120% 150%

Proprietary settlement reserve funds

(RMB million) 674 736 - 10
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Industry and market review

In 2024, amid a complex global economic landscape marked by persistent geopolitical conflicts and rising
trade protectionism, the futures market faced heightened uncertainties. Against this backdrop, China’s futures
industry proactively navigated challenges and seized opportunities, achieving remarkable progress in terms of
regulatory policies, market scale, variety innovation, opening-up, and serving the real economy.

Regulatory Policies: strengthening supervision, preventing risks and
advancing high-quality development

On 30 September 2024, the CSRC, National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology (MIIT), Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs (MARA), Ministry of
Commerce (MOFCOM), People’s Bank of China (PBOC), and National Financial Regulatory Administration
(NFRA) jointly issued the Opinions on Strengthening Supervision and Preventing Risks to Promote the High-
quality Development of the Futures Market (BAR IR EEE D &SRB REMEMSREEERMER)). The
Opinion deploys 17 key measures in 8 aspects, aiming to promote the establishment of an all-round and
multi-dimensional framework for the development and supervision of futures market. From the perspective of
overall requirements, it has been made clear that Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics
for a New Era shall serve as the guidance, relevant spirit of conferences shall be thoroughly implemented,
work arrangements shall be carried out, and it emphasizes the principles of adhering to political guidance,
goal orientation, problem orientation and overall consideration, indicating the direction for the development of
the futures market. In terms of specific measures, strictly supervise futures trading activities, strengthen the
comprehensive and in-depth supervision of all kinds of trading, and enhance the whole-process supervision
of high-frequency trading; rigorously crack down on illegal and non-compliant behavior in the futures market,
resolutely suppress excessive speculation, and rigorously investigate and deal with illegal and non-compliant
behavior; enhance the whole-process supervision of futures companies, strengthen the equity management
and corporate governance of futures companies, regulate the operating activities of futures companies and
their subsidiaries, and improve their long-term mechanism for risk elimination; strengthen risk prevention of
the futures market, consolidate its risk prevention and early warning system, and improve the capabilities
of the futures market to respond to and handle risks; enhance the quality and efficiency of the commodity
futures market in serving the real economy, fully leverage the functionalities of commodity futures and options
varieties, and serve the high-quality development of the real economy through the linkage between futures
and spot markets; develop the financial futures and derivatives market prudently, raise the development level
of the financial futures and derivatives market, and deepen regulatory reform of derivatives supervision in
the capital market; steadily promote the opening-up of the futures market, continuously expand high-level
institutional opening-up, and strengthen the construction of regulatory capacity in an open environment. The
introduction of this series of policies has laid a solid foundation for the healthy and stable development of the
futures market.
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Market scale: trading volume decreased, trading turnover increased, and the
number of clients and total funds reached new all-time highs

According to the China Futures Association, from January to December 2024, China’s futures market
realised a cumulative trading volume of 7,729 million lots and a cumulative trading turnover of RMB619.26
trillion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.08% and an increase of 8.93%, respectively. Although the
trading volume declined, the increase in trading turnover indicated that the market remains highly active with
substantial capital participation. The top three varieties of each commodity and futures exchanges by trading
turnover are as follows: gold, silver and copper for the SHFE; soda ash, rapeseed oil, and glass for the ZCE;
palm oil, soybean meal and soybean oil for the DCE; and lithium carbonate futures, industrial silicon futures,
and polycrystalline silicon futures for the GFE; and the top three varieties of each exchange by trading volume
were as follows: rebar, silver, fuel oil for the SHFE; soda ash, glass, and rapeseed meal for the ZCE; soybean
meal, polyvinyl chloride (PVC) and palm oil for DCE, industrial silicon futures, lithium carbonate futures and
industrial silicon options for the GFE. China Financial Futures Exchange achieved a trading volume of 253
million lots for financial futures and options, accounting for 3.28% of the national market, and a trading
turnover of RMB190.93 trillion, accounting for 30.83% of the national market, with the top 3 varieties in terms
of trading turnover being the CSI 1000 Stock Index Futures, CSI 300 Stock Index Futures, and the CSI 500
Stock Index Futures. (Source: Official website of China Futures Association)

Regarding clients and capital, as of the end of December 2024, the total number of effective customers in
the entire market exceeded 2.5 million for the first time, hitting a record high and representing a year-on-
year increase of 13%, and the number of futures account openings throughout 2024 amounted to 870,000,
marking a year-on-year increase of 18%. An increasing number of industrial customers and medium- and
long-term funds are actively participating in the futures market. The total number of corporate customers
increased by 116% compared to five years ago, and the number of corporate customer account openings in
2024 increased by 61% compared to five years ago.The total amount of funds was approximately RMB1.63
trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.3%. Against the backdrop of policy guidance and improved
expectations of economic recovery, medium- and long-term funds are gradually entering the market, driving
the total amount of funds in the futures market to grow steadily. (Source: Official website of China Futures
Market Monitoring Center)

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Variety innovation: 15 new varieties listed, continuously improving the
product ecosystem

In 2024, China’s futures market continued to make great efforts in variety innovation, with 15 newly listed
varieties that year. As of now, China’s futures market has listed nearly 150 futures and options products,
extensively covering major sectors of the national economy, including agricultural products, metals, energy,
chemicals, building materials, shipping, and finance. The listing of lead, nickel, tin, and alumina options on
the Shanghai Futures Exchange (SHFE) has achieved full coverage of non-ferrous metal options, marking
a significant step in SHFE’s efforts to accelerate the construction of a world-class exchange. Following the
successful listing of industrial silicon and lithium carbonate futures, the Guangzhou Futures Exchange (GFEX)
has launched polysilicon futures and options, its third new energy metal product. In the agricultural sector,
the Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange (CZCE) has introduced red date options, while the Dalian Commodity
Exchange (DCE) has launched options for eggs, corn starch, and live hogs. These options products, launched
alongside their corresponding futures contracts, provided related industries with a complete derivatives
toolchain covering raw materials and products, futures and options, thereby enhancing the overall risk
management capabilities of the industries.

Opening-up: significant progress and enhanced foreign clients’ engagement

In 2024, the futures market made positive progress in opening up. In terms of the number of varieties,
China has introduced overseas traders to 24 domestic specific varieties, and effective from March 2025,
the number of products eligible for trading by Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors (QFIl and RQFII) will
increase from 46 to 75, with 29 additional overseas trading products being added to the list; in terms of the
number of customers, the number of overseas clients has been growing steadily, and by the end of 2024, the
number of effective foreign clients increased by 17% year-on-year; in terms of trading activity, foreign clients’
engagement continued to rise, with open interest held by foreign clients rising by 28% year-on-year as of the
end of 2024. This reflects the expanding global influence of China’s futures market,as an increasing number
of global investors engage in the market, which not only inject fresh capital and vitality into the market but also
contribute to strengthening China’s pricing power and global voice in the futures industry. Their involvement
not only injects liquidity and dynamism but also enhances China’s pricing power and leadership in shaping
international futures market benchmarks.
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Serving the real economy: significant functional advancements and the
“futures +” model driving industrial development

As a vital component of the financial market, the futures market played a pivotal role in serving the real
economy. Leveraging its price discovery and risk management functions, the futures market enabled real
enterprises to better navigate market fluctuations and optimise production and operation planning. In 2024,
various futures exchanges and futures companies actively advanced the linkage between futures and spot
markets, formulated and executed action plans to strengthen engagement with industrial clients, continuously
optimised the institutional environment for corporate hedging transactions, steadily promoted portfolio margin,
refined the rules for market maker management, and reduced the hedging cost of enterprises. For example,
in the field of agricultural products, the “Futures + Insurance” model continued to be promoted in depth,
helping farmers avoid price risks and ensure stable incomes; in the industrial field, the futures market provided
enterprises with risk management instruments for raw material procurement and product sales, facilitating their
stable production and operation. In addition, the futures companies also leveraged their professional expertise
to provide comprehensive derivative services with better quality for real enterprises. They conducted in-depth
trend monitoring and forward-looking research and judgment of key commodity price-volume indicators,
established comprehensive analysis systems for futures and spot, on-and off-exchange and domestic and
international markets, and enhanced their capabilities to interpret macroeconomic trends through futures and
vice versa, ultimately contributing to macroeconomic governance.

Looking back on 2024, the futures industry forged ahead in a complex and ever-changing market
environment and achieved remarkable results. The continuous improvement of regulatory policies ensured
the healthy development of the market, and the steady growth of market scale, the continuous advancement
of variety innovation, the active expansion of opening-up, and the significant enhancement of the ability to
serve the real economy all signifies that China’s futures market is steadily moving towards the goal of high-
quality development. Looking ahead to 2025, with the expected full release of the management measures
supporting the Futures and Derivatives Law and the gradual implementation of specialized business policies
for various business lines, the futures industry ecosystem will be further optimised, and the market is expected
to embrace new development opportunities and play an even more important role in serving the real economy
and facilitating the implementation of national strategies.

Business Review

The Group engages in the futures industry. The operating results of futures companies are correlated with the
trend of the securities and futures market, and the operating income and profit level of the futures industry
is strongly cyclical due to the macroeconomic impact. The Company’s futures business is also dependent
on and benefits from China’s economic growth and the development and performance of China’s capital
markets, which are affected by various factors such as the economic environment, regulatory policies,
investors’ risk appetite and international markets.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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As of 31 December 2024, total assets of the Group amounted to RMB11,699 million, representing an increase
of 25.62% as compared to the beginning of the period. Net assets attributable to the Group amounted to
RMB1,877 million, representing an increase of 1.59% as compared to the beginning of the period. In 2024,
the Company achieved a total operating income of RMB2,876 million, a total profit of RMB38.2890 million and
a net profit of RMB29.8262 million, representing year-on-year increases of 47.99%, 265.63% and 282.80%.
Average daily customer equity rose 11.30% year-on-year. Customer equity rose 29.21% at the end versus the
beginning of the period. Its turnover from brokerage increased by 37.82% compared with the same period last
year. Trading volume rose 8.36% year-on-year. The Company was awarded more than 40 honors, including
the Best Futures Company of China ( El&FEHIE 2 7l) and Jiangsu Model Enterprise of Corporate Cocial
Responsibility (T &k (b 34t & & (T 4h%0),

The Group is mainly engaged in futures brokerage, asset management, commodity trading and risk
management, and financial asset investment. During the Reporting Period, there was no significant change in
the nature of the Group’s principal business.

The futures brokerage business

The Company’s futures brokerage business includes the provision of brokerage services in respect to
commodity and financial futures available at all futures exchanges in the PRC, and receiving handling fees
from clients. As of 31 December 2024, the Company had 38 branches and sub-branches located in several
municipalities, in Jiangsu Province, and in other economically developed cities in the PRC.

The Company has achieved growth in its brokerage business against the trend through multiple measures. It
enhanced the integration of resources, and optimised the layout of its branches by establishing the “Industry
and Institutional Service Department”, for strategic industrial clients and leading enterprises, it mobilized high-
quality resources of the Company to render tailored services with high quality through “a unified approach
with multi-faceted support” while in line with the principle of “one enterprise, one group, one strategy”.
The Company has been consistently propelling the development of fintech and digital finance. It has been
steadily enhancing the data base and iteratively upgrading the HOLLY FUTURES App and mini-programs to
render more convenient services to customers. Training courses such as the “Weekly Lecture Hall (B8 K&
&) and “Fortnightly Talks (¥ A#)” were organised to enhance the professional capabilities of employees.
The Company launched the first “Holly Futures Cup (5AEf#1)” real-account trading competition, along
with performance management measures for functional department and evaluation schemes for business
personnel, which were centered around business growth and were designed to stimulate the enthusiasm for
business development. In 2024, the number of accounts opened by the Company increased by 19.2% year-
on-year, and the average daily equity of corporate and institutional clients accounted for 59%.
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In 2024, The Group’s net brokerage fee income was RMB173 million, a decrease of 12.04% compared to
RMB197 million in 2023. Interest income from customer fund deposits was RMB85.3616 million, an increase
of 2.30% compared to RMB83.4387 million in 2023. Turnover from brokerage (bilateral statistics, the same
below) amounted to RMB7,130.623 billion, representing an increase of 37.82% from RMB5,173.920 billion
in 2023. The Company’s turnover from commodity futures brokerage amounted to RMB6,011.517 billion,
representing an increase of 35.78% from RMB4,427.375 billion in 2023; the turnover from financial futures
brokerage amounted to RMB1,119.106 billion, representing an increase of 49.90% from RMB746.545 billion
in 2023; the Company’s trading volume was 90.5268 million lots, representing an increase of 8.36% from
83.5447 million lots in 2023. In 2024, the commission rate of the Company’s domestic comprehensive futures
and options brokerage business was 0.0024%, compared to 0.0038% in 2023.

The asset management business

As of 31 December 2024, the AUM of the Company amounted to RMB16.112 billion, representing a decrease
of 12.54% as compared to the AUM of RMB18.422 billion as at the end of 2023. The asset management
business achieved an income (excluding fee income generated by the structured entity included in the
consolidation) of RMB6.0019 million, representing a decrease of 1.60% as compared to RMB6.0993 million
in 2023. AUM ranked among the top in the industry, with 20 trading asset management accounts in total.
The Company launched 7 new asset management schemes, including 6 collective products and 1 individual
product,which demonstrated our stable development.

In the face of continuous volatility in the financial markets in 2024, the Company steadily pushed forward
the transformation and upgrading of its asset management business and achieved significant results. The
Company proactively aligned with regulatory mandates, conducting a thorough portfolio audit to fortify
compliance frameworks. Adhering to the strategic positioning of “focusing on the development of futures
and derivatives”, the Company fulfilled its active management responsibilities earnestly and successfully
developed an asset management product line with the characteristics of a futures company, demonstrating its
professional advantages.

During the year, the Company focused on strengthening the construction of its investment and research team,
optimising the allocation of investment personnel and restructuring the assessment method to stimulate the
team’s vitality and creativity. Aligned with regulatory guidelines, the Company leveraged futures and derivative
instruments flexibly to continuously enrich its product strategies, delivered diversified alpha strategies with
enhanced Sharpe ratios, optimising risk-adjusted returns achieving diversified strategy portfolios and risk-
return management. Especially in the fields of cash management and “fixed-income+”, the Company stepped
up its product promotion efforts, and the market competitiveness of Grand Stability series of products was
significantly enhanced, meeting the investors’ demand for stable returns.

Through innovative FOF/MOM portfolio management model, the Company forged strategic alliances with
private equity institutions, expanding investment channels and strategy sources. Concurrently, it further
strengthened its all-round cooperation with banks, securities firms, trust companies, large independent third-
party distributors, and enterprises within the holding group, expanding its client coverage network, refining its
customer service system, and continuously strengthening brand presence of its asset management.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Despite macroeconomic headwinds, the Company sustained its leadership through precise business
positioning, professional asset management capabilities and comprehensive channel cooperation,
demonstrating its resilience and growth potential in a complex market environment. Looking ahead, the
Company will continue to adhere to its professional and differentiated development strategy, further enhancing
its investment and research capabilities, enriching its product lines, and deepening channel cooperation, thus
delivering long-term stable investment returns for its clients.

The commodity trading and risk management business

Holly Capital focused on the three principal businesses of spot and futures trading, market-making, and OTC
derivatives business, in 2024, the Company achieved a total operating income of RMB2.564 billion, and total
profit of RMB20.82 million. In particular, the spot and futures trading business team generated revenue of
RMB944 million and RMB555 million in lithium carbonate and nickel businesses, respectively, establishing
these as the Company’s distinctive product varieties. The competitiveness of over-the-counter (OTC) options
in quotation continued to improve, with the notional principal amount of OTC business reaching RMB36.91
billion for the whole year, representing a year-on-year growth of 82.3%, and more than 100 micro, small and
medium-sized enterprises were served in total, further highlighting the ability to serve the real economy. The
futures market making business team was awarded 2023 SHFE Silver Award for Market-making Business,
and the build of theoretical parameters and hardware facilities for options market-making was completed
preliminarily to prepare for the subsequent application for options market making. In 2024, Holly Capital was
honored with the Jun Ding Award for China’s Outstanding Futures Risk Management Subsidiary and the
Service Innovation Award for Best Risk Management Subsidiary.

Financial assets investment business

With an aim of optimising its capital operation, the Company invested in a variety of financial assets including
securities, trusts, funds and asset management plans so as to make effective capital allocation, facilitate the
development of principal business and improve profitability while putting risks under control.

In 2024, the domestic securities market experienced increasing volatility, with major indices declining in the
first half of the year before rebounding later. The commodity market exhibited structural trends, while overall
volatility remained at a moderate level. Against this complex market backdrop, the Company strengthened
risk control in its financial asset investment business and optimized its investment strategies, achieving
certain gains against the trend. For the year 2024, the Company recorded financial asset investment income
of RMB8.7387 million and fair value change gains of RMB19.3550 million, totaling RMB28.0937 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 183.26%.
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Overseas financial services business

In 2024, amid a severe and complex external environment, the Company proactively seized development
opportunities, continuously stimulated operational vitality, vigorously promoted business transformation, and
achieved leapfrog development. Multiple core indicators of the Company significantly improved, reaching
record highs since its establishment in 2011.

For overseas futures and securities brokerage business, in line with market trends and customer demands,
the Company restructured its traditional brokerage business, deepened the optimization of its customer base,
and focused on expanding industrial and institutional clients. Efforts were made to cultivate and strengthen
the business team, while enhancing collaboration across front, middle, and back offices to comprehensively
improve integrated service capabilities. As of December 2024, the futures business demonstrated steady
growth, with revenue increasing by 18.63% year-on-year and average daily customer equity rising by 130.75%
year-on-year. The securities business experienced rapid growth, with revenue surging by 87.50% and average
daily customer equity increasing by 26.10% year-on-year.

For overseas asset management business, the Company enhanced its active management and risk
management capabilities, maintaining stable scale for privately offered funds under management and
achieving steady performance improvements, with some funds delivering outstanding results. The Company
further expanded investment advisory services, broadening revenue streams, and achieved a year-on-year
doubling of its advisory business scale. Active efforts were made to promote the QDLP (Qualified Domestic
Limited Partner) business, injecting new momentum into the diversified development of the asset management
cooperation business.

Wealth management business

In 2024, in line with the concept of “financial supermarket”, a total of 2,357 public fund products of 17 fund
companies were listed, with 210 newly added during the year. 58 new fund clients were added and the
scale of public fund sales was RMB88.29 million. In terms of private placement distribution, one new private
placement product was launched during the year. Looking ahead to 2025, the Company will accelerate the
transformation of wealth management, continuously deepen the service concept of “client-centered” and
focus on improving the wealth product system. Prioritizing the quality as the key differentiator, the Company
will also establish a selection mechanism for gold-standard products, ensuring clients gain access to
investment products with better quality.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Financial statement analysis
Financial statement analysis
Analysis of profitability

During the Reporting Period, against the backdrop of a complex international situation and macroeconomic
situation, as well as fierce market competition in the futures industry, the Company adhered to consolidating
its main business and strictly controlling risks, and its overall operating results showed a bottoming-out trend.
In 2024, the Group achieved total operating income of RMB2.876 billion, a year-on-year increase of 48%; a
net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of RMB29.83 million, a year-on-year increase of 283%;
earnings per share of RMB0.0296; and a weighted average return on net assets of 1.60%.

Asset structure and asset quality

As at the end of 2024, the total assets of the Group amounted to RMB11,699 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 26% as compared with RMB9,313 million at the end of 2023; the total liabilities amounted to
RMB9,823 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 32% as compared with RMB7,466 million at the
end of 2023; and the net assets amounted to RMB1,876 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 2% as
compared with RMB1,847 million at the end of 2023.

The asset structure remained stable while the quality and liquidity of assets were well maintained. At the
end of 2024, the Group’s total assets recorded a year-on-year increase of 26%, mainly due to the increase
of customers’ equity. As at the end of 2024, in the total assets of the Group, current assets of RMB11,218
million, accounting for 96%, non-current assets of RMB481 million, accounting for 4%. Total assets mainly
include cash assets of RMB10,346 million, accounting for 88%, financial investment assets of RMB436
million, accounting for 4%, and other assets of RMB918 million, accounting for 8%.

As at the end of 2024, the liabilities deducting accounts payable to customers’ equity amounted to RMB984
million, representing an increase of 57% as compared with RMB625 million at the end of 2023, mainly due
to an increase in the amount of bills payable, which was derived from bank acceptance notes payable by the
subsidiary Holly Capital. The Group’s gearing ratio was 34%, an increase of 9 percentage points compared
to 25% at the end of 2023 (Note: Gearing ratio = (Total liabilities — Customers’ equity payable)/(Total assets —
Customers’ equity payable); operating leverage was 1.52 times, an increase of 13% compared to 1.34 times
at the end of 2023 (Note: Operating leverage = (Total assets — Customers’ equity payable)/Equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company).
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Liquidity level management

The Company places great emphasis on liquidity management based on the principle of “comprehensive,
prudent and predictability” while focusing on the organic combination of the security, liquidity and profitability
of capital. The liquidity monitoring index of the Company in each month throughout 2024 complied with the
regulatory requirements of the CSRC.

The Company has established a risk assessment and monitoring system centred on net capital as a key
metric, enabling continuous oversight of risk regulatory indicators such as net assets. Real-time monitoring
is implemented for significant fund movements, with centralised liquidity management to balance yield
optimisation and funding requirements. As a financial institution, the Company generally does not engage in
debt financing or guarantee arrangements.

Risk management companies under the Company utilise credit facilities extended by banks and other
financial institutions when conducting commodity trading and risk management activities. Depending on
operational needs and risk appetite, it may employ financing instruments including credit borrowings and bank
acceptance notes to support business requirements.

At the end of 2024, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to RMB29.0186 million (end of 2023:
RMB110.9256 million), all of which were repayable within one year, and the annual interest rates ranged from
2.60% to 3.45%. During the Reporting Period, the Group repaid all long-term borrowings in advance. Details
of the Group’s borrowings are set out in Note V. 20 and 32 to the financial statements of this annual report,
and liquidity risk is set out in Note X. (Ill).

Cash flow

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB2,224 million in 2024, representing a year-on-
year increase of RMB3,728 million as compared with RMB-1,504 million for 2023. This was mainly due to the
increase in net cash flow from operating activities resulting from the growth in customer equity.

Net cash generated from operating activities amounted to RMB2,348 million in 2024, representing an increase
of RMB3,965 million as compared with RMB-1,617 million for 2023; net cash generated from investing
activities amounted to RMB38 million in 2024, representing a decrease of RMB84 million as compared with
RMB122 million for 2023; net cash generated from financing activities amounted to RMB-157 million in 2024,
representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB147 million as compared with RMB-10 million for 2023; effect
of change in foreign exchange rate amounted to RMB-4.71 million in 2024, representing a year-on-year
decrease of RMB5.75 million as compared with RMB1.04 million for 2023.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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In 2024, the Group’s net profit amounted to RMB29.83 million, representing a year-on-year increase of

RMB22.04 million or 282.80%. The main items of the income statement are as follows:

2024 as compared to 2023

Change in

In RMB’0,000 amount
Total income from operations 287,579 194,322 93,257 48%
Net fee and commission income 17,932 20,314 -2,382 -12%
Net interest income 11,136 10,160 976 10%
Investment gains (loss denoted by “-”) 7,286 -2,638 9,924 376%
Other income 111 47 64 136%
Gains on change in fair value 3,877 2,644 1,233 47%
Exchange gains (loss denoted by “-”) -31 30 -61 -203%
Income from other business activities 247,272 163,776 83,496 51%
Asset disposal gain (loss denoted by “-”) -4 -12 8 67%
Total operating expense 284,114 193,667 90,447 47%
Futures risk reserve expenses 752 837 -85 -10%
Taxes and surcharges 408 379 29 8%
General and administrative expenses 30,999 28,950 2,049 7%
Credit impairment loss -49 56 -105 -188%
Other asset impairment loss 1,138 0 1,138 N/A
Other general expenses 250,867 163,445 87,422 53%
Profit from operations 3,464 655 2,809 429%
Add: Non-operating income 482 432 50 12%
Less: Non-operating expenses 117 40 7 193%
Total profit 3,829 1,047 2,782 266%
Less: Income tax expense 846 268 578 216%
Net profit 2,983 779 2,204 283%
Basic and Diluted earnings per

share 0.0296 0.0077
Other comprehensive income,

net of tax 349 238 111 47%
Total comprehensive income 3,332 1,017 2,315 228%
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1. Net handling fee and commission income and net interest income

In 2024, the Group achieved net fee and commission income and net interest income of RMB290.68 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB14.06 million or 5%. For 2024 and 2023, the Group’s proportion
of net fee and commission income were 62% and 67%, respectively, while the proportion of net interest

income were 38% and 33%, respectively. Breakdown is set out in the following table:

2024 as compared to 2023
Change in
[n RMB’0,000 Amount  Proportion Amount Proportion amount
Net fee and commission income 17,932 62% 20,314 67% -2,382 -12%
Net interest income 11,136 38% 10,160 33% 976 10%
Total 29,068 100% 30,474 100% -1,406 -5%
o Net fee and commission income

In 2024, net fee and commission income of the Group amounted to RMB179.32 million, representing

a year-on-year decrease of RMB23.82 million or 12%. Breakdown is set out in the following table:

In RMB’0,000

Income from domestic brokerage

Amount Proportion

Amount

Proportion

2024 as compared to 2023

Change in

amount

handling fees 2,969 17% 3,206 16% -237 -7%
Reduction of handling fees from

exchanges 13,341 74% 15,723 7% -2,382 -15%
Income from overseas brokerage

business 1,022 6% 775 4% 247 32%
Income from asset management

business 600 3% 610 3% -10 -2%
Net fee and commission income 17,932 100% 20,314 100% -2,382 -12%
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©) The income from brokerage business was RMB173.32 million, a year-on-year decrease of RMB23.72
million or 12%, which mainly comprised income from domestic brokerage handling fees, reduction
of handling fees from exchanges, and income from overseas brokerage business. Among them,
income from domestic brokerage handling fees was RMB29.69 million, reduction of handling fees from
exchanges was RMB133.41 million, and income from overseas brokerage business was RMB10.22
million.

@ The income from asset management business amounted to RMB6.00 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of RMB0.10 million or 2%. Income from asset management business mainly consisted
of management fees and performance-based commissions. Management fees are accrued based on
the net value of asset management plans, while performance-based commissions are accrued based
on the operational efficiency of asset management plans.

o Net interest income

Net interest income of the Group amounted to RMB111.36 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of RMB9.76 million or 10%. Breakdown is set out in the following table:

2024 as compared to 2023

Change in
In RMB’0,000 amount
Deposit of client’s fund 8,536 8,344 192 2%
Deposit of own fund 2,519 1,812 707 39%
Financial assets held under
resale agreements 134 129 5 4%
Less: Interests expense 54 125 -71 -57%
Total 11,136 10,160 976 10%

Interest income is mainly attributable to: @ the interest income derived from the deposits of the
Company’s own funds and client deposits placed in financial institutions; @ Interest income derived
from reverse repurchase agreements. The interest income increased mainly because the interest
income from own fund deposits increased.
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Financial assets gains

In 2024, the Group achieved financial assets gains of RMB111.63 million, representing a year-on-year

increase of RMB111.57 million. The breakdown is set out in the following table:

2024 as compared to 2023
Change in
In RMB’0,000 amount
Investment gains 7,286 -2,638 9,924 376%
Gains from changes in fair value 3,877 2,644 1,233 47%
Total 11,163 6 11,157 185,950%

(1) Investment gains

Investment gains of the Group amounted to RMB72.86 million, representing a year-on-year increase of

RMB99.24 million or 376%. Breakdown is set out in the following table:

2024 as compared to 2023

Change in
In RMB’0,000 amount

Gains on financial instrument
during holding period
— Financial assets held for

trading 258 1,038 -780 -75%
— Other debt investments 3 0 3 N/A
— Other equity instruments
investment 57 0 57 N/A
Gains from disposal of financial
instruments
— Derivative financial assets 6,366 -1,587 7,953 501%
— Financial assets held for
trading 539 -2,089 2,628 126%
— Other debt investments 16 0 16 N/A
Long term equity investment
gains calculated with equity
method 46 0 46 N/A
Total 7,286 -2,638 9,924 376%
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The Company’s financial assets investment business mainly comprised of proceeds from disposal
and holding of securities, funds, trust schemes, asset management plans and bonds. In 2024, the
total gains on financial instrument during holding period amounted to RMB3.18 million, a year-on-year
decrease of RMB7.20 million or 69%; the total gains from disposal of financial instruments amounted
to RMB69.22 million, a year-on-year increase of RMB105.98 million or 288%. The income related to
financial derivatives mainly came from the futures and risk management business of the subsidiary
Holly Capital, and the rest mainly came from the financial asset investment business and the equity
method accounting of associates. Investment gains in 2024 increased significantly, mainly due to
the increase in investment gains generated from the forward and spot basis trading business of the
subsidiary Holly Capital.

2) Gains from changes in fair value

In 2024, gains from changes in fair value of the Group amounted to RMB38.77 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of RMB12.33 million or 47%. Breakdown is set out in the following table:

2024 as compared to 2023

Change in
In RMB’0,000 amount
Financial assets held for trading 1,882 3,158 -1,276 -40%
Financial liabilities held for
trading 54 -1,116 1,170 105%
Derivative financial instruments 1,952 586 1,366 233%
Investment properties -11 15 -26 -173%
Total 3,877 2,644 1,233 47%

The increase in gains from changes in fair value for the year was mainly due to the increase in gains
from changes in fair value arising from the futures side of forward and spot basis trading business of
our subsidiary, Holly Capital.
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Other operating income

In 2024, the Group achieved other operating income of RMB2,473 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of RMB835 million or 51%, which mainly included revenue from spot sales of Holly Capital’s forward
and spot basis trading business, revenue from “Insurance + Futures” business and revenue from property
leasing.

Other income

In 2024, the Group’s other income amounted to RMBO0.76 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMBO.11 million or 17%, mainly due to the increase in other gains as a result of the growth in government

grants. Breakdown is set out in the following table:

2024 as compared to 2023
Change in
In RMB’0,000 amount
Other gains 111 47 64 136%
Foreign exchange gains -31 30 -61 -203%
Profit from disposal of assets -4 -12 8 67%
Other income 76 65 11 17%

(1) Other gains

Other gains represent government subsidies and personal tax refunds received by the Group totaling
RMB1.11 million, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB0.64 million or 136%. Of which,
government subsidies amounted to RMB1 million and personal tax refunds amounted to RMBO0.11
million.

2) Foreign exchange gains

In 2024, foreign exchange gains of the Group amounted to RMB-0.31 million, which was mainly
attributable to the exchange rate fluctuations. In 2024, the Group did not use financial instruments to
hedge our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations.
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Operating and management expenses

The operating and management expenses of the Group amounted to RMB309.99 million in 2024,

representing a year-on-year increase of RMB20.48 million or 7%. Breakdown is set out in the following table:

Change in
[tem 2024 2023 amount Change
Staff benefits 18,770 18,171 599 3%
Office expenses 4,283 3,886 397 10%
Depreciation and amortization 3,428 3,376 52 2%
Lease charges 724 572 152 27%
Finance costs 602 643 -41 -6%
Insurance, brokerage and consulting
service fees 1,206 514 692 135%
Investors protection fund 40 29 11 38%
Maintenance fees 386 604 =217 -36%
R&D costs 176 205 -28 -14%
Others 1,383 950 433 46%
Total 30,999 28,950 2,049 7%
(1) Staff benefits
Staff costs mainly comprised of salaries, bonuses and allowances, social insurance, housing provident
fund, enterprise annuity, and other welfare expenses. In 2024, the staff costs of the Group amounted
to RMB187.70 million with a year-on-year increase of RMB5.99 million or 3%.
2) Office expenses
Office expenses mainly comprised of office supplies fees, information fees, postal and communication
expenses, business travel expenses and business entertainment expenses.
In 2024, the office expenses of the Group amounted to RMB42.83 million with a year-on-year increase
of RMB3.97 million or 10%, which was mainly due to the increase in postal and telecommunication
fees, business travel expenses and other expenses.
3) Finance costs

Finance costs mainly included interest on loans and bank charges, among which interest on mortgage
loans for the purchase of office premises in Financial City and financing interest expenses of the
subsidiary Holly Capital accounted for a relatively large portion. Finance costs of the Group for the year
2024 amounted to RMB6.02 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of RMB0.41 million or 6%.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Other operating costs

In 2024, the Group’s other operating costs was RMB2,509 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB874 million or 53%, which mainly included the cost of spot sales of Holly Capital’s basis trading business
and the cost of “Insurance + Futures” business.

Impairment loss on other assets

In 2024, the Group’s other asset impairment losses of RMB11,376,900 were all related to the provision for
impairment of spot held by the forward and spot basis trading business of its subsidiary, Holly Capital (the
floating gain on the futures side was reflected in the gains from change in fair value).

Asset items

As of 31 December 2024, the total assets of the Group increased year-on-year by RMB2,386 million or 26%
to RMB11,699 million, including cash assets amounting to RMB10,346 million with a year-on-year increase of
25%, financial investment assets amounting to RMB436 million with a year-on-year decrease of 4%, and other
assets amounting to RMB918 million with a year-on-year increase of 57%. The change in the total amount of
principal assets of the Group is set out as follows:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

compared to 31 December 2023

Change in
In RMB’0,000 amount
Cash assets 1,034,550 827,504 207,046 25%
Financial investment assets 43,578 45,195 -1,617 -4%
Other assets 91,809 58,608 33,201 57%
Total 1,169,937 931,308 238,629 26%
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Asset distribution
as at 31 December 2024

@ Cash assets
@ Financial investment assets

Other assets

827,504

Asset distribution
as at 31 December 2023

o Cash assets
o Financial investment assets

Other assets
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Cash assets

As of 31 December 2024, the cash assets of the Group amounted to RMB10,346 million, accounting for 88%
of the total assets of the Group, with a year-on-year increase of RMB2,070 million or 25%. The composition
of the cash assets of the Group is set out as follows:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

As of As of Ccompared to 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December Change in

In RMB’0,000 2024 2023 amount
Monetary fund 720,880 484,082 236,798 49%
Currency deposits receivable 284,856 335,461 -50,605 -15%
Pledged deposits receivable 28,814 7,961 20,853 262%
Total 1,034,550 827,504 207,046 25%

The change in cash assets mainly include monetary funds, currency deposits receivable and pledged deposits
receivable. Among these, monetary funds amounted to RMB7.209 billion, accounting for 62% of the total
assets of the Group, representing an increase of RMB2.368 billion or 49% compared to 2023. Currency
deposits receivable of RMB2.849 billion, accounting for 24% of the total assets of the Group, representing
a decrease of RMB506 million or 15% as compared to 20283. Pledged deposits receivable amounted to
RMB288 million, accounting for 2% of the total assets of the Group, representing an increase of RMB209
million or 262% as compared to 2023.

Financial investment assets

As of 31 December 2024, the financial investment assets of the Group amounted to RMB436 million,
accounting for 4% of the total assets of the Group, with a year-on-year decrease of RMB16 million or 4%. The
composition of the financial investment assets of the Group is set out as follows:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

As of As of Ccompared to 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December Change in

In RMB’0,000 2024 2023 amount
Derivative financial assets 1,156 521 635 122%

Financial assets held under resale

agreements 9,625 195 9,430 4,836%
Financial assets held for trading 28,070 43,469 -15,399 -35%
Other debt investments 882 0 882 N/A
Other equity instruments investment 2,974 185 2,789 1,508%
Long-term equity investment 871 825 46 6%
Total 43,578 45,195 -1,617 -4%
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Other assets

As of 31 December 2024, the other assets of the Group amounted to RMB918 million, accounting for 8%
of the total assets of the Group, and representing an increase of RMB332 million or 57%. Such a significant
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in the scale of inventories in basis trading held by the
subsidiary, Holly Capital. The composition of other operating assets such as property and equipment of the
Group is set out in the table below:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

As of As of Ccompared to 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December Change in

In RMB’0,000 2024 2023 amount
Receivables 3,264 5,274 -2,010 -38%
Financing capital 354 2,672 -2,318 -87%
Inventories 40,963 6,402 34,561 540%

Fixed, intangible and

right-to-use assets 32,164 34,131 -1,967 -6%
Investment properties 4,847 4,857 -10 0%
Deferred tax assets 1,835 2,100 -265 -13%
Other assets 8,382 3,172 5,210 164%
Total 91,809 58,608 33,201 57%

Liabilities items

As of 31 December 2024, the total liabilities of the Group increased year-on-year by RMB2,357 million or 32%
to RMB9,823 miillion, in which accounts payable to customers amounted to RMB8,839 million with a year-
on-year increase of 29%, which was mainly attributable to the increase in the deposits contributed by clients.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no contingent liabilities. The change in the total amount of principal
liabilities of the Group is set out as follows:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

As of As of Ccompared to 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December Change in

In RMB’0,000 2024 2023 amount
Accounts payable to customers 883,889 684,087 199,802 29%
Other operating liabilities 98,370 62,471 35,899 57%
Total 982,259 746,558 235,701 32%

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Accounts payable to customers

As of 31 December 2024, the accounts payable to customers of the Group amounted to RMB8,839 million,
accounting for 90% of the total liabilities of the Group, with a year-on-year increase of RMB1,998 million
or 29%, which was mainly attributable to the increase in the deposits contributed by customers. Of which,
currency deposits payable and pledged deposits payable amounted to RMB8,813 million and RMB26 million
respectively. The composition of the accounts payable to customers of the Group is set out as follows:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

As of As of Ccompared to 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December Change in

In RMB’0,000 2024 2023 amount
Natural person clients 382,094 377,907 4,187 1%
Corporate clients 501,795 306,180 195,615 64%
Total 883,889 684,087 199,802 29%

Other operating liabilities

As of 31 December 2024, the other operating liabilities of the Group amounted to RMB984 million, accounting
for 10% of the total liabilities of the Group, with a year-on-year increase of RMB359 million or 57%. The
composition of the other operating liabilities of the Group is set out as follows:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

As of As of Ccompared to 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December Change in

In RMB’0,000 2024 2023 amount
Financial liabilities 2,207 13,229 -11,022 -83%
Other liabilities 96,163 49,243 46,920 95%
Total 98,370 62,471 35,899 57%

Among them, financial liabilities decreased by 83% year-on-year, mainly due to the reduction in financial
liabilities held for trading and financial assets sold under repurchase agreements. Other liabilities increased by
95% year-on-year, mainly attributable to the increase in the balance of bills payable resulted from additional
bank acceptance notes of the subsidiary, Holly Capital, and the increase in the balance of other payables
caused by the increase in pledge cash payable to standard warrant.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Equity

As of 31 December 2024, the total owners’ equity of the Group amounted to RMB1,877 million, representing

a year-on-year increase of RMB29 million or 2%. The composition of owner’s equity of the Group is set out as

follows:

Change as at
31 December 2024 as

sM noqy

As of As of Ccompared to 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December Change in

In RMB’0,000 2024 2023 amount
Share capital 100,778 100,778 0 0%
Reserve 86,900 83,971 2,929 3%
Total shareholders’ equity 187,678 184,749 2,929 2%

Changes in branches and subsidiaries and impact on results

Branches

Establishment of and changes in operation branches

° Establishment and closing of futures branches

During the Reporting Period, the Company closed Haimen branch, Liyang branch, Haikou branch,

Zhangjiagang Free Trade Zone branch and Shenzhen branch. In addition, Shanghai branch, Nanjing

branch, Beijing branch were closed subsequent to the Reporting Period. For details, please refer

to the “Overseas Regulatory Announcement — Announcement of Resolutions of the 28th Meeting

of the Fourth Session of the Board” and “Overseas Regulatory Announcement — Announcement of

Resolutions of the 1st Meeting of the Fifth Session of the Board” published by the Company on 2
December 2024 and 18 February 2025, respectively.

° Relocation

The Company constantly adjusted and optimized its branch network. During the Reporting Period, 5

branches, namely the Taiyuan branch, Jinan branch, Yixing branch, Shenyang branch, Guangzhou

branch, were relocated.

Establishment of and changes in sub-branch offices

During the Reporting Period, two sub-branches, Northeast Sub-branch and Shanghai Sub-branch, were

relocated.

Annual Report 2024
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Impact on results

According to the overall development strategy, the Company further combined and optimized regional
resources and improved utilization of the resources to achieve optimal layout of branches, strove to build a
network service system with risk control, effective management, sound functions, distinct image, moderate
scale and reasonable layout, gave full play to the overall value of the business department, continuously
optimized its functions, and finally realized the transformation of branches and the consistency of customer
experience.

Major investment and financing of the Company and
subsidiaries

Equity financing

The Company did not conduct any equity financing during the Reporting Period.

Debt financing

During the Reporting Period, the long-term debt financing is mainly a mortgage loan applied by the Company
and its subsidiary, Holly Capital, to banks for the purchase of office premises in the Finance City, where the
Company has now moved into the new office building. All the relevant loans have been repaid in advance
as of the end of this year. Short-term debt financing is mainly short-term borrowings from banks or funds
borrowed from related parties by the subsidiary and bank acceptance notes, Holly Capital, in accordance with
its business needs, and is repaid in a timely manner, generally not exceeding one year.

Equity investment

The Company did not conduct any equity investment during the Reporting Period.

Disposal, acquisition, substitution and spin-off of material
assets of the Company, and reorganization of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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VII. Risk factors and uncertainties faced by the Company and

()

(1)

its risk strategy

The risks entailed by the Company’s business activities include those inherent to policy risk, management and
risks of internal control, professional conduct, markets, credit, information technology and ESG (environmental,
social and governance) risk. In 2024, the Company put into place measures to effectively deal with these risks
and safeguard the efficiency of its business activities.

Policy risk

The futures industry and the regulatory environment are evolving. If regulatory authorities strengthen regulation
on futures, it may result in restrictions on the scope of the Company’s permissible operations, changes to
its operating models, or increased costs. There is no guarantee that the Company will fully comply with new
rules and regulations, or will be able to compete effectively with new market participants or efficiently adjust
its business according to new policies, failing of which may have a material adverse effect on the business,
financial condition, and results of operations of the Company.

At present, to promote industry development, domestic futures exchanges implement reductions in handling
fees charged to futures companies regularly or from time to time. If there are significant changes in the future
regarding these handling fee reduction policies of the exchanges, such as a decrease in the amount of fee
reductions or suspension of such reductions, it would have a material impact on the Company’s level of
operating income, which in turn may result in a risk of significant fluctuations in profitability.

Risk management and internal control risk

The Company relies on consistent application of management and internal control systems by relevant
personnel to manage risks. The said systems are used to identify, monitor and control a wide range of
risks, including those pertaining to the market, operations, credit and compliance. Some risk management
methods used are based on internally established control systems, observation and summary of past market
behaviours, and standard industry practices. However, these systems may not predict future risk exposure
or identify unexpected or unforeseen risks occurring in the process of business innovation and diversification
development of the Company. Other risk management methods rely on the assessment and analysis of
information associated with market and operating conditions, but their assessment and analysis may not be
accurate. Taking factors such as changes in market conditions and regulatory policies into consideration, if
the Company cannot make timely adjustments and improvements to its risk management and internal control
policies and procedures in light of future futures market development and business expansion, its business,
financial condition and operating performance may be materially and adversely affected.
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The Company’s risk management approach also relies on the control and supervision of the executive staff. As
errors and mistakes may occur in actual operation, despite that the Company can identify potential risks, its
assessment of the risks involved and the corresponding measures to deal with them may not be fully effective.
Due to the Company’s large number of branches, it cannot guarantee that every employee will comply
fully with its risk management and internal control policies. The Company’s risk management and internal
control policies do not necessarily protect the Company from all risks, and in certain circumstance, this could
potentially have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition and operating results of the
Company.

Professional conduct risk

Professional conduct risk refers to any legal sanctions, prosecutions, litigation claims, penalties, financial loss
as well as damage to the reputation of the Company as a result of the failure to comply with the regulations,
the requirements of supervisory authorities or agencies, the self-discipline code of conduct, or any guidelines
concerning the futures brokerage business of the Company. The major professional conduct risk concerns the
employees of the Company.

The professional conduct risk posed by employees includes managing customers’ assets, opening accounts
and trading on behalf of customers without their consent or authorization. The risk largely stems from
individual staff members with low integrity level who cannot resist the temptation of the market, resulting in
those staff members are more prone to manage customers’ finance in violation of rules and regulations, or
open accounts on their own accord to trade. Currently, the Company is screening and shielding the trading
terminals of the staff members’ office computers through technical measures to prevent staff members from
accepting customers’ instructions in the business premises to manage their assets on their behalf improperly
and from opening accounts on their own accord to trade. Against the professional conduct risk posed by staff
members, the Company has begun the strengthening of the internal system and established the mechanism
of accountability. Through joint investigation by related departments, the risk of staff members opening
accounts for trading will be eliminated at source and at the same time, through strengthening the training
and education of staff members, their compliance awareness will be enhanced to reduce the chance of
occurrence of such risk.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of a decrease in revenue or asset loss of the Company resulting from
macroeconomic conditions, such as fluctuations in risk factors, including stock prices, interest rates,
exchange rates and commodities.

During the Reporting Period, China faced a complex and severe situation characterized by increasing external
pressures and growing internal challenges. Both the Company’s core business and financial asset investment
operations encountered significant difficulties. In terms of equity asset investments, the Company aimed for
steady asset appreciation, pursued absolute returns, and continued to promote low-volatility asset allocation
while flexibly adjusting high-volatility asset allocation in response to market changes. The Company adhered to
the principle of risk prevention and promoting high-quality development, managing market risks of its portfolio
assets through various risk control measures.

In terms of the traditional brokerage business, since there is a large number of futures companies, the price
war of handling charges intensifies year after year for traditional brokerage business whose development
prospect is not optimistic. Meanwhile, investors enter the futures market without adequate investment
experience and skills nor good risk control capability but simply emphasise speculative trading and neglect
risk control, or have to be forced to terminate trading as a result of their own factors being influenced by the
economic environment. The combined effect of various factors has resulted in futures companies facing the
risk of customers incurring losses in trading.

To address this kind of risk, the risk control department of the Company, through close tracking of the market
trend, has monitored market fluctuations, reasonably adjusted investors’ margin standards, strengthened the
monitoring of risk indicators such as the change to position holding and the level of margin, adopted actions
to liquidate the customers’ position through raising the amount of margin timely and regulated investors’
trading behavior according to relevant rules and regulations. The Company has also exerted greater force
on monitoring the daily trading, especially the unusual trading behavior of less favored commodities and
contracts, discovered, reported and dealt with straddling buy and sell positions in time and strengthened
the education of customers and to remind investors to take risk management well so as to prevent the
inherent risks to them as a result of their failure to understand the related rules and weak risk prevention
Consciousness.

In addition, as the Company has registered overseas subsidiaries whose capital is contributed in foreign
currency, the Company holds foreign currency funds and assets, the changes of exchange rate will have
certain impact on the Company’s financial position. The Company does not currently hedge its exchange rate
risk with derivative financial instruments. For details of the analysis of foreign currency risk, please refer to Note
X. (). 1 to the financial statement of this report.
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Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss of the Company’s assets due to default by the financing customer, the issuer
of the product or bond, or the default of the counterparty.

When futures brokerage companies accept orders from customers to engage in futures trading on behalf
of their customers, they would incur losses if their customers are unable or refuse to fulfill their contractual
obligations. There are two kinds of credit risk from customers. The first one is the inability of corporate
customers to fulfill their contractual obligations due to change of legal persons, change in ownership, poor
business performance and other force majeure events. The second kind of credit risk comes from the
turbulence in the futures market, resulting in great price fluctuations and also in some customers not being
able to fulffill their contractual obligations.

In order to control credit risk, the Company will control the account opening process strictly. The Company
has established a strict investor suitability management system and takes investor suitability seriously by
thoroughly assessing the identity and creditworthiness of each new customer, and the adequacy of the funds
that they will be using in the futures trading. The Company will also conduct investor education and training
programmes to ensure that the customers understand the risks involved in futures trading adequately and will
continue to enhance customers’ ability to resist risks.

Information technology risk

Information technology risk mainly refers to exposure to losses caused by the failure of the information system
to continuously ensure the stable, efficient and safe operation of transaction and business management in
terms of business realization, timely response, solving capacity and data security, resulting from the abnormal
operation of the Company’s information system or data corruption or leakage caused by various internal or
external reasons.

The business lines and the middle and back office management of the Company are highly dependent on
the information technology system, which has become the key support to the operation of businesses of
the Company. During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to increase investment in information
technology to improve the management system and process of information technology risks, strengthened
quality control for information technology, strengthened the investigation and governance for information
technology risks and improved the monitoring system, further improving the effectiveness of risk management.
The Company continues to improve its information technology risk contingency plans and conducts regular
contingency drills. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s information system was operated safely and
stably. No major information technology risk events occurred.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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(VIl) ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) risks

(1)

&)

Compliance risks

In the new development environment, ESG information disclosure rules and guidelines for companies listed
on the “A+H” stock exchange have been continuously improved and are gradually becoming more stringent.
In June 2023, the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) issued the General Requirements for
Sustainability-related Financial Disclosures (IFRS S1) and the Climate-related Disclosure Standard (IFRS S2),
which have become the foundational frameworks for consistency in disclosure practices globally. In April 2024,
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange issued its consultation conclusions on climate-related disclosures, confirming
the new climate rules are based on IFRS S2. New climate-related requirements under the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide of Hong Kong Stock Exchange took effect in January 2025. In April
2024, the Shenzhen Stock Exchange officially released its Sustainability Disclosure Guidelines. In December
2024, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Foreign Affairs, National Development and Reform Commission, Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology, Ministry of Ecology and Environment, Ministry of Commerce, People’s
Bank of China, State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council, National
Financial Regulatory Administration jointly published the Notice on Issue of Corporate Sustainability Disclosure
Standards — Basic Standards (Trial), and the Corporate Sustainability Disclosure Standards — Basic Standards
(Trial) was officially published. These regulatory requirements collectively guide companies toward sustainable
development, further strengthens the disclosure of information on sustainability, facilitate the realization of the
dual-carbon goal and the sustainable development of economy, society and environment, and also marks a
milestone in the disclosure of A-share and H-share ESG information. Holly Futures has established an ESG
governance structure to implement the materiality mandate and proactively identify and respond to ESG risks
and opportunities. The Company will continue to optimize the disclosure of its ESG reporting to demonstrate
the initiatives taken by the Company to meet environmental commitments, social responsibility and strengthen
internal governance.

Environmental pollution risks

For the financial industry, mainstream international ESG rating agencies place significant emphasis on whether
enterprises incorporate ESG factors into asset management and decision-making processes, while also
conducting comprehensive assessments of their performance in green finance. As an integral component
of the modern financial system, the futures market plays a crucial role that cannot be overlooked. Under the
impact of environmental pollution and climate change, green futures have emerged as an important growth
driver for the industry, and the sector’s green transformation is expected to accelerate further in the future.
Holly Futures is actively exploring effective pathways for developing green finance, striving to contribute to
building a greener, more harmonious, and sustainable social development framework while achieving its own
stable growth. With the listing of polycrystalline silicon futures, Holly Futures’ new energy product offerings on
the Guangzhou Futures Exchange have increased to three, helping to direct market attention to environmental
protection industries, providing risk management tools for low-carbon economic development, and serving
the new energy industrial chain.
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(3)

Data security risks

Both domestic and international ESG standards have consistently included information and data security as
disclosure or evaluation criteria within the social or governance dimensions. This remains a key focus area
for mainstream international ESG rating agencies. In MSCI ratings, financial sector performance on privacy
and data security issues directly impacts overall corporate ratings. Data security and client privacy protection
are also identified as material topics in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange’s Sustainability Disclosure Guidelines.
Holly Futures has established a board-centric ESG governance structure, with its Information Technology
Committee and Strategy & ESG Committee are jointly responsible for the decision-making level of the
Company’s data security issues. Through comprehensive measures including data security management
across business operations, client privacy protection, and supplier security management, complemented
by internal IT audits and engagement of external agencies for IT audits and risk assessments, the Company
identifies and mitigates relevant risks. Holly Futures actively conducts corporate cybersecurity training
programs, fulfilling its ESG responsibilities while laying a solid foundation for sustainable development and
long-term value creation.

VIIl. Constructing the risk management system of the Company

(1)

60

The objective of risk management of the Company is to implement a comprehensive risk management system
to ensure the business operation complies with the relevant rules and regulations, and limit the risk related
to the business operation to a tolerable level, thereby maximizing the corporate value of the Company. The
CSRC has rated the Company the “Class A of the A Category” for the past sixteen consecutive years since
2009 when the rating of futures companies was first introduced.

Risk management principles

The Company values the importance of the risk management system, which is established to achieve the
following business goal:

1. Preventing ethical, market, credit and investment risks;

2. Ensuring the safety and integrity of the assets of the Company’s customers and the Company’s own
assets;

3. Ensuring the reliability, completeness and timeliness of the business records, financial records and

other information of the Company; and

4. Enhancing the operation efficiency and the efficiency in future business development of the Company.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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The risk management and internal control system of the Company has been designed based on the following
principles:

1. Comprehensiveness: The Company has developed a comprehensive and unified risk management
system which covers the entire process of the Company’s business and the various processes of
different departments and individual employees permeating through decision-making, execution,
supervision and evaluation. Each department and individual employee must have a clearly defined role
and responsibility in the risk management process.

2. Sustainability: The Company takes the initiative in actively setting risk management objectives and
implementing risk management measures with proper supervision and evaluation on a sustainable
basis.

3. Independency: The Compliance and Legal Department, Discipline Inspection Department as well

as, Audit Department operate independently from other departments in inspecting, assessing and
monitoring various risks applicable to the Company on a regular basis.

4. Effectiveness: Risk management should be in proportion to the scale of the Company’s business,
scope of business as well as actual circumstances and unite with the efficacy of actual delivered
results, so as to realize the risk management objectives of the Company.

The Company has established an internal structure and designed the business process for the purpose of

segregating the powers of decision-making department, execution department and inspection and evaluation
department and implemented check and balance among these departments.
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(20 Risk management system

The organization structure of risk management of the Company is illustrated below:

Board

2%

Risk Management Committee

Chief Risk Officer

Officer responsible for risk management
of each business department

There are four management levels in risk management of the Company, namely, the Board, the risk
management committee, the Chief Risk Officer and the officers responsible for risk management of each

business department.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic objectives of risk management, fulfiling the values of risk
management, appointing and removing the Chief Risk Officer, evaluating and approving risk management
policies, ensuring the implementation of risk management systems and providing feedback on the

effectiveness of risk management systems.
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The risk management committee of the Company is responsible for: (i) reviewing the risk management
strategies of the Company, including the goals, risk tolerance and plans for managing and resolving material
risks; (i) analyzing and evaluating the risk profiles and the overall risk management of the Company; (iii)
making suggestions and proposals in enhancing risk management of the Company; and (iv) supervising the
implementation of the risk control system in the aspects of application of fund, marketing, operation and
compliance. The risk management committee of the Company has five members with an average of bachelor,
master or higher degrees. Two of them are senior certified public accountants (at the professional level) or
senior accountants, and one is a senior economist. The Company’s risk management committee is led by Mr.
Zhao Weixiong, an executive director of the Company.

The Chief Risk Officer of the Company is responsible for ensuring the effective implementation of the internal
policies of the Company and compliance with the business policies of the Company; evaluating and advising
on the risks and compliance by the management of the Company in and regarding the major decisions
making and main business activities of the Company; inspecting and investigating possible regulatory
violations and risk concerns in the operation of the Company, reporting to the Board, the Shareholders and
the regulatory authority independently on any non-compliance and enhancing the risk management of the
Company through training, inspection and supervision. Ms. Zhan Jieying is currently acting as the Chief Risk
Officer of the Company and has over 10 years of experience in the financial industry.

Officers in each business department responsible for risk management shall be responsible for implementing
the risk management policies.

Industry competition, market position and core
competitiveness

Industry competition

In the context of the licensing system for futures companies in China, the main scope of business of futures
companies in China is mainly commodity futures and financial futures brokerage, while gradually expanding
into new areas such as futures investment consulting, asset management, risk management and wealth
management. Generally speaking, the share of emerging businesses and the maturity of the market are both
low.

At present, China’s futures companies can be broadly divided into three categories: The first category is
traditional futures companies, which are generally more geographically oriented and have a higher market
share in their main operating provinces and cities, and derive their profits mainly from their traditional
brokerage business. The second category is futures companies affiliated with large spot institutions. The third
category is brokerage-based futures companies.
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In 2024, China’s futures market further improved its product portfolio, maintained stable performance with
incremental progress, and effectively fulfilled its market functions. The total capital in the futures market
demonstrated overall growth. In 2024, China’s futures companies achieved a total operating income of
RMB41.293 billion, up by 3% year-on-year, while net profit was RMB9.471 billion, down by 4% year-on-
year. The total market management size (total customers’ equity) of futures companies was RMB1.54 trillion,
representing an increase of 8.1% compared to the end of 2023.

Market position

After years of development, the Company has continuously improved its competitiveness, and all indicators
continue to comply with the relevant requirements of the CSRC, and is in a good financial position with strong
market competitiveness. The overall level of the Company ranks among the top 150 futures companies in
China, with strong overall strength. As of 31 December 2024, the Company had 33 sales departments and
5 sub-branches in the territory, ranking among the top in the industry in terms of the number of network
locations.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s domestic agency futures turnover and market share were as
follows:

Unit: RMB100 million

Stock exchanges

Turnover Turnover Turnover
SHFE 34,213.78 0.84% 15,616.12 0.52% 23,656.83 0.84%
ZCE 9,431.97 0.55% 14,569.63 0.57% 12,891.55 0.67%
DCE 12,232.42 0.62% 11,623.80 0.51% 15,883.60 0.64%
CFFE 11,191.06 0.29% 7,465.45 0.28% 5,350.90 0.20%
Energy Exchange 3,497.35 0.56% 2,037.58 0.28% 7,915.03 0.99%
GFE 739.65 0.34% 426.63 0.35% 2.21 0.70%
Total 71,306.23 0.58% 51,739.20 0.46% 65,700.12 0.61%

Note 1: The above table shows the parent company’s turnover data and the bilateral calculation of calibre;

Note 2: Market share = turnover of the Company (bilateral calibre)/(cumulative annual total market turnover (unilateral calibre) as
published by the CFA * 2).

In the classification evaluation of futures companies conducted by the CSRC, the Company has been
awarded Class A of the A Category in the futures industry for 16 consecutive years from 2009 to 2024.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



(3)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Core competitiveness
Superior geographical location

The Company’s headquarters is located in Nanjing, the capital of Jiangsu Province, where it boasts an
exceptionally solid presence. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had a total of 38 branches
(including 33 futures branches and 5 sub-branches), of which 17 were located in Jiangsu Province, consisting
of 16 futures branches and 1 sub-branch.

Jiangsu Province is located in the eastern coastal areas of China and is developed in economy. In 2024,
Jiangsu Province’s GDP reached RMB13.70 trillion, up by 5.8% year-on-year. In 2024, the per capita
disposable income of Jiangsu residents was RMB55,415, up by 5.2% year-on-year. In recent years,
the People’s Government of Jiangsu Province issued a series of new policies to stimulate its economic
development, and especially that of the financial services industry. The general public budget revenue has
reached the trillion-yuan scale once again. The main targets and tasks of economic and social development
for the whole year have been successfully accomplished. It has played a leading and pillar role in the overall
national development situation, and solid new strides have been made in the modernization drive of building a
new Jiangsu that is “strong, prosperous, beautiful and highly” civilized.

Widely distributed business network

The Company has a total of 38 branches (including 33 futures branches and 5 sub-branches), of which
17 were located in Jiangsu Province. The rest are mainly located in economically developed and financially
prosperous areas such as Beijing, Guangzhou, Shanghai, giving coverage of financially developed areas and
other major areas. In addition, Holly International Financial, a subsidiary of the Company, provides securities
and futures brokerage services at the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Futures Exchange, and
other major futures exchanges around the world.

The relatively wide distribution of the Company’s futures branches has obvious advantages as it enables
the Company to secure high-end customers from developed regions and benefit from the urbanisation
and economic development of eastern coastal areas and central and western regions. The distribution and
geographical coverage of futures branches will provide convenient financial services to customers and further
enhance awareness of the Company brand and customer loyalty.
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Strong innovative ability enables the Company to grasp opportunities generated from
the reform of China’s futures industry

With competition intensifying in China’s futures industry, the Company has worked to identify and seize
new opportunities created by the industry’s reform. These actions have broadened the Company’s futures
business, its revenue channels and customer base. In July 2012, the CSRC issued its Pilot Measures on Asset
Management Business of Futures Companies and granted qualifications for asset management business to
futures companies. In December 2014, the China Futures Association issued the Rules for the Administration
of Asset Management Business of Futures Companies (Trial), which allowed futures companies to provide asset
management services to multiple clients. In August 2014, the China Futures Association issued the Guidelines
on Pilot Work for Establishment of a Subsidiary by Futures Company to Commence the Business Mainly
Focusing on Risk Management Services (Revised), enabling futures companies to engage in commodity
trading and risk management businesses through risk management subsidiaries. In September 2014, the
CSRC issued its Opinions on Further Promoting the Innovative Development of Futures Business Institutions
to further expand the pilot scope of futures companies’ establishment of risk management subsidiaries.
The Company seized the opportunity to commence various businesses, including assets management,
commodities trading and risk management. The restriction on the proportion of foreign ownership in futures
companies was removed from 1 January 2020, which is a specific measure by the futures industry to
implement the deployment of the Central Committee of the Communist Party and the State Council to further
expand the opening up of the financial sector to the overseas. The entry of foreign financial institutions with
great international reputation and business performance will continue to enrich the participating entities in
China’s futures market, stimulate market competition, help the futures industry to accelerate the building of
core competitiveness and further enhance its ability to serve the real economy.

Efficient, comprehensive and stable

As an online futures trading service provider, the Company provides clients with an efficient and stable
platform for real-time trading. Through the Company’s online platform, clients can trade futures in real time
as the market opens, as well as accessing details and records of their accounts, charting systems, news
highlights, past market data, and other services such as technical analysis. Clients can quickly execute trades
using free PC software trading programs and smartphone apps.

The Company’s ability to maintain a stable trading platform — supplemented by a backup system —is a key
factor in gaining and fostering customer loyalty and attracting new customers. The Company further increase
the investment in technology; strive to improve the service quality and customers’ experience. There have
been no major incidents affecting the activities of clients since the platform went into operation. To ensure the
smooth execution of clients’ trading activities, the Company established three independent data centres, one
of which are located in Nanjing and two in Shanghai, which have been successfully listed on Shanghai Futures
Exchange, China Financial Exchange, Zhengzhou Commercial Exchange and multiple DCE Speedy Trading
Centers. The Company is upgrading and improving the main core business system as well as operating Hang
Seng Traded Option System online. The Company also launched innovation columns such as video broadcast
and video live through online cloud service platforms, issued information including financial calendar, prevailing
hot events to investors regularly in order to form better communication and influence.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Strong customer service capabilities

The Company provides multiple layers of service support to its clients. The Company’s sales team remained
stable, the Company’s account managers have close contact with their clients, and through customer service
support, the Company can leverage customer relationships to support its domestic expansion and operations.

The Company provides its clients with guidance on using its online trading platform, including that pertaining
to technical issues, questions encountered regarding the trading system, and their account status. The
Company’s research team also led in establishing a national post-doctoral workstation to provide clients with
such value-added services such as macroeconomic situation analysis and industrial variety research and
analyse.

A 400 hotline maintained by the Company gives clients access to additional comprehensive services including
information consulting, quotation transactions and opening online accounts. These services can also be
reached via a WeChat public account, Weibo public account and the Holly Futures App.

Experienced and stable senior management team

The company has a stable and experienced senior management team with many years of experience in
the futures industry. The Company was awarded the title of a state-owned enterprise in Jiangsu Province
with an advanced team in building the “four good (F9%f)” leading group, which has led Holly Futures to be
awarded the title of “National Civilized Unit”. The Company believes the strength and experience of its senior
management team to be a vital key to realising its long-term growth strategies.

Comprehensive business qualifications

The Company and its subsidiaries have obtained comprehensive domestically and internationally recognised
business qualifications which enabled them to offer services across the whole futures spectrum, from spot to
on-and off-exchange, from domestic to international, and from online to offline. The Company’s qualifications
issued by the CSRC or industry regulators include those for commodity futures brokerage, financial futures
brokerage, futures investment advisory, asset management, fund sales, inter-bank bond transactions and
participants of stock options trading.

Holly International Financial, a subsidiary of the Company, holds the securities, futures licences in Hong
Kong under which it (or by agent) can trade main foreign futures products around the world, including CME
(Chicago Board of Trade), LME (London Metal Exchange), HKEX (Hong Kong Stock Exchange), Eurex
(European Futures Exchange), SGX (Singapore Futures Exchange), TOCOM (Tokyo Commodity Exchange)
and ICE (American Intercontinental Exchange). Additionally, it uses Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
and Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect to carry out agency securities trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, providing advice on securities trading and providing asset management.
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Holly Capital, a subsidiary of the Company, is principally engaged in commodity trading and risk management,
including variation basis trading, cooperative hedging, OTC derivatives business, market making business
and warehouse receipt services. It is a trader on the Dalian Commodity Exchange, Zhengzhou Commodity
Exchange and Shanghai Futures Exchange market makers for 7 futures varieties, and is a special trader on
the National Cotton Exchange Market and the China Coal Trading Center, standard warehouse receipt trading
platform dealer of Shanghai Futures Exchange.

Good market reputation

With years of business development and market accumulation, the Company has built up a good market
image in the futures industry and formed a stable client base, enhancing its brand value continuously.

During the Reporting Period, the Company received the following honours and qualifications from regulatory
authorities and other institutions:

) Honours and qualifications Institutions
2024 Special Contribution Unit for Rural Revitalization Chinese Securities Journal
(R H= S5 ol 5 R BB A7)
20283 Model Enterprises for CSR Practices in Xinhua Daily
Jiangsu Province (2023 #x b 24t & &5 (L H#)
Lei Feng Demonstrative Unit of National Financial The Committee for Inheriting
System in 2023 the Spirit of Lei Feng of the
(O3 F R RZHEER T T EI) Research Association of

Ideological and Political Work of
China Financial Institutions and
the Volunteer Committee for
Inheriting the Spirit of Lei Feng of
the China Volunteers Association
Advanced Unit in Digital Transformation in 2023 of the Jiangsu Financial Association

Financial and Technology Special Committee

of Jiangsu Province

(L& SR E2023F E HFL BRI K E E )

Growth Breakthrough Award in 2023 China Financial Futures Exchange
(C023F E R R 2o %)

Excellent Member Prize Dalian Commodity Exchange

Excellent Member Prize Shanghai Futures Exchange

Shanghai Futures Exchange Contribution Award for Shanghai Futures Exchange

4

“Strengthening the Source and Helping Enterprises’

(E8 [59)RBh | EBREE)

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Honours and qualifications

“Strengthening the Source and Helping Enterprises”
of Shanghai Futures Exchange -Third Prize for
“Improving the Operational Quality of the Options
Market” in 2023 (=8 [&RBh b | — 2023F Z [#2
FERRETISETER | =5H)

Benchmark Enterprise for High-quality Development
in Jiangsu Province in 2023
ROBFE I#H A mEERRIFTEE)

Second Prize for the “Insurance + Futures” Project
for Natural Rubber in 2023
(2023F RAKRE [Rip+HIE | THE — %)

Advanced Unit in Green Finance in Jiangsu Province in
2023 (2023F 2 )T & x5 & BRITHE B L)

Top Ten Party Building Cases (Party Building Brand
Cases) of SOHO Holdings Group in 2024
(FF SRR E2024F HEEERAI(ERMERA)

Golden Great Wall Service Provider Award for
Enterprise Risk Management in 2023
(023> ¥ A% EIE — & R R 19)

2024 ESG Golden Jasmine Award — Social
Responsibility Award
(2024 ESGEFAE -1t GBI

Holly Futures — Excellent Project for Sinostar Cable Co.,
Ltd. (Copper) in the Options Entering Enterprises
Activity of “Strengthening the Source and Helping
Enterprises” of Shanghai Futures Exchange in 2023
CARHIE - REER D AR A F(EH) 2023F
FHEIREN | BAEEE X EBEFIAR)

Excellent Futures Company in the Options Entering
Enterprises Activity of “Strengthening the Source
and Helping Enterprises” of Shanghai Futures
Exchange in 2023 (20234 +HA [s&/RBh{> | Bt
EECEEH - EFHERF)

Holly Futures — Excellent Project for Zhongtian
Technology Industrial Wire & Cable System Co.,
Ltd. (Copper) in the Options Entering Enterprises
Activity of “Strengthening the Source and Helping
Enterprises” of Shanghai Futures Exchange in 2023
(BLEHE - AR EBEE AR A F)(E) 2023F
FH[®RBR| BEEE X EHEFIAR)

Institutions

Shanghai Futures Exchange

Jiangsu Entrepreneurs Elite
Convention

Shanghai Futures Exchange

Jiangsu Financial Association

SOHO Holdings Group

Futures Daily

Futures Daily

Shanghai Futures Exchange

Shanghai Futures Exchange

Shanghai Futures Exchange

SN 1hoqy
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Time Honours and qualifications Institutions

“Advanced Unit” in Green Finance in Jiangsu Province Green Finance Committee of

in 2023 (2023 LR A x & rl [FrEEN]) Jiangsu Financial Association

Model of Financial Empowerment for Rural Industrial Committee of Jiangsu Rural
Revitalization of Jiangsu in 2024 Industrial Revitalization Forum
(2024%4F )T &k < mb Al Bt A0 4 2 25 ik SR A &) Xinhua Daily Press

Jun Ding Award for China’s Outstanding Futures Securities Times — 2024 Annual
Company on Rural Revitalization in 2024 Summit of Chinese Financial
(20247 R ESFBITIR AT A FE R Institutions

Jun Ding Award for China’s Outstanding Futures Risk Securities Times — 2024 Annual
Management Subsidiary in 2024 Summit of Chinese Financial
(20247 HEFHERERERFLRERE) Institutions

Best Futures Company of China (f Bl &EHIE A 7)) Futures Daily and Securities Times

Best Commodity Futures Industry Service Award of

China (F B & =8 m BB 2 X R 59

Best Financial Futures Service Award
(EEESRPEREE

Public Welfare Award of Best Rural Revitalization
Service & Social Responsibility
(RAEBIIR BRI Mt & B EAEHE)

Best Risk Management and Enterprise Brand Building
Award (F{EREE 1 & 13 m iR ER )

Best Capital Operation and Development Award
(REEREBELEHRRE

Newcomer in Internationalization Process Award
(BB b AR5 87 5%)

Best Derivatives Comprehensive Service Innovation
Award (S ESTERER A RGBT

Award of the Year for Innovation in Investor Protection
and Education (FE1% & &R EH A B1F118)

Award for Best Contribution in Cultivating Future Talent
in the Futures Industry
(BEREAS BSERIEERLT)

Best Futures Brokerage Institution for Digital
Transformation (FEEIF (L 85 R B & 48 2 15 £818)

Gold Medal Management Team for Futures Companies
of China (F BIEAE A &) € M & IR B )

Annual Most Popular Self-Media Platform for Futures
Brokerage Institutions
(FERXECDH B QL HE S K9

Annual Outstanding Performance for Best Futures
Company App (FFE fxE 8 & A RIAPPZE [ 5K 38 1¥)

70 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Honours and qualifications Institutions

Excellent Industry Service Award ({855 2= 2 iR 75 28) Award Ceremony of the 18th
National Futures (Options) Real
Trading Competition

Jun Ding Award for China’s Outstanding Futures Risk Securities Times, China Brokers

Management Subsidiary in 2024
(2024 BEFRERREE TR RERE)

Jun Ding Award for China’s Outstanding Futures Securities Times, China Brokers
Company on Rural Revitalization in 2024
(2024 BB F M ik EEI A 5] B H 28)

Excellent Example of ESG Practice among the Chinese Securities Journal
Excellent Practice Example of High-quality
Development of Listed Companies in 2024 (2024 =
MAREEERREFSEBEHIIESCGEBEFKH M)

Prospects for the Company’s future development

Holly Futures has always adhered to the core concept of “serving the real economy, preventing financial
risks, and promoting high-quality development”, and has deepened its strategic layout and enhanced its core
competitiveness on the basis of sound operation and innovation drive. Looking ahead, the Company will take
“technology-driven, professional cultivation, innovation and breakthrough” as the main axis of development,
build a new model of “using futures and spot business as the initiating factor, trading as the core, and
investment and research as the driving force” to help the development of the real economy, and build an
industry-leading comprehensive service platform for futures and derivatives.

Strategic direction: transformation to a technology-driven company

In the tide of digital transformation of the financial industry as a whole, the futures industry is naturally
equipped with technology-driven genes due to its technology-intensive characteristics. In the face of the
status quo of the industry, which is characterized by intensified homogeneous competition, the Company will
firmly push forward its transformation into a technology-driven company, enhance its operational efficiency
and market competitiveness by means of systematization, dataization and intelligence.

We will build a full-data operational IT system. Internally, we will build a T+0 real-time operational management
system to ensure real-time presentation of business dynamics and enhance team management efficiency;
Externally, we will integrate data resources, build customer profiles, realize precise marketing and intelligent
recommendation to improve customer conversion rate.

We will strengthen the digital risk control system, which enables us to improve market risk identification

capability and optimize the risk control model through artificial intelligence, big data analysis and other
technologies to ensure the safety of funds and sound operation of the business.
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We will deepen the intelligent trading support and launch the intelligent trading assistance system to provide
investors with better trading strategy support and enhance the trading experience.

Core layout: “1+N” development strategy

We will continue to deepen our “1+N” development strategy, centering on our brokerage business, while
expanding our diversified businesses such as futures and spot business, asset management and over-the-
counter derivatives, so as to enhance our overall profitability. For brokerage business, we will continue to
consolidate its foundation, make innovative breakthroughs, strengthen the refined operation of the two major
customer groups, namely industrial and retail, improve service quality and optimize customer structure. In
terms of Internet financial business, we will continue to make efforts to improve online customer acquisition
capability and improve the digital operation system. As for futures business, we will enhance the supply
chain service capacity, and help industrial chain enterprises optimize supply chain management and improve
risk-resistant ability through various modes, such as “basis trading, forward pricing, option trading, and
cooperative hedging”. We will strengthen the investment and research capabilities and build a professional
transaction service system, providing clients with high value-added services, enhance our active management
capabilities in asset management business, explore differentiated development paths, and expand market
share. For OTC derivatives business, we will strictly follow the industry’s regulatory requirements, innovate
product design, meet customers’ individual risk management needs, standardize development and expand
scale.

Talent cultivation: building an efficient professional team

Talent is the core driving force of enterprise development. Aiming at the “specialization, rejuvenation,
diversification” of our workforce, we will comprehensively optimize the talent system by strengthening the
introduction of high-end talents, attracting talents with international vision and outstanding professional ability,
and enhancing the strength of the team. We will also optimize the internal talent mobility mechanism, allowing
mobility from back office to middle office and middle office to front office, so as to enhance the professional
capabilities of the whole staff and sharpen our competitiveness in the market. To improve the incentive
mechanism, we will implement the “horse racing” mechanism, strengthen performance appraisal, and create
a performance-driven corporate culture. In addition, we will enhance the training system, establish a point-
based training management model, accurately match employees’ pursuit for career development, and help
them move forward.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Financial technology innovation: building an intelligent operation model

Technological innovation is the key to our future development. We will rely on financial technology to build an
intelligent operation system and improve overall business efficiency. We will also strengthen IT infrastructure
construction and enhance data storage, analysis and computing capabilities to provide solid support for
business development. The Company will promote the application of Al+Big Data, combining artificial
intelligence and big data analysis to realize intelligent risk control, precise marketing and transaction-assisted
decision-making. It will optimize intelligent customer service and launch an intelligent customer service system,
providing 7x24-hour online service to enhance customer satisfaction.

Compliance management: building a secure bottom line for development

Compliance is the lifeline of enterprise development, and the Company will always adhere to sound operation,
strengthen risk prevention, and ensure that the business is operated in a legal and compliant manner. It will
strengthen compliance awareness, strictly implement industry regulatory requirements, enhance employee
compliance training, and ensure standardized business operations. The Company will enhance risk control
management and strengthen risk control measures for asset management, OTC business and spot and
futures business to ensure sound operation of the Company. For strict assessment and accountability, we
will implement the “one-vote veto” system for compliance, and maintain a “zero tolerance” attitude towards
violations to ensure the healthy development of the Company.

Serving the real economy: practicing the social responsibility of financial
enterprises

The Company has always taken serving the real economy as its core mission, helping industrial chain
enterprises to improve their risk management capabilities and promoting high-quality economic development.
To create a full range of industrial service system, we will provide full life cycle financial services through data
empowerment and accurate matching of enterprise demand. We will strengthen synergies and cooperation
within the Group, giving full play to the advantages of state-owned listed companies, and helping member
enterprises within the Group to optimize risk management and enhance operational efficiency.

Looking ahead to 2025, Holly Futures will face the challenges in deepening reform and also seize the
opportunities of industry development. At the new historical juncture, the Company will firmly stick to its
strategic direction, take scientific and technological innovation and professional cultivation as the engine,
and make every effort to promote the Company’s high-quality development. We believe that as long as all
staff work together, innovate and rise to the challenge, we will be able to take the lead in the fierce market
competition and create a more brilliant future together.
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Business overview
Key financial ratios

As at As at

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Net assets per Share attributable to shareholders of the
Company (RMB/share) 1.86 1.83

The Group’s net assets per Share attributable to shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2024
increased by 2% as compared to 31 December 2023.

Gearing ratio

As at As at
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Gearing ratio (%)No 34% 25%

Note:  Gearing ratio = (Total liabilities — accounts payable to brokerage clients)/(Total assets — accounts payable to brokerage
clients)

Gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2024 increased compared to 31 December 2023, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in the balance of bills payable resulted from additional bank acceptance
notes of the subsidiary, Holly Capital, and the increase in the balance of other payables caused by the
increase in pledge cash payable to standard warrant. The overall financial position of the Group remained
stable, with sufficient liquidity and solvency.

Weighted average return on net assets

2024 2023

Weighted average return on net assets 1.60% 0.42%

Weighted average return on net assets of the Group in 2024 increased compared to 2023, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in profit for the year.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Corporate social responsibility
Relationship with employees

The employees are the valuable wealth for the Company, the foundation of the survival and development for
the Company. The Company treats employees with fairness and respect. The talents are the base of strong
company, the foundation of development and the requirement of transition. The Company endeavours to be
employee centered, and strives to create a people oriented and caring working environment, and is sparing
no effort to build “enrichment platform”, “entrepreneurial platform” and “career platform” for employees. A total
of 41 people were employed during 2024, and the total number of employees was 636 as of 31 December

2024.

The Company attaches great importance to talents, further broadening its channels for attracting talent,
optimizing its talent strategic layout, and continuously refining its corporate talent pipeline. It actively promotes
the synergy of four pillars: universities, markets, talents and businesses. The Company is committed to build
a pyramid-shaped talent platform with high-quality graduates from universities as its reserve talent pool at
the base of the pyramid, professionals selected through market-oriented recruitment as the core driver at
the middle layer, and the high-level talents as the leading edge at the top. Firstly, the Company has made
efforts to strengthen the synergy between industry and education, and facilitate seamless channels for
talent recruitment and development between universities and businesses. The Company collaborates with
universities to offer graduate credit courses, fostering the development of futures industry professionals
in academia. Secondly, the Company has established and improved a system of open recruitment and
conducted market-oriented selection and recruitment of innovative talents. The Company makes use of the
network, new media and offline platforms to attract talent resources and provide talent support for its business
transformation, improves the efficiency of talent introduction externally by establishing communication
channels, so as to reserving suitable candidates in a timely manner, and actively appoints backbones internally
by organizing competitions for the positions of heads of branches, so as to realize the compatibility of talents
and positions. Thirdly, the Company proactively captures a leading position in the competition for talents, and
strategically recruits high-level professionals. Responding to the national talent strategy requirements, the
Company promotes the recruitment of high-level talents from overseas.

The Company persistently drives initiatives for nurturing talents and intensifies the training of their specialized
skills. Through a scientific talent training system, the Company carries out talent training in the areas of,
among others, skill enhancement, business innovation, comprehensive management, compliance, safety and
stability, and creates a multi-dimensional talent training platform that is hierarchical, promotes development,
and strengthens expertise. Throughout the year, more than 31 training sessions were conducted, according to
the different levels and positions of employees, to update job skills, strengthen expertise, popularize industry
standards and other special competency training, with an aim to continuously strengthen the employees’
capabilities in party affairs, professional skills, compliance and safety management.
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The Company provides and establishes (including but not limited to) statutory benefits such as reserve fund,
basic medical insurance, endowment insurance, maternity insurance, employment injury insurance and
unemployment insurance for employees in accordance with laws, regulations and relevant policies of Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Employees are also entitled to public holidays, marriage leave, bereavement leave
and maternity leave.

Environmental protection

The Company aims to minimize the impact of our activities on the environment and will remind our staff to
follow the same principle. The Company adheres to the approach of low carbon, emission reduction, energy
saving and environmentally friendly in business management. It has adopted the following measures:

(1) improve the official vehicle-using arrangement and advocate taking public transportation;

2 encourage staff to print on two sides of paper and remind staff to reduce waste production when
printing and photocopying documents;

3) encourage staff to turn off lights when leaving, so as to reduce unnecessary lightings;

4) adopt an office automatic online management system to promote electronic office work and reduce
paper consumption;

5) encourage employees to bring their own cups to save the use of disposable cups and so on; and

(6) carry out production safety investigation to implement rectification action plans, enlarge the
involvements in aspects such as safety supervision, risk management and publicity and education and
ensure the secure line of high-quality development.

By implementing appropriate measures, the Company has improved efficiency, saved energy and further
improved the overall environmental awareness of the Company.
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group has adopted internal control to monitor the continuous compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not violate any laws or regulations that resulted in
material effect on the business of the Group.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group is always customer-focused and aims at standardization, honesty, service and professionalism. In
accordance with the business philosophy of honesty, safety, professionalism and efficiency, the Group has
been strengthening its customer service and maximizing customer benefits.

The Group adheres to the principles of openness, fairness and impartiality in the course of cooperation with
suppliers, and procurements are made through market inquiries, bidding, competitive negotiations, single
source procurement, etc. We have formulated the Procurement Management Measures of Holly Futures
(Trial) and other systems to continuously promote regulated procurement, standardized construction and
procurement efficiency.

In order to enhance the awareness of the responsibility of suppliers, the Company selects, accesses,
evaluates, manages and regularly inspects the quality of suppliers it works with, and discontinues cooperation
with suppliers with poor ratings. During the Reporting Period, all suppliers have passed the Company’s annual
audit and the Company is not aware of any significant actual and potential negative impact or non-compliance
with business ethics, environmental protection, or labor standards by any of its suppliers.

Event subsequent to the Reporting Period
Subsequent investment and financing of the Company and subsidiaries

Nil.
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The Board of the Company are pleased to present the audited combined financial statements (the “Financial
Statements”) of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

IV.

78

The principal business lines of the Company

As set out in Section Il “Management Discussion and Analysis” — “Il. Business review” of this Report.

Business overview

As set out in Section | “Financial Summary” and Section Il “Management Discussion and Analysis” — “XI.
Business overview” of this Report.

Major risks and uncertainties faced by the Company

As set out in Section Il “Management Discussion and Analysis” — “VII. Risk factors and uncertainties faced by
the Company and its risk strategy”, “VIIl. Constructing the risk management system of the Company” and “IX.
Industry competition, market position and core competitiveness” of this report.

Event subsequent to the Reporting Period and prospects of
the Company

As set out in Section Il “Management Discussion and Analysis” — “X. Prospects for the Company’s future
development” and “XII. Event subsequent to the Reporting Period” of this Report.

Profit distribution and profit distribution plan

In view of the long-term development and interests of investors, the Company is expected to make the
following profit distribution plan: the Board proposed distribution of cash final dividend as of 31 December
2024 of RMBO0.01 (tax inclusive) (“2024 Final Dividend”) to A Shareholders and H Shareholders
of the Company. The proposed distribution of profit is based on the total issued share capital of
1,007,777,778 shares of the Company after the listing of A Shares and the total amount to be distributed
is RMB10,077,777.78 (tax inclusive) among which, the number of A Shares is 758,077,778 with a cash
dividend of RMB7,580,777.78 (tax inclusive); the number of H Shares is 249,700,000 with a cash dividend of
RMB2,497,000.00 (tax inclusive). The actual total amount to be paid is determined based on the total share
capital of the Company as at the record date of entitlement. The proposed distribution of the 2024 Final
Dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM of the Company. The Company
will make separate announcement(s) on the record date of entitlement of the final dividend and the closure
of the register of members. Please refer to the circular of general meeting to be published by the Company
in due course for details and the actual arrangement regarding the distribution of final dividend. Regarding
the distribution of the 2024 Final Dividend, the dividend payable to A Shareholders will be in RMB while
those payable to H Shareholders of the Company will be in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate shall be
calculated on the basis of the average benchmark exchange rate between RMB and Hong Kong dollars as
announced by the People’s Bank of China for the five working days prior to the date of the 2024 AGM of the
Company. During the Reporting Period, the Company is not aware of any arrangements where shareholders
have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Report of the Board

VI. Issue of Shares and use of proceeds

(1)

Use of proceeds
H Shares

As approved by CSRC Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2015] No. 1963, the Company was listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 December 2015 and it issued 249,700,000 H Shares (comprising
227,000,000 H Shares offered by the Company and 22,700,000 H Shares offered by the selling Shareholders)
under the global offering. The numbers offer shares under the H Share Offering was 24,970,000 H Shares,
representing 10% of total number of offer shares offered under the global offering. The numbers of offer
shares under the international placing was 224,730,000 H Shares, representing 90% of total number of
offer shares offered under global offering, with an offer price of HKD2.43 per Share, raising total proceeds of
approximately HKD607 million. The net proceeds of the Company amounted to approximately HKD536 million
(after deducting the Group’s underwriting fees and all related expenses).

According to the use of proceeds from H Share Offering as set out in the H Shares Prospectus, the Company
intended to use the proceeds to: develop the Hong Kong and global futures business of the Group; develop
the asset management business; develop the commodity trading and risk management business; develop
and strengthen the existing futures brokerage business; purchase information technology equipment and
software; and serve as general working capital of the Group.

After deducting all listing expenses, transferred payments of the social insurance and the part used in
developing Hong Kong and global futures business, the total proceeds of the Company are remitted to the
PRC and converted to RMB.

The Company held the 2018 annual general meeting on 6 June 2019 and passed to transfer the remaining
fund of HKD50 million which originally intended to be used for “developing and strengthening the existing
futures brokerage business” to “developing the Hong Kong and global futures business”. The change must
be approved by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange and the National Development and Reform
Commission and other relevant regulatory authorities before implementation. As of 31 December 2022, the
Company has obtained approval from the relevant regulatory authorities for the above application for changing
the use of proceeds, and completed the implementation.

The Company held the first extraordinary general meeting of 2022 on 22 November 2022 and transferred the
remaining fund of HKD19.05 million which originally intended to be used for “developing and strengthening the
existing futures brokerage business”, “developing the Hong Kong and global futures business” and “developing
the commodity trading and risk management business” to “purchasing IT equipment and software”.
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(2)

80

A Shares

According to “the Approval of the Initial Public Offering of Shares by Holly Futures Co., Ltd.” (Securities
Regulatory Permit No. [2022] 1135) approved by the CSRC, the Company was permitted to make a
public offering of 100,777,778 ordinary shares of RMB (par value RMB1 each) to the public at an effective
issue price of RMB1.86 per share. As of 2 August 2022, the Company had raised gross proceeds of
RMB187,446,667.08 through the public offering of 100,777,778 ordinary shares of RMB to the public, and
the actual net proceeds raised after deduction of issue expenses amounted to RMB161,354,358.20, for a
net proceeds of approximately RMB1.60 per share. According to the description of the use of proceeds in
the A Shares Prospectus, all proceeds raised from the A Share Offering of the Company, after deducting the
issue expenses, will be used for capital replenishment of the Company, which is necessary for the Company’s
development and achievement of its strategic objectives, enhancement of its core competitiveness,
integration of resources and promotion of the rapid development of various businesses. The above proceeds
were transferred to the designated accounts of the Company on 2 August 2022 and the availability of funds
has been verified by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP, which has issued the relevant Capital
Verification Report.

The Company’s proceeds of RMB161,354,358.20 have been fully utilized for capital replenishment. As of 31
December 2024, the proceeds have been fully utilized and the designated accounts for the proceeds have
been cancelled.

Use of proceeds for committed items
H Shares

As of 31 December 2024, the above-mentioned proceeds raised from H Share Offering, for the purposes as
set out in the H Shares Prospectus, were used as follows:

Consolidated usage of the proceeds raised
(as of 31 December 2024)

Usable amount Used amount Balance

Description HKD’0,000 HKD’0,000 HKD’0,000

Development of the future business in

Hong Kong and throughout world':2 21,500 21,500 0
Development of the asset management

business 13,404 13,404 0
Development of the commodity trading

and risk management business? 9,784 9,784 0
Development and enhancement of the

existing futures brokerage business?® 52 52 0
Purchasing IT equipment and software? 4,586 4,055 531
General working capital 4,289 4,289 0
Total 53,615 53,084 531

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Note 1: The Company held the 2018 annual general meeting on 6 June 2019 and transferred the remaining fund of HKD50
million which originally intended to be used for “developing and strengthening the existing futures brokerage business” to
“developing the Hong Kong and global futures business”. It has been approved by the regulatory authorities and completed
the implementation.

SN 1hoqy

Note 2: The Company held the first extraordinary general meeting of 2022 on 22 November 2022 and transferred the remaining
fund of HKD19.0539 million which originally intended to be used for “developing and strengthening the existing futures
brokerage business”, “developing the Hong Kong and global futures business” and “developing the commodity trading and
risk management business” to “purchasing IT equipment and software”.

4

In order to enhance the efficiency of the utilisation of the proceeds, as of 31 December 2024, the Company’s
remaining proceeds were deposited into large commercial banks as bank deposits. The Company intends to
utilise the net proceeds in the amount and usages as prescribed in the H Shares Prospectus and as amended
in the 2022 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company in due course in 2025.

A Shares

As of 31 December 2024, the aforementioned proceeds from the A Share Offering have been fully utilized for
capital replenishment and the designated accounts for the proceeds have been cancelled.
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VII. Directors

Information on Directors of the Company, their biographies and the changes during the Reporting Period and
as of the date of this Report is set out in Section lll Corporate Governance “Directors, Supervisors, Senior
Management and Staff” of this Report.

VIIl. Service contracts of Directors and Supervisors

No Directors and Supervisors of the Company, or their related entities, entered into any service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which shall be compensated (except for statutory compensation) upon
termination within one year.

IX. Interests of Directors and Supervisors in material
transactions, arrangements or contracts
As of 31 December 2024, the Company or its subsidiaries did not enter into any material transactions,

arrangements or contracts entitling direct or indirect substantial interests to the Directors or Supervisors of the
Company (or the related entities of any Director or Supervisor) during the Reporting Period.
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X.

Interests of Directors in business that competes with the
Company

As of 31 December 2024, none of the Directors of the Company had any interest in businesses directly or
indirectly competing with the Company.

Xl. Directors’ right to purchase shares or debentures

As of 31 December 2024, the Company has not given Directors or their respective spouse or children under
the age of 18 the rights to purchase the Shares or debentures of the Company to obtain benefit, nor did they
exercise any such rights; nor have any arrangements been made by the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
entitle such rights to the Directors or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 in any other body
corporate.

XIl. Interests and short positions of Directors, Supervisors

and chief executive in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company and any of its associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2024, based on the information obtained by the Company and the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company have no (i) interests and short
positions that shall be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) shall be entered in the register maintained pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or (i) interests or short positions which shall be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO).

Xlll.Purchase, sale and redemption of securities

82

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company (including the sale of treasury shares). As of 31
December 2024, the Company did not hold any treasury shares.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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XIV. Controlling shareholders’ interests in contracts

SN 1noqy

Save as disclosed in this Report and the H Shares Prospectus, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or its controlling companies or any of its subsidiaries was a party in which the controlling
shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any

time during the year.

4

XV. Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all loss or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance) which he may sustain during his service or incur in or in connection with the execution of the
duties of his office. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when this report of the Board prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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XVIL.Share scheme

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share scheme.

XVIl. Compliance with the non-competition undertakings

As disclosed in the H Shares Prospectus, the Company and SOHO Holdings entered into the noncompetition
undertaking in favor of the Company on 8 December 2015 (the “H Shares Non-competition Undertaking”),
pursuant to which SOHO Holdings and its close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (other than
subsidiaries of the Company) undertook that, save as disclosed in the H Shares Prospectus, neither
SOHO Holdings nor any of its close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (other than subsidiaries of
the Company) would, in any form, engaged in, assisted or supported any third party in the operation of,
participate, or has any interest in, any business that, directly or indirectly, competes or will compete or may
compete with the business carried on or contemplated to be carried on by the Company from time to time,
namely futures-related financial services including futures brokerage, asset management and commodity
trading and risk management business.

uoljewIoU| [eloueul ( 9oUBUIBAOK) 81BI0dI0D)

Annual Report 2024 83




Report of the Board

84

As disclosed in the A Shares Prospectus, the Company and SOHO Holdings entered into the non-competition
undertaking in favor of the Company (the “A Shares Non-competition Undertaking”), pursuant to which
SOHO Holdings undertook that: (1) SOHO Holdings and legal persons or other organizations directly or
indirectly controlled by SOHO Holdings (other than the Group) (“Other Enterprises Controlled By SOHO
Holdings”) are not currently engaged in business that competes with Holly Futures; (2) SOHO Holdings and
Other Enterprises Controlled By SOHO Holdings will not engage, directly or indirectly, in any form of business
that competes or is likely to compete with the Company during the period that SOHO Holdings is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. SOHO Holdings will supervise other enterprises controlled by SOHO Holdings
to induce compliance with the A Shares Non-competition Undertaking through the exercise of its legal rights;
(8) SOHO Holdings will strictly comply with the provisions of relevant laws, administrative regulations and
regulatory documents, exercise shareholders’ rights and fulfill shareholders’ obligations in accordance with
the law, and will not take advantage of its position as a controlling shareholder to obtain improper benefits or
prejudice the legitimate interests of the Company and other shareholders of the Company; (4) the Company
has the right to choose the appropriate time to acquire from SOHO Holdings and Other Enterprises Controlled
By SOHO Holdings those assets and businesses currently held by SOHO Holdings and Other Enterprises
Controlled By SOHO Holdings that may compete with the Company. SOHO Holdings and Other Enterprises
Controlled By SOHO Holdings shall cede to the Company any future business opportunities available to
SOHO Holdings and Other Enterprises Controlled By SOHO Holdings that are engaged in a business similar
to that of the Company, and SOHO Holdings and Other Enterprises Controlled By SOHO Holdings shall only
invest in such business opportunities after they have been relinquished by the Company; (5) SOHO Holdings
and Other enterprises Controlled By SOHO Holdings shall notify the Company in a timely manner when
SOHO Holdings intends to undertake new businesses, investments and research that may compete with the
business of the Company, the Company will have the right of first refusal to develop and acquire such projects
and SOHO Holdings will use its best endeavors to procure that the price of the transaction is determined on
a fair and reasonable basis and in an arm’s length commercial transaction with an independent third party;
(6) if SOHO Holdings breaches the A Shares Non-competition Undertaking, SOHO Holdings shall be liable for
the corresponding legal liabilities under the law; (7) the A Shares Non-competition Undertaking shall remain in
force until SOHO Holdings ceases to be a controlling shareholder of the Company.

SOHO Holdings has confirmed to the Company that, during the Reporting Period, it has complied with all the
undertakings and requirements under the H Shares Non-competition Undertaking and the A Shares Non-
competition Undertaking. The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have conducted annual
review over the compliance with and performance of all the undertakings and requirements under the H
Shares Non-competition Undertaking and the A Shares Non-competition Undertaking by SOHO Holdings,
during the Reporting Period, and confirmed that SOHO Holdings was in full compliance with the H Shares
Non-competition Undertaking and the A Shares Non-competition Undertaking and there was no breach.

Save as disclosed, no other non-competition agreements or arrangements have been provided by the
controlling shareholder as of 31 December 2024 or during the Reporting Period.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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XVIIl. Other disclosures

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

Equity

Details of changes in equity of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in Note V. 34 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

Pre-emptive rights arrangements

Pursuant to the PRC laws and the Articles of Association, the Company has no pre-emptive rights
arrangements during the Reporting Period.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information obtained by the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, during
the Reporting Period and the date of this report, the public float of the H Shares of the Company was
approximately 24.78% and the public float of the A Shares was 32.39%, which was in compliance with the
relevant requirements of Rule 8.08 and Rule 13.32 of the Listing Rules.

Management contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
Company’s business (other than the service contracts entered into with the Directors, Supervisors and the
senior management) were entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Data on tax reduction and exemption of the H Shareholders
Individual investors

In accordance with the Individual Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#FZE A R £ FE{E A
Frf8#i%) ) issued by the Fifth Session of the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on 10
September 1980, revised on 31 August 2018 and came into effect on 1 January 2019 and the “Regulations
for the Implementation of the Individual Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China” ({FZE AR £
FMEMEAFTEFEE MEF]) ) revised by the State Council on 28 December 2018 and came into effect on
1 January 2019, the dividends paid by Chinese companies shall be subject to the withholding tax at a rate
of 20.0%. Non-Chinese resident foreign individuals shall be imposed 20.0% of individual income tax on the
dividends from Chinese companies, unless specific exemptions allowed by the tax authorities of the State
Council or special deductions in accordance with applicable tax treaty.
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According to the Notice on the Management of Individual Income Tax Impose after the Abolition of Guo
Shui Fa [1993] No. 045 issued by the State Administration of Taxation (87 EI%: 35[1993]0455% 14 & |-
BEBEAFSHASHEENBA)) (Guo Shui Han [2011] No. 348), for domestic non-foreign-invested
enterprises publicly listed in Hong Kong, its overseas resident individual shareholders are entitled to the
preferential tax treatments under the taxation agreement entered into between China and the countries in
which they reside. Dividends paid by domestic non-foreign-invested enterprises listed in Hong Kong to its H
share individual holders who are not Chinese residents shall be subjected to individual income tax at the rate
of 10.0%, and without prior approval from the Chinese tax authorities. In the event that the tax rate of 10.0%
is not applicable, (i) for a foreign citizen who receives dividend in the capacity of an H share individual holder,
where an income tax treaty prescribing a rate of less than 10.0% was entered into between China and the
country in which he resides, the non-foreign-invested enterprises listed in Hong Kong may, on behalf of such
holder, apply for further preferential tax treatment; and upon approval from the competent tax authorities, the
withholding tax paid in excess will be refunded; (i) for a foreign citizen who receives dividend in the capacity
of an H share individual holder, where an income tax treaty prescribing a rate higher than 10.0% but less
than 20.0% was entered into between China and the country in which he resides, the non-foreign- invested
enterprises listed in Hong Kong shall withhold dividends pursuant to the agreement, without making an
application; (jii) for a foreign citizen who receives dividend in the capacity of an H share individual holder, where
the country he resides in has not entered into any tax treaty or otherwise with China, the non-foreign- invested
enterprises listed in Hong Kong shall withhold dividends at the rate of 20.0%.

Pursuant to the Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion (A HIE &R 51 TR
[ B H TSR e E S B AL IHERFAYZHE) ) (Guo Shui Han [2006] No. 884) with respect to taxes on
income signed on 21 August 2006, the PRC government may impose tax on dividends payable by a PRC
company to a Hong Kong resident, but such tax shall not exceed 10.0% of the gross amount of dividends
payable, and in the case where a Hong Kong resident holds at least 25.0% equity interest in a PRC company,
such tax shall not exceed 5.0% of the gross amount of dividends payable by the PRC company.

Enterprise

According to the prevailing effective Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China ({(FZE AR
HFMBEAPEAETRE)) and the Regulations on the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({2 A R MBS TEEHEIED) ), the non-resident enterprises shall be
subject to 10.0% enterprise income tax for the income originated from the PRC provided that the non-resident
enterprises do not establish offices or premises in the PRC, or where there are offices and premises established,
but there is no connection between the dividends and bonuses received and the offices or premises established
by the non-resident enterprises. Such withholding tax may be reduced pursuant to an applicable double
taxation treaty. According to the Notice Regarding Questions on Withholding Enterprise Income Tax When
PRC Resident Enterprises Distribute Dividends to Overseas Non-resident Enterprise Shareholders of H Shares
(AR FEERBRRAFINMRIEE R ERFRE RN KNS ABREERBEE)) (Guo Shui
Han [2008] No. 897) issued by the State Administration of Taxation, which became effective on 6 November
2008, PRC resident enterprises should withhold enterprise income tax at a rate of 10.0% when they distribute
dividends to Overseas non-resident enterprise shareholders of H Shares from the year of 2008. Such
withholding tax may be reduced pursuant to an applicable double taxation treaty.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Reserves and reserves of profits available for distribution

Details of changes in reserve of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in Notes V. 35 to
39 to the financial statements of this annual report.

Charity donation

During the Reporting Period, the staff of the Group carried out a one-day donation charity campaign and
raised approximately RMB44,100.

Major customers and suppliers

The Company provides services for various institutional and individual customers engaged in a number of
industries. Clients of the Company include large, small and medium enterprises, high net worth clients and
retail customers mainly located in China. As the Company expands to overseas market, it is expected to
provide services for more overseas customers in the future.

During the Reporting Period, income and other gains generated by the five largest customers was
RMB4,902,436.74 (futures handling fee net income tax price inclusive), accounting for less than 30%.

To the knowledge of the Directors, no Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders holding
more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company have any beneficial interests in any of the top five
customers of the Company during the Reporting Period.

Given its business nature, the Company has no major suppliers.

Property and equipment

Details of changes in property, plants and equipment of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in Note V. 15 to the financial statements of this annual report.

Social responsibilities

The Company actively carried out a series of public welfare and charity activities such as helping rural
revitalization, caring for women and children, voluntary donations, blood donation, etc., and effectively guided
party members and cadres to play a pioneering role in driving the masses to participate in the construction
of enterprises. Leveraging on our professional advantages, we have been supporting the revitalization of
rural areas. In 2024, we carried out 123 “Insurance + Futures” projects in 49 counties in 14 provinces,
insuring agricultural products with a value of more than RMB1.2 billion yuan, covering 11 kinds of agricultural
products such as hogs, eggs, feed, corn, peanuts, etc., which helped stabilize prices and ensure supply in
the agricultural industry. We also carried out the province’s first oilseed rape “Insurance + Futures” and fish
feed “Insurance + Futures + Banking” and other local specialty agricultural products projects in Jiangsu. The
Company was awarded the second prize for related project for natural rubber by the SHFE and the third prize
for “Strengthening the Source and Helping Enterprises — Increasing Options Volume” by the SHFE.
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(11)

(12)

(13)

Change of auditors

During the past 3 years including the Reporting Period, there has been no other change of auditors of the
Company.

Amendments to the Articles of Association

On 28 December 2023, the Board proposed to amend the Articles of Association in accordance with (i) the
Listing Rules of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (August 2023 Revision) (CRYIEH 32 5 A LM (20234
8 A1&%T))), the Guidelines on the Articles of Association of Listed Companies (Revised in 2023) ({_EHA A
ZiRFED|(20234FE5])) ), the Measures for the Administration of Independent Directors of Listed Companies
(LT RARBIYESEEEIL)), the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange and other laws, regulations
and normative documents; and (i) as required by the actual situation of the Company; On 28 March 2024,
in accordance with the proposed change of company name, the Board proposed to amend the Articles of
Association. Amendments to the Articles of Association were approved by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of 2023 held on 28 June 2024 and has become effective on the same day. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 December 2023, 28 March 2024 and 28 June 2024
and the circular dated 29 May 2024. The change of company name is subject to the approval of the market
regulation and administration bureau, and there is uncertainty as to whether the relevant approvals can be
obtained, and there is the possibility of modifications and adjustments.

As at 30 December 2024, in view of the latest provisions of the Company Law, the Securities Law and other
laws, regulations and regulatory documents, and taking into account the actual situation of the Company,
the Board proposed to make corresponding amendment to the Articles of Association. Amendment to the
Articles of Association has been adopted by Shareholders at the first extraordinary general meeting of 2025
held on 18 February 2025. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 December
2024, the circular of the Company dated 24 January 2025 and the overseas regulatory announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2024.

Charges on the Group’s assets

Charges and other restrictions on the use of the Group’s assets at the end of 2024 are set out in Note V. 59
to the financial statements of this annual report.

By order of the Board
Mr. Chu Kairong
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC, 28 March 2025
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Administrative Regulatory Measures Imposed on the
Company During the Reporting Period

On 25 June 2024, the Jiangsu Securities Bureau issued a Decision Letter on Administrative Supervisory
Measures of Decision of Jiangsu Securities Bureau on the Imposition of Correcting Administrative Regulatory
Measures on Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (2024] No. 116).

On 25 November 2024, the Jiangsu Securities Bureau issued a Decision Letter on Administrative Supervisory
Measures of Decision of Jiangsu Securities Bureau on the Imposition of Increasing Compliance Inspection
Frequency Administrative Regulatory Measures on Holly Futures Co., Ltd. ([2024] No. 223).

On 18 September 2024, the Hunan Securities Regulatory Bureau issued a Decision Letter on Administrative
Supervisory Measures of Decision of Hunan Securities Regulatory Bureau on the Imposition of Correcting
Regulatory Measures on the Changsha Branch of Holly Futures Co., Ltd..

Material litigations and arbitrations
Material Litigations and Arbitrations Occurring During the Reporting Period

Nil.

Material Litigations and Arbitrations Concluded in the Reporting Period

Nil.

Outstanding material legal litigations during the Reporting Period

Nil.

New material legal litigations after the Reporting Period

Nil.

Material contracts and fulfillment

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no material contractual projects.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Material Matters

IV. Connected parties and connected transactions
Connected Transactions

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted its connected transactions in strict compliance with the

Listing Rules and the Administrative Measures on Connected Transactions. The connected transactions of the

Group were mainly entered into with the controlling shareholder of the Company, SOHO Holdings, and Soho

Real Estate. See Note Xl to the financial statements of this annual report for information about other related

party transactions and continuing connected transactions. The Company has complied with the disclosure

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of its connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions.

U

Connected Persons

During the Reporting Period, the Company has entered into certain transactions in the ordinary and
usual course of business with the following connected persons:

SOHO Holdings

SOHO Holdings, a state-owned enterprise owned as to wholly-owned by Jiangsu SASAC, was
established as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC in April 1994 and is one of the
promoters of the Company. As at the date of this Report, SOHO Holdings holds approximately
51.58% of equity interest in the Company, and hence is a Controlling Shareholder of the Company.
Accordingly, SOHO Holdings is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SOHO Holdings is an investment holding company principally engaged in (i) financial and industrial

investment, authorized operation and management of state-owned assets; (i) international trading; (iii)
housing rental; and (iv) production, R&D and sales of mulberry silk, textiles and garments.
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(1)

Continuing Connected Transactions

Financial Services Framework Agreement, Financial Investment Framework Agreement and
Trading Framework Agreement between the Group and SOHO Holdings

Pursuant to the following agreements entered into between the Company and SOHO Holdings on
June 28, 2024 (after trading hours of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)

1

Trading Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group would engage in commodity
trading with SOHO Holdings Group whereby the Group would (a) purchase from and (b) sell
to SOHO Holdings Group the Relevant Products during the period up to 31 December 2026.
Relevant Products refer to paper pulp, rubber, polypropylene, nickel iron, cotton, corn or any
other products depending on the demands in the market. The parties shall, based on the terms
of the Trading Framework Agreement, enter into separate trading agreements in respect of
each transaction under the Trading Framework Agreement. The entering into each of separate
trading agreements shall be subject to the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and
relevant rules of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (if applicable). The annual cap for 2024 are
RMB500 million (purchase from SOHO Holdings Group) and RMB50 million (sell to SOHO
Holdings Group).

Reasons for and benefits of the transactions

SOHO Holdings Group, with its state-owned background, possesses solid expertise in the
supply and demand chains of commodities, engages in stable volume of domestic and
international commodity trading, and has access to valuable resource and opportunities of
commodity trading.

As part of commodity trading and risk management business, the Group conducts spot
transactions of commodities with clients and makes use of the hedging functions and trading
opportunities of the futures markets to manage the price risks of commodities and realise
gains. With the movement of the price differences, together with the trend of market change
of the commodities, the Group seeks for trading opportunities for the purpose of transaction,
and design trading strategy and steps. Trading activities conducted by the Group on the spot
and futures market are an integral part of basis trading (ZZ=X %) and intended to manage
commodity price risk while capturing gains in the market.

Subject to the market conditions and demands of relevant commodities, the Group may
purchase Relevant Products in the market. When the commaodity price fluctuates and trading
opportunities in the market arise for the purchase of Relevant Products, and if the prices
offered by SOHO Holdings Group are no less favourable than that of similar products sold by
independent third parties, the Group will sign separate purchase contracts with the companies
in SOHO Holdings Group to purchase the Relevant Products.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Upon taking into account the gains earned or offsetting the losses in both the futures
market and spot market, the Group may sell Relevant Products in the market. When trading
opportunities in the market arise for the sale of Relevant Products, and if the prices offered by
SOHO Holdings Group are no less favourable than that of similar products sold to independent
third parties, the Group will sign separate sales contracts with subsidiaries of SOHO Holdings
Group to sell the Relevant Products.

Financial Investment Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group would subscribe for
wealth management products, including funds, trusts and asset management products from
SOHO Holdings Group during the period up to 31 December 2026. The parties shall, based on
the terms of the Financial Investment Framework Agreement, enter into separate investment
agreements in respect of each transaction under the Financial Investment Framework
Agreement. The entering into each of separate investment agreements shall be subject to the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and relevant rules of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (if
applicable). The annual cap for 2024 is RMB50 million.

Reasons for and benefits of the transactions

With an aim of optimising its capital operation, the Group invested in a variety of financial
assets so as to make effective capital allocation, facilitate the development of principal business
and improve profitability while putting risks under control. Leveraging on SOHO Holdings
Group’s well-established relationship with the Group, such transactions can facilitate the use
of advantageous resources between the parties and create synergies, thus, it is expected
to reduce the overall financing costs, optimise the asset structure, and enhance operational
capabilities of the Group. The cooperation with SOHO Holdings Group will have a synergistic
effect, which enables the Group to diversify its financing sources to support its business and is
beneficial to the long-term development of the Group.

Financial Services Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group provides various
financial services to SOHO Holdings and its subsidiaries, including futures brokerage services,
asset management services, etc during the period up to 31 December 2026. The parties
shall, based on the terms of the Financial Services Framework Agreement, enter into separate
service agreements in respect of each transaction under the Financial Services Framework
Agreement. The entering into each of separate service agreements shall be subject to the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and relevant rules of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (if
applicable). The annual cap for 2024 is RMB2.6 million.
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Reasons for and benefits of the transactions

The entering into of the Financial Services Framework Agreement can diversify the Company’s
revenue streams and facilitate the long-term development of the business operation of the
Company. The Group, as an intra-group financial services provider, generally has better and
more efficient communication with SOHO Holdings Group and better understanding of their
needs as compared to third parties. As such, SOHO Holdings Group tends to choose the
Group as the services provider in the event that they require futures-related financial services. In
addition, the long-term cooperation relationship between the Group and SOHO Holdings Group
in turn provides the Group with business and operational convenience.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement and circular dated 28 May 2024.

The following table sets out the annual caps for continuing connected transactions of the Group
in 2024 and the actual transaction amounts for connected transactions of the Group in 2024. For
the period ended 31 December 2024, the continuing connected transactions of the Group were as
follows:

Actual Amount Annual Cap
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

1 Trading Framework Agreement 0 500,000

(purchase from

SOHO Holdings

Group)

0 50,000

(sell to

SOHO Holdings

Group)

2 Financial Investment Framework Agreement 0 50,000
3 Financial Services Framework Agreement 68 2,600

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors of the Company) have reviewed
the above mentioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed that, the transactions were
entered into according to the following conditions:

(1) such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business of the Group;

2 such transactions were conducted on normal or better commercial terms; and

3) such transactions were conducted in accordance with the terms of relevant agreements, and

such terms were fair and reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.
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The auditors of the Company have reviewed the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
and confirmed to the Board that:

Q)

nothing has come to its attention that may cause it to believe that these transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

for the transactions involved the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has
come to its attention that may cause it to believe that these transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policy of the Group;

nothing has come to its attention that may cause it to believe that these transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
these transactions; and

nothing has come to its attention that may cause it to believe that these transactions have
exceeded their respective annual caps for such transactions. The Company had complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules throughout the Reporting
Period.

V. Acquisition, merger and separation during the Reporting

Period

Nil.

VI. Attained qualifications for single business during the
Reporting Period

Nil.

VII. Major off-balance sheet items

There are no major off-balance sheet items such as guarantee that may affect the financial conditions and

operating results of the Company and its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.
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VIil. Engagement of accounting firm

IX.

96

Details of the engagement of accounting firms by the Company and change of accounting firms in the past
are as follow:

Pursuant to the Administrative Measures for the Appointment of Accounting Firms by State-owned Financial
Enterprises ((El B & B (> EIRIB S HRIE AT EIEPE) ) (Cal [2020] No. 6) issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China, the term of consecutive engagement of the same accounting firm by a
financial enterprise shall in principle not exceed five years and the consecutive engagement shall not exceed
eight years. As approved by the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 May 2021, the
Company appointed ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP as its external audit firm to provide related
audit and review services based on the China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises with a term
ending at the date of the conclusion of the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company. As considered and
approved at the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2024, ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants LLP were re-appointed as auditors of the Company, with the term of office until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

Remunerations for accounting firm: Pursuant to the related authorization at the general meeting, the external
auditing fees of the Company for 2024 was RMB1.38 million, including the fees for annual audit of H Share
and annual statutory audit in the country and internal control audit fee in the amount of RMB1.00 million,
interim audit fee in the amount of RMB380,000 and no non-audit service fee was paid.

Other important particulars and subsequent events

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the
Subsidiaries

1. Holly International Financial

On 9 May 2024, Ms. Chen Rongping ceased to be a director of Holly International Financial.
On 1 June 2024, Mr. Yao Hui ceased to be the deputy general manager of Holly International Financial.

2. Holly International Asset Management

On 18 January 2024, Mr. Guo Hanbin was appointed as a director of Holly International Asset
Management; Mr. Ji Lin was appointed as a director of Holly International Asset Management.

On 27 February 2024, Mr. Kong Xiangwei ceased to be the director and general manager of Holly
International Asset Management.

On 3 April 2024, Mr. Guo Hanbin was appointed as the general manager of Holly International Asset
Management.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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3. Holly Capital
On 27 August 2024, Mr. Li Jianfeng was appointed as Deputy General Manager of Holly Capital.
On 28 February 2025, Mr. Huang Haiging ceased to serve as a director of Holly Capital, Ms. Chen
Ling ceased to serve as a director of Holly Capital, Mr. Jia Fuhua was appointed as a director of Holly
Capital, and Ms. Yao Aili was appointed as a director of Holly Capital.
Annual Profit Distribution Plan of the Company
The profit distribution plan for 2024 is set out in Section Il — “Report of the Board” — “V. Profit distribution and
profit distribution plan” of this Report.
Profit Distribution of Subsidiaries

During the Reporting Period, the subsidiaries of the Company did not have any profit distribution.

Major Investment and Financing

o Major investment and financing of the Company
Major investment and financing of the Company is set out in Section Il Operating Conditions
“Management Discussion and Analysis” — “V. Major investment and financing of the Company and
subsidiaries” of this Report.

o Major investment and financing of subsidiaries

Major investment and financing of the subsidiaries is set out in Section Il Operating Conditions
“Management Discussion and Analysis” — “V. Major investment and financing of the Company and
subsidiaries” of this Report.

Future Plans for Major Investments or Capital Assets

As at the date of this Report, the Group does not have any future plans for major investments or capital assets.

Major Legal Proceedings and Arbitration

Details of major legal proceedings and arbitration are set out in Section Ill Corporate Governance “Material
Matters” — “Il. Material Litigations and Arbitrations” of this Report.

Merger or Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any merger or disposal of subsidiaries.
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Other Events to Cause Material Impact on Financial Positions, Business
Performance and Cash Flow

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other events to cause material impact on financial
positions, business performance and cash flow.

Amendments to the Articles of Association

On 28 December 2023, the Board proposed to amend the Articles of Association in accordance with (i) the
Listing Rules of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (August 2023 Revision) ((CGREYIEH 32 5 A7 M8 Bl(20234F
8 A1£31))), the Guidelines on the Articles of Association of Listed Companies (Revised in 2023) ({ /A a]
ZF2HE5|(202341(E5])) ), the Measures for the Administration of Independent Directors of Listed Companies
({ETRRBIESEERNIE)), the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange and other laws, regulations
and normative documents; and (i) as required by the actual situation of the Company; On 28 March 2024,
in accordance with the proposed change of company name, the Board proposed to amend the Articles of
Association. Amendments to the Articles of Association were approved by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of 2023 held on 28 June 2024 and has become effective on the same day. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 December 2023, 28 March 2024 and 28 June 2024
and the circular dated 29 May 2024. The change of company name is subject to the approval of the market
regulation and administration bureau, and there is uncertainty as to whether the relevant approvals can be
obtained, and there is the possibility of modifications and adjustments.

On 30 December 2024, in light of the latest provisions of laws and regulations and regulatory documents such
as the Company Law and the Securities Law, and having considered the actual situation of the Company, the
Board proposed to make corresponding amendment to the Articles of Association. Amendment to the Articles
of Association has been adopted by the Shareholders at the first extraordinary general meeting of 2025 held
on 18 February 2025. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 December
2024; the circular of the Company dated 24 January 2025; and the overseas regulatory announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2024,

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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. Shareholding structure

The shareholding structure of the Company as of 31 December 2024 is as follows:

Shareholdings of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares or the top ten Shareholders

Number of
shares

held as Changes Number of

at the end of during shares subject

Nature of the Reporting  the Reporting to selling

Name of shareholder shareholder Proportion Period Period restriction

Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group State-owned legal 21.33% 275,456,777 0 275,456,777
Co., Ltd. person

HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED Foreign legal 24.78% 249,691,239 1,190 0
person

Soho Holly Corporation State-owned legal 14.68% 147,900,000 0 147,900,000
person

Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. Domestic non- 6.43% 64,795,299 -37,190,224 0

state-owned
legal person

Jiangsu High Hope International Group  State-owned legal 6.34% 63,930,134 0 0
Corporation person

Jiangsu Holly International Logistics State-owned legal 0.82% 8,285,345 0 8,285,345
Corporation person

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Foreign legal 0.56% 5,610,934 1,622,716 0
Company Limited person

MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL ~ Foreign legal 0.29% 2,931,286 2,931,286 0
person

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd—China Other 0.29% 2,928,900 2,431,700 0

Southern Finance-themed Flexible
Allocation Hyrid Securities Investment

Fund
Goldman Sachs International - own Foreign legal 0.22% 2,184,960 2,184,960 0
funds person

Number of
shares

not subject
to selling
restriction

249,691,239

64,795,299

63,930,134

5,610,934

2,931,286

2,928,900

2,184,960
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Shareholding of Top Ten Shareholders Not Subject to Selling Restriction

Number of shares
not subject

to selling Type of shares
restriction
as at the end of

the Reporting Number of
Name of shareholder Period shares
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 249,691,239 Foreign shares listed 249,691,239

overseas

Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. 64,795,299 RMB ordinary shares 64,795,299
Jiangsu High Hope International Group Corporation 63,930,134 RMB ordinary shares 63,930,134
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 5,610,934 RMB ordinary shares 5,610,934
MERRILL LYNCH INTERNATIONAL 2,931,286 RMB ordinary shares 2,931,286
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd—China Southern Finance- 2,928,900 RMB ordinary shares 2,928,900

themed Flexible Allocation Hyrid Securities
Investment Fund

Goldman Sachs International—own funds 2,184,960 RMB ordinary shares 2,184,960
Chen Hong (%) 1,958,300 RMB ordinary shares 1,958,300
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. —Southern China 1,898,200 RMB ordinary shares 1,898,200

Securities 1000 Trading Open-ended Index
Securities Investment Fund

CITIC Securities Co., Ltd 1,774,064 RMB ordinary shares 1,774,064
Notes:
1. The calculation is based on a total of 1,007,777,778 issued Shares of the Company as at 31 December 2024.
2. The type of shareholders of ordinary shares in RMB (A Shares) represents the type of accounts held by shareholders

registered with China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, Shenzhen Branch.

3. Among shareholders of overseas listed foreign shares (H Shares) of the Company, shares of non-registered shareholders
are held by HKSCC Nominees Limited on their behalf.

4. Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited is a nominal holder of A Shares of the Company held by the investors in
Northbound Trading under Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect.

Il. Changes in Shares

Nil.
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lll. Interests and short positions of substantial shareholders in
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company

sM noqy

As at 31 December 2024, to the knowledge of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the
Company, the interests or short positions of substantial shareholders (except the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company) in Share or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be

1

disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which are required to be

entered into the register of the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

Approximate Approximate _OO
percentageto  percentage to g
Class of Number of total issued  relevant Share é
Name of shareholders Shares Capacity shares held Shares"" class®? e
SOHO Holdings® ASharesand  Beneficial owner 519,827,256 51.58% A Shares 65.37% %_
H shares and interest (495,572,256 H Shares 9.71% g-
in controlled A Shares and @
corporation 24,255,000
H Shares) p
(long position)
Zhong Shan Company (#[L7A7]) H Shares Beneficial owner 24,255,000 2.41% 9.71%
(long position) @)
SOHO Holly A Shares Beneficial owner 147,900,000 14.68% 19.51% %
(long position) 8
Holly Su Industrial® A Shares Beneficial owner 64,795,299 6.43% 8.55% @
(long position) g)
Shenzhen Changhong Investment A Shares Interest in controlled 64,795,299 6.43% 8.55% E
Partnership (Limited Partnership) corporation (long position) 5
(RIS RREABLE 3
(BREE)"
Shanghai Taihe Yitian Investment A Shares Interest in controlled 64,795,299 6.43% 8.55% \
Partnership (Limited Partnership) corporation (long position)
(FBREBRRAGHLE
(BRER)" -
Zhongshan Yigao Investment A Shares Interest in controlled 64,795,299 6.43% 8.55% g
Development Co., Ltd. corporation (long position) 3
(FILSEREAERBRAT) 2
Huang Jieping¥ A Shares Interest in controlled 64,795,299 6.43% 8.55% g‘*
corporatio (long position) 3
High Hope Corporation A Shares Beneficial owner 63,930,134 6.34% 8.43% %’_
(long position) S
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1 The calculation is based on the total number of 1,007,777,778 Shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2024.

2) The calculation is based on the 758,077,778 A Shares in issue and 249,700,000 H Shares in issue of the Company as at
31 December 2024.

) On 31 December 2024, SOHO Holdings (i) directly held 275,456,777 A Shares; (i) was the beneficial owner of 22.46%
equity interest in SOHO Holly (directly holding 147,900,000 A Shares of the Company); (iiij was the beneficial owner
of 67.41% equity interest in High Hope Corporation (directly holding 63,930,134 A Shares of the Company); (iv) was
the beneficial owner of the entire equity interests of SOHO Culture Group (deemed to be interested in the 8,285,345 A
Shares directly held by Holly Logistics); and (v) was the beneficial owner of 100% equity interest in Zhong Shan Company
(directly holding 24,255,000 H Shares of the Company). As disclosed in the 2024 interim report of SOHO Holly, according
to relevant PRC laws, SOHO Holdings is deemed to be the controlling shareholder of SOHO Holly. Accordingly, SOHO
Holdings is deemed to be interested in the 147,900,000 A Shares of the Company directly held by SOHO Holly, 63,930,134
A Shares of the Company directly held by High Hope Corporation, 8,285,345 A Shares of the Company directly held by
SOHO Culture Group and 24,255,000 H Shares of the Company directly held by Zhong Shan Company, and hence was
directly and indirectly interested in 519,827,256 Shares.

4) According to the current information available to the Company, on 31 December 2024, (i) Shenzhen Changhong Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (#3I|& %1% & & B E(BRE#)) held 99% equity interests in Holly Su Industrial.; (i)
Shanghai Taihe Yitian Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (E/8Z5RAZRIEEA B L E(BREE)) held 99.71%
equity interests in Shenzhen Changhong Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (#3I| £ 818 & A B2 (BRAB); (i)
Zhongshan Yigao Investment Development Co., Ltd. (111 5 &% &R AR A 7)) held 79.5% equity interests in Shanghai
Taihe Yitian Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (E/8ZAZRIEEABLEBEREE)); (v) Ms. Huang Jieping
was the beneficial owner of 100% equity interests in Zhongshan Yigao Investment Development Co., Ltd. (F 1L S =& & %
BB 7R]). Accordingly, under the SFO, each of Shenzhen Changhong Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (%
JIEBREAELEBERAE)), Shanghai Taihe Yitian Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (L/8%& 2 XRIEE
ABLEERAE), Zhongshan Yigao Investment Development Co., Ltd. (F 1L S SR EEE AR A F]) and Ms. Huang
Jieping is deemed to be interested in the 64,795,299 A Shares directly held by Holly Su Industrial.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company are not aware
that, as at 31 December 2024, any other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of
the Company) had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
are required to be entered into the register of the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, SOHO Holdings, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company, held
approximately 51.58% of the total issued Shares of the Company. SOHO Holdings was established in April
1994 with a registered capital of RMB2,000 million. It is a state-owned enterprise wholly-owned by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Jiangsu. SOHO Holdings is an investment
holding company and its business scope includes finance, industrial investment, operation and management
of state-owned assets as authorised, international trading, rental housing, and manufacturing, R&D and sales
of mulberry silk, textile and clothing.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

Basic Information about current and resigned Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management during the Reporting

Period
Directors
Relationship
with other
Remunerations Directors,
received during  Supervisors
the Reporting  or members
Date of Time of joining the Period of senior
Gender Position(s) appointment group company (RMB0,0000 management  Remarks
ChuKarong 50 ~ Male  Chairman, executive 22 November 2022 September 2004 7833 N/A~ Appointed as the
Director Chalrman on 4
July 2024
ZhaoWeliong 49 Male  General manager, 6 September 2024 July 2024 1519 N/A
executive Director
Xue Binghai 5 Mae  Non-executive Director 30 June 2012 June 2012 N/A
Jiang Lin 59 Mde  Non-executive Director 15 November 2019 November 2019 N/A~ Resigned on 18
February 2025
JangHaiying 42 Female  Non-executive Director 18 February 2025 February 2025 N/A
Shan Bing 57 Mde  Non-executive Director 26 May 2017 May 2017 N/A~ Resigned on 30
January 2024
HuangDechun 59 Mae  Independent non- 15November 2019 November 2019 1.90 N/A
executive Director
Lo Wah Wai 61 Mae  Independent non- 23 December 2021 23 December 2021 13.21 N/A
executive Director
ZhangHongfa 60 Male  Independent non- 21 uly 2023 21 July 2023 190 N/A
executive Director
Note:  The term of office of the fourth session of the Board has expired within the Reporting Period. At the first extraordinary

general meeting in 2025, Mr. Chu Kairong, Mr. Zhao Weixiong, Mr. Xue Binghai, Mr. Huang Dechun, Mr. Lo Wah Wai and
Mr. Zhang Hongfa have been re-elected as Directors of the fifth session of the Board, and Ms. Jiang Haiying has been

appointed as a Director of the fifth session of the Board.
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(20 Supervisors

Relationship
with other
Remunerations Directors,

received during  Supervisors

Time of joining the Reporting  or members
Date of the group Period of senior
Gender Position(s) appointment company (RMB’0,0000 management  Remarks
YuHong 49 Female  Chairlady of the 13 June 2019 July 2016 N/A~ (Resigned on 17
Supervisory Committee July 2024 and
took effect on 6
September)
HuangDongyan 53~ Male  Chaimanofthe 6 September 2024 June 2022 43.73 N/A~ Appointed on 6
Supervisory September
Commitee 2024
Chen Liang 4 Mae  Supenisor 23 December 2021 23 December 2021 N/A
Zhang Lei 47 Female  Supervisor 20 March 2023 August 2018 22.78 N/A Resigned on 18
February 2025
Gong Qi 38 Female  Supenisor 18 February 2025 September 2009 N/A~ Appointed on 18
February 2025

Note: the term of the fourth session of the Supervisory Committee expired during the Reporting Period. At the 2025 first
extraordinary general meeting, Mr. Huang Dongyan and Mr. Chen Liang have been re-appointed as shareholder
representative Supervisors of the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee. Ms. Gong Qi has been appointed as an
employee representative Supervisor of the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee at the employee representative
meeting of the Company.
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5
(3) Senior Management 2
Cc
Relationship »

with other

Directors,

Supervisors

or members L\
of senior
Gender Position(s) Date of appointment management ENE]

Zhao Weixiong 49 Male General manager September 2024 )
Zhao Dong 55 Male Deputy general manager ~ March 2014 N/A 8
Chen Rongping 56 Female  Supervisor of finance June 2019 N/A Retired on 9 May 2024 S
Huang Haiging 42 Male Deputy general manager ~ Deputy general manager since N/A 8
Board secretary and joint October 2020 Q
company secretary Board secretary and joint S_
company secretary since g'
December 2020 ?

Wu Jiufeng 43 Male Deputy general manager ~ October 2020 N/A

Jia Fuhua 40 Male Supervisor of finance 9 May 2024 N/A p
Zhan Jieying 43 Female  Chief risk officer 5 July 2023 N/A

Note:  The above ages are based on the date of this annual report (i.e., 28 March 2025).
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

Il. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management in
Companies of Shareholders and Position(s) at Other
Companies at Current and during the Reporting Period

(1) Directors

Position(s) at the Company Employment in other companies Position(s) at other companies
Chu Kairong Chairman, executive Director Holly Capital Chairman, general manager
ZhaoWeixiong ~ General manager, executive Director - -
Xue Bingha Non-executive Director SOHO Holdings Assistant to CEQ, general manager
of the financial division
Jiangsu Jin Su Zheng Investment Development Co., Ltd. Chairman
(L2 HFERELRARLA)
Jiangsu Zhonghe Venture Investment Co., Ltd. Director, general manager
(IERAERERRAA)
Jiangsu Zijin Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. Director

(L& Z e BNAXRTROERLR)
Jiangsu SOHO Jisheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. ~ Chairman
(IHEFEERAERERAR)

Jiang Lin Non-gxecutive Director Jiangsu Holly Environmental Technology Industrial Co., Ltd. ~ Chairman
(LELRRRMRERERAA)
Jiangsu Holly Yongchang (Hong Kong) Co., Limited Director
(IERLEKEER)BRAT)
Jiang Haiying Non-executive Director SOHO Holly (853 %) General manager, Director
Shan Bing Non-executive Director Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. (T#eLEESBRAF)  Non-executive Director
Huang Dechun ~ Independent non-executive Director ~ Business School of Hohal Universty (/8 A2/ Zk) Professor
Suzhou Sushi Test Group Co., Ltd. Independent director
EMEAFRERRNERAT)
World Shuigu (Nanjing) Academy Cutture Co., Ltd. Supervisor
(kAR ER U ARAT)
Lo Wah Wai Independent non-executive Director ~ BMI Consultants Limited (BB ERER AR A F) Chaiman, executive director
Chongaing Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Independent non-executive Director
(ERRERNERAT)
Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited Independent non-executive Director
REFSERERAR)
Zhang Hongfa Independent non-executive Director Jiangsu Guoxin Corp., Ltd. Independent director
Suzhou Convert Semiconductor Co., Ltd. Independent director
B+ SRR ERAT)
Jiangsu Appraisal Society Vice president
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(2)

(3)

Supervisors

Yu Hong

Huang Dongyan

Chen Liang

Zhang Lei

Gong Qi

Position(s) at the Company

Chairlady of the Supervisory
Committee and shareholder
representative Supervisor

Chairman of the Supervisory
Committee

Shareholder representative
Supervisor

Employee representative
Supervisor

Employee representative
Supervisor

Employment in
other companies

SOHO Holdings

Jiangsu Futures Association

Holly Capital

SOHO Holdings Financial
Business Division

Position(s)

Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

at other companies

Deputy director of the

inspection office of

the Party committee

Supervisor
Supervisor

Deputy general manager

Senior Management

Name

Zhao Weixiong

Zhao Dong

Jia Fuhua

Huang Haiging

Wu Jiufeng

Zhan Jieying

Position(s) at the Company

General manager, Executive
Director

Deputy general manager

Supervisor of finance

Deputy general manager,
Board secretary and joint
company secretary

Deputy general manager

Chief Risk Officer

Employment in
other companies

Hong Rui New Era

Hong Rui Growth

Holly Capital

Holly International Financial

Holly Capital
Holly International Financial
Holly Capital

Position(s)

at other companies

Director
Director
Director
Chairman

Director
Director
Director
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

(1)

108

Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

Particulars in relation to the positions held by Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management at other
companies are set out in Section Il “Il. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management in Companies of
Shareholders and Position(s) at Other Companies at Current and During the Reporting Period” of this report.

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. Chu Kairong (f#Bf%8), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in July
1974, and holds a bachelor’s degree. He is currently an executive Director, the chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the strategic and ESG committee of the Board, a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board, legal representative of the Company and the authorised representative of
the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules.

From October 1996 to October 2003, Mr. Chu Kairong served as an account manager, senior account
manager, marketing supervisor, and head of the sales and marketing service department of Xichang Town in
China Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Haian Branch (4 Bl A &Rz i (5 B R 2 5)/8 % < 2 7). From October 2003 to
September 2004, he served as a cooperative intermediary (& {EfEf&A) of Jiangsu Holly Futures Brokerage
Company Limited (T#r5. 2 E L4 B A R]). From September 2004 to January 2009, Mr. Chu served
as institutional investment headquarters employee, deputy manager and manager of Jiangsu Holly Futures
Brokerage Company Limited. From January 2009 to April 2016, he worked at Holly Futures Brokerage Co.,
Ltd. (GAXHIE LA BBR/AF) as an assistant to the general manager. From April 2016 to January 2022, he
served as the deputy general manager of the Company. From January 2022 to October 2022, he served as a
member of the Party committee and executive deputy general manager of the Company. Since October 2022,
he has been serving as the vice secretary of the Party committee, general manager and executive Director of
the Company. From January 2024 to July 2024, he has been the acting chairman of the Board. Since July
2024, he has been serving as secretary of the Party committee and chairman of the Board. Mr. Chu Kairong is
also the chairman of the board of directors and general manager of Holly Capital Management Co., Ltd. (5A%
BAREIRAHR A7), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

Mr. Zhao Weixiong (#{2%f), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
January 1976, graduated from Southeast University (BRFAZ2) in November 2011 with a doctor degree in
management science and engineering and is currently a senior economist (i2 4% 4% EAT) as credentialed by
the Department of Human Resources and Social Securities of Jiangsu Province. Mr. Zhao is currently the
vice secretary of the Party Committee of the Company, an executive Director, the general manager of the
Company, the chairman of the risk management committee of the Board, and a member of the strategic and
ESG committee of the Board.

Mr. Zhao served various positions at Jiangsu Holly Futures Brokerage Company Limited (I &k 54 % 81 & 4842
BIR A7), the predecessor of the Company, and the Company during the periods from July 1999 to October
2016, including, among others, as manager of futures branch, office head, chief operation officer and deputy
general manager, with his last positions as executive deputy general manager, vice secretary of the party
committee, board secretary and joint company secretary. Mr. Zhao served as a director and the chairman of
the board of directors of Holly Capital from June 2013 to October 2016 and from June 2013 to April 2015,
respectively. Mr. Zhao served as the assistant of the general manager and the deputy general manager of
Jiangsu Holly International Group Investment Management Company Limited (T &#5A¥BFR EEKE &8
ABRAR], currently known as SOHO Investment Group Co., Ltd. (Ex5 &R & £E B R A 7)) from July 2006 to
September 2010. He served various positions at Jiangsu Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (T # < BlEA AR A 7))
including, among others, as general manager, with his last position as an executive director from July 2016
to April 2020. He served as an executive deputy general manager and member of the party branch (427
% 8) of Jiangsu SOHO Investment from April 2020 to September 2024. He served as the chairman of the
board and legal representative of Jiangsu Soho Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. (Lé# &gt EHE AR A 7)) from
September 2022 to July 2024 and September 2022 to August 2024, respectively.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xue Binghai (B£1%7%), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
September 1970, holds a master’s degree and is a senior accountant.

Mr. Xue Binghai served as the deputy general manager of the asset and finance department of Jiangsu SOHO
International Group Co., Ltd. (LT ###k 5 Bl S B A {n B R 2 7]), the general manager of the asset and finance
department of SOHO Holdings, the chief financial officer of Jiangsu SOHO International Group Co., Ltd.,
general manager and chairman of the board of Jiaingsu SOHO Investment. He is currently the assistant to the
president and general manager of the financial division in SOHO Holdings Group. Mr. Xue Binghai also serves
as the chairman of Jiangsu Jin Su Zheng Investment Development Co., Ltd. (I & & & B R EEREGR A A),
a director and general manager of Jiangsu Zhonghe Venture Investment Co., Ltd. (L 54 BIZZE B[R A7),
a director of Jiangsu Zijin Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (T#x & 2R EERITIRM AR AR, and the
chairman of Jiangsu SOHO Jisheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. (I &&= 2R E IR AR A 7). Mr.
Xue has been serving as a non-executive Director of the Company since 10 July 2015, he is also a member of
the audit committee, the risk management committee and the strategic and ESG committee of the Board.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff
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Ms. Jiang Haiying (#3#&), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
April 1982, graduated from East China University of Political Science and Law (FERBUAAE) with a master’s
degree of Laws and obtained the legal professional qualification certificates in the PRC.

Ms. Jiang Haiying is currently a vice secretary of the Party Committee (2 Z &IZ52) (since August 2022), the
general manager (since September 2022) and a director (since November 2022) of Soho Holly. From July
2019 to August 2022, Ms. Jiang Haiying served as a supervisor of Soho Holly. Ms. Jiang Haiying has also
served various positions in SOHO Holdings, including, among others, as the vice manager, manager, deputy
general manager of the risk management and legal department (B2E%7EE), with her last position as general
manager of the risk management and legal department from May 2020 to August 2022. Prior to joining SOHO
Holdings, Ms. Jiang Haiying has practiced as a lawyer in Jiangsu Hongyuan Law Firm (T &k 5A= 2RI SE 15T
and has served as a judge at Qinhuai District People’s Court of Nanjing Municipality (F8 5T Z= & A RSER).
She is also currently a member of the risk management committee and the strategic and ESG committee of
the Board.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Huang Dechun (EE#), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
February 1966, and holds a doctoral degree.

Mr. Huang Dechun served as a teacher at Jiangsu Vocational College of Finance and Economics, the deputy
director of Economic and Trade Commission of Sugian, Jiangsu (temporary post), a postdoctoral fellow in
theoretical economics from Nanjing University, a visiting professor of Finance in University of Northern lowa
(UNJ) in U.S., an independent director of Jiangsu Dexuantang Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd. (T #i{E&f &
ge (=) AR /A 7)), an independent director of Leysen Jewelry Co., Ltd. (4B EIRE M AR AR, an
independent director of Yongan Futures Co., Ltd. (K&ZHEIE B R A F)), and a supervisor of Shanghai Xumao
Information Technology Co., Ltd. ((E/8% (= BT AR A F)). He is currently a professor at Hohai University,
an independent director of Suzhou Sushi Test Group Co., Ltd. (BN & A BEBA M AR A7), and a
supervisor of World Shuigu (Nanjing) Academy Culture Co., Ltd. (tt /KA (FE R)ER LR AR A R]). Mr.
Huang has been serving as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 November 2019.
He is also currently the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the audit committee, the
nomination committee and the strategic and ESG committee of the Board.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff

Mr. Lo Wah Wai (E# &), with Chinese (Hong Kong) nationality and permanent residency in the United
Kingdom, was born in September 1963, and holds a master’s degree.

Mr. Lo Wah Wai graduated with a bachelor’s degree in business administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1986 and a master’s degree in management science from New Jersey Institute of Technology
in the United States in 1992. Mr. Lo is a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has more than
20 years’ service experience in auditing and business consulting services. Mr. Lo previously served as an
independent non-executive director of Shangdong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (Ll 5 EE &) 24
&1 B R A 7)), and currently is also the chairman and an executive director of BMI Consultants Limited (3883
P ¥4 B A FR 2 7)), an independent non-executive director of Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. (&
B ERD AR AR) and Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited (X#&(F £2)1Ei% B R A A)). Mr. Lo has
been serving as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 23 December 2021. He is also
currently the chairman of the audit committee of the Board, and a member of the risk management committee
and the strategic and ESG committee of the Board.

Mr. Zhang Hongfa (3R %), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
September 1964, and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Mr. Zhang Hongfa graduated from Soochow University in July 1986 with a bachelor degree in economics, is a
professorate senior accountant as credentialed by the Department of Human Resources and Social Security
of Jiangsu Province (T# & A 1 &R 2{RFEEE) and a Certified Public Accountant as credentialed by the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (F Bz & 5Bl ). Mr. Zhang has worked in Jiangsu
Radio and Television University (T#t/ZIEE R KEE, now known as Jiangsu Open University (T &5 MK
22, Jiangsu Provincial Firm of Accountants (L& €5HRIEFT) and Jiangsu Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (T#x& it 2 5HEM 1% €). He has been the deputy secretary general, secretary-general and vice-
chairman of Jiangsu Province Appraisal Society (L& & & E LA 1) from August 2014 to November in
2024. Mr. Zhang is also an independent director of Jiangsu Guoxin Corporation Limited and Suzhou Convert
Semiconductor Co., Ltd. (&R B E D AR A R]). Mr. Zhang previously served as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company from 8 July 2013 to 15 November 2019. Mr. Zhang has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 21 July 2023, and he is also the chairman of the
nomination committee, and a member of the remuneration committee, the risk management committee and
the strategic and ESG committee of the Board.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Staff
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(3)

112

Supervisors

Mr. Huang Dongyan (EX ), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
May 1971 and graduated from Party School of Jiangsu Provincial Committee of the Chinese Communist Party
(P HITERE T ER) with a postgraduate degree in business management.

Mr. Huang served various positions at SOHO Holly from August 1993 to February 2015, including, as an
assistant to the manager of the finance department, with his last positions as the deputy general manager of
the trade management department and assistant to the general manager. From January 2015 to June 2018,
he served various positions at SOHO Culture Group Company Limited (%% X/t &£ AR A 7)), including, as
a member of the Party Committee, secretary of the Committee for Discipline Inspection and deputy general
manager. He served as a member of the Party Committee and secretary of the Committee for Discipline
Inspection of Jiangsu Soho Asset Operation Group Co. Ltd.* (T #k#r5 & EELEEBGRAR]), from June
2018 to November 2018, and Jiangsu Soho Textile Group Co. Ltd.* (T & &k 454k E AR A 7)), from June
2018 to June 2022, respectively. He is currently a member of the Party Committee (2% % 8) and a secretary
of the Committee for Discipline Inspection (42 Z& £ 3c) of the Company, and a supervisor of Holly Capital
Management Co., Ltd. GAZEE AREEHF R A R]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chen Liang (FR %), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in March
1981, and holds a master’s degree.

Mr. Chen Liang worked at Jiangsu High-Tech Investment Group (T# & = EHEIR E L) as an investment
manager from August 2008 to February 2013; worked at Shanghai Fosun Kailei Equity Fund (/818 £
ERAEIREES) as a vice president from March 2013 to May 2015; worked at CMB International Capital
Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (BEREIFR ERE R (xII)EMR A 7)) as a vice president from June 2015 to
June 2018; worked at CEB International Asset Management (China) Co., Ltd. (tiREIEEE IR (FE) AR A
7)) from July 2018 to October 2019 as an investment director; and worked at Jiangsu High Hope International
Group Corporation (T &k %5 BIPR £ E I (D B R A 7)) as the deputy general manager of the strategic
development department from November 2019 to November 2023. He has been worked at the Financial
Business Division in SOHO Holdings and served as deputy general manager since November 2023.

Ms. Gong Qi (8%j), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in November
1986, holds a bachelor degree in accounting and is currently a senior accountant (& & 251l as credentialed
by the Department of Human Resources and Social Securities of Jiangsu Province.

Ms. Gong joined the Company in September 2009. She was the person in charge of the finance department
of Holly Capital Management Co., Ltd. GAZ B ZARNEHE FBR A F), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and an assistant of the manager of the finance department of the Company. She is currently the deputy
manager of the finance department of the Company.

Senior Management

Mr. Zhao Weixiong (it {2##), for details of Mr. Zhao Weixiong, please see the sub-section headed “Directors
— Executive Directors” above.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Zhao Dong (&), with Chinese nationality but without permanent residency abroad, was born in
December 1969, and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Mr. Zhao Dong was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company in March 2014 and is
primarily responsible for branches of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhao Dong served as
an employee at Wuxi Xingye Textile Printing and Dyeing Co., Ltd. (25 M 24545 EN 2 AR A 7)) from June
1990 to August 1990, and as an employee at Yixing Industrial Materials Supply and Marketing Company (&
mIEWEMHIEAR]) from August 1990 to January 1993. From January 1993 to April 1997, he was a
staff member of Yixing City Building Materials General Store (B E1T124M 42[€). He was an employee of the
Marketing Department of the Yixing Office of Changzhou Jianzheng Futures Company (& 12 & E AR E
B 5R) from April 1997 to August 1999. Mr. Zhao Dong had been the manager of marketing department
of Wuxi Lida Futures Brokerage Co., Ltd. (fE#F| KBB4 BR A 7)) from September 1999 to July 2000.
From August 2000 to September 2003, he served in Yixing Huazheng Investment Group Limited (2 E %
FHEEBEABR AR as Marketing Manager. From October 2003 to March 2014, he served in Huazheng
Futures Brokerage Co., Ltd. GEE B4 BRAR]), where he served successively as market manager,
head of Shanghai sales department, deputy general manager, and general manager. From August 2011 to
March 2014, he served in Huazheng Futures Co., Ltd. GEEHIE BBR 2 7)) as General Manager. Since March
2014, he has been the deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Huang Haiqing (E7&/&), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
March 1983, and holds a master’s degree.

Mr. Huang Haiging was an employee of Jiangsu Holly International Group Garment Trading Co., Ltd. (T #&k5A
¥R EBREE S ER Q7)) from June 2009 to October 2009. From November 2009 to August 2020, he
successively served as an employee in the Market Headquarters, Head of the Internet Business Department,
General Manager of the Internet Business Department, and Head of the Financial Industry Headquarters of
the Company. Since October 2020, he has been serving as the deputy general manager of the Company. He
has been serving as Secretary of the Board of the Company since December 2020, a member of the Party
committee of the Company since January 2022, the Chairman of Holly International Financial.

Mr. Wu Jiufeng (& X ), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
February 1982, and holds a bachelor’s degree.

From October 2007 to March 2008, Mr. Wu Jiufeng served as an employee in the Financial Futures Division
| of Jiangsu Holly Group Garment Trading Limited (T&roA¥ £ B RFEZ 5 AR A R]). From April 2008 to
August 2020, he successively served as client manager, senior client manager of the Financial Futures Division |,
assistant manager, deputy manager, and manager of the Financial Futures Headquarters, and assistant to
the general manager of the Company. Since October 2020, he has served as deputy general manager of the
Company. Since January 2022, he has served as a member of the Party Committee of the Company, and a
director of Holly Capital and Holly International Financial.
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Mr. Jia Fuhua (& E #), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in October
1984 and holds a master’s degree. He is currently recognized as a Senior Accountant (Professor Level) by the
Jiangsu Provincial Department of Human Resources and Social Security.

From July 2006 to December 2010, Mr. Jia Fuhua successively served as an Accountant, Capital
Management Officer of the Asset and Finance Department of Jiangsu SOHO International Group Corporation,
Financial Director, Asset Management Officer and General Ledger of the Asset and Finance Department of
Suzhou Soho Biomaterials Technology Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary). From January 2011 to February 2013, he
was the Head of the Capital Center in the Asset and Finance Department of Jiangsu Silk Group Co., Ltd.
From February 2013 to June 2015, he served as Deputy Head of the Financial Management Division in the
Asset and Finance Department of SOHO Holdings Group. From June 2015 to January 2019, he was the
Financial Director of Tianhong Automobile Group. Additionally, from January 2018 to March 2019, he served
as a Director of Tianhong Automobile Group. From January 2019 to December 2021, he was appointed by
SOHO Holdings Group as the Financial Director and General Manager of the Finance Department of SOHO
Investment Group (from January 2019 to April 2020, he concurrently served as Interim Financial Director of
Jiangsu Financial Holding Co., Ltd., appointed by SOHO Holdings Group). From December 2021 to June
2023, he was a Member of the Party Committee of Holly Corporation and the Financial Director of Holly
Corporation appointed by SOHO Holdings Group (from December 2021 to September 2022, he concurrently
served as Interim Financial Director of SOHO E-Commerce). From June 2023 to April 2024, he was a Member
of the Party Committee and Financial Director of SOHO Holly. Since May 2024, he has been serving as a
Member of the Party Committee, Financial Director, and General Manager of the Finance Department of the
Company. Additionally, Mr. Jia Fuhua serves as a Director of Holly Capital, Hong Rui Growth, and Hong Rui
New Era.

Ms. Zhan Jieying (&52%), with Chinese nationality, without permanent residency abroad, was born in
September 1981, and holds a master’s degree.

From August 2004 to April 2013, Ms. Zhan Jieying worked at Changzhou Xinbei District Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation Bureau (%M ik ¥ 9MNE 5408 & ER). From May 2013 to November 2021, she
successively served as Deputy Manager of the International Business Department, Deputy Manager of the
Audit and Legal Department, Deputy Manager (Acting Head) of the Legal Affairs Department, Manager of the
Legal Affairs Department, and Manager of the Audit and Legal Department of the Company. From November
2021 to July 2023, she was the Manager of the Compliance and Risk Control Department of the Company.
Since July 2023, she has been serving as the Chief Risk Officer and Manager of the Compliance and Risk
Control Department of the Company. From October 2024, she will also assume the role of General Counsel.
Ms. Zhan Jieying also serves as a director of Holly Capital.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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IV. Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

(1)

(2)

(3)

Changes of Directors and Board Committees Members

On 30 January 2024, Mr. Shan Bing ceased to serve as the non-executive Director and the member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

On 4 July 2024, Mr. Chu Kairong was appointed as the Chairman of the Board of the Company.

On 6 September 2024, Mr. Chu Kairong was appointed as the chairman of the strategic and ESG committee,
and a member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee, and ceased to be a member
of the risk committee; Mr. Zhao Weixiong was appointed as an executive Director, the chairman of the risk
management committee and a member of the strategic and ESG committee; Mr. Jiang Lin was appointed
as a member of the strategic and ESG committee; Mr. Huang Dechun was appointed as a member of
the strategic and ESG committee; Mr. Lo Wah Wai was appointed as a member of the risk management
committee and the strategic and ESG committee; Mr. Zhang Hongfa ceased to be the chairman of the risk
management committee and remains as a member of the risk management committee, and was appointed as
the chairman of the nomination committee.

On 18 February 2025, Ms. Jiang Haiying was appointed as non-executive director, a member of the risk
management committee and the strategic and ESG committee, and Mr. Jiang Lin ceased to be a non-
executive Director, a member of the risk management committee and the strategic and ESG committee of the
Company.

Changes of Supervisors

On 17 July 2024, Ms. Yu Hong resigned as the Chairlady of the supervisory committee and continued to fulffill
her duties until the appointment of Mr. Huang Dongyan as the Chairman of the supervisory committee on 6
September 2024.

On 18 February 2025, Ms. Zhang Lei ceased to serve as an employee representative Supervisor, and Ms.
Gong Qi was appointed as an employee representative Supervisor.

Changes of Senior Management

On 9 May 2024, Ms. Chen Rongping ceased to be the supervisor of finance of the Company and Mr. Jia
Fuhua was appointed as the supervisor of finance of the Company.

On 6 September 2024, Mr. Chu Kairong ceased to be the general manager of the Company and Mr. Zhao
Weixiong was appointed as the general manager of the Company.
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Remuneration Management of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Remuneration System and Decision-making Procedures of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management

The remunerations and evaluations of the Directors shall be proposed by the Board and considered and
approved by the general meeting; the remunerations of Supervisors shall be considered and determined by
the general meeting; and the remunerations and evaluations of the senior management shall be proposed by
the Remuneration Committee of the Board and determined by the Board.

Basis of Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The remunerations of internal Directors and Supervisors shall be determined according to the general meeting
resolutions on the remunerations of Directors and Supervisors and factors such as the operating results of the
Company, job responsibilities, performance and market environment. The remunerations of independent non-
executive Directors shall be proposed by the Remuneration Committee of the Board according to the industry
and market conditions, and be implemented upon approval by the general meeting. The remunerations,
rewards and punishments of the senior management of the Company shall be determined according to Board
resolutions and taking into account the evaluation, incentive and restriction mechanism of the Company.

Non-cash Remuneration

The Company has not yet set up any equity incentive scheme, hence there is no non-cash remuneration.

Payment of Remuneration to Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

In 2024, the total remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company amounted
to RMB3,925.91 thousands. For details of payment of remuneration to Directors, Supervisors, please see “I.
Basic Information about Current and Resigned Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management during the
Reporting Period” in this section.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors fell within the

following bands:

Number of

Directors and

Bands (RMB) Supervisors
Nil to 500,000 6
500,001-1,000,000 1

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration of senior management of the Company fell within

the following bands:

Bands (RMB)

Nil to 500,000
500,001-1,000,000
Above 1,000,000

Number of

senior management

7
0
0

VI. Employees and remuneration
(1) Headcount and Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company has a total of 565 full-time and part-time employees while

its subsidiaries have a total of 71 full-time and part-time employees, the composition of which is as follows:

Workforce Statistics of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. and Its Subsidiaries

Headcount (staff member) 636

Type of employment
Category

Full-time and part-time

Sub-category

Number

Percentage

Academic background Ph.D. 5 0.73%
Master 151 20.56%
Undergraduate 422 67.84%
Diploma and below 58 10.87%
Position Futures brokerage 359 54.19%
Asset management 17 4.85%
Commodity trading and risk management 50 7.34%
Stock option business 4 0.59%
Overseas business 19 4.85%
Research 21 3.52%
Audit and legal department and risk management 16 2.06%
T 26 4.99%
Accounting and Finance 42 6.90%
Administration 82 10.72%
Age 35 and below 306 52.42%
36 to 40 174 25.7%
41 to 50 124 16.59%
51 and above 32 5.29%
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Remuneration of Employees

The remuneration of the Company’s employees is composed of basic salaries, allowances, performance
bonuses and welfare. Basic salaries are a relatively fixed part of the remuneration and are the basic income of
employees. As a supplement to basic salaries, allowances include those for special posts and professionals.
Performance bonuses are distributed according to the results of performance evaluation in favor of the
frontline employees with outstanding performance. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total
remuneration of employees, including remuneration of Directors, amounted to approximately RMB189 million.
Details of which are set out in Note V. 27 to the financial statements of this report.

The Company provided employees with statutory welfare such as social insurance and housing provident fund
according to relevant national provisions. Moreover, it offered employees enterprise annuity, supplementary
medical insurance and other benefits to enhance their welfare.

Retirement Benefits

The Group has provided a pension plan for full-time employees in Mainland China as required by the
government. Namely, the Group pays endowment insurance premiums to the social insurance institution
designated by the government on a monthly basis, which account for a certain percentage of the total
salaries of the staff. After the retirement of the employees, the government is obliged to pay the pensions
to them. According to the aforesaid Defined Contribution Plan (DCP), the Group shall not be liable for the
postretirement benefits beyond the above contributions. Contributions to the Plan will be included in the cost
at the time of occurrence. The sources of funds for the Contribution Plan mainly come from the daily working
capital of the Group. The corresponding expenditures are recognized in profit or loss or the relevant asset
cost on the day when they occur. The pension is calculated with reference to the average monthly salary of
the previous year, and the amount of pension contributed by the Company is 16% of that amount.

Training Schemes

Firstly, the Company focused on professional training to consolidate the foundation of skills of employees.
Through a combination of internal and external training, the Company made its efforts in organizing and
participating in training for external organizations such as associations, exchanges and the holding group. The
Company have also assisted various departments in carrying out daily training covering compliance with anti-
money laundering, information technology, innovative business, futures knowledge, etc., so as to help our
staff strengthen the foundation of their vocational skills and increase the depth of their specialised skills. A total
of 31 internal and external training sessions were conducted throughout the year. Secondly, the Company
organised thematic training to improve the professional skills of our staff. Staff were organised to participate in
futures and fund follow-up training, and accounting staff further education training to update their professional
skills in a timely manner. In order to increase the passing rate of staff in professional examinations, specialised
training was provided for futures and fund qualification examinations; in order to fulfil our corporate social
responsibility, the Company organised the construction of an independent examination centre for futures
professional examinations and completed the enrolment of 80 subjects for registration and examination work.
In order to strengthen the ideological education of our staff, the Company organised a series of courses
on the ideological and political theories of the Futures Association’s party building, and selected staff to
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participate in the Holding Group’s high-quality seminars and the “Qing Ying Yuan Hang (& Ji2fil)” talent
project training courses. Thirdly, the Company increased institutional innovation to improve the staff training
system. The Company have formulated the Education and Training Management Regulations, established
staff training points files, and incorporated training assessment into the staff evaluation system; strengthened
the training of internal trainers, and reserved a number of reserve cadres with high vocational quality and
strong professionalism.

In 2025, the Company will continue to strengthen the training system and promote training innovation. We
will launch step-by-step training for new employees, young cadres and middle-level cadres; improve the
distribution of training courses for business, compliance and function sectors; and create a multi-dimensional
training platform that is hierarchical, promotes development and strengthens professionalism.

The Five Highest Paid Individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the year, one (last year: none) is Director whose
emolument is disclosed in Note XII. (IV) to the financial statements. Emoluments in respect of the other four (last
year: five) individuals are as follows:

(Unit: RMB’000)

2024 2023

Salaries, allowances and benefits 1,090.66 904.87
Discretionary bonuses 2,251.90 3,365.40
Pension scheme contributions 205.27 230.80
Total 3,547.83 4,501.07

The number of these individuals whose remuneration fell within the following bands is set out below:

2024 2023

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

Nil to HKD1,000,000 3 2
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1 3
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 0 0
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 0 0

None of directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the Reporting Period. No emoluments
are paid to any directors, supervisors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Company or as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting Period.
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Overview of corporate governance

As a public company listed both domestically and overseas, the Company has been operating business
in a standard manner and in strict compliance with the requirements outlined in the laws, regulations and
regulatory documents of the PRC and the overseas jurisdiction where the shares of the Company are listed,
and has made continuous efforts to maintain and enhance the good image of the Company in the market.
During the Reporting Period, the Company keeps improving its corporate governance structure, compliance
risk control and internal control system according to the requirements under the Company Law, the Securities
Law, the Futures and Derivatives Law, the Measures for the Supervision and Administration of Futures
Companies, the Rules for Corporate Governance of Listed Companies, the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange and other relevant laws and
regulations as well as the Articles of Association, in order to establish a modern corporate system, and shape
a corporate governance structure where checks and balances among the general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the operation management are maintained, with each of them being separated
from the other and performing its own functions and responsibilities corresponding to its position within the
specified terms of reference, thereby ensuring all the operational activities of the Company are carried out
smoothly and in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. The convening and voting procedures for
general meetings and meetings of the Board and Supervisory Committee are legal and valid; the information
disclosed by the Company is true, accurate and complete and is disclosed in time; management of investor
relations is efficient and practical; and corporate governance is based on scientific, rigorous and normative
procedures.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in Part 2 of
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules save for the deviation from code provision C.1.8 and C.2.1 (the Company
has re-complied with C.2.1 during the Reporting Period) as disclosed below.

Linkage between corporate governance and environment,
social and governance

Corporate governance can be considered as the framework within which the Board forms their decisions
and build their business. The entire Board should be focusing on creating long-term sustainable growth for
Shareholders and delivering long-term values to all stakeholders. An effective corporate governance structure
allows the Company to have a better understanding of, evaluate and manage, risks and opportunities (including
environmental and social risks and opportunities). The Board is responsible for setting strategic objectives for
risk management, implementing risk management values, evaluating and approving risk management policies,
ensuring effective implementation of the risk management system and providing feedback on the effectiveness
of the risk management system. For the principal risks faced by the Group’s business, please refer to “VIII.
Risk factors and uncertainties faced by the Company and its risk strategy” set out in Section Il Operating
Conditions “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this report. For details of environmental, social and
governance matters for the year ended 31 December 2024, please refer to the separate ESG Report of the
Company.
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lll. Corporate strategy, business models and culture

1.

Development strategy: striving to become an integrated derivatives service provider and trader with
“more improved mixed ownership system, more flexible organizations and mechanisms and more
effective risk management and control and more prominent advantages as a listed platform”.

Development goal: with a focus on enhancing core competitiveness and strengthening core functions,
and taking “Serving National Strategies, Local Economies and Group Development” as the main line
of work, striving to build three “service ecosystems”, namely “industrial clients, institutional clients and
small and medium investors”. Contributing to the maintenance of supply and the stabilization of price
in the market, and serving the real economy to reduce costs and increase efficiency.

Corporate culture: heritage, openness, integrity, excellence.
Mission and social responsibility: creating development opportunities for employees, providing quality

services to customers, contributing more wealth to the society and writing a bright future for the
futures industry in China.

IV. Shareholders and General Meetings

Rights of General Meetings

The general meeting is the authority of the Company and exercises its functions and powers according to
laws, Articles of Association and Rules of Procedures of the General Meetings.

The shareholders’ general meeting shall exercise the following functions and powers:

(1)

to elect and remove Directors not being staff representatives and to determine matters relating to the
Directors’ remunerations;

to elect and remove Supervisors being shareholders’ representatives and to determine matters relating
to the Supervisors’ remunerations;

to consider and approve the reports of the Board;

to consider and approve the reports of the Supervisory Committee;

to consider and approve the Company’s profit distribution plan and plan for making up losses;
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to resolve on an increase or a reduction in the Company’s registered capital and acquisition of the
Company’s shares;

to resolve on matters such as merger, demerger, dissolution, liquidation or change of corporate form
of the Company;

to resolve on the issue of debentures by the Company;

to resolve on the appointment, dismissal or non-reappointment of the accounting firms;

to amend the Articles of Association;

to consider proposals put forward by any shareholder representing 3% or more of the Company’s
shares with voting rights;

to consider the purchases or sales of any material assets of the Company within a year in excess of
30% of the Company’s audited net assets in the latest period;

to consider and approve long-term material investment, acquisition or disposal of asset, asset
replacement, related transactions or pledged loans of the Company to be approved by shareholders’

general meeting;

to consider related transactions to be resolved by shareholders’ general meeting as required by listing
rules of the place where the Company’s shares are listed;

to consider and approve matters relating to change of the use of raised funds;
to consider share incentive plans and employee share scheme;
to consider any other matters to be resolved by shareholders’ general meeting as required by the

laws, administrative regulations, departmental rules, listing rules of the place where the shares of the
Company are listed and the Articles of Association.

The general meeting may authorize the Board to resolve on the issuance of bonds by the Company.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Procedures for General Meetings

More than 1/2 independent Directors shall be entitled to propose to the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Regarding the proposal requesting to convene an extraordinary general meeting by the
independent Directors, the Board shall, pursuant to the relevant laws, administrative regulations and the Articles
of Association, give a written reply stating its consent or reject for the convening of the extraordinary general
meeting within 10 (ten) days after receiving the proposal.

If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice for convening such meeting shall
be issued within 5 (five) days after the resolution is made by the Board. If the Board refuses to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, an explanation and relevant announcement shall be made.

The Supervisory Committee shall have the right to propose to the Board of Directors in writing to call an
extraordinary general meeting. The Board shall, pursuant to the relevant laws, administrative regulations and
the Articles of Association, give a written reply stating its consent or reject for the convening of the extraordinary
general meeting within 10 (ten) days after receiving the proposal.

If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice for convening such meeting shall be
issued within 5 (five) days after the resolution is made by the Board. The consent of the Supervisory Committee
shall be secured if any change is to be made to the original motion in the notice.

If the Board of Directors does not agree to call such meeting, or fails to give a response within 10 (ten) days
after receipt of the proposal, it shall be deemed to be unable to or have failed to perform its duty of convening
the Shareholders’ General Meeting, and the Supervisory Committee may itself convene and preside over such
meeting.

The following procedures shall be followed by Shareholders when requesting for convening of extraordinary
general meetings:

Any shareholder individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares is entitled to propose to the
Board for convening an extraordinary general meeting and such proposal shall be made in writing. The Board
of Directors shall, in accordance with laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, give a
written response on whether or not it agrees to call such a meeting within 10 days after receipt of the request.
The shareholding referred to above shall be calculated as of the date on which the written request is made by
Shareholder(s).

If the Board of Directors agrees to call an extraordinary general meeting, it shall issue a notice calling such

meeting within 5 days after it has so resolved. The consent of the relevant Shareholder(s) shall be secured if any
change is to be made in the notice to the original request.
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If the Board of Directors does not agree to call such meeting, or fails to give a response within 10 days after
receipt of the request, the Shareholder alone or Shareholders together holding at least 10 percent of the shares
shall have the right to propose to the Supervisory Committee in writing that it call the extraordinary general
meeting.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to call the extraordinary general meeting, it shall issue a notice calling
such meeting within 5 days after receipt of the request. The consent of the relevant Shareholder(s) shall be
secured if any change is to be made in the notice to the original request.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to issue a notice calling the shareholders’ general meeting by the prescribed
deadline, it shall be deemed to have failed to convene and preside over such meeting, and a Shareholder who
alone has held or Shareholders who together have held at least 10 percent of the shares of the Company for
at least 90 days in succession may himself/themselves convene and preside over such meeting.

Where the Company convenes a general meeting, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and Shareholder(s)
severally or jointly holding 1% or more shares are entitled to submit written new proposals to the Company.
Matters mentioned in proposals which are within the scope of the powers of the general meeting shall be
included in the meeting agenda.

Shareholder(s) severally or jointly holding more than 1% shares of the Company may submit written provisional
proposals to the convener 10 days before a general meeting is convened. The convener shall serve a
supplementary notice of general meeting to other Shareholders within two days after receipt of a proposal,
and announce the contents of provisional proposals.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, the convener may not make any changes to the proposals
set forth in the notice of the shareholders’ general meeting or add any new proposals once the notice and
announcement of the shareholders’ general meeting have been issued.

Where the Company convenes an annual general meeting, a written notice shall be given at least 20 working
days prior to the date of the meeting to notify all the Shareholders; where the Company convenes an
extraordinary general meeting, a public announcement shall be published at least 15 days prior to the date of
the meeting to notify all the shareholders. Any Shareholder who intends to attend the meeting shall deliver to
the Company a written reply stating his or her intention to attend within the period stipulated in the meeting
notice.

A general meeting convened by the Board, shall be presided over and chaired by the chairman of the Board.
If the chairman is unable or fails to perform his duties, the meetings shall be presided over by a director jointly
recommended by more than half of the directors, and take the chair of the meeting in his stead. If no chairman
of the meeting has been designated, shareholders present shall choose one (1) person to be the chairman of
the meeting. Where the shareholders fail to elect a chairman for any reasons, the shareholder (including his
proxy) presents in person or by proxy who holds the largest number of shares carrying the right to vote thereat
shall be the chairman of the meeting.
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If the Board is unable or fails to fulfill the obligation of convening the general meeting, the Supervisory
Committee shall convene and preside over such meeting. If the Supervisory Committee does not convene
and preside over such meeting, the shareholders individually or jointly holding no less than 10% of the shares
for no less than 90 consecutive days may convene and preside over such meeting on their own.

If a general meeting is convened by the Supervisory Committee, the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
shall preside over the meeting. If the chairman of the Supervisory Committee is unable to or will not discharge
his duties, more than half of the supervisors shall nominate a supervisor to preside over the meeting.

If a general meeting is convened by the shareholders themselves, the convener will nominate a representative
to conduct the meeting.

In a general meeting, if the chairman of the meeting contravenes the meeting procedures, making the meeting
impossible to proceed, with consent from more than half of the attendant shareholders with voting rights,
the shareholders may nominate one person to serve as the chairman of the meeting and continue with the
meeting.

At an annual general meeting, the Board and the Supervisory Committee shall report their work performance
in the preceding year to the shareholders. Each independent director shall also report their work performance.

Directors, supervisors and senior management shall give explanations upon shareholders’ inquiries and
suggestions at the shareholders’ general meeting.

Resolutions of shareholders’ general meetings shall be classified as ordinary resolutions and special
resolutions.

To adopt an ordinary resolution, a majority of the voting rights represented by the shareholders (including
proxies) present at the meeting must be cast in favor of the resolution.

To adopt a special resolution, not less than two-thirds of the voting rights represented by the shareholders
(including proxies) present at the meeting must be cast in favor of the resolution.
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The following matters shall be resolved by ordinary resolution at a shareholders’ general meeting:
(1) work reports of the Board and the Supervisory Committee;
2 plans for profit distribution and for making up losses prepared by the Board;

3) removal of directors and supervisors not being staff representatives, and their remuneration and
payment method thereof;

4) the Company’s annual report;

5) matters other than those required by the laws, administrative regulations, the listing rules of the places
where the shares of the Company are listed or the Articles of Association to be approved by special
resolution.

The following matters shall be resolved by special resolution at a shareholders’ general meeting:

(1) increase or reduction of the Company’s share capital, repurchase of the Company’s shares and issue
of shares of any class, warrants and other similar securities;

) issue of debentures of the Company;
(©)] demerger, split, merger, dissolution, liquidation and change of corporate form of the Company;
4) amendments to the Articles of Association;

5) purchases or sales of material assets of the Company in excess of 30 percent of the net assets of the
Company within a year;

(6) share incentive plans;
(7) any other matters stipulated by the laws, administrative regulations, the listing rules of the places
where the shares of the Company are listed or the Articles of Association or determined by an ordinary

resolution at a shareholders’ general meeting as having a material impact on the Company and
requiring to be resolved by special resolution.
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General Meetings
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During the Reporting Period, the Company convened 2 general meetings in total, information and resolutions
of which are set out as follows:

Session Convening date  Meeting contents Adoption \
2023 annual general 28 June 2024 The resolution on the amendments to the Articles of Association of ~ Considered and &
meeting Holly Futures Co., Ltd. and its appendices approved

The resolution on the Annual Report (A Shares) for 2023 and its
summary of the Company

The resolution on the Annual Results Announcement and the Annual
Report (H Shares) for 2023 of the Company

The resolution on the proposed change of Company name, stock
abbreviation and proposed amendments to the Articles of
Association

suolnpuo) bunessdp

The resolution on the 2023 Annual Working Report of the Board
The resolution on the 2023 Annual Working Report of the Supervisory

Committee

4

The resolution on the 2023 final financial report

The resolution on the profit distribution plan of the Company for 2023

The resolution on the remuneration package of the Directors of the
Company for 2023

The resolution on the remuneration package of the supervisors of the
Company for 2023

The resolution on the re-appointment of certified public accountants

The resolution on consideration of the Financial Services Framework
Agreement between the Company and SOHO Holdings

The resolution on consideration of the Trading Framework Agreement

8oUuBUIBAOK) 81Bl0dI0)

between the Company and SOHO Holdings
The resolution on consideration of the Financial Investment

[

Framework Agreement between the Company and SOHO Holdings
The resolution on the use of part of the self-owned funds for entrusted
wealth management

The resolution on the annual financial budgets and investment plans 'Sn
for 2024 %
The resolution on estimation of daily related party transactions for the Ny
year 2024 =]
The first 6 September The resolution on the election of an executive Director of the fourth Considered and %
extraordinary 2024 session of the Board of Directors of the Company approved o
general meeting The resolution on the election of the non-employee representative g.
in 2024 supervisor of the fourth session of the Supervisory Committee
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Performance of duties of Board
Respective Duties of the Board and the Management

Powers and duties of the Board and the management have been specified in the Articles of Association to
ensure adequate check and balance for sound corporate governance and internal control. The Board is
responsible for: convening the general meeting and presenting the work report at the meeting; implementing
the resolutions of the general meeting; resolving on the Company’s business plans and investment plans;
formulating the proposed annual financial budgets and final accounts of the Company; formulating the
Company’s profit distribution proposal and loss recovery proposal; formulating proposals for the increase or
reduction of the Company’s registered capital and for the issuance of the Company’s debentures or other
securities and listing proposals; drawing up plans for any substantial acquisition, purchase of the Company’s
shares or the merger, division, dissolution and transformation of the Company; deciding upon external
investment, purchase and sale of assets, assets mortgage, entrustment of financing, connected transaction,
external donations and other matters within the scope set forth by the general meeting; deciding on the
setup of Company’s internal management bodies and branches; deciding on the appointment or removal
of the general manager, Chief Risk Officer, the Board secretary and other senior management; appointing
or removing the deputy general manager, chief financial officer and other senior management personnel of
the Company according to the nomination by the Chairman or the general manager and determining their
remunerations and disciplinary matters; drafting the basic management system of the Company; formulating
the proposals for any amendment to the Articles of Association; managing the disclosure of the Company’s
information; proposing the appointment or replacement of an accounting firm that performs audits for the
Company at the general meeting; listening to the work report of the Chief Risk Officer and the general
manager of the Company and examining on their work; approving the setting up of branches that is subject
to the approval of the Board in accordance with the requirements of the regulatory authorities; checking and
approving the Company’s any major transactions, very substantial disposals, very substantial acquisitions and
reverse takeovers under the Listing Rules and submitting it to shareholders’ approval; checking and approving
any transactions that shall be disclosed except the Company’s any major transactions, very substantial
disposals, very substantial acquisitions or reverse takeovers under the Listing Rules; approving the connected
transactions that are not required to be approved by the general meeting or announced under the Listing
Rules; checking the connected transactions that shall be approved by the general meeting under the Listing
Rules.

In addition, the Board is responsible for the performance of corporate governance functions, which includes
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior management;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees
and directors; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The management shall perform the following major duties: communicating the key instructions, decisions
and work plans of supervisory bodies including the regulatory authorities (the CSRC, Jiangsu Securities
Bureau, China Futures Association and Jiangsu Futures Association); implementing the decisions, resolutions
and work plans of the Board of the Company; preparing draft of the strategic planning of the Company
and making recommendation to the Board on strategic planning; preparing annual operational plan of the
Company and submitting it to the Board for approval, and formulating the work plan for its implementation;
preparing the annual investment plan of the Company and reviewing the annual investment plans of the
subsidiaries, and submitting the plans to the Board for approval; formulating implementation plans in
accordance with the investment plans approved by the Board. The management shall also formulate annual
final account, financial budget plan and plan for recovering losses and submit them for the Board’s approval;
formulate proposals for the restructuring, bankruptcy, merger and reorganization, assets adjustment, property
transfer, pledge, disposal, write-off and auction of assets of the Company, which will be submitted to the
Board for approval and the controlling groups. The management will study and review the proposals of the
restructuring, bankruptcy, merger and reorganization, assets adjustment, property transfer, pledge, disposal,
write-off and auction of assets of the subsidiaries to the extent as authorized, and shall submit the plans to the
Board for approval and to the supervisory bodies according to the relevant regulations. The management shall
be responsible for the preparation of plans in relation to external borrowings, financing and guarantees, which
will be submitted to the Board for approval. It is also responsible for reviewing and approving the borrowings,
financing and guarantees plans of the subsidiaries and approving those matters not stipulated in the plans.
The management team will formulate the organizational structure adjustment and setup of the management
functions and staff of the Company and the basic management system for approval of the Board, and explore
and formulate detailed operational and management rules. With reference to the respective management
authority of the Company, subsidiaries and branches, the management will serve as the management
headquarter of the Company and supervise the subsidiaries and branches of the Company in accordance
with laws.

Composition of the Board

The Board kept improving its Rules of Procedures for Meeting of the Board, gave full play to the strengths of
its special committees and further improved its efficiency and quality of decision-making. Independent non-
executive Directors fulfilled their duties honestly and focused on protecting the interests of the Company
as a whole, especially the interests of minority Shareholders, which ensured the independent and scientific
decision-making of the Board.

At present, the Board comprised of seven Directors, of which two are executive Directors (Mr. Chu Kairong
(Chairman), Mr. Zhao Weixiong, two are non-executive Directors (Mr. Xue Binghai and Ms. Jiang Haiying)
and three are independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Huang Dechun, Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Mr. Zhang
Hongfa). Currently, the number of independent non-executive Directors meets the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. Mr. Zhao Weixiong and Ms. Jiang Haiying obtained
the legal opinions as described in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 5 September 2024 and 3 January 2025
respectively, confirming that they understand their responsibilities as directors of a listed issuer.
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Directors shall be elected at general meetings. A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
shall serve a term of three years, and may seek re-election upon expiry of the said term. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Company confirmed that it had received annual confirmations issued by each
independent non-executive Director in respect of their independence according to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company further confirmed the independent non-executive Directors’ respective independence
from the Company.

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) between each other.

The biographical details of each Director are set out in Section Ill Corporate Governance Subsection |lI
“Biography of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”.

Insurance arrangements for Directors

According to code provision C.1.8 of part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code, the Company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors. The Board believes that with the
current risk management and internal control systems and the close supervision of the management, the
Directors’ risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors is relatively low.
Benefits to be derived from taking out insurance may not outweigh the cost. As such, the Company currently
does not have insurance cover for legal action against its Directors.

Board meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board convened a total of 12 meetings as follows:

Session Convening date ~ Meeting contents Adoption

19th meeting of the 9 January 2024 The resolution on nominating a Director of the Company to act as the Considered and
fourth session of Chairman of the Board and other related positions approved
the Board
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Session Convening date  Meeting contents Adoption =1
Cc
20th meeting of the 28 March 2024 The resolution on the Annual Report (A Shares) for 2023 and its Considered and »
fourth session of summary of the Company approved
the Board The resolution on the Annual Results Announcement and the Annual

Report (H Shares) for 2023 of the Company
The resolution on the proposed change of Company name, stock
abbreviation and proposed amendments to the Articles of Association
The resolution on the 2023 Annual Working Report of the Board

1

The resolution on the 2023 final financial report

The resolution on estimation of daily related party transactions for the
year 2023

The resolution on the profit distribution plan of the Company for 2023

The resolution on the self-assessment report of internal control for 2023

The resolution on the special report of risk regulatory indicators for 2023

The resolution on the 2023 internal review reporting and the 2024

suolnpuo) bunessdp

internal review plan of the Company

The resolution on the 2023 working report of the chief risk officer

4

The resolution on the remuneration package of the Directors of the

Company for 2023

The resolution on the remuneration package of the senior management
of the Company for 2023

The resolution on determining the annual salary distribution coefficient of
the deputy directors of the Holly Futures’ leadership team (including
deputy secretary of the Party Committee, secretary of the Disciplinary
Committee and chief financial officer) in 2022

The resolution on the cancellation of the Shanghai Management Center
and the subordinate Shanghai Wealth Management Department and
Shanghai Institutional Management Department

The resolution on the 2023 ESG report

The resolution on date selection for convening 2023 annual general

8oUuBUIBAOK) 81Bl0dI0)

[

meeting

uoljewIoU| [eloueUIl

Annual Report 2024 131




Corporate Governance Report

132

Session

21st meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

22nd meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

23rd meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

24th meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

25th meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

Convening date

26 April 2024

9 May 2024

7 June 2024

4 July 2024

16 August 2024

Meeting contents

The resolution on the first quarterly report for 2024 of the Company

The resolution on the use of part of the self-owned funds for security
investment

The resolution on the use of part of the self-owned funds for entrusted
wealth management

The resolution on the annual financial budgets and investment plans for
2024

The resolution on the re-appointment of certified public accountants

The resolution on estimation of dally related party transactions for the
year 2024

The resolution on consideration of the continuing connected transactions
between the Company and SOHO Holdings

The resolution on the change of the Company'’s chief financial officer

The resolution on the cancellation of the Haikou Branch

The resolution on the election of Mr. Chu Kairong as the Chairman of
the Company

The resolution on nominating candidates for executive Directors of the
fourth session of the Board of the Company

The resolution on date selection for convening the 2024 first
extraordinary general meeting

The resolution on the Interim Report (A Shares) for 2024 and its
summary of the Company

The resolution on the Interim Results Announcement and the Interim
Report (H Shares) for 2024 of the Company

The resolution on the special report of risk regulatory indicators for the
first half of 2024 of the Company

The resolution on the Company’s “14th Five-Year Plan” development
strategy (interim revision 2024-2025)

The resolution on the Company’s Organizational Structure Adjustment,
Functional Department Responsibilities and Staffing Plan

Adoption

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved
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Session

26th meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

27th meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

28th meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

29th meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

30th meeting of the
fourth session of
the Board

Corporate Governance Report

Convening date  Meeting contents

6 September 2024  The resolution on the adjustment on the composition of members of
special committees of the fourth session of the Board of Directors of
the Company

The resolution on the establishment of a list of the Board’s authorizations
to managers of the Company

The resolution on the appointment of general manager of the Company

The resolution on the Internal Review Reporting for the first half and the
Internal Review Plan for the second half of 2024

The resolution on the cancellation of Shenzhen Sub-branch of Holly
Futures Co., Ltd.

29 October 2024 The resolution on the third quarterly report for 2024 of the Company

The resolution on the amendments to the rules of procedures for

meetings of the General Manager’s Office of the Company

The resolution on the cancellation of International Business Department

The resolution on the appointment of general counsel of the Company

2 December 2024 The resolution on the cancellation of Shanghai Branch

11 December 2024 The resolution on the allocation plan of the special award for the listing

of the Company’s A Shares

The resolution on the evaluation results of the contractual reform of
managerial staff under tenure system for 2022 and the compensation
settlement

30 December 2024 The resolution on the amendments to the Articles of Association of the

Company and its appendices

The resolution on the election of non-independent Directors for the fifth
session of the Board of the Company

The resolution on the election of independent Directors for the fifth
session of the Board of the Company

The resolution on the amendments to the rules of procedures of the
special committees under the Board of the Company

The resolution on the amendments to the rules of investor relations
management

The resolution on determining the annual salary distribution coefficient
of the deputy directors of the Company’s leadership team (including
deputy secretary of the Party Committee, secretary of the Disciplinary
Committee and chief financial officer) in 2023 and the tenure incentive
distribution coefficient for the 2021-2023 term

The resolution on date selection for convening 2025 first extraordinary
general meeting, 2025 first A shareholders’ class meeting and 2025
first H shareholders’ class meeting of the Company

Adoption

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved

Considered and
approved
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o Objections from Independent Non-executive Directors to Relevant Issues of
the Company

Nil.

o Attendances of Directors at Board meetings and general meetings
1. Attendances and voting of Directors at Board meetings

During the Reporting Period, the attendances and voting of Directors at Board meetings are as follows:

Number Number
Number of Board of Board Number of
of Board meetings meetings proposals  Number of

meetings to attended attended  Number of tobe proposals

be attended in person by proxy  absences voted on votedon  Remarks

Chu Kairong 12 12 0 0 50 50  Abstained from
voting on some
resolutions

Zhao Weixiong 5 5 0 0 19 19 Appointed on 6
September 2024

Xue Binghai 12 12 0 0 51 51 Abstained from
voting on some
resolutions

Jiang Lin 12 12 0 0 51 51 Abstained from
voting on some
resolutions

Shan Bing 1 1 0 0 1 1 Resigned on 30
January 2024

Huang Dechun 12 12 0 0 53 53 Abstained from
voting on some
resolutions

Lo Wah Wai 12 12 0 0 53 53  Abstained from
voting on some
resolutions

Zhang Hongfa 12 12 0 0 53 53  Abstained from
voting on some
resolutions
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2. Attendances of Directors at general meetings

sM noqy

During the Reporting Period, the attendances of Directors at general meetings are as follows:

Number of
Number of general
general meetings ¥\
meetings to be attended in Number of
attended person absences Remarks
Chu Kairong 2 2 0 _OO
Zhao Weixiong 0 0 0  Appointed on 6 September g
2024 5
Xue Binghai 2 2 0 ‘g
Jiang Lin 2 2 0 g
Shan Bing 0 0 0  Resigned on 30 January 2024 %
Huang Dechun 2 2 0 g-
Lo Wah Wai 2 2 0 @
Zhang Hongfa 2 2 0 \

o Training for Directors

All Directors have provided training attendance records. The Company has arranged or provided the relevant
trainings in accordance with the requirements of code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Chu Kairong, Mr. Zhao Weixiong, Mr. Xue Binghai, Mr. Jiang Lin,
Mr. Huang Dechun, Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Mr. Zhang Hongfa participated in the training on the responsibilities
of listed companies on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange conducted by DeHeng Law Offices
(Hong Kong) LLP, and learned about recent law enforcement cases, updates to Listing Rules and other

8oUuBUIBAOK) 81Bl0dI0)

materials. All directors participated in the training on 2024 continuous supervision for the Company conducted
by China Securities, and learned about information on regulation of listed companies and information

[

disclosure, etc.
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VI. Special committees of the Board and duty performance

The Company has established under the Board five special committees, namely the audit committee,
nomination committee, remuneration committee, risk management committee and strategic and ESG

committee of the Board.

As of the end of the Reporting Period and as of the date of this Report, the composition of such committees is

as follows:

Members (as of the end of
the Reporting Period)

Name of Committee

Members (as of the date
of this Report)

Lo Wah Wai (chairman)
Xue Binghai

Huang Dechun

Audit Committee Lo Wah Wai (chairman)
Xue Binghai
Huang Dechun
Remuneration Committee Huang Dechun (chairman)
Chu Kairong

Zhang Hongfa

Huang Dechun (chairman)
Chu Kairong
Zhang Hongfa

Nomination Committee
Chu Kairong
Huang Dechun

Zhang Hongfa (chairman)

Zhang Hongfa (chairman)
Chu Kairong
Huang Dechun

Risk Management Committee Zhao Weixiong (chairman)

Xue Binghai
Jiang Lin

Lo Wah Wai
Zhang Hongfa

Zhao Weixiong (chairman)
Xue Binghai

Jiang Haiying

Lo Wah Wai

Zhang Hongfa

Strategic and ESG Committee Chu Kairong (chairman)

Zhao Weixiong
Xue Binghai
Jiang Lin
Huang Dechun
Lo Wah Wai
Zhang Hongfa

Chu Kairong (chairman)
Zhao Weixiong

Xue Binghai

Jiang Haiying

Huang Dechun

Lo Wah Wai

Zhang Hongfa
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Audit Committee

Pursuant to the Board resolution passed on 19 May 2015, the Company has established the Audit Committee
(the “Audit Committee”) in accordance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules, with written terms
of reference. The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted in compliance with
code provision D.3.3 and code provision D.3.7 of the Corporate Governance Code and are available on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The rules of procedures of the Audit
Committee have been amended and approved on 30 December 2024.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include: proposing to the Board the appointment and replacement
of external audit firms, approving the remuneration and terms of appointment of external auditors, supervising
the implementation of the internal audit system and its implementation, liaising between the internal audit
and external auditors, reviewing financial information and related disclosures, reviewing and supervising the
internal control and risk management systems for financial monitoring of the Company; supervising annual
audits, reviewing the financial statements, annual reports and accounts, interim reports and (if intend to issue)
quarterly reports, and reviewing significant judgements relating to the financial reporting contained therein,
and other information and the related disclosures in respect of management activities of operation; acting as
the key representative for coordinating internal and external audits and overseeing the relationship between
the Company and the external auditors. As of 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, including two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wah Wai (chairman) and Mr.
Huang Dechun, as well as a non-executive Director Mr. Xue Binghai.

The Audit Committee held seven meetings during the Reporting Period. In reviewing quarterly, interim and
annual results, the Audit Committee leverages professional financial expertise to verify the accuracy of data,
examine the application of accounting policies, and conduct in-depth investigations into abnormal fluctuations
to ensure the reliability of financial reporting. In addition, it rigorously oversees corporate compliance,
scrutinises connected transactions, and ensures operations comply with relevant regulatory requirements. The
committee timely reports its findings and recommendations to the Board. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the Board has no disagreement with the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, designation or
removal of the external auditor.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee of the Board convened 7 meetings, the details of which
were as follows:

Session Convening date  Meeting contents Adoption

26th meeting of the 29 February 2024 The resolution on the summary of 2023 internal review and 2024 Considered and
Audit Committee internal review plan of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. approved

27th meeting of the 27 March 2024 The resolution on the Annual Report (A Shares) for 2023 and its Considered and
Audit Committee summary of the Company approved

The resolution on the Annual Results Announcement and the Annual
Report (H Shares) for 2023 of the Company

The resolution on the 2023 final financial report

The resolution on the profit distribution plan of the Company for 2023

The resolution on the self-assessment report of internal control for 2023

The resolution on the special report of risk regulatory indicators for
2023

The resolution on the 2023 internal review reporting and the 2024
internal review plan of the Company

The resolution on the evaluation report on the performance of the
accounting firm for 2023 and the report on the supervision duties
performed by the Audit Committee

28th meeting of the 25 April 2024 The resolution on the first quarterly report for 2024 of the Company Considered and
Audit Committee The resolution on the re-appointment of certified public accountants approved
The resolution on estimation of dally related party transactions for the
year 2024
The resolution on the annual financial budgets and investment plans
for 2024
The resolution on the first quarterly internal review reporting for 2024
of the Company
29th meeting of the 9 May 2024 The resolution on the change of the Company’s chief financial officer Considered and
Audit Committee approved
30th meeting of the 15 August 2024 The resolution on the Interim Report (A Shares) for 2024 and its Considered and
Audit Committee summary of the Company approved

The resolution on the Interim Results Announcement and the Interim
Report (H Shares) for 2024 of the Company

The resolution on the special report of risk regulatory indicators for the
first half of 2024 of the Company

31st meeting of the 6 September The resolution on the internal review reporting for the first half and the  Considered and
Audit Committee 2024 internal review plan for the second half of 2024 approved
32nd meeting of the 28 October 2024 The resolution on the third quarterly report for 2024 of the Company Considered and
Audit Committee The resolution on the internal review reporting for the third quarter approved
and the internal review plan for the fourth quarter of 2024 of the
Company
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Attendance of the members of the Audit Committee of the Board at the meetings held during the Reporting
Period:

Attendance in person/Number of

Name Position meetings requiring attendance
Lo Wah Wai (chairman) Independent non-executive Director 7/7
Xue Binghai Non-executive Director 7/7
Huang Dechun Independent non-executive Director 7/7

Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to the Board resolution passed on 19 May 2015, the Company has established the Remuneration
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) in accordance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules,
and adopted the written terms of reference. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
were adopted in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code and are available
on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The rules of procedures of the
Remuneration Committee have been amended and approved on 30 December 2024.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include: studying, reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on the policy, structure and proposal concerning remuneration of Directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company, determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of each
Director and member of senior management, reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board, and other duties conferred by the
Board. During the Reporting Period, the remuneration of executive Directors is determined based on their
skills, knowledge, individual performance and contribution, duties and responsibilities, with reference to the
performance of the Company and the prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of independent
non-executive Directors aims to providing sufficient compensation to the independent non-executive Directors
for their efforts and time for participating the Company’s affairs, including attending the meetings of Board
committees. The remuneration of independent non-executive Directors is based on their skills, experience,
knowledge, responsibility and market conditions. As of 31 December 2024, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three members, including one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Huang Dechun (chairman), Mr. Chu Kairong and Mr. Zhang Hongfa.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note Xll. (IV) to the financial statement of this Annual
Report. The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Reporting Period.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model where it reviewed the proposals made by
the management on the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management, and made
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final authority to approve the recommendations made by
the Remuneration Committee.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee of the Board convened 3 meetings, the details of

which were as follows:

Session Convening date  Meeting contents Adoption

20th meeting of the 27 March 2024 The resolution on the remuneration package of the Directors of Considered and
Remuneration the Company for 2023 approved
Committee The resolution on the remuneration package of the senior

management of the Company for 2023

The resolution on determining the annual salary distribution
coefficient of the deputy directors of the Holly Futures’
leadership team (including deputy secretary of the Party
Committee, secretary of the Disciplinary Committee and chief
financial officer) in 2022

21st meeting of the 11 December The resolution on the allocation plan of the special award for the Considered and
Remuneration 2024 listing of the Company’s A Shares approved
Committee The resolution on the evaluation results of the contractual reform

of managerial staff under tenure system for 2022 and the
compensation settlement

22nd meeting of 30 December The resolution on determining the remuneration of independent Considered and
the Remuneration 2024 non-executive Directors of the fifth session of the Board approved
Committee The resolution on determining the annual salary distribution

coefficient of the deputy directors of the Company’s leadership
team (including deputy secretary of the Party Committee,
secretary of the Disciplinary Committee and chief financial
officer) in 2023 and the tenure incentive distribution coefficient
for the 2021-2023 term

Attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee of the Board at the meetings held during the
Reporting Period:

Attendance in person/

Number of meetings

Position requiring attendance Remarks
Huang Dechun (chairman)  Independent non-executive Director ~ 3/3
Chu Kairong Executive Director 2/2 Appointed on
6 September 2024
Zhang Hongfa Independent non-executive Director ~ 3/3
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) on 19 May 2015
with written terms of reference in accordance with code provision B.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.
Its terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
Rules of Procedures of Nomination Committee have been amended and approved on 30 December 2024.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include: reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations to the Board
regarding the Company’s business activities, corporate strategy, asset size and shareholding structure in
light of the operating activities of the Company, identifying, selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals to be nominated for directorships, assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment and re-appointment of the Directors, succession planning for Directors, and other duties
conferred by the Board. As of 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee comprises three members,
including one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Hongfa
(chairman), Mr. Chu Kairong and Mr. Huang Dechun.

The Nomination Committee held five meetings during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, in identifying suitable candidates to become Board members, the Nomination
Committee will take into account the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
integrity and time commitment of the candidates, as well as the Company’s needs and other requirements
under laws and regulations in relation to the position. All candidates must fulfil the criteria set under Rules
3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. Candidates to be appointed as independent non-executive Directors must
also fulfil the independence requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
will recommend the qualified candidates to the Board for approval, and be proposed for consideration and
approval by the general meeting.

During the Reporting Period, upon review by the Nomination Committee of the Board on the biographical
information and qualifications of the candidates of executive Director, the fourth session of the Board of
the Company, as the nominator, nominated Mr. Zhao Weixiong as a candidate for election as an executive
Director of the fourth session of the Board of the Company. The term of office of Mr. Zhao Weixiong shall
commence on the date of election at the general meeting and expire on the date of conclusion of the fourth
session of the Board.

According to articles 134 and 135 of Articles of Association, Directors of the Company shall meet the following
conditions:

(1) have engaged in futures, securities and other financial business, or in legal, accounting operations for
more than 3 years, or in economic management field for more than 5 years;

@) have the educational background of graduate of junior college or above.
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Directors shall be elected at general meetings. A Director shall serve a term of three years, and may seek
re-election upon expiry of the said term.

For written notice of intention to nominate a candidate for the Director and the candidate’s acceptance to
be nominated as Director, the notice of nomination from the Nomination Committee and acceptance of the
nomination from the candidate to the Company shall be no less than seven (7) days. Such seven (7)-day
period shall commence no earlier than the second day after the issue of the notice of the meeting at which
such election shall be conducted and no later than seven (7) days prior to the shareholders’ general meeting.

The chairman and vice chairman shall be elected and removed by more than one-half of all the Directors. The
term of office of the chairman and vice-chairman, who shall be entitled to re-election and re-appointment, shall
be three (3) years. Subject to the relevant laws and administrative regulations, a Director may be removed from
office prior to the expiration of his term of office by means of an ordinary resolution at a shareholders’ general
meeting (however, any claims which may be lodged according to any contracts shall remain unaffected
thereby).

According to the terms of reference of Nomination Committee, the Nomination Committee studies the
selection criteria, procedures and methods of proposed directors and senior management of the Company
and makes recommendations to the Board. The Nomination Committee also searches for qualified candidates
to be nominated as directors and senior management and conduct preliminary review on candidates of
directors and senior management and make recommendations to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the Board convened five meetings, the details of
which were as follows:

Session Convening date  Meeting contents Adoption

16th meeting of 9 May 2024 The resolution on the change of the Company’s chief financial Considered and
the Nomination officer approved
Committee

17th meeting of 4 July 2024 The resolution on nominating candidates for executive Directors Considered and
the Nomination of the fourth session of the Board of the Company approved
Committee

18th meeting of 6 September The resolution on the appointment of general manager of the Considered and
the Nomination 2024 Company approved
Committee

19th meeting of 28 October 2024 The resolution on the appointment of general counsel of the Considered and
the Nomination Company approved
Committee

20th meeting of 30 December The resolution on the election of non-independent Directors for Considered and

the Nomination
Committee

2024

the fifth session of the Board of the Company
The resolution on the election of independent Directors for the fifth
session of the Board of the Company

approved
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Attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee of the Board at the meetings held during the
Reporting Period:

Attendance in person/

Number of meetings
Position requiring attendance =~ Remarks

Zhang Hongfa (chairman) Independent non-executive Director ~ 5/5
Chu Kairong Executive Director 2/2 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Huang Dechun Independent non-executive Director ~ 5/5

Risk Management Committee

Pursuant to the Board resolution passed on 19 May 2015, the Company has established the Risk
Management Committee (the “Risk Management Committee”) with written terms of reference.

The main duties of the Risk Management Committee include: regularly identifying current and potential risks
in the business operations of the Company, reviewing and assessing the risk management strategies and
making recommendations, establishing precautionary risk management and internal control systems and
providing mitigating solutions, and other duties as conferred by the Board.

As of 31 December 2024, the Risk Management Committee comprises five Directors, including one executive
Director Mr. Zhao Weixiong (chairman), two non-executive Directors Mr. Xue Binghai and Mr. Jiang Lin and
two independent non-executive Directors Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Mr. Zhang Hongfa.

During the Reporting Period, through comprehensive risk assessments, the Risk Management Committee
identifies strategic, market, operational and other risks, and formulates mitigation strategies. It reviews
the risk management framework to ensure compliance and effectiveness, monitors internal audits, and
tracks the rectification of audit findings. The committee facilitates cross-departmental risk communication
and collaboration, providing regular updates to the management to support the organisation’s sustainable
development.

During the Reporting Period, the Risk Management Committee of the Board convened one meeting, the
details of which were as follows:

Session Convening date  Meeting contents Adoption
12th meeting of the 27 March 2024 The resolution on the special report of risk regulatory indicators Considered and
Risk Management for 2023 approved
Committee The resolution on the report of the work of the chief risk officer for
2023
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Attendance of the members of the Risk Management Committee of the Board at the meetings held during the
Reporting Period:

Attendance in person/

Number of meetings
Position requiring attendance ~ Remarks

Zhao Weixiong (chairman)  Executive Director 0/0 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Chu Kairong Executive Director 11 Resigned on

6 September 2024
Xue Binghai Non-executive Director 11
Jiang Lin Non-executive Director 11
Lo Wah Wai Independent Non-executive Director ~ 0/0 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Zhang Hongfa Independent Non-executive Director ~ 1/1

Strategic and ESG Committee

Pursuant to the Board resolution passed on 27 October 2022, the Company has established the Strategic
Committee (the “Strategic Committee”) with written terms of reference. The Strategic Committee was
renamed the Strategic and ESG Committee (the “Strategic and ESG Committee”) on 18 February 2025
and its terms of reference were updated.

The main duties of the Strategic and ESG Committee include: understanding the domestic and international
economic development, industry trends and national and industry policy directions; studying the Company’s
long-term development strategy plans and development directions and proposing suggestions; evaluating
the strategic planning, development objectives, business plans and implementation processes developed by
the Company; evaluating the Company’s ESG and climate change vision, strategic planning, development
objectives, operating plans, implementation processes and organizational structure of the Company; focusing
on the development trends, risks and opportunities in the field of ESG and climate change, and studying
and making suggestions on the Company’s ESG and climate change policies; being responsible for the
consideration of the Company’s ESG and climate change related reports, ensuring that the Company’s
reports issued to the public are in line with the disclosure requirements, and reporting to the Board of
Directors; studying major investment financing programs which are required to be approved by the Board as
stated in the Articles of Association and proposing suggestion; studying material capital operation and assets
operation projects which are required to be approved by the Board as stated in the Articles of Association and
proposing suggestion; studying other important matters affecting the Company’s development and making a
recommendation; inspecting the implementation of the above; and performing other duties authorized by the
Board.

As of December 31, 2024, the Strategic and ESG Committee consists of all Directors.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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During the Reporting Period, the Strategic and ESG Committee of the Board convened two meetings, the
details of which were as follows:

Session Convening date  Meeting contents Adoption
2nd meeting of the 25 April 2024 The resolution on the use of part of the self-owned funds for Considered and
Strategic Committee security investment approved

The resolution on the use of part of the self-owned funds for
entrusted wealth management
The resolution on financial budget and investment plan for 2024
The resolution on consideration of continuing connected
transactions between the Company and SOHO Holdings
3rd meeting of the 15 August 2024 The resolution on the Company’s “14th Five-Year Plan” Considered and
Strategic Committee development strategy (interim revision 2024-2025) approved

Attendance of the members of the Strategic and ESG Committee of the Board at the meetings held during the
Reporting Period:

Attendance in person/

Number of meetings

Position requiring attendance ~ Remarks

Chu Kairong (chairman) Chairman, Executive Director 0/0 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Zhao Weixiong Executive Director 0/0 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Xue Binghai Non-executive Director 2/2
Jiang Lin Non-executive Director 0/0 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Huang Dechun Independent non-executive Director ~ 0/0 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Lo Wah Wai Independent non-executive Director ~ 0/0 Appointed on

6 September 2024
Zhang Hongfa Independent non-executive Director ~ 2/2

Annual Report 2024 145

sM noqy

1

suolnpuo) bunessdp

4

8oUuBUIBAOK) 81Bl0dI0)

[

uoljewIoU| [eloueUIl




Corporate Governance Report

VILI.

Chairman and General Manager

The positions of the Chairman and general manager of the Company are taken by different persons, so as
to guarantee the independence of their duties and balance of authorization. Mr. Chu Kairong served as the
Chairman of the Board and since 6 September 2024, Mr. Zhao Weixiong served as the general manager.
Following the above change of general manager of the Company, the Company has re-complied with code
provision C.2.1. Their duties and authorities are clearly divided and specified in the Articles of Association. The
Chairman is responsible for leading the Board in determining the Company’s development strategy to guarantee
the effective operation and duties fulfilment of the Board, and fully discusses the issues within the scope of
the Board’s duties, so as to ensure that the Directors can acquire true, accurate and complete information for
making decisions in time, the Company can comply with well-established corporate governance procedures
and the decisions of the Board are in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. Mr.
Chu Kairong, the Chairman, also acts as the legal representative of the Company.

Vill.Non-executive Directors and independent non-executive

146

Directors

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. During the Reporting Period, the Company has been in compliance with the
requirement of Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules in relation to appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors, and one of them is an independent non-executive Director who has
appropriate professional qualifications or with appropriate accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each non-executive Director, specifying a
term of three years. Their positions are specified in Section X “I. Basic Information about Current and Resigned
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management during the Reporting Period” of this Report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company optimized the performance of independent Directors and
strengthened the management of independent Directors’ tenure in accordance with the new working system
for independent Directors, so as to promote the independent Directors to effectively play their roles in
decision-making and supervision.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive Directors of the Company held 1 meeting with
the Chairman of the Board to discuss the operation and development of the Company.
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IX. Supervisory Committee and duty performance

(1)

(2)

X.
(1)

(2)

Duties of the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee shall be accountable to the general meetings. Its main duties and authorities
include: to monitor the financial activities of the Company; to supervise the performance of duties of Directors,
general manager and other members of senior management of the Company; to propose the removal of
Directors and senior management who have acted in breach of the laws, administrative regulations, the
Articles of Association or the resolutions passed at the general meeting; to request the Directors, general
manager and other members of senior management to conduct rectification for their actions that caused
damage to the interests of the Company; to review financial information including the financial reports,
business reports and profit distribution proposals to be submitted by the Board to the general meeting, and
to engage, in the name of the Company, certified public accountants and practicing auditors to assist in the
review of such information should any doubts arise; to propose extraordinary general meetings be convened,
and to convene and preside over a general meeting in the event that the Board fails to perform the duties of
convening and presiding over a general meeting; to negotiate with Directors and senior management and
file lawsuit against Directors and senior management on behalf of the Company; to make proposals to the
general meeting; and to propose extraordinary meetings of the Board be convened.

Meetings of the Supervisory Committee and attendance of Supervisors

The Supervisory Committee performs its relevant duties according to relevant laws and regulations and the
Articles of Association. The Supervisory Committee convened seven meetings during the Reporting Period.
For details of the meetings, please refer to Section lll Corporate Governance — “Report of Supervisory
Committee” of this report.

Other related matters
Shareholders’ right

The Company convened and held general meetings according to the Articles of Association and Rules of
Procedures for General Meetings to guarantee the equal status and full exercise of rights for all Shareholders,
especially the small and medium Shareholders. All of the Company’s Directors, Supervisors and senior
management attended the general meetings and answered the Shareholders’ questions in accordance with
Articles of Association.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules concerning the
securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors. The Company has made specific inquiries to all the
Directors and Supervisors for the compliance with Model Code. All Directors and Supervisors confirmed that
they completely observed the Model Code during the Reporting Period.
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(3)

(4)

(3)

(6)

148

The Company has adopted the Model Code for supervising the unpublished price-sensitive information of
the Company or its securities that is likely possessed by its employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Company did not find any employee’s violation of the Model Code.

The Board will check the Company’s corporate governance and its implementation from time to time to meet
the requirements of the Listing Rules and protect the interest of the Shareholders.

Responsibilities of Directors concerning financial statements

The declarations of the responsibilities of Directors concerning financial statements set out hereinafter and the
responsibilities of Certified Public Accountants in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this Report shall be read
jointly but understood independently.

All the Directors of the Company confirmed their responsibility of preparing the financial statements that
can truly reflect the Company’s operating results for each financial year. During the Reporting Period, to
the knowledge of the Directors, no event or circumstance that may cause material adverse impact on the
Company’s continuous operations needs to be reported.

Appointment and remuneration of auditors

In 2024, the Company appointed ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP as its external audit firm for
2024 to provide related audit and review services based on the China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises. The expenses related to the audit service are set out in Section Il Corporate Governance “Material
Matters” — “VlIl. Engagement of accounting firm” of this Report.

Review of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
financial statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. Huang Haiging, the Board secretary and one of the joint company secretaries, is responsible for making
proposals to the Board on corporate governance and ensuring the policies and procedures of the Board,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are observed. In order to maintain sound corporate governance and
comply with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah,
an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, as the other joint company
secretary of the Company to assist Mr. Huang Haiging in fulfilling his duties as the Board secretary and a joint
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Chan Yin Wah’s main contact person in the Company is Mr. Huang
Haiqing, the Board secretary and joint company secretary of the Company. For the year ended 31 December
2024, Mr. Huang Haiging and Ms. Chan Yin Wah took no less than 15 hours of professional trainings in
accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Communications with Shareholders

The general meeting shall be the supreme authority of the Company. All Shareholders exercise their power
through the general meeting. The Company formulated corresponding systems to ensure the compliance of
the convening and holding of the general meetings. The Company explicitly specified Shareholders’ rights in
the Articles of Association, to ensure the Shareholders’ right to know, especially the minority Shareholders.
The Company treated all Shareholders impartially.

The Board of the Company maintains continuous communication with Shareholders and information is
communicated to Shareholders through the Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
extraordinary general meetings, and disclosures filed with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at the meetings. For
the procedures by which enquiries may be put to the board by shareholders and for them to putting forward
proposals at general meetings, the procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board by shareholders
are as follows: shareholders may put their enquiries to the Board through the investor contact information set
out in the section headed “Company Profile” of this Annual Report.

There are persons specially designated for contacting with Shareholders. The Company attaches great
importance to opinions and suggestions of shareholders and tries to meet their reasonable requests in time.

The Company’s shareholder communications policy is designed to:

() promote a positive relationship between the Company and investors and enhance investors’ further
understanding and familiarity with the Company;

(N build a stable and high-quality investor base and gain long-term support from the market;
(I cultivate a corporate culture that serves investors, respects investors and holds investors;

(V) practice the investment philosophy of maximizing the overall interests of the Company while growing
the wealth of shareholders; and

(v) increase transparency in information disclosure of the Company and improve corporate governance.

Through the following initiatives, the Company confirms that it is now effectively implementing the Company’s
shareholder communications policy: the channels through which the Company communicates with its
investors include, but are not limited to: the Company’s official website of the Company, the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange website and the investor relations interactive platform launched by Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(hereinafter referred to as the EasylR Platform), new media platforms, telephone, fax, e-mail, etc. Forms of
communication may also encompass general meetings, performance briefings, roadshows, investor research
activities, and securities analyst research activities.
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The Company attaches great importance to the views and suggestions of its Shareholders, actively,
proactively and regularly conducts various investor relations activities to maintain communication with its
shareholders and meet their reasonable needs in a timely manner. The Company has been actively making
use of the Investor Service Hotline and has set up the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website
www.ftol.com.cn, and all press releases, results announcements and other information relating to the
Company are available on the Company’s website. At the same time, the Company has formed good
interaction and communication with its Shareholders by receiving investors for on-site investigation and
research, etc. During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained the “Investor Relations” section of the
Company’s website and made its effort in answering questions from investors on the EasylR Platform of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The Company also did a good job in the day-to-day investor consultation
process, answering questions from investors in detail.

The Company welcomed all Shareholders attending general meetings and facilitated their attendance in a
permitted range. The Company’s Directors, Supervisors and senior management will attend general meetings
and the Board shall answer questions at the meeting. The management of the Company shall ensure that
the external auditors can attend the annual general meeting and answer relevant questions put forward by
Shareholders.

Investor Relation Activities

The Company has always given priority to continuous enhancement of Shareholder value, paid high attention
to investor relations management, gradually established clear two-way communication channels with
investors and kept improving the corporate governance structure. During the Reporting Period, the Company
communicated with investors through ways like, making phone calls, sending emails and receiving visitors,
and treated all investors equally to ensure that all Shareholders can fully exercise their rights. During the
Reporting Period, the Company disclosed information in a truthful, accurate, complete and timely manner in
strict accordance with laws, regulations and regulatory provisions, to ensure that investors are informed of the
Company’s material matters in time and thereby protecting their interests to the greatest extent.

On 26 June 2024, the Company held its 2023 annual performance briefing meeting, for details, please refer to
the Investor Relations Activities Record Sheet published by the Company on 26 June 2024.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) according to the Corporate
Governance Code, which aims to set out the Company’s approach to achieving diversity on the Board.

Diversity policy can be summed up as follows: the Company understands and believes that board diversity
is beneficial to the Company, and views it as an important element in maintaining its competitive edge. In
designing the Board’s composition, the Company takes into account multiple aspects of board diversity,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, length of service, etc. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered with due regard of the capacity, skill and experience required for the overall operation of the
Board, so as to ensure the proper balance of the members of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee under the Board of the Company will review and assess the composition of
the Board, and provide suggestions to the Board on the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee under the Board of the Company will discuss annually all the measurable objectives for
implementing the board diversity, and provide relevant suggestions on the objectives to the Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the diversity policy, the following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. at least one-third of the members of the Board are independent non-executive Directors;

2. all Directors have college degree or above, many of whom have master’s and doctoral degrees;

3. at least one member of the Board has obtained accounting or other professional qualifications; and
4. at least one member is female.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises seven Directors, including three independent non-
executive Directors. As a result of the resignation of Ms. Zhou Jiangiu, the former Chairlady of the Company,
on 9 October 2023, the Board of the Company is composed of all male members. The Board has consistently
gave full consideration to the identification of candidates, and Ms. Jiang Haiying has been elected as a non-
executive Director at a general meeting held on 18 February 2025, so as to achieve the goal of gender
diversity in the Board members.

The Board has also adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”), which aims to set out
the criteria and procedures to be followed in considering director candidates and re-appointing existing
Directors of the Company. In the case of selection of director candidates, the Nomination Committee shall
consider the candidates confirmed or selected in accordance with the nomination criteria through a meeting
and, if appropriate, make recommendations to the Board. The Board shall consider and determine such
appointments on the recommendation of the Nomination Committee. In the case of re-appointing existing
Directors, the Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and services of the retiring Director
to the Company and determine whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy and, if appropriate, recommend the retiring Director to the Board for consideration and to
shareholders for re-election at a general meeting. The following factors will be considered in assessing the
appointment of the director candidates as and the re-appointment of existing Directors:

° contribution to the Board;

° reputation;
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o The ability to commit sufficient time to perform the duties of a member of the Board;
o Whether there is a potential conflict of interest for the Company; and
° whether the independence requirements of the Listing Rules are met in respect of the candidates who

are independent non-executive directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee also reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of mechanisms to ensure that independent views and opinions are available to the Board. Having considered
the following means, the Nomination Committee considers that the Company has maintained an effective
mechanism to ensure that there is a strong and sufficient element of independence on the Board:

o there are three independent non-executive Directors on the Board (representing more than one-third of
the Board), all of whom have been diligent in performing their duties in accordance with the “Working
System for Independent Directors” of the Company to ensure that they have enough time and energy
to effectively fulfill their duties as independent Directors and work on-site in the Company for no less
than fifteen days per year;

° site visits have been arranged from time to time for the independent non-executive Directors to
enhance their understanding of the old and new projects of the Company;

° has continued to strengthen the independent Directors’ understanding of securities laws, regulations
and rules to continuously improve their ability to fuffill their duties;

o the Chairman/Chairlady has conducted annual meeting with all independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors to provide an effective platform for the Chairman/Chairlady to
receive independent advice on various issues of the Group; and

o independent professional advice is provided to the independent non-executive Directors at their
reasonable request to assist them in discharging their duties to the Company.

The Nomination Committee held five meetings during the year, among others, to review the Board Diversity

Policy and Nomination Policy and concluded that the said policies were still valid and appropriate for the
Company.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Gender Diversity

In the course of introducing and cultivating staff, the Company adheres to the principle of equal employment,
fair promotion to resist discrimination, harassment and defamation due to age, sex, marital status, disability,
family status, race, skin colour, descent, nationality, ethnicity, or religion. As of 31 December 2024, the
total number of employees of the Company was 636, of which 294 or approximately 46.23% were female
employees. The proportion of female among the Company’s Directors, Supervisors and senior management
is shown in the table below. The Company’s ratio of male to female employees is basically balanced. The
Company will continue to maintain a basically balanced ratio of male to female employees in order to achieve
the gender diversity in its workforce. A separate ESG Report provides details of the Company’s gender
diversity principles, governance approach and initiatives.

Proportion of female among Directors, Supervisors and senior management
Director Supervisor Senior management

Proportion of female 14.29% 33.3% 16.67%

Articles of Association

On 28 December 2023, the Board proposed to amend the Articles of Association in accordance with (i) the
Listing Rules of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (August 2023 Revision) (CRYIIFE 532 5 Fr i #R Bl (20234
8 A{&%T))), the Guidelines on the Articles of Association of Listed Companies (Revised in 2023) ({ /A A
ZF2HE3|(20234F1£7])) ), the Measures for the Administration of Independent Directors of Listed Companies
(ETRBBIESEIRYE)), the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange and other laws, regulations
and normative documents; and (i) as required by the actual situation of the Company; On 28 March 2024,
in accordance with the proposed change of company name, the Board proposed to amend the Articles of
Association. Amendments to the Articles of Association were approved by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of 2023 held on 28 June 2024 and has become effective on the same day. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 December 2023, 28 March 2024 and 28 June 2024
and the circular dated 29 May 2024. The change of company name is subject to the approval of the market
regulation and administration bureau, and there is uncertainty as to whether the relevant approvals can be
obtained, and there is the possibility of modifications and adjustments.

On 30 December 2024, in view of the latest provisions of laws, regulations and regulatory documents such
as the Company Law and the Securities Law, and taking into account the actual situation of the Company,
the Board of Directors proposed to make corresponding amendments to the Articles of Association. The
amendments to the Articles of Association were approved by the shareholders at the first extraordinary general
meeting of the Company in 2025 held on 18 February 2025. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 30 December 2024; the circular dated 24 January 2025; and the Company's overseas
regulatory announcement dated 30 December 2024.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
Building of internal control system

Since its establishment, the Company has always focused on the building of internal rules and regulations and
management system. The continuous formation, effective implementation and improvement of various internal
systems have laid a solid foundation for the regulated development of the Company.

The Company has always attached great importance to compliance and risk management and has set up
a sound internal control system in strict accordance with the requirements of the regulatory authorities and
the relevant laws and regulations, including the Futures and Derivatives Law, the Rules for Administration of
Futures Trading and the Measures for Administration of the Supervision of Futures Companies. By reinforcing
the daily check and supervision of chief risk officer and compliance department, the Company has improved
the implementation of the internal control system so as to ensure the compliant and steady development of
the Company and has supported the building of internal control as central to its business development.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company has built an internal control system suitable for its
business nature, scale and complexity, guaranteed the legitimacy and compliance of operation management,
the safety of assets and authenticity and integrity of financial reporting and relevant information, and improved
operating efficiency and performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has built an internal control system for material information,
procedures for handling and publishing price-sensitive information and internal control measures.

The Company has, according to the regulatory requirements, established and improved systems concerning
Chinese Wall and insider registration management, which prevented the misuse and spread of sensitive
information. Meanwhile, the Company has disclosed information in a truthful, accurate, complete and timely
manner according to laws, regulations, the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association and administrative
measures for the disclosure of information, so that all shareholders have equal and timely access to relevant
information of the Company.

Based on the principles of comprehensiveness, sustainability, independence and effectiveness, the
organization structure of risk management and internal control developed by the Company has included
four management levels, namely, the Board, the Risk Management Committee, the Chief Risk Officer and
the officers responsible for risk management of each business department. For details of construction of the
risk management system, please refer to Section Il Operating Conditions — “Management Discussion and
Analysis” — “IX. Constructing the Risk Management System of the Company” of this Report.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for risk management and internal control systems and reviewing

their effectiveness. The Board identifies and manages the major risks which may affect the performance of the
Group as appropriate, and reviews and updates the system annually.
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Meanwhile, the Company has established the audit department internally to conduct independent supervision
on the sufficiency and efficiency of the internal control and risk management system of the Company.
The audit department formulates the internal audit plan on an annual basis and conducts internal audits
in accordance with the requirements of the Company’s relevant systems. By providing independent and
objective supervision, evaluation and recommendations on the internal control, risk management, financial
income and expenditure and related economic activities of the audited entity, the Company promotes the
improvement of governance and the achievement of objectives. Any proposed changes regarding the internal
review plan will be reported according to the requirements of relevant systems of the Company.

The audit department of the Company conducts ongoing oversight of internal controls through audits such as
departure audits and tenure-based economic responsibility audits. Where material internal control deficiencies
are identified, the department promptly reports to the management of the Company with recommendations,
ensuring responsible parties implement corrective actions within stipulated timelines. Audit results and
rectification progress are subsequently reported to the Board and the Audit Committee.

The Company handles and releases inside information in strict compliance with the relevant regulations of
the Listing Rules. Firstly, the management of the Company conducts special discussions on the relevant
information, at the same time, relevant departments would evaluate the point-in-time and the information to
be disclosed and conduct timely communications and discussions on the disclosure with the lawyers of the
Company. Lastly, the Company would send the relevant inside information to all Directors for review and
confirmation during the process of preparing the same. By adopting these procedures, sensitive information
about share prices can be protected effectively while the information required to be disclosed can be released
in a timely, accurate fashion.

As of the date of this Report, the Risk Management Committee under the Board has conducted a review on
the 2024 working report of the Chief Risk Officer, and reviewed the legal compliance and risk management
of the Company’s operation and management of the same are sufficient and effective. The Board was of the
view that the said systems were designed to manage, instead of eliminating, the risk of failing to meet the
business goals, and therefore can only offer a reasonable, but not absolute, guarantee on the absence of
significant false statements or significant loss.
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Report of Other Matters
Building of compliance system

During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly adhered to the relevant laws, regulations and standards and
earnestly organized and implemented various regulatory and disciplinary requirements under the continuous
regulation and proper direction of the regulatory authorities. It has implemented various compliance work
thoroughly and continued to optimize the compliance management system with an emphasis on enhancing
the level of compliance risk control of the Company.

A sound organization structure of compliance management has been developed. The Company has
continuously optimized its compliance system organizational structure by establishing an independent internal
audit department, the audit department, and merging the legal department and the compliance department
to form the compliance and legal department, and constructed a multi-level compliance management and
organization system consisting of the Board, Risk Management Committee under the Board, chief risk officer,
compliance and legal department, audit department and various subsidiaries. Audit work was implemented
under the direction of the Chief Risk Officer. The Company has timely allocated compliance personnel
when establishing new subsidiaries. Compliance management work was conducted under the direction of
compliance and legal department and the work process was reported to it. Duties of each level were clear
with open communication.

To achieve compliance management objectives, the Company has formulated comprehensive, standard and
practicable system, regulations and procedures for compliance management including the Administrative
Measures for Compliance, to build a more scientific compliance management system. Compliance
management covers all businesses, departments and staff members of the Company throughout various
segments such as decision-making, execution, supervision and provision of feedback. In the process of
business development, standardizing implementation system and achieving the effective identification,
evaluation and management of compliance risks has provided effective support and supervision to the
compliance business operations of the Company, which allowed the business operations of the Company to
be complied with laws, regulations and standards and fostered and formed a corporate culture based on the
culture of compliance.

Continues to optimize compliance management system of the Company

The Company attaches great importance to supervision and inspection of establishment and implementation
of internal control. In 2024, the Company established an independent audit department through organizational
restructuring. Through continuous supervision and inspection of internal audit, the Company conducted
regular evaluation of internal control to achieve the supervision and evaluation of the continuous and effective
operation of internal control and continuously improve the defects of internal control.
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() Continuously strengthening the role of internal audit supervision

1.

Establishing a sound and efficient internal audit system. The Company established an independent
internal audit institution — the audit department, equipped with internal auditors, and formulated a set
of sound system of rules and regulations on internal auditing. The Company set up an audit committee
to employ reasonable and stable personnel who meet the needs of audit tasks to work independently
and exercise their internal supervisory power. Under the supervision and guidance of the Audit
Committee of the Company, the audit department conducts independent work and exercises the
internal supervisory power in accordance with the regulations of the national and local governments
and the rules and regulations of the Company. The Company regularly submits internal audit plans,
work reports, etc. to the audit committee and the management at governance level for consideration.
The Company has formulated the internal audit work plan, after which is reviewed in accordance
with the requirements of relevant systems of the Company, it will carry out internal audit work and
strengthen audit supervision.

The Company’s audit department facilitates the Company to strengthen its internal control through
standardized audit and supervision, enhance the supervision and evaluation of the internal control,
risk management and financial management of subsidiaries and branches, and help the Company
to achieve management enhancement and improvement of management quality and efficiency. The
internal audit work is made by the reporting system which is mainly based on the “Internal Audit
Report” and other written documents, and submits the audit work to the Board in accordance with the
system requirements.

Continuously strengthening the supervision and inspection of internal audit. The audit department
of the Company is responsible for the specific implementation of the internal audit of the Company
and formed the internal audit work mechanism that meets the construction of its own internal control
system. It actively conducted regular audits and special audits, and strictly conducted the audit work
in accordance with the Company’s internal audit management methods and procedures. The scope
of audit covered the performance of economic responsibility by internal management officers, internal
control, risk management and financial management of the Company’s business, subsidiaries and
branches. It timely put forward the audit opinions and suggestions on the issues found during the
audit, and ensure the effective implementation of the audit results by establishing rectifying tracking
account, supervision of audit rectification and conducting follow-up audits.

In 2024, the internal audit department of the Company continued to deepen the construction of the
internal audit management system and fully performed and implemented its audit supervision function.
It adhered to the supervision and evaluation of risk management and the enhancement of internal
control as its main tasks, strengthened the effort, frequency and depth of audit in actual audit work,
depth, expanded the coverage and fineness of internal audit, innovated audit ideas, and improved
audit methods. It intensified the implementation efforts in the follow-up rectification and continued to
enhance the quality and effectiveness of audit work, which provided a safeguard for the healthy and
sound operation of the Company.
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Continuously improving the internal control evaluation system

1.

Continuously strengthening the evaluation of internal control. The Company established a more
effective internal control evaluation system in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations,
and determined the evaluation method and operation flow of internal control. In the meantime, the
Company continued to carry out internal control self-evaluation and implemented rectification on
it. The Company formulated the evaluation criteria for internal control defects and carried out the
internal control evaluation annually within the Company. The evaluation scope covered the business
operations of the Company’s headquarters and all branches, as well as all business segments and
key business management activities of the Company. In 2024, according to the requirements of the
basic rules, evaluation guidelines and other relevant laws and regulations, the Company conducted a
self-evaluation on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control design and operation as of 31
December 2024. It engaged ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP to review the Company’s
internal control related to the financial statements and rectify the existing issues, so that the
effectiveness of internal control was further enhanced.

Further improving the internal control evaluation mechanism and broadening the evaluation coverage.
In 2024, the Company continuously improved internal control evaluation mechanism, improved
evaluation method, enhanced technical means and fully leveraged on internationally advanced methods
to carry out evaluation. The Company also continued to improve its internal control management and
continuously raised its management standard on various risks.

(Ill)  Whistleblowing and anti-corruption policy

158

1.

The Company has established a top-down mechanism for working with integrity to establish an
anticorruption management system covering the Rules of Procedures for Meeting of the Board,
the Rules of Procedures of the Supervisory Committee, the Financial Management System, the
Regulations on Punishment for Non-Compliance by Employees of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. and the
Practice Integrity Provisions Anti-fraud Management Rules of Holly Futures Co., Ltd.. To systematically
eliminate the occurrence of corruption, misappropriation and embezzlement of the assets of the
Company or its customers, it is stipulated in the Financial Management System that relevant
certificates are audited and strictly examined by dedicated personnel to prevent misappropriation and
embezzlement of funds and to eliminate illegal, corrupt and other criminal acts. The Company has
entrusted the Human Resource Department, Discipline Inspection Department and the Audit and Legal
Department with the corresponding departmental responsibilities, which is responsible for overseeing
the implementation of various financial rules and systems by all departments and subordinate units,
and investigating and dealing with acts of corruption and misappropriation of property, leakage of
secrets and bribery, either alone or in conjunction with other relevant departments, so as to ensure the
effective operation of the Company’s integrity and employment work mechanism. If an employee has
engaged in prohibited conduct, he/she is prohibited from acting as a Director, Supervisor and senior
management of the Company. In addition to terminating the employment contract, the Company will
also refer the problematic leads to the judicial authorities in accordance with the law.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Corporate Governance Report

Departments of the Company have established a parallel whistleblowing and complaint mechanism
covering all business segments of the Company, realizing a dual-chain passage of internal control and
external supervision and prevention. Complaints involving clients will be handled in accordance with the
Rules for Handling Customer Complaints of the Company, clearing the customer complaint channel.
After preliminary classification of the complaints, the complaints will be resolved through legal channels
such as negotiation, mediation, arbitration and litigation in accordance with the handling process.
For complaints reported within the Company, a distinction is made according to whether the subject
of the report is a member of the Party, a cadre or a general employee. Depending on the nature of
the identity of the subject of the report, the Company adopts a different mechanism for handling
the report, with the disciplinary, compliance and legal departments taking the lead or forming a joint
working group to investigate and handle the matter in accordance with the procedures stipulated in
the system. Employees, clients and other relevant personnels can also directly file complaints and
reports to the Company’s Audit Committee. The Audit Committee will also evaluate the Company’s
mechanisms for employees to report, internal monitoring or other improper behaviors, as well as the
mechanisms for the Company to conduct independent and fair investigations into reported matters
and take appropriate actions.

On this basis, the Company has established a mechanism for the protection of whistleblowing
and complaint work, prohibiting any discrimination or retaliation, and prohibiting any obstruction,
interference or hostile measures against the personnel involved in the investigation. Any individual
who discloses information about the whistleblowers or retaliates against them will face corresponding
punishment based on the severity.
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Report of Supervisory Committee

In 2024, the Supervisory Committee of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), in accordance with the Company
Law, the Articles of Association, the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Committee, and other relevant laws,
regulations, and institutional provisions, adhered to the principles of integrity and due diligence. From the perspective
of actively safeguarding the interests of the Company and the legitimate rights and interests of all shareholders, the
Supervisory Committee earnestly fulfilled its various powers and obligations. Members of the Supervisory Committee
effectively supervised the Company’s business operations, financial status, and the performance of duties by
directors and senior management by attending general meetings and board meetings. This ensured the protection of
the Company’s interests and the legitimate rights and interests of shareholders, promoting the smooth development
and standardized operation of the Company’s management activities. The work report of the Supervisory Committee is
as follows:

. Performance of Supervisory Committee

The fourth session of the Supervisory Committee convened a total of seven meetings for 2024, specifically:

) Session Attendance Agenda
28 March 2024 The tenth meeting of Yu Hong, Chen The resolution on the Annual Report (A Shares) for 2023 and its
the fourth session Liang, Zhang Lei summary of the Company
of the Supervisory The resolution on the Annual Results Announcement and the Annual
Committee Report (H Shares) for 2023 of the Company
The resolution on the 2023 Annual Working Report of the Supervisory
Committee

The resolution on the 2023 final financial report
The resolution on the profit distribution plan of the Company for 2023
The resolution on the self-assessment report of internal control for
2023
The resolution on the remuneration package of the supervisors of the
Company for 2023
The resolution on the special report of risk regulatory indicators for
2023
26 April 2024 The eleventh meeting Yu Hong, Chen The resolution on the first quarterly report for 2024 of the Company
of the fourth session Liang, Zhang Lei  The resolution on the use of part of the self-owned funds for security
of the Supervisory investment
Committee The resolution on the use of part of the self-owned funds for
entrusted wealth management
The resolution on the annual financial budgets and investment plans

for 2024
17 July 2024 The twelfth meeting of ~ Yu Hong, Chen The resolution on Nomination of Candidates for Non-Employee
the fourth session Liang, Zhang Lei Representative Supervisors for the Fourth Session of the
of the Supervisory Supervisory Committee
Committee
16 August 2024 The thirteenth meeting  Yu Hong, Chen The resolution on the Interim Report (A Shares) for 2024 and its
of the fourth session Liang, Zhang Lei summary of the Company
of the Supervisory The resolution on the Interim Results Announcement and the Interim
Committee Report (H Shares) for 2024 of the Company
The resolution on the special report of risk regulatory indicators for
the first half of 2024

160 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Report of Supervisory Committee

Date Session Attendance Agenda
6 September The fourteenth meeting  Huang Dongyan, The resolution on election of the chairman of the fourth session of the
2024 of the fourth session Chen Liang, Supervisory Committee of the Company.
of the Supervisory Zhang Lei
Committee

29 October 2024 The fifteenth meeting Huang Dongyan, The resolution on the third quarterly report for 2024 of the Company
of the fourth session Chen Liang,

of the Supervisory Zhang Lei
Committee
30 December The sixteenth meeting Huang Dongyan, The resolution on the election of non-employee representative
2024 of the fourth session Chen Liang, Supervisors for the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee
of the Supervisory Zhang Lei The resolution on the amendment of the Rules of Procedure of the
Committee Supervisory Committee of the Company

Il. Independent opinion of Supervisory Committee on legality
of Company’s operation

In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee:

1. In 2024, with solicitude and support from all its Shareholders and the diligent work of all the staff,
the Company operated in compliance with the Company Law and the Articles of Association, and its
procedures for making decisions on operation are lawful and up to standard, thus making satisfactory
results.

2. The Board was able to operate in accordance with the Company Law, the Futures and Derivatives
Law, the Regulations for the Administration of Futures Trading ((EiE 22 5E &5 ), the Listing Rules
and other relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association and the Company had in place
lawful decision-making procedures, where the Directors, managers and other senior management were
able to perform their duties in accordance with laws and regulations and the Articles of Association and
exercise their powers in a proper and diligent manner without any act in violation of laws, regulations or
the Articles of Association or contrary to the interest of the Company or the Shareholders.

3. The Company strictly follows the relevant laws and regulations and the provisions of the Company’s
“Management System for Information Disclosure Affairs” and “Management System for Registration
of Insiders of Inside Information”, faithfully fulfils its information disclosure obligations, discloses
information in a timely and fair manner, and ensures that the disclosure of information is true, accurate
and complete, and that there is no false representation, misleading statement or material omission.
The Company has conscientiously done a good job in the management of inside information as well
as the registration of insiders of inside information, and standardised the information transmission
process, Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company and other relevant insiders
have also strictly complied with the relevant provisions, and has not found any case of a insider of the
inside information making use of the inside information to trade shares of the Company.
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Report of Supervisory Committee

IV.

VL

Independent opinion of Supervisory Committee on
Company’s financial position

In 2024, the Company prudently and conscientiously observed the accounting principles based on their
importance. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s financial structure was reasonable and assets
were in good condition, and the annual financial report was able to give a true and accurate reflection of the
Company'’s financial position and operating results. Audit reports with standard unqualified opinion were issued
by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP.

Independent opinion of Supervisory Committee on actual
application of funds raised by the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee supervised the actual application of funds raised.
The Supervisory Committee was of opinion that the Company strictly complied with the use disclosed in the A
Shares and H Shares Prospectus in the management of funds raised. The use of proceeds raised conformed
to the Company’s project plan and approval decision procedure without any appropriation of funds raised in
breach of stipulation.

Review of Supervisory Committee on self-assessment
report of internal control

The Supervisory Committee has conducted a review on the Company and considered that the Company has
established an appropriate internal control system in all material aspects, and the internal control management
system has operated effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation and normal production and
operation.

Implementation of resolutions adopted at General Meetings

The members of the Supervisory Committee had no objection to the contents of resolutions submitted to the
general meetings. The Supervisory Committee supervised the implementation of resolutions adopted at the
general meetings, and considered that the Board was able to implement the relevant resolutions earnestly.

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee
Huang Dongyan
Chairman

Nanjing, China, 28 March 2025
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Auditor’s Report

To all shareholders of Holly Futures Co., Ltd.,

164

AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Holly Futures),
which comprise the consolidated and parent company’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2024, the
consolidated and parent company’s income statements, the consolidated and parent company’s cash flow
statements, the consolidated and parent company’s statements of changes in shareholders’ equity for the
year then ended, and related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
and parent company’s financial position of Holly Futures as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
and parent company’s financial performance and cash flows of Holly Futures for the year then ended in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Holly Futures in accordance with the
China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



KEY AUDIT MATTER

Auditor’s Report

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit

of the financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

1. Recognition of fee income

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As stated in Note l1.25 and Note V.40
to the financial statements, Holly Futures
recorded handling fees and net commission
income of RMB179,321,100 in 2024.
Handling fees and net commission income
is one of the Company’s key performance
indicators.

Holly Futures’s handling fees and net
commission income mainly consists of
futures brokerage income, investment
advisory income and asset management
income.

Revenue from futures brokerage business
is recognized on the date of occurrence
of agency transactions; revenue from
investment advisory business and asset
management business is recognized
when the Group is entitled to receive the
revenue under the agreement.

As handling fees and net commission
income is one of the Company’s key
performance indicators, and there is an
inherent risk that the timing of revenue
recognition may be manipulated to
meet specific targets or expectations.
The determination of the timing of
the recognition of handling fees and
net commission income involves
management judgment and could have
a material impact on the Company’s
net profit. Therefore, we identified the
recognition of handling fees and net
commission income as a critical audit
issue.

The key audit procedures performed on handling fees and net
commission income as a key audit matter included:

(1)

Understanding the key internal controls related to the
recognition of handling fees and net commission income,
evaluating the design of these controls, determining
whether they are implemented, and testing the operating
effectiveness of the related internal controls.

For the critical information technology system that
processes transactions related to handling fees and net
commission income, we evaluate and test the design
and operational effectiveness of critical internal controls
of the system over the application of the information
system, using the work of the Firm’s in-house information
technology experts.

For revenue from futures brokerage business, checking
retained handling fee details from the Company’s trade
settlement system against book data; obtaining national
futures market transaction data and comparing the
Company’s futures transaction data and fee income trends
with national market trends; and comparing book data
with settlement data and conducts cut-off tests on futures
brokerage fee income.

For the income from asset management business, taking
samples and checking whether the rates of management
fees and performance-based compensation were consistent
with the contractual agreements, obtaining a list of all the
Company’s asset management plans, and calculate the
related income according to different fee standards.

For the revenue from investment consulting business,
taking samples of business items, checking the contracts
signed between Holly Futures and the customers to verify
whether the relevant revenue recognition was consistent
with the terms of the contracts, and evaluating whether the
relevant revenue recognition was in compliance with the
Company’s accounting policies on revenue recognition.
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Auditor’s Report

166

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

2. Assessing financial instruments measured at fair value

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As described in Note lll.15, Notes V.5,
9, 10, 11 and 23 and Note Xl to the
financial statements, as at 31 December
2024, out of the financial instruments
of Holly Futures, financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at fair value
amounted to RMB330,814,200 and
RMB17,772,400, respectively.

Since the valuation of the Company’s
financial instruments is based on a
combination of market data and valuation
models, a large number of variables are
usually required to be entered. Of these
inputs, the majority are derived from
data available in liquid markets. Where
observable market data is not available for
Level 3 financial instruments, significant
judgment and estimates are involved.

We identified the valuation of financial
instruments measured at fair value as a
key audit matter due to the significant
amounts involved and given the
complexity involved in assessing the
value of a particular financial instrument
and the degree of reliance placed on
management’s judgment in determining
the inputs to be used in the valuation
methodology.

The key audit procedures performed on the valuation of
financial instruments measured at fair value as a key audit
matter included:

(1)

understanding the key internal controls relevant to
the valuation of the fair value of financial instruments,
evaluating the design of those controls, and determining
whether they are being performed;

assessing the fair value of all financial instruments of
Holly Futures traded in active markets by comparing the
fair value applied by Holly Futures with publicly available
market data;

For financial instruments whose fair value is within Level 2
and Level 3, selecting a sample through a reasonable audit
sampling method, obtaining the underlying information
of the sample relevant to the valuation and identifying
the conditions relevant to the valuation of the financial
instruments, and evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methods, valuation models and inputs used by
management. On this basis, an independent valuation
is performed and our valuation results are compared
with those of Holly Futures. Specific procedures include:
evaluating the valuation methods and valuation models
used by Holly Futures against those typically used in the
market, testing the inputs used in the valuation process,
and applying the valuation methods and valuation models
to re-measure the fair value of financial instruments;

assessing whether the disclosures in the financial
statements appropriately reflected Holly Futures’ exposure
to financial instrument valuation risk with eference to the
requirements of the prevailing accountingstandards.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

3. Consolidation of structured entities

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Please refer to the accounting estimates
set out in Note “lll.6 Accounting methods
for business combination under common
control and not under common control”
and Note “lll.32 Significant accounting
estimates and judgments” to the financial
statements and Note “VIII.1 Interests in
subsidiaries” and Note “VIII.3 Interests
in structured entities not included in
the scope of consolidated financial
statements” to the financial statements.
Structured entities are generally created
to achieve a narrow and well defined
objective with restrictions around their
ongoing activities. Holly Futures may
acquire or retain an ownership interest in,
or act as a sponsor to, a structured entity
through issuing or purchasing an asset
management plan, a trust product or a
wealth management product.

In determining whether a structured
entity is required to be consolidated by
Holly Futures, management is required to
consider the power Holly Futures is able
to exercise over the activities of the entity,
the exposure to variable returns and
ability to influence its own returns from
the entity.

We identified the consolidation of
structured entities of Holly Futures as
a key audit matter because it involves
significant management judgment in
determining whether a structured entity
is required to be consolidated by Holly
Futures or not and because the impact
of consolidating a structured entity on
the consolidated balance sheet could be
significant.

Our audit procedures to assess the consolidation of structured
entities included the following:

(1)

understanding and assessing the design and operation
of key internal controls over consolidation of structured
entities;

performing the following procedures for all new structured
entities;

1) inspecting the related contracts, internal documents
and information disclosed to the investors to
understand the purpose of the establishment of
the structured entities and the involvement Holly
Futures has with the structured entities and to assess
management’s judgment over whether Holly Futures
has the ability to exercise power over the structured
entities;

2) evaluating the risk and reward structure of the
structured entity to assess management’s judgment
as to exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
Holly Futures’s involvement in such entity;

3) reviewing management’s analyses of the structured
entities including qualitative analyses and calculations
of the magnitude and variability associated with
Holly Futures’ economic interests in the structured
entities to assess management’s judgment over Holly
Futures’ ability to influence its own returns from the
structured entities;

4)  assessing management’s judgment over whether the
structured entities should be consolidated or not;

making enquiries of management if there have been any
changes to related contracts and internal documents
for structured entities established in previous years and
obtaining and reviewing these contracts and internal
documents on a sample basis to determine if the existing
accounting treatment of those structured entities brought
forward is still relevant;

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in relation to structured entities with reference

to the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
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Auditor’s Report

IV.

168

OTHER INFORMATION

The management of Holly Futures (the “Management”) is responsible for the other information. The other
information consists of the information included in the 2024 Annual Report of Holly Futures, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for the design, implementation and
maintenance of such internal control necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing Holly Futures’ ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate Holly Futures or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Holly Futures’ financial reporting process.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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VI. AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on Holly Futures’ ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause Holly Futures to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Annual Report 2024 169

SN 1hoqy

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

uoljeLwou| [eroueul



Auditor’s Report

VL

170

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within Holly Futures to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP Certified Public Accountants registered in the People’s
Republic of China: Shi Zhu (the engaging partner)

Certified Public Accountants registered in the People’s
Republic of China: Liu Yaxuan

Beijing, China 28 March 2025

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)
5
Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB g_
g
[tem Note 31-Dec-24 1-dan-24
Assets:
Monetary funds V.1 7,208,804,109.21 4,840,823,714.33
Including: Futures margin deposits 6,778,156,567.10 4,426,745,702.71 M
Currency deposits receivable V.2 2,848,560,087.28 3,354,606,892.26
Pledged deposits receivable V.3 288,138,600.00 79,613,312.00
Advance to customers V.4 3,537,846.38 26,718,486.91 o
Derivative financial assets V.5 11,556,875.02 5,212,428.02 '8
Settlement deposits receivable V.6 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 §
Trade receivables g
Other receivables V.7 12,644,472.25 32,744,189.68 g)
Financial assets held under resale agreements V.8 96,252,523.09 1,948,419.75 g_
Financial investment: g":
Financial assets held for trading V.9 280,696,608.62 434,686,764.24 8
Other debt investments V.10 8,824,536.85
Investments in other equity instruments V.11 29,736,228.88 1,853,110.00 L\
Inventories V.12 409,626,350.92 64,018,473.68
Long-term equity investment V.13 8,709,774.28 8,252,558.04
Investment properties V.14 48,467,078.00 48,573,122.00 @)
Fixed assets V.15 305,242,162.41 317,738,489.85 %
Work in progress 8
Right-of-use assets V.16 15,330,375.66 23,028,154.19 o
Intangible assets VA7 1,070,943.74 543,732.00 g)
Goodwil 3
Deferred tax assets V.18 18,349,584.85 21,001,079.72 3
Other assets V.19 83,821,463.44 31,719,217.22 §
Total assets 11,699,369,620.88 9,313,077,143.89 \
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[tem Note 31-Dec-24 1-dan-24

Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings V.20 29,018,850.00 49,782,862.90
Currency deposits payable V.21 8,812,672,179.43 6,779,281,113.85
Pledged deposits payable V.22 26,216,168.00 61,590,912.00
Financial liabilities held for trading V.23 7,912,762.09 61,534,340.24
Derivative financial liabilities V.5 9,859,658.01 14,064,892.26
Financial assets sold under agreements to repurchase V.24 4,298,255.52 56,687,229.99
Futures risk reserve V.25 176,746,725.35 169,222,360.19
Futures investors protection funds payable V.26 428,130.37 310,592.85
Employee benefits payable V.27 6,830,112.98 2,303,860.56
Taxes payable V.28 1,914,055.57 2,054,597.25
Trade payable
Bills payable V.29 237,954,486.22
Contract liabilities V.30 446,185.04
Other payables V.31 489,672,703.56 183,508,959.48
Long-term borrowings V.32 61,142,766.81
Lease liabilities V.33 15,674,410.80 283,653,164.97
Estimated liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities V.18 3,392,469.65
Other liabilities

Total liabilities 9,822,590,967.55 7,465,583,838.39

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital V.34 1,007,777,778.00 1,007,777,778.00
Other equity instruments
Incl.: Preference shares
Perpetual bond

Capital reserve V.35 598,402,999.72 598,402,999.72
Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income V.36 10,136,961.54 6,646,700.10
Surplus reserve V.37 73,898,392.18 71,425,437.16
General risk reserve V.38 99,777,969.55 97,305,014.53
Retained earnings V.39 86,784,552.34 65,935,375.99
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent
company 1,876,778,653.33 1,847,493,305.50
Minority interests
Total shareholders’equity = 1 ,876,778,65333 1,847,493,305.50
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 11,699,369,620.88 9,313,077,143.89
Legal Representative: Person in charge of accounting:  Person in charge of the accounting firm:
Chu Kairong Jia Fuhua Jia Fuhua
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Parent Company’s Balance Sheet

(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

>

o

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB g_

&
[tem Note 31-Dec-24 1-dan-24

Assets:

Monetary funds 6,644,441,081.40 4,245,495,946.24
Including: Futures margin deposits 6,582,900,937.63 4,200,559,202.31
Currency deposits receivable 2,575,458,199.38 3,070,565,462.38
Pledged deposits receivable 288,138,600.00 79,613,312.00

Advance to customers
Derivative financial assets

N—
H

Settlement deposits receivable 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 §
Trade receivables g
Other receivables 4,004,599.23 12,361,486.75 g)
Financial assets held under resale agreements 93,305,000.00 g_
Financial investment: g":

Financial assets held for trading 203,010,938.58 315,078,096.14 8

Other debt investments 8,824,536.85

Other equity instruments investment 29,273,208.88 1,400,000.00 L\
Inventories
Long-term equity investment XVI.A1 709,158,354.09 708,701,137.85
Investment properties 48,467,078.00 48,573,122.00 @)
Fixed assets 257,480,253.23 273,989,280.65 %
Work in progress 8
Right-of-use assets 13,972,589.65 20,077,051.70 ]
Intangible assets 515,319.74 g)
Goodwil 3
Deferred tax assets 3
Other assets 22,540,621.40 22,930,022.11 §

Total assets 10,918,590,380.43 8,818,784,917.82 \

uoljeLwou| [eroueul
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Parent Company’s

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet

31-Dec-24

Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings
Currency deposits payable
Pledged deposits payable

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

8,483,320,368.00
288,138,600.00

6,535,431,368.09
79,613,312.00

Share capital
Other equity instruments
Incl.: Preference shares
Perpetual bond

Capital reserve

Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income
Surplus reserve
General risk reserve
Retained earnings

1,007,777,778.00

592,000,959.53

-197,078.46
73,898,392.18
99,777,969.55

121,035,415.10

Financial assets sold under agreements to repurchase 4,298,255.52 52,106,000.53
Futures risk reserve 176,746,725.35 169,222,360.19
Futures investors protection funds payable 428,130.37 310,592.85
Employee benefits payable 5,754,827.97 1,715,882.76
Taxes payable 1,912,609.70 2,045,400.18
Trade Payable
Contract liabilities
Other payables 45,992,487.29 31,368,865.88
Long-term borrowings 50,860,140.05
Lease liabilities 14,312,470.68 20,667,289.56
Estimated liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities 3,392,469.65 1651630.41
Other liabilities

Total liabilities 9,024,296,944.53 6,944,992,842.50

Shareholders’ equity

1,007,777,778.00

592,000,959.53

71,425,437.16
97,305,014.53
105,282,886.10

Total shareholders’ equity

1,894,293,435.90

1,873,792,075.32

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

10,918,590,380.43

8,818,784,917.82
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Legal Representative:
Chu Kairong

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Person in charge of accounting:
Jia Fuhua

Person in charge of the accounting firm:

Jia Fuhua



Consolidated Income Statement

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

[tem

Iv.

Total income from operation
Net handling fee and commission income
Including: Net fee income from brokerage operations
Net fee income from asset management
business
Net interest income
Including: interest income
Interest expense
Investment gain (loss denoted by “-”)
Including: investment gains of associates and joint
ventures
Gain arising from derecognition of financial
assets measured at amortized cost (loss
denoted by “-”)
Other gains
Gains on change in fair value (loss denoted by “-”)
Exchange gains (loss denoted by “-”)
Income from other business activities
Asset disposal gain (loss denoted by “-”)

. Total operating expense

Futures risk reserve expenses

Taxes and surcharges

General and administrative expenses
Credit impairment loss

Other assets impairment loss

Other operating cost

Profit from operations (loss denoted by “-”)
Add: Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses
Total profit (loss denoted by “-”)
Less: Income tax expense

V. Net profit (loss denoted by “-”)

() Classification by continuity of operations
1. Net profit of operation on a going concern
basis (Net loss denoted by “-”)
2. Net profit from discontinued operations (Net
loss denoted by “-”)
(I Classification by ownership
1. Net income attributable to owners of the
parent company (Net loss denoted by “-”)
2. Minority profit or loss (Net loss denoted by “-”)

Note

V.40

V.41

V.42

V.43
V.44
V.45
V.46
V.47

V.48
V.49
V.50
V.51
V.52
V.53

V.54
V.55

V.56

2024
2,875,785,622.98
179,321,093.55
173,319,200.42

6,001,893.13
111,356,819.77
111,892,514.16
535,694.39
72,859,607.17

457,216.24

1,111,197.90
38,768,821.84
-308,589.19
2,472,717,013.03
-40,341.09
2,841,142,802.74
7,524,365.16
4,075,340.71
309,985,842.24
-492,840.97
11,376,949.55
2,508,673,146.05
34,642,820.24
4,819,988.70
1,173,856.66
38,288,952.28
8,462,754.78
29,826,197.50

29,826,197.50

29,826,197.50

(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Unit: RMB

2023

1,943,218,118.09
203,142,884.07
197,043,5670.14

6,099,313.93
101,599,422.92
102,847,251.36
1,247,828.44
-26,380,162.72

212.54

469,227.31
26,438,346.42
302,679.87
1,637,764,240.16
-118,5619.94
1,936,668,139.06
8,370,982.49
3,793,929.43
289,5601,592.55
555,340.22

1,634,446,294.37
6,549,979.03
4,318,407.08
396,333.90
10,472,052.21
2,680,555.90
7,791,496.31

7,791,496.31

7,791,496.31
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Consolidated Income Statement

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[tem Note 2024 2023
VI. Other comprehensive income, net of tax 3,490,261.44 2,377,900.01
Net comprehensive income after tax attributable to
owners of the parent company 3,490,261.44 2,377,900.01
(I) Other comprehensive income that cannot be
reclassified into profit or loss -212,705.52

1. Changes arising from re-measurement of
defined benefit plan
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot
be reclassified into profits/losses under the
equity method
3. Changes in fair value of other equity
instruments investment -212,705.52
4. Change in fair value of the Enterprise’s own
credit risk
5. Other
(I Other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified into profit or loss 3,702,966.96 2,377,900.01
1. Other comprehensive income that can be
reclassified into profit or loss under the equity
method -41.21
2. Change in fair value of other debt investments 15,627.06
3. Financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income
4. Credit impairment provisions for other debt
investments
5. Reserve for cash flow hedging
6. Translation difference of foreign currency
financial statements 3,687,339.90 2,377,941.22
7. Other
Post-tax net amount of other comprehensive income
attributable to minority shareholders

VIl.Total comprehensive income 33,316,458.94 10,169,396.32
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the parent company 33,316,458.94 10,169,396.32
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority
shareholders
Viil. Earnings per share:
(1) Basic earnings per share 0.0296 0.0077
(2) Diluted earnings per share 0.0296 0.0077
Legal Representative: Person in charge of accounting:  Person in charge of the accounting firm:
Chu Kairong Jia Fuhua Jia Fuhua
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Parent Company’s Income Statement

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

[tem

Total income from operation
Net handling fee and commission income
Including: Net fee income from brokerage operations
Net fee income from asset management
business
Net interest income
Including: interest income
Interest expense
Investment gain (loss denoted by “-”)
Including: investment gains of associates and joint
ventures
Gain arising from derecognition of financial
assets measured at amortized cost (loss
denoted by “-”)
Other gains
Gains on change in fair value (loss denoted by “-”)
Exchange gains (loss denoted by “-”)
Income from other business activities
Asset disposal gain (loss denoted by “-”)

. Total operating expense

Futures risk reserve expenses

Taxes and surcharges

General and administrative expenses

Credit impairment loss

Other assets impairment loss

Other operating cost

Profit from operations (loss denoted by “-”)
Add: Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses

. Total profit (loss denoted by “-”)

Less: Income tax expense

Net profit (loss denoted by “-”)

() Net profit of operation on a going concern basis
(Net loss denoted by “-”)

(I Net profit from discontinued operations (Net loss
denoted by “-”)

Note

XV1.2

XVI.3

XVI.4

XVI.5

(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Unit: RMB
2024 2023
303,773,403.72 278,555,287.14
159,726,012.00 176,178,890.39

150,484,221.72 167,888,252.81

6,086,679.88 6,592,688.10
92,175,143.96 90,812,031.85
92,710,838.35 92,059,860.29
535,694.39 1,247,828.44
30,926,143.13 -13,401,359.19
457,216.24 212.54
448,322.19 463,394.06
12,256,171.58 18,804,478.20
125,046.55 275,214.37
8,156,905.40 5,536,998.78
-40,341.09 -114,361.32
279,747,744.76 266,068,819.54
7,524,365.16 8,370,982.49
2,223,162.51 2,5676,313.38
264,132,861.93 251,967,069.67
-234,277.98 -3,965.43
6,101,633.14 3,158,419.43
24,025,658.96 12,486,467.60
3,096,875.84 4,084,611.88
586,452.59 396,333.90
26,536,082.21 16,174,745.58
1,806,532.06 4,207,079.27

24,729,550.15 11,967,666.31

24,729,550.15 11,967,666.31
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Parent Company’s Income Statement

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[tem

VI. Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(h Oth
recl
1.

B
(I Oth

recl

1.

7.

er comprehensive income that cannot be
assified into profits/losses

Changes arising from re-measurement of
defined benefit plan

Other comprehensive income that cannot
be reclassified into profits/losses under the
equity method

Changes in fair value of other equity
instruments investment

Change in fair value of the Enterprise’s own
credit risk

Other

er comprehensive income that will be
assified into profit or loss

Other comprehensive income that can be
reclassified into profit or loss under the equity
method

Change in fair value of other debt investments
Financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income

Credit impairment provisions for other debt
investments

Reserve for cash flow hedging

. Exchange rate differences of financial

statements denominated in foreign currency
Other

VIl.Total comprehensive income

Viil. Earnings per share:

(I) Basic earnings per share

() Dilu

ted earnings per share

Note

2024 2023
-197,078.46 -41.21
-212,705.52
-212,705.52

15,627.06 -41.21
-41.21
15,627.06

24,532,471.69 11,967,625.10

0.0245
0.0245

0.0119
0.0119

Legal Representative:

Chu Kairong
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Jia Fuhua

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Person in charge of accounting:

Person in charge of the accounting firm:
Jia Fuhua



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

[tem

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of
services
Cash received from interest, fees and commissions
Net decrease in currency deposits receivable and
pledged deposits receivable
Net increase in currency deposits payable and
pledged deposits payable
Net decrease from disposal of financial assets
relating to risk management business
Net decrease in restricted monetary funds
Net decrease in term deposits with original maturity
over three months
Cash received from other operating activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating
activities
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid for interest, fee and commissions
Net increase in currency deposits receivable and
pledged deposits receivable
Net decrease in currency deposits payable and
pledged deposits payable
Net decrease from disposal of financial assets
relating to risk management business
Net increase in restricted monetary funds
Cash paid to and for employees
Cash paid for general and administrative expenses
Payments of various taxes
Cash paid for other operating activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating
activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

Note

V.57

V.57

(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Unit: RMB

2024 2023

2,777,362,371.64
327,190,966.61

1,837,396,214.38
337,506,752.98

303,738,627.49

1,998,016,321.58

72,633,889.45

184,840,047.44

565,187,761.31

6,044,129,938.08
2,986,392,832.18

2,359,743,014.80
1,903,298,871.62

3,332,805.90 525,926.05
398,083,217.87

1,233,056,555.56

10,196,016.30

146,889,226.08 2,254,666.81
184,529,238.44 182,103,435.43
79,576,044.58 66,223,379.43
35,367,637.43 34,886,587.93
259,960,983.88 146,265,229.55
3,696,048,768.49 3,976,893,886.55

2,348,081,169.59 -1,617,150,871.75
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

ltem Note 2024 2023
Il. Cash flow from investing activities:
Cash received from disposal of investments 18,529,300,435.34 15,752,091,820.68
Cash received from investment income 9,110,889.75 17,352,106.29

Cash received from disposal of associates
Cash received from dividend distribution from
associates
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 54,204.81 129,494.46
Other cash received relating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing

activities 18,538,465,529.90 15,769,573,421.43

Cash paid for investment 18,484,314,150.08 15,619,177,984.80
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible

assets and other long-term assets 16,366,051.86 28,492,454 11

Cash paid for investment on associates
Other cash paid relating to investment activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing
activities 18,500,680,201.94 15,647,670,438.91
Net cash flow from investing activities 37,785,327.96 121,902,982.52
lll. Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash received from absorption of investments

Cash received from borrowings 66,060,000.00 79,509,286.82
Net cash received from sale and repurchase
operations 20,195,168.34

Other cash received relating to financing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing

activities 66,060,000.00 99,704,455.16
Cash paid for repayment of debts 147,779,250.00 57,745,054.82
Cash paid for distribution of dividend and profit or
repayment of interest 6,454,212.08 33,832,459.85
Cash paid for repayment of principal and interest of
lease liabilities 16,043,796.07 16,066,598.85
Net cash paid for sale and repurchase operations 52,924,924.38
Other cash paid relating to financial activities V.57 1,849,056.60
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing
activities 223,202,182.53 109,493,170.12
Net cash flow from financing activities -157,142,182.53 -9,788,714.96
IV. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on
cash and cash equivalents -4,708,313.08 1,035,545.34
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,224,016,001.94 -1,504,001,058.85
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 4,812,444,833.69 6,316,445,892.54
VI. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents V.57 7,036,460,835.63 4,812,444,833.69
Legal Representative: Person in charge of accounting: Person in charge of the accounting firm:
Chu Kairong Jia Fuhua Jia Fuhua
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Parent Company’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

[tem

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of
services
Cash received from interest, fees and commissions
Net decrease in currency deposits receivable and
pledged deposits receivable
Net increase in currency deposits payable and
pledged deposits payable
Net decrease in restricted monetary funds
Net decrease in term deposits with original maturity
over three months
Cash received from other operating activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating
activities
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid for interest, fee and commissions
Net increase in currency deposits receivable and
pledged deposits receivable
Net decrease in currency deposits payable and
pledged deposits payable
Net decrease from disposal of financial assets
relating to risk management business
Net increase in restricted monetary funds
Cash paid to and for employees
Cash paid for general and administrative expenses
Payments of various taxes
Cash paid for other operating activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating
activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

Note

(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Unit: RMB

2024 2023

290,388,195.52 302,927,303.23
286,581,975.00

2,156,414,287.91

58,840,593.05 50,941,203.09
2,792,225,051.48 353,868,506.32
979,109.11 525,926.05

182,592,888.09

1,643,152,605.76

3,080,489.26
160,098,244.67

13,601,577.92
162,113,251.37

63,468,614.49 57,881,160.83
30,545,802.62 24,621,570.23
27,707,497.29 49,363,182.76
298,505,852.80 2,121,316,067.65

2,493,719,198.68 -1,767,447,561.33

Annual Report 2024 181

sM noqy

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

uoljeLwou| [eroueul



Parent Company’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

[tem

Il. Cash flow from investing activities:
Cash received from disposal of investments
Cash received from investment income
Cash received from disposal of associates
Cash received from dividend distribution from
associates
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Other cash received relating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing
activities
Cash paid for investment
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and
other business units
Other cash paid relating to investment activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing
activities
Net cash flow from investing activities
lll. Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash received from absorption of investments
Cash received from borrowings
Net cash received from sale and repurchase
operations
Other cash received relating to financing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing
activities
Cash paid for repayment of debts
Cash paid for distribution of dividend and profit or
repayment of interest
Cash paid for repayment of principal and interest of
lease liabilities
Net cash paid for sale and repurchase operations
Other cash paid relating to financial activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing
activities
Net cash flow from financing activities
IV. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on
cash and cash equivalents
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents
VI. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

2024

18,499,555,976.79
30,839,969.78

13,059.09

18,530,409,005.66

18,504,424,165.83

10,439,699.44

18,514,863,865.27
15,545,140.39

50,716,328.00

6,278,392.72

14,434,015.94
47,808,000.53

119,236,737.19
-119,236,737.19

125,046.55
2,390,152,648.43
4,217,117,065.60
6,607,269,714.03

2023

15,736,343,429.88
9,129,432.10

129,494.46

15,745,602,356.44

15,620,997,277.44

28,176,969.64

100,000,000.00

15,749,174,247.08
-3,571,890.64

20,870,779.96

20,870,779.96

23,407,536.00

33,378,935.23

14,832,782.19

1,849,056.60

73,468,310.02
-562,5697,5630.06

275,214.37
-1,823,341,767.66
6,040,458,833.26
4,217,117,065.60

Legal Representative:
Chu Kairong Jia Fuhua

182 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Person in charge of accounting:

Person in charge of the accounting firm:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity

(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

Share Capital

capital reserve

I Ending balance of last year 1,007,777,778.00  598,402,999.72
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous error
Business combination under common control
Other
. Opening balance of the current year

1,007,777,778.00  598,402,999.72

Increase/decrease of the current period
(loss denoted by “) - -
() Total comprehensive income:
(1) Owners' capital injected and reduced - -
1, Ordinary shares invested by owners
2. Capital invested by holders of other equity
nstruments
3, Amounts of share-based payments
Included in owners' equity -
4.Other
() Profit istribution - -
1, Withcrawal of surplus reserve
2. Witharawal of general isk provisions
3. Distrloution to owners
4.Other
(MInternal carryover of owners' equity - -
1. Transfer of capttal reserves into paic-in
capital (or share capftal)
2. Transfer of surplus reserves into paid-in
capital (or share capftal)
3. Surplus reserves for making up losses
4, Cany-Forward of Retained Eamings by
Changes in Defined Beneft Plan
5. Other comprehensive income transferred
o retained eamings
6. Other
(V) Others
IV. Ending balance of the current period

1,007,777,778.00  598,402,999.72

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Other

Less: Treasury  comprehensive

shares income

- 6,646,700.10

- 6,646,700.10

- 3,490,261.44
3,490,261.44

- 10,136,961.54

Surplus
reserves

71,425,437.16

71,425,437.16

2472,955.02

2472,955.02
2472,955.02

13,898,302.18

General risk
reserve

97,305,014.53

97,305,014.53

2,472,955.02

2,472,955.02

2,472,955.02

99,777,969.55

Retained
eamings

65,035,375.99

65,035,375.99

20,849,176.35
29,826,197.50

-8,077,021.15
-2472,955.02
-2472,955.02
-4,031,111.11

86,784,552.34

Minority ~ Total owners’
interests equity

1,847,493,306.50

1,847,493,306.50

20,285,347.83
33,316,468.94

4,031,141

-4,031,111.41

1,876,778,653.33
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Share Capital

capital reserve

Equity attributable to owners of the parent company

Other
Less: Treastry  comprehensive Surplus
shares income reserves

I Closing balance in the last year 1,007,777,77800  598,402,999.72

Add: Changes in accounting policies

Correction of previous eror
Business combination under common
control

QOther
Il. Opening balance in the current year ~ 1,007,777,778.00  598,402,999.72
Il

Increase/decrease of the current period
(loss denoted by “-”) - -
() Total comprehensive income
(I Owners' capital injected and reduced - -
1.Ordinary shares invested by owners
2.Capital invested by holders of other
equity instruments
3. Amounts of share-based payments
included in owners' equity -
4.Other
() Proft distribution - -
1.Witharawal of surplus reserve
2. Withcrawal of general risk provisions
3. Distrioution to owners
4.0ther
(M)interal carryover of owners' equity - -
1. Transfer of capital reserves into paic-in
capital (or share capital)
2. Transfer of surplus reserves into paid-
n capital (or share capital)
3.Surplus reserves for making up losses
4.Carry-Forward of Retained Earnings by
Changes in Defined Benefit Plan
5.0ther comprehensive income
transferred to retained eamings
6.0ther
(V) Others
IV. Closing balance in the current period  1,007,777,778.00  598,402,999.72

- 426880009  70,228,670.53

- 426880009  70,228,670.53

2,377,900.01 1,196,766.63
2,377,900.01

1,196,766.63
1,196,766.63

- 664670010  71425437.16

General risk Retained Minority -~ Total owners’
reserve eamings CES equity
9610824790 60,637,412.94 1,837,323,909.18
9610824790 60,637,412.94 1,837,323,909.18
1,196,766.63  5,397,963.05 10,169,396.32
7,791,496.31 10,169,396.32

1,196,766.63  -2,393,533.26 =
-1,196,766.63 =
1,196,766.63  -1,196,766.63 =

9730501453 65,935,375.99 1,847,493,305.50

Legal Representative: Person in charge of accounting:

Chu Kairong Jia Fuhua

184 Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

Person in charge of the accounting firm:

Jia Fuhua



Statement of Changes in owners’ Equity of the Parent Company

(Al amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

Prepared by: Holly Futures Co., Ltd.

I Closing balance in the last year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous eror
Others
Il. Opening balance of the current year
IIl. Increase/decrease in the current
period (loss denoted by “-”)
() Total comprehensive income
(I Owners' capital injected and reduced
1.Ordinary shares invested by owners
2.Capital invested by holders of other
equity instruments
3. Amounts of share-based payments
included in owners' equity
4.0thesr
() Proft distribution
1.Witharawal of surplus reserve
2. Withdrawal of general risk
provisions
3. Distribution to owners
4.0thers
(V) Internal carryover of owners' equity
1. Transfer of capital reserves into
paic-in capital (or share capital)
2. Transfer of surplus reserves into
paic-in capital (or share capital)
3.Surplus reserves for making up
osses
4.Carry-Forward of Retained Eamings
by Changes in Defined Benefit Plan
5.0ther comprehensive income
transferred to retained eamings
6.0thers
(V) Others
IV. Closing balance in the current period

Share
capital

1,007,777,778.00

1,007,777,778.00

1,007,777,778.00

Capital

reserve

592,000,959.53

592,000,959.53

592,000,959.53

Other
Less: Treasury ~ comprehensive Surplus
shares income reserves
- - 71,425,437.16
- - 71,425,437.16
- -197,078.46 2,472,955.02
-197,078.46
2,472,955.02
2,472,955.02
- -197,078.46 73,898,392.18

General risk Retained
reserve eamings
97,305,014.53 105,282,886.10
97,305,014.53 105,282,886.10
2,472,955.02 15,752,529.00
24,729,550.15

2,472,955.02 -8,977,021.15
-2,412,955.02

2,472,955.02 -2,412,955.02
-4,081,111.11

99,777,969.55 121,035,415.10

Unit: RMB

Total owners’
equity
1,873,792,075.32

1,873,792,075.32

20,501,360.58
24,532,471.69

-4,031,111.11

-4,031,111.11

1,894,293 435.90
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Statement of Changes in owners’ Equity of the Parent Company

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated)

I Closing balance in the last year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous error
QOther
Il. Opening balance of the current year
.

Increase/decrease of the current period (loss
denoted by “-")
() Total comprehensive income
(1) Owners' capital injected and reduced
1.Ordinary shares invested by owners
2.Capital invested by holders of other equity
instruments
3. Amounts of share-based payments included in
owners' equity
4.0ther
() Profit distribution
1. Withdrawal of surplus reserve
2.Witharawal of general risk provisions
3.Distribution to owners
4.0ther
(V) Internal carryover of owners' equity
1. Transfer of capital reserves into paic-in capital
(or share capital)
2.Tranfer of surplus reserves into paid-in capital
(or share capital)
3.Surplus reserves for making up losses
4.Carry-Forward of Retained Earmings by
Changes in Defined Benefit Plan
5.0ther comprehensive income transferred to
retained eamings
6.Other
(V) Others
IV. Closing balance in the current period

Share capital

1,007,777,778.00

1,007,777,778.00

1,007,777,778.00

Capital reserve

52,000,959.63

52,000,959.63

592,000,959.63

QOther
Less: Treasury ~ comprehensive

shares income

= 421

Surplus
resenves

70,228,670.53

70,228,670.53

1,196,766.63

1,196,766.63
1,196,766.63

71,425,437.16

General risk
resenve

96,108,247.90

96,108,247.90

1,196,766.63

1,196,766.63

1,196,766.63

97,305,014.53

Retained
eamings

95,708,753.06

95,708,753.06

9,574,133.06
11,967,666.31

-2,393,033.26
-1,196,766.63
-1,196,766.63

105,282,886.10

Total owners’
equity
1,861,824,450.22

1,861,824,450.22

11,967,626.10
11,967,626.10

1,873,792,075.32

Legal Representative:
Chu Kairong
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

General Information of the Company

Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a joint stock company
with limited liability with registered address at Building 3, No. 399 Jiang Dong Zhong Road, Jianye District,
Nanjing City. The Company has a registered capital of RMB1,007,777,778.00 and legal representative of Chu
Kairong. The Company’s unified social credit code is 91320000100022362N, and its futures business permit
number is 30870000. The Company’s predecessor was Jiangsu Jinling Futures Brokerage Company Limited
(IESEEE& L AR AR, a company established in July 1995.

On 31 December 2015, the overseas issued shares of the Company became listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On 5 August 2022, the Company issued RMB ordinary A shares, which have
been listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

The Company is headquartered in Nanjing. As of 31 December 2024, the Company had a total of 5 sub-
branches and 33 branches in the PRC.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (/T &k
BRI EE B R A F)), a company registered in the PRC.

The Company operates in the futures industry and is principally engaged in commodity futures brokerage,
financial futures brokerage, futures investment consulting, asset management and fund sales.

This financial report was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 28 March 2025. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association of the Company, the financial statements will be submitted to the general meeting
for consideration.

Basis for Preparation of the Financial Statements
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the transactions and events actually occurred in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance and its
application guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions (collectively, the “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises”), as well as the Information Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies Offering
Securities to the Public No. 15 — General Provisions on Financial Reporting (2023 Revision) issued by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) and the relevant disclosures required by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Going concern

The Group has performed an assessment on the going concern ability within the 12 months since 31
December 2024 and has not identified any event and condition causing material doubt about the going
concern ability. These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

188

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

Specific accounting policies and accounting estimates indication: accounting policies and accounting estimates
determined by the Group according to characteristics of actual operation including business combination
(Notes .6 and 7), financial instruments (Note IIl.15), depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of intangible
assets (Notes .19 and 20), revenue recognition and measurement (Note 11.25), fair value measurement (Note
111.30), etc.

Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

These financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, which reflect
the financial position as at 31 December 2024, results of operation and cash flow for the year 2024 of the
Company and the Group truly, accurately and completely.

Accounting year

The accounting period of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December of each calendar year.

Operation cycle

The Group adopts 12 months as an operating cycle, which commences on 1 January and ends on 31
December.

Functional currency

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and the financial statements are presented in Renminbi.
Functional currency is determined by the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group on the basis of the
currency in which major income and costs are denominated and settled. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries
have functional currencies that are different from the Company’s functional currency. In the preparation of
these financial statements, their financial statements in foreign currency have been translated based on the
accounting policy set out in Note III.10.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

lll. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

(1)

(Continued)
The determination methods and selection basis of materiality standards

The Group adheres to the principle of materiality in the preparation and disclosure of its financial statements.
The matters disclosed in the notes to these financial statements that involve the judgment of materiality
standards and their determination methods and selection basis are as follows:

Location of the

disclosure of such

Matters disclosed that matter in the notes
involve judgements of to these financial Determination methods and selection
materiality standards statements basis of materiality standards
Significant receivables after a V.7 Amount exceeding RMB10 million
single bad debt provision
Significant Investment V.57 The Company determines cash flows from
Activities investing activities where the individual amount

exceeds 5% of the total assets as material cash
flows from investing activities

Material contingent matters/ Xill, XIV, XV Amounts exceeding RMB10 million and
subsequent matters/other accounting for more than 10% of the absolute
material matters value of the most recent audited net assets of

the listed company

Accounting methods for business combination under common control and
not under common control

Business combination under common control

A business combination involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the
combination, and that control is not transitory.

The assets and liabilities acquired by the Group, as the combining party, from the business combination
under common control should be measured based on the book value in the ultimate controller’s consolidated
statements of the combined party on the combination date. The difference between the book value of the net
assets acquired and that of the paid combination consideration shall be used to adjust the capital surplus.
Where the capital surplus is insufficient for offset, retained earnings shall be adjusted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

@)

190

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Accounting methods for business combination under common control and
not under common control (Continued)

Business combination not under common control

A business combination not involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after
the combination.

The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired by the Group as the purchaser from the
acquiree in the business combination not under common control are measured at fair value on the acquisition
date. Positive balance between the combination cost and the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
acquiree obtained by the Group on the acquisition date shall be recognized as goodwill; If the combination
cost is less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree obtained, the fair value of
various identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities obtained in the business combination and the
combination cost shall be re-checked first. If the rechecked combination cost is still less than the fair value
of identifiable net assets of the acquiree obtained, the balance shall be included in current non-operating
revenue.

Judgment criteria for control and preparation method of the consolidated
financial statements

The scope of the Group’s consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consolidated financial
statements cover the Company and all of its subsidiaries (including structured entities controlled by the
business, etc.). The criterion for the Group to judge a control exists is that the Group has power over the
investee; and has exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee’s activities and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the Company makes
necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based on the Company’s accounting
policies in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The impact of internal transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries and among the subsidiaries
on the consolidated financial statements is eliminated on consolidation. The share of the owner’s equity of
subsidiaries not attributable to the parent company and the current net profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and the share of the total comprehensive income attributable to the minority interests shall be listed
as “minority interests”, “profit and loss of minority shareholders”, “other comprehensive income attributable
to minority shareholders” and “total comprehensive income attributable to minority shareholders” in the

consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



10.
(1)

Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Classification of joint arrangements and accounting treatment method for
joint operations

The Group’s joint arrangements include joint operations and joint ventures. Joint operations refer to the
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint venture arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.

For joint operations, the Group, as the joint operator of the joint operations, recognises assets and liabilities
solely held and liabilities assumed by the Group, recognises assets and liabilities jointly owned proportionally,
and recognises income and expenses solely or proportionally based on the related agreements. When the
Company incurs asset transactions of purchase and sales not constituting to business transactions, the
Company only recognises the portion of profit or loss generated due to the transaction attributable to other
parties of the joint operations.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash shown in the cash flow statement of the Group refers to both cash on hand and the deposit held in bank
available for payment at any time. Cash equivalent in the cash flow statement are held less than 3 months,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of value change.

Foreign currency transactions and foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions of the Group are initially recorded using the spot exchange rate on the
transaction date to convert the foreign currency amount into the functional currency amount. Monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currencies at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to profit or loss, except when they are attributable to the
foreign currency borrowings that are specifically for the purpose of acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets and are accordingly capitalized.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

10.
@)

11.

12.
(1)

)

192

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Foreign currency transactions and foreign currency translation (Continued)
Translation of financial statements denominated in foreign currency

Financial statements of foreign operations are translated into RMB for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements. Assets and liabilities items in the balance sheet denominated in foreign currency are translated at
the spot exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. The owners’ equity items, except for the “retained
earnings”, are translated at the spot exchange rate when business occurs. Income and expenses items in
the income statement are translated at the spot exchange rates or an exchange rate that approximates the
spot exchange rates on the transaction dates. The translation differences arising from the above translation in
statements denominated in foreign currency are presented in other comprehensive income item. Cash flows
dominated in foreign currency are translated using the weighted average exchange rate at the date when the
cash flow occurs. Effects on cash arising from the change of exchange rate are presented separately in the
cash flow statement.

Branch capital management and transaction clearing principles

The capital of branches of the Company is allocated by the headquarters, and the transactions with branch
customers are settled at the headquarters. The branches shall carry out confirmation of settlement orders with
customers as required.

Customer futures deposits
Classification of customer futures deposits

The Company’s customer futures deposits include currency deposits and pledged deposits. Currency
deposits are the future deposits in the form of currency received by the Company for execution of transactions
on behalf of customers. Pledged deposits are the negotiable securities received by the Company for execution
of transactions on behalf of customers, which are used to offset the futures deposits.

Customer futures deposits management

The Company’s customer futures deposits are managed in a way that they are deposited in and transferred to
designated accounts, operate independently, and are strictly separated from the own funds of the Company.

The Company establishes separate records for customer futures deposits and conducts daily settlement
without liabilities. It settles the gains or losses on customers’ futures transactions according to the daily mark-
to-market system, and calculates transaction fees based on the fee rate agreed with customers and daily
trading volume (or trading value) of customers.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



12.
3
7)

2)

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Customer futures deposits (Continued)
Accounting for customer futures deposits
Customer currency deposits

When the Company accepts customer orders, receives and deposits currency deposits into designated
bank accounts, the Company recognises them as Monetary funds and currency deposits payable. When the
Company accepts customer orders and carries out futures transactions, the Company recognises currency
deposits receivable determined by futures exchanges and reduces Monetary funds accordingly. In clearing
with customers, if customers’ futures contracts on that day are profitable, the Company increases currency
deposits receivable and currency deposits payable after deducting the commissions to be charged to
customers based on the amount of profit stated in the settlement documents issued by futures settlement
institutions. If customers’ futures contracts on that day are making loss, the Company reduces currency
deposits receivable and currency deposits payable after adding the commissions to be charged to customers
based on the amount of loss stated in the settlement documents issued by futures settlement institutions.

Pledged deposits of customers

When the Company submits negotiable securities on behalf of customers to futures exchanges as deposits,
it recognises pledged deposits receivable and pledged deposits payable based on the amount of deposits
confirmed by futures exchanges. When the Company carries out transactions on behalf of customers
through futures exchanges, the accounting treatment is the same as that for customer currency deposits. In
case of changes in the value of negotiable securities, futures exchanges will adjust the confirmed deposits
amount, and the Company will increase or reduce pledged deposits receivable and pledged deposits payable
accordingly. When futures exchanges return negotiable securities to customers, the Company reduces
pledged deposits receivable and pledged deposits payable based on the deposits amount confirmed by the
futures exchanges.

Collateral management

The Company accepts standard warehouse receipts registered with exchanges as collaterals. The
Company timely completes pledge procedures for collaterals provided by customers in accordance with the
requirements of futures exchanges. If a customer incurs loss and fails to meet margin call in a timely manner,
the Company will compulsorily liquidate its position as agreed and dispose of the collateral in accordance with
the law. The proceeds from collateral disposal will be utilised to compensate for the loss, and any remaining
amount will be returned to customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

14.

15.
(1)

194

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Accounting for physical settlement

Upon expiry of futures contracts, the Company carries out physical settlement in accordance with the rules
and procedures set by each futures exchange and conducts accounting based on the incurred amount of
purchase settlement and sale settlement.

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when it becomes a party to a financial instrument
contract.

A financial asset (or part of a financial asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized, that
is to be written off from its accounts and balance sheet, when the following conditions are met: 1) the rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired; 2) the rights to receive the cash flows from the
financial asset have been transferred or an obligation to pay the collected cash flows in full and on a timely
basis to third parties has been assumed under a “pass-through agreement; and either substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset have been transferred or, although neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, control over the financial
asset has been relinquished.

A financial liability is derecognized if the obligation under the financial liability has been fulfilled, cancelled or
expired. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same creditor on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified in its entirety, such replacement or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, with the
difference being recognized in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized using the trade date
accounting.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

lll. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

15.

@)

7)

2

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified at initial recognition as financial assets measured at amortized cost,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) based on the business model in which the financial assets are managed and
their contractual cash flow characteristics. All affected financial assets are reclassified when, and only if, the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial recognition, except for accounts receivable or notes
receivable arising from the sale of goods or provision of services, etc., which do not contain significant
financing components or do not take into account financing components that have been in existence for not
more than one year, which are initially measured at the transaction price.

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, any related directly attributable transaction costs are
charged profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets, any related directly attributable transaction costs
are included in their initial costs.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets is determined by their classification:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets that meet both of the following conditions are classified as financial assets at amortized cost:
@ the purpose of the business model for managing the financial assets is to receive contractual cash flows;
@ the contractual terms of the financial assets stipulate that the cash flows generated on specific dates
are only for payment of the principal and the interest based on the amount of principal outstanding. The
Group’s financial assets in this category mainly include: Monetary funds, currency deposits receivable, trade
receivables other receivables, financial assets held under resale agreements, pledged deposits receivable,
financing capital, settlement deposits receivable.

Investments in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are classified as financial assets at FVOCI: @ the purpose of
the business model for managing the financial assets is to receive contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets; @ the contractual terms of the financial assets stipulate that the cash flows generated on specific dates
are only for payment of the principal and the interest based on the amount of principal outstanding. Interest
income is recognized using the effective interest method for such financial assets. Except for interest income,
impairment losses and exchange difference which are recognized in profit or loss for the current period,
the remaining changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income. When a financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred
out of other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss for the current period. The Group’s financial
assets in this category mainly include: trade receivables financing, other debt investments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

15.

@)
3)

4)

)

7)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group has irrevocably elected to designate certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, and the designation, once made,
cannot be revoked. The Group recognizes only the related dividend income (except for dividend income that
is explicitly recognized as part of the cost of the investment being recovered) in profit or loss for the current
period. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and no provision
for impairment is required. When a financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred out of other comprehensive income and recognized
in retained earnings. The Group’s financial assets in this category mainly include: investment in other equity
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets other than those classified as financial assets at amortized cost and those classified or
designated as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income as described above are
classified by the Group as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets in this category
are subsequently measured at fair value, and all changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss for the
current period. The Group’s financial assets in this category mainly include: financial assets held for trading,
derivative financial assets.

Classification, recognition basis and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as: financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortized cost. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
any related directly attributable transaction costs are charged to profit or loss, and for financial liabilities at
amortized cost, any related directly attributable transaction costs are included in their initial costs.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is determined by their classification:

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification, recognition basis and measurement of financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including derivatives which fall under financial liabilities)
include financial liabilities held for trading and those designated on initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives which fall under financial liabilities)
are subsequently measured at fair value, with all changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with all
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss, except for changes in fair value attributable to changes in the
Group’s own credit risk, which are recognized in other comprehensive income; If recognition of changes in fair
value attributable to changes in the Group’s own credit risk in other comprehensive income would cause or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Group recognizes all changes in fair value, including the
amount of the effect of changes in its own credit risk, in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial instruments

On the basis of expected credit losses, the Group performs the impairment treatment and recognizes the
provision for impairment losses on financial assets.

Expected credit loss is a weighted average of credit losses on financial instruments weighted at the risk of
default. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). The following elements are reflected in the Group’s consideration of method of measuring expected
credit loss: @ an unbiased probability-weighted average amount determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes; @ the time value of money; @ reasonable and reliable information about past events, current
conditions and projected future economic conditions that can be obtained at the balance sheet date without
unnecessary additional costs.

The Group assesses the expected credit losses of financial instruments on an individual basis and a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the Group categorizes financial instruments into
different groups based on shared credit risk characteristics. The shared credit risk characteristics adopted by the
Group include: type of financial instruments, credit risk ratings, past due status, ageing of receivables, etc.

The Group’s assessment of the impairment of financial instruments using the expected credit loss model
requires making significant judgments and estimates, taking into account all reasonable and reliable
information, including forward-looking information. In making these judgments and estimates, the Group
extrapolates expected changes in the debtor’s credit risk based on historical repayment data combined
with industry risk and other factors. The different estimates may impact the impairment assessment, and the
provision for impairment may also not be representative of the actual impairment loss in the future.
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(4)
)

198

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises provisions based on expected credit losses for financial assets measured at amortised
cost and investments in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group recognizes expected credit losses by calculating the probability-weighted amount of the present
value of the difference between the cash flows receivable under a contract and the cash flows expected to
be received, taking into account reasonable and reliable information about past events, current conditions,
projected future economic conditions and others, weighted by the risk of default.

At each balance sheet date, the Group measures expected credit losses separately for financial instruments
in different stages. For financial instruments with no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
which are at stage 1, the Group measures the loss allowances on the basis of expected credit loss in the next
12 months; For financial instruments with a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, but not
yet impaired, which are at stage 2, the Group measures the loss allowances on the basis of expected credit
loss for lifetime of the instrument; For financial instruments that have been impaired since initial recognition,
which are at stage 3, the Group measures the loss allowances on the basis of expected credit loss for lifetime
of the instrument.

For financial instruments with lower credit risk at the balance sheet date, the Group measures the loss
allowances on the basis of expected credit losses in the next 12 months, assuming that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group calculates interest income on financial instruments at stages 1 and stage 2 and with lower credit
risk, based on their carrying amounts before provision for impairment and effective interest rates. For financial
instruments at stage 3, interest income is calculated on the basis of the amortized cost with provision for
impairment deducted from their carrying amount and effective interest rate.

Expected credit losses are remeasured at each balance sheet date to reflect changes in the financial

instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition, and the increase or reversal of the loss provision resulting
therefrom is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

lll. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

SN 1hoqy

15. Financial instruments (Continued)
(4) Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
2) Impairment of accounts receivable

For account receivables from basis trading business, whether it contains significant financing components, the
Group always adopts the simplified approach and measures its loss provisions in accordance with the amount
of expected credit losses for the full lifetime period, and the increase or reversal of the loss provision resulting
therefrom is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

For expected credit losses measured on portfolio basis, the proportion of loss provision for the expected
credit losses is estimated based on the portfolio of ageing credit risk characteristics.

The basis to determine the portfolio

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

The portfolio of risk Grouped by ageing of accounts receivable of various natures asa
credit risk

Accrual method for provision for

bad debts by portfolio

The portfolio of risk Taking into account various natures of amounts and with reference
to historical credit loss experience, current situation and forecasts
of future economic conditions, compiling the comparison table
between aging and lifetime expected credit loss rates, to calculate
the expected credit loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
Grouping of other receivables and basis of determination

For other receivables, the Group is unable to obtain sufficient evidence of significant increase in credit risk at a
reasonable cost at the level of individual instruments, and it is feasible to assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk on a portfolio basis. Therefore, the Group groups other receivables according to the
type of financial instruments, credit risk ratings, dates of initial recognition, and remaining contractual maturity as
the shared risk characteristics and considers and assesses whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
on a portfolio basis.

To measure expected credit losses on a portfolio basis, the Group estimates the provision ratio of credit
losses in accordance with the corresponding ageing credit risk characteristics portfolio.

Basis for determining the portfolio

Risk Portfolio Grouped by ageing of other receivables of various natures as a
credit risk characteristic

Provision for bad debts by portfolio

Risk Portfolio Taking into account various natures of amounts and with reference
to historical credit loss experience, current situation and forecasts
of future economic conditions, compiling the comparison table
between aging and lifetime expected credit loss rates, to calculate
the expected credit loss.

The Group groups other receivables categorized into risk portfolios based on similar credit risk characteristics
(aging) and on all reasonable and reliable information, including forward-looking information.

Other receivables arising from non-operating, low-risk businesses are individually impaired based on the
nature of the business.

For other receivables with collateralized pledges, the original value less the recoverable value of the collateral is
used as an risk exposure to estimate credit losses.
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(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Basis of Recognition and Measurement of Transfers of Financial Assets

For a transaction involving the transfer of a financial asset, if substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset has been transferred, the Group derecognizes the financial asset; if it has
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset will not
be derecognized; if it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, but control over the financial asset has been waived, the Group would derecognize the
financial asset and recognize the resulting assets and liabilities; where control over the financial asset has not
been waived, the Group would recognize the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
transferred financial asset and recognize the related liability accordingly.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset transferred at the date of derecognition and the sum of the
consideration received from the transfer and, any cumulative changes of fair value that have been recognized
directly in other comprehensive income for the part derecognized is recognized in profit or loss for the current
period (the financial asset transferred meets the following conditions: M the purpose of the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets is to receive contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets; @
the contractual terms of the financial assets stipulate that the cash flows generated on specific dates are only
for payment of the principal and the interest based on the amount of principal outstanding).

Where a partial transfer of a financial asset meets the criteria for derecognition, the overall carrying amount
of the financial asset transferred is allocated between the derecognized portion and the non-derecognized
portion in accordance with their respective relative fair values, and the difference between the sum of the
consideration received from the transfer and any cumulative changes of fair value that have been recognized
directly in other comprehensive income for the part derecognized which shall be allocated to the derecognized
portion and the apportioned overall carrying amount of the aforementioned financial assets is recognized in
profit or loss for the current period.

When a continuing involvement is recognized by means of a financial guarantee over the transferred financial
assets, assets resulting from the continuing involvement are recognized at the lower of the carrying amount
of the financial assets and the amount of the financial guarantee. The amount of the financial guarantee is the
maximum amount of consideration received that will be required to be repaid.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently measured at their fair value. Derivative financial instruments with a positive fair value
are recognized as an asset and those with a negative fair value are recognized as a liability.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized directly in profit or loss for
the period.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately by the Group in the balance sheet, and are
not offset. However, a financial asset and a financial liability are offset, and the net amount is presented in
the balance sheet when both of the following conditions are satisfied: @ the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; @ the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the financial asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously.

Inventory

The Group’s inventories mainly include spot commodities.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories comprises costs of purchase, processing cost
and other costs. Inventories are maintained on a perpetual basis. The actual cost of inventories is determined
using the first-in first-out method when the inventories are claimed or issued.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable value of the inventory held to satisfy sales or service
contracts is measured based on the contract price, and the excess portion of inventories is measured based
on general selling prices, to the extent of the quantities specified in sales contracts. Any excess of the cost
over the net realisable value of each item of inventories is recognised as a provision for obsolete inventories,
and is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
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@)

(Continued)
Long-term equity investments

The Group’s long-term equity investments include investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates and
equity investments in joint ventures.

Judgement on significant influence, common control

The Group’s judgment on common control is based on the fact that all participants or groups of participants
collectively control the arrangement and the policies for the activities related to the arrangement must be
agreed upon by those participants who collectively control the arrangement.

The Group is generally considered to have significant influence over an investee when it owns, directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, more than 20% but less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights. If the Group
owns less than 20% of the investee’s voting rights, the Group’s significant influence over the investee should
be determined by taking into account the facts and circumstances, such as representation on the investee’s
board of directors or similarly empowered body, participation in the investee’s financial and operating policy
making process, significant transactions with the investee, dispatch of management personnel to the investee,
or provision of critical technical information to the investee.

Accounting method

The Group initially measures long-term equity investments acquired at initial investment cost.

The initial investment cost of long-term equity investment acquired through business combination involving
entities under common control is the share of the carrying amount of the net assets of the party to be
combined at the combination date in the consolidated statements of the ultimate controlling party; where the
carrying amount of the net assets of the party to be combined at the combination date is negative, the initial
investment cost is determined as nil.

The initial investment cost of long-term equity investment acquired through business combination involving
entities not under common control is the combination cost, which includes the sum of the fair value of assets
paid, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by the purchaser.

The initial investment cost of long-term equity investments acquired other than through business combination
is the purchase price actually paid and the fees, taxes and other necessary expenditures directly related to the
acquisition of the long-term equity investments. For long-term equity investments acquired through issue of
equity securities, the fair value of the equity securities issued is treated as their investment cost.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Long-term equity investments (Continued)
Accounting method (Continued)

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are accounted for under the cost method in the separate financial
statements. Under the cost method, long-term equity investments are carried at initial investment cost. When
additional investments are made, the carrying value of the cost of long-term equity investments is increased
by the fair value of costs paid for the additional investment and related transaction costs incurred. Cash
dividends or profits declared by the investee are recognized as investment income in the amount to which
they are attributable.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under
the equity method, if the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment is greater than the share of fair
value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of investment, no adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment; if the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment is
less than the share of fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of investment, the difference is
adjusted to the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment and included in profit or loss for the period
in which the investment is acquired.

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method for subsequent measurement,
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment is increased or decreased in accordance with the
owners’ equity changes of the investee during the period in which the investment is held. In recognizing the
share of net profit or loss of the investee, the fair value of each identifiable asset of the investee at the time of
investment acquisition is used as the basis for calculating the portion attributable to the Group in proportion
with unrealized internal transaction gains and losses arising from transactions with associates and joint
ventures that do not constitute a business being offset, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies
and accounting period (recognize in full if the internal transaction losses falls into impaired losses of assets),
adjustment to net profit of the investee is made before recognition. The Group recognizes net losses incurred
by the investee to the extent that the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment and other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the investee are written down to zero,
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation to assume additional losses.

The difference between the carrying value and the actual acquisition price of the long-term equity investments
disposed of is recognized as investment income for the current period.

If a long-term equity investment accounted for by the equity method is included in the owners’ equity due to
changes in owners’ equity of the investee other than net profit or loss, the portion of the investment that was
previously included in owners’ equity is transferred to the investment income or loss for the current period in
proportion on disposal of the investment.
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17.
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18.

(Continued)
Long-term equity investments (Continued)
Accounting method (Continued)

If joint control or significant influence over the investee is lost due to the disposal of a portion of equity
investment, the remaining equity after the disposal is accounted for in accordance with the relevant provisions
of financial instrument recognition and measurement standards, with the difference between the fair value
and the carrying amount of the remaining equity at the date of the loss of joint control or significant influence
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. Other comprehensive income recognized originally as a
result of the accounting of an equity investment using equity method is accounted for on the same basis as
the direct disposal of the related assets or liabilities by the investee when the accounting using equity method is
discontinued.

If control over the investee is lost due to the disposal of a portion of long-term equity investment, and the
remaining equity after the disposal can exercise joint control or significant influence over the investee, the
investment shall be accounted for under equity method, with the difference between the carrying amount
of the equity disposed of and the consideration for the disposal recognized in investment income, and the
remaining equity shall be adjusted as if it were accounted for using equity-method since it acquisition; if the
remaining equity after the disposal cannot exercise joint control or significant influence over the investee, it is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant provisions of financial instrument recognition and measurement
standards, with the difference between the carrying amount of the equity disposed of and the consideration
for the disposal recognized in investment income, and the difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount of the remaining equity at the date of the loss of control recognized in investment income or loss for
the current period.

Investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are properties held for earning rentals or for capital appreciation, or both,
and are measured by fair value model.

There is an active real estate trading market for the Group’s investment properties, and the Group is able
to obtain market prices and related information for similar properties from the market and is able to make
reasonable estimates of the fair value of investment properties on an ongoing basis; therefore, the Group has
elected to subsequently measure investment properties at fair value.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Group for use in production, provision of services,
rental or for administrative purposes with a useful life of over one year and their unit value is over RMB2,000.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with them will flow to
the Group and their cost can be measured reliably. The Group’s fixed assets include plants and buildings,
electronic equipment, transportation equipment and office equipment, etc.

The Group depreciates all fixed assets, except for fully depreciated fixed assets that continue to be used and
land that is separately recorded in the accounts. Depreciation is provided using the average life method. The
categorized depreciable lives, estimated net residual values and depreciation rates of the Group’s fixed assets
are as follows:

Fixed assets Useful life  Residual value rate Depreciation rate
Plants and buildings 10-33 years 5% 2.88%-9.5%
Motor vehicles 10 years 5% 9.5%
Office equipment 4-5 years 0%-5% 19%—-25%
Electronic equipment 3-5 years 0%-5% 19%-33%

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives, estimated net residual values and depreciation methods of fixed
assets at the end of each year and treats changes, if any, as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets

The Group’s intangible assets include software and customer relationships, which are measured at actual cost
at the time of acquisition. Acquired intangible assets are measured at actual cost based on the price actually
paid and related other expenses. The actual cost of intangible assets invested by investors is determined at
the value agreed in the investment contract or agreement, but if the agreed value in the contract or agreement
is not fair, the actual cost is determined at fair value. Intangible assets acquired in a combination under
different control that are owned by the acquiree but not recognized in its financial statements are recognized as
intangible assets at fair value upon initial recognition of the acquiree’s assets.
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21.

(Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Useful life and the basis for its determination, estimation, amortisation method or
review procedure

Land use rights are amortised equally over their useful lives from the commencement date of the grant;
application software is amortised equally over the shortest of the estimated useful life, the contractually
stipulated beneficial life and the legally stipulated effective life. The amortised amount is included in the cost of
the related assets and in profit or loss according to the beneficiary. The estimated useful lives and amortization
methods of intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at the end of each year, and any changes are
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

As a result of the review, the useful lives and amortisation methods of intangible assets at the end of the
Reporting Period have not changed from the previous estimates.

Scope of research and development expenditure and related accounting treatment

The scope of the Group’s research and development expenditure includes employee benefits of research and
development personnel, direct input costs, depreciation and other expenses.

The Company treats information and related preparatory activities for further development activities as the
research phase. Expenditures on intangible assets during the research phase are charged to profit or loss as
incurred. Development activities that are carried out after the Company has completed the research phase
are classified as the development phase. Expenditures during the development phase can be recognised as
intangible assets when the following conditions are met: @ the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale; @ its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it; @ how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits, among other things, the entity
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself
or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; @ the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; ® its ability
to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during the development phase.

Impairment of long-term assets

The Group examines long-term equity investments, fixed assets, construction in progress, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful life at each balance sheet date, and performs impairment tests when there
is an indication of impairment. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life and development
expenditure that has not yet reached its intended usable state are tested for impairment at the end of each
period, regardless of whether there is an indication of impairment.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Impairment of long-term assets (Continued)
Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets (excluding goodwill)

The Group determines the recoverable amount of an asset based on the higher of the asset’s net fair value
less costs of disposal and the present value of the asset’s expected future cash flows when performing an
impairment test. If, after impairment testing, the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the difference is recognised as an impairment loss.

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of an asset on an individual basis. Where it is difficult to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of an asset group is determined on the
basis of the asset group to which the asset belongs. The identification of an asset group is based on whether
the major cash inflows generated from the asset group are independent of those from other assets or asset
groups.

Fair value, net of disposal costs, is determined by reference to an agreed price for the sale of a similar asset in
an arm’s length transaction or an observable market price, less incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the disposal of the asset. When estimating the present value of future cash flows, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows of the asset or group of assets and select an appropriate discount rate to
determine the present value of the future cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group allocates the carrying amount of goodwill arising from a business combination to the relevant asset
group in a reasonable manner from the date of acquisition, or to the combination of asset groups if it is difficult
to allocate the goodwill to the relevant asset group. When testing for impairment of the relevant asset group or
combination of asset groups that contains goodwill, if there is any indication of impairment for the asset group
or combination of asset groups related to goodwill, the asset group or combination of asset groups that does
not contain goodwill is first tested for impairment, the recoverable amount is calculated and compared with
the relevant carrying amount, and the corresponding impairment loss is recognised; and then the asset group
or combination of asset groups that contains goodwill is tested for impairment, and the carrying amount
is compared with their recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount,
the amount of the impairment loss shall first be offset against the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to
the asset group or combination of asset groups, and then against the carrying amount of each other asset
proportionally according to the proportion of the carrying amount of each other asset other than goodwill in
the asset group or combination of asset groups.

Impairment losses on the above assets, once recognised, are not reversed in subsequent accounting periods.
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22.

23.

(1)

(Continued)
Employee benefits

The employee benefits of the Group include short-term compensation, post-employment benefits, and
termination benefits.

Short-term benefits mainly include employee wages, bonuses, social insurance premiums and housing
provident funds paid for employees, union funds withdrawn in accordance with the regulations, education
funds and welfare expenses for employees. Short-term benefits actually incurred during the accounting period
in which the employee provide services are recognised as liabilities and included in the profit or loss or the
cost of the related assets in accordance with the beneficiary.

Post-employment benefits, mainly comprising basic endowment insurance premiums, unemployment
insurance and enterprise pensions, are classified as defined contribution plans in accordance with the risks
and obligations assumed by the Company. For defined contribution plans, contributions made to a separate
entity at the balance sheet date in exchange for services rendered by employees during the accounting period
are recognised as a liability and included in profit or loss or in the cost of the related assets according to
the beneficiary. Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Trial Measures for Enterprise Annuity, the Group’s
employees participate in the enterprise annuity plans considered and approved at the employee representative
meeting and filed with the labour security administrative departments. The contribution amount of enterprise
annuity is calculated according to the annuity plan.

When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the dismissal welfare provided due to the labor relationship
termination plan or the redundancy offer, or when the costs or expenses (whichever is earlier) related to
reorganization concerning the dismissal welfare payment are recognized, the liabilities of the employee
compensation arising from dismissal welfare shall be recognized and included in profit or loss. Compensation
payments made in excess of one year are discounted and recognised in profit or loss.

Futures risk reserve
Methods and uses of provision

In accordance with the requirements of the Notice of the Tentative Provisions for the Financial Management of
Commodities Futures Trading (Cai Shang Zi [1997] No. 44), the Company appropriates the futures risk reserve
based on 5% of the fee income net of relevant expenses payable to futures exchanges. Futures risk reserve
is specially used to make up for the loss caused by wrong single transactions of the Company, etc. The
appropriation for futures risk reserve ceases when it reaches 10 times the registered capital of the Company.

In case of the following, risk loss is recognised and futures risk reserve is reduced: @ loss on liquidation of

wrong single contracts; @ unaccountable risk loss due to the Company’s own reasons; @ unrecoverable risk
loss due to customers’ reasons.

Annual Report 2024 209

SN 1hoqy

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

uoljeLwou| [eroueul



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

23.
@)

24.

25.

210

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Futures risk reserve (Continued)
Accounting

The Company sets aside 5% of net agency fee income after deducting futures exchange fees payable as
futures risk reserve, which is included in profit or loss and the “futures risk reserve” item at the same time. If
futures risk reserve is utilised for intended uses, the balance of futures risk reserve is reduced to the extent of
zero, and any excess is included in profit or loss.

Estimated liabilities

If the obligation related to a contingency is a present obligation of the Group, and it is probable that the
settlement of the obligation will result in an outflow of economic benefits from the Group, and the amount can
be measured reliably, the Group will recognize a provision.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. If there is a continuous range
of required expenditure and the probability of various results within the range is the same, the best estimate
shall be determined according to the middle value within the range; in other cases, the best estimate shall be
handled as follows:

@) If the contingency involves a single item, it shall be determined according to the most likely amount;

@ If the contingency involves multiple projects, it shall be determined according to various possible
results and relevant probability calculation.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying
amount to the current best estimate.
Revenue

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies the performance obligation in the contract by transferring
the control over relevant goods or services to the customers. The following are the details of the accounting
policies regarding revenue from the Group’s principal activities:
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(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)
Fee income

Fee income from futures and options brokerage is recognised on the date of agency transaction. According
to futures and options agency contracts, the Group recognises the fee income based on the fee charged to
customers and the net amount after deducting the collected fee paid to the exchange.

Refund and reduction of handling fees from futures exchanges are recognised by the Group on the basis of the
amount of exchange reimbursement reductions received when the settlement of exchange funds is completed.

The handing fee for asset management business is recognised when the Group has the right to receive
income in accordance with the asset management agreement.

The Group recognises income from risk management business in accordance with the risk management
business contracts.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated and determined according to the time of money lending and the effective interest
rate.

Investment gains

Gains or losses on disposal of financial instruments and dividends received are recognised as investment
income on the date of transaction.

Gains or losses on fair value changes

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of financial instruments are recognised on the balance
sheet date at the difference between the fair value and the carrying amount.

Income from other business activities

Income from other business activities is mainly from sales of goods and rendering of advisory services.

The Group recognises income from sales of goods when the Group has transferred the right to spot goods to
the customer after receiving goods payment according to the contract and the customer has obtained control
over the goods. The Group recognises income from sales of goods on gross basis as it is the principal that
controls the goods before they are sold and is liable for storage, damage and loss of goods, assumes the
price fluctuation risks of goods and promises to provide the specified goods under the terms of the contract.

The Group recognises income from advisory services according to the performance progress of advisory
services.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Government subsidies

Government grants are recognised when the conditions attaching to them can be met and when they are
receivable. Government grants that are monetary assets are measured at the actual amount received, or
at the amount receivable if the grant is provided at a fixed rate or there is conclusive evidence at the end of
the year that the conditions set out in the financial support policy have been complied with and the grant is
expected to be received; government grants that are non-monetary assets are measured at fair value, or at
the nominal amount (RMB1) if the fair value is not reliably obtainable.

The Group’s government grants include asset-related government grants and revenue-related government
grants. Among them, asset-related government grants refer to government grants obtained by the Group for
the purpose of acquiring or otherwise forming long-term assets; revenue-related government grants refer to
government grants other than asset-related government grants. If the targets of the grants are not specified
in the government documents, the Group makes judgement in accordance with the above principles of
differentiation, and if it is difficult to differentiate them, they are categorised as revenue-related government
grants as a whole.

Government grants relating to assets acquired by the Group are recognised as deferred income and phased
into profit or loss on an equal basis over the useful life of the related assets.

If the related assets are sold, transferred, retired or damaged before the end of their useful life, the unallocated
balance of the related deferred income is transferred to profit or loss in the period in which the assets are
disposed of.

If a government grant related to income acquired by the Company is to compensate the related cost,
expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, it is recognized as deferred income, and is
recognized in profit or loss for the period when the related cost, expenses or losses incurred. If a government
grant is related to the ordinary activities, it is included in other income based on the economic substance of
the business. Government grants not related to the ordinary activities are included in non-operating income.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

lll. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

27.

28.

(Continued)
General risk reserve

The Company appropriates 10% of its net profit for the current period to the general risk reserve in
accordance with the Rules on the Accounting by Financial Enterprises and the Implementation Guidance of
Rules on the Accounting by Financial Enterprises.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

The Group’s deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are recognised on the basis of
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, as well as temporary
differences arising from differences between the tax bases of items that are not recognised as assets and
liabilities but whose tax bases can be determined in accordance with the provisions of the tax law.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for deductible losses that can be offset against taxable income in
subsequent years in accordance with the provisions of the tax law. For temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of goodwill, no corresponding deferred income tax liabilities are recognized. For temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in transactions other than business
combinations that affect neither accounting profit nor taxable income (or deductible losses), the corresponding
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are not recognized. At the balance sheet date,
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled.

The Group recognizes deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits can be
utilized.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following
conditions are met:

@) the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities;

@ they relate to deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities levied by the same tax
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilities and current tax assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred income tax
liabilities or deferred income tax assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

20.

214

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Lease

Lease is a contract that a lessor transfers the right to use an identified asset for a period of time to a lessee in
exchange for consideration.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease. If one party
under the contract transfers one or more of the right to use of the identified asset within a period of time in
exchange for consideration, the contract shall be considered as a lease or containing lease.

To assess whether a contract conveys the rights to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time,
the Group shall assess whether, throughout the period of use:

@) Whether the contract involves the use of the identified assets. The identified asset may be explicitly
specified by the contract or implicitly specified when the asset is available to the customer, and the
asset is physically distinguishable, or if some part of the asset’s capacity or other part is physically
indistinguishable but substantially represents the entire capacity of the asset, thereby enabling the
customer to reap virtually all of the economic benefits arising from the use of the asset. The asset
is not an identified asset if the supplier of the asset has substantial replacement rights for the asset
throughout its use;

@) Whether the lessee is entitled to the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset during the period of use;

® Whether the lessee has the right to direct the use of the identified asset during the period of use.

Where the contract contains multiple lease components, the lessee and the lessor shall separate the lease
components and account for each individual lease component separately. Where the contract includes both
the lease and the non-lease component, the lessee and the lessor shall separate the lease and non-lease
components. For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

lll. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

20.

(1)

(Continued)
Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

On the commencement date of lease period, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
on leases. The right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, including the initial measurement amount of
lease liability, the lease payment amount paid on or before the commencement date of lease period, net of the
relevant amount of lease incentives enjoyed, initial direct costs incurred and the estimate cost of dismantling
and removing leased assets, restoring the leased assets or restoring the leased assets to the agreed
conditions of the lease term.

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets using the straight-line method. Where the ownership of
the leased asset can be reasonably determined at the end of the lease term, the Group shall provide
for depreciation over the remaining useful life of the leased asset. Otherwise, the leased asset shall be
depreciated during the shorter of the lease term and the remaining useful life of the leased asset. Impairment
losses are recognised in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note I1l.21.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The Group calculates interest expenses in each period during the lease term based on a constant periodic
rate of interest, and recognizes the interest expenses in profit or loss of such period or part of the cost of other
related assets. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability are recognised in

profit or loss or part of the cost of another related asset as incurred.

After the commencement date, the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease
payments, if either:

@) there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

@) there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to
determine those payments;

(©) there is a change in the assessment of an option to purchase, to extend or terminate the lease, or the
exercise of the option to extend or terminate the lease is different from the previous assessment.

Annual Report 2024 215

SN 1hoqy

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

uoljeLwou| [eroueul



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

29.
(1)

)

30.

216

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

When the lease liability is re-measured, the Group recognises the carrying amount of the re-measurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in profit or loss of such period.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases (leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets, and recognised the lease
payments associated with these leases in profit or loss of such period or part of the cost of another related
assets on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessor

Properties held by the Group as a lessor to earn rentals and for capital appreciation are accounted as
investment properties.

During each period of the lease term, the Group uses the straight-line method to recognise the lease
payments from operating leases as rental income.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial assets held for trading, investment properties, derivative financial instruments at
fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset)
that market participants would consider when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, and
uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data and other
information are available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques mainly include the market approach, the
income approach and the cost approach.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the Group determines its fair value with its active market

quotation; for financial instruments that are not traded in active markets, the Group uses valuation technigues
to determine their fair values. The valuation models used are mainly cash flow discount models.
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From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

lll. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

30.

31.

32.

(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

Level 3 fair value is based on the Group’s valuation models, such as discounted cash flows, Bloomberg OVML
function, Black-Scholes PDE, Clark Nielsen finite difference method for solving partial differential equations,
Valuation of underlying financial instruments and contract allocation method. The Group also considers the
original transaction price, recent transactions of the same or similar instruments and completed third-party
transactions in comparable instruments.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reassesses the assets and liabilities recognised in the financial
statements that have been measured at fair value on a continuous basis to determine whether there has been
a transition between fair value measurement levels.

Segment reporting

Reportable segments are identified based on the structure of the Group’s internal organisation, management
requirements and internal reporting system. Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a
single operating segment if the segments have the similar economic characteristics and are same or similar in
respect of the nature of each segment’s products and services, the nature of production processes, the types
or classes of customers for the products and services, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the laws and administrative regulations. Reportable segments are identified
based on operating segment taking into consideration of the materiality principle.

In preparing segment reports, the Group measures the revenue from inter-segment transactions based on
the actual transaction price. The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of segment reports are
consistent with those adopted for the preparation of the Group’s financial statements.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires management of the Group to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates as well as underlying
assumptions and uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The following accounting estimates and key assumptions carry a significant risk of causing significant
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

32.
(1)

)

218

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Significant accounting estimates and judgments (Continued)
Provision for impairment of financial assets

On the basis of expected credit losses, the Group performs the impairment treatment and recognises the
provision for impairment losses on debt investments, other debt investments, assets arising from carrying
out financing operations (including margin financing and securities lending, agreed repurchase, stock pledge
repurchase, etc.), as well as placement (lending) of funds or securities in money market, accounts receivable
and financial lease receivables.

Based on the classification and nature of the above financial assets, combined with its own risk management
practices and the relevant requirements of the impairment guidelines, the Group establishes an expected
credit loss model to measure impairment losses on the above financial instruments based on a probability-
weighted average, taking into account the time value of money and reasonable and reliable information about
past events, current conditions and projected future economic conditions that can be obtained at the balance
sheet date without unnecessary additional costs or effort. The assumptions, parameters, data sources and
measurement procedures associated with the expected credit loss model require the Company’s professional
judgment, and changes in the assumptions of these relevant factors can affect the results of the expected
credit loss calculations for financial instruments.

The Group uses an expected credit loss model to evaluate the impairment of financial assets and the
application of the expected credit loss model requires making significant judgments and estimates such
as the probability of default, the rate of default losses and whether credit risk increases significantly, taking
into account all reasonable and reliable information, including forward-looking information. In making these
judgments and estimates, the Company extrapolates expected changes in the debtor’s credit risk based on
historical repayment data combined with economic policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry risk and
other factors.

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets

The Group makes judgement to determine whether non-current assets other than financial assets are likely to
be impaired on the balance sheet date. When conducting an impairment test, if the carrying amount of an asset
or asset group is higher than its recoverable amount, it indicates that an impairment has occurred. When
estimating the present value of future cash flows, management must estimate the expected future cash flows
of the asset or group of assets and select an appropriate discount rate to determine the present value of the
future cash flows.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

Significant accounting estimates and judgments (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

For financial instruments where there is a lack of active market, the Group uses valuation methods to
determine their fair value. Valuation methods include referring to the transaction price determined when fair
transactions are conducted between economic entities with complete information and willingness to buy
and sell in the market, referring to the fair value of another similar financial instrument in the market, or using
cash flow discount analysis and option pricing model to estimate. Valuation methods maximise the use of
observable market information. However, when observable market information is unavailable, the management
will estimate the significant non-observable information included in the valuation methods.

Income tax and deferred income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain transactions. In
accordance with relevant tax laws and regulations, the Group carefully evaluates the income tax implications
of transactions and make tax provisions accordingly. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
This requires significant judgement on the tax treatments of certain transactions and also significant assessment
on the probability that adequate future taxable profits will be available against which the deferred income tax
assets can be utilised.

Determination of the consolidated scope

All facts and circumstances shall be considered when assessing whether the Group acts as an investor to
control the investee. The definition of control includes the following three elements: 1) the power over the
investee; 2) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; 3) has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. If there are facts and circumstances that indicate that
one or more of the factors mentioned above changed, the Group is required to reassess whether it controls
the investee.

For structured entities managed and invested by the Group, the Group will assess whether its maximum risk
exposure to the structured entities, together with the variable returns generated by the remuneration of its
managers, is significant enough to indicate that the Group has control over its structured entities. If the Group
has control over the structured entities under management, the structured entities shall be included in the
consolidated scope of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

lll. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates
(Continued)

33. Significant changes in accounting policies and accounting estimates
(1)  Significant changes in accounting policies

Nil
(2) Significant changes in accounting estimates

Nil

IV. Taxation
1. Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

The main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries are as

follows:
Types of tax Tax base Tax rate
Value-added tax (VAT) Output VAT is calculated on product sales and taxable 6%, 9%, 13%
services revenue according to taxation laws. The
remaining balance of output VAT, after subtracting the
deductible input VAT of the period, is VAT payable
City maintenance and Based on VAT effectively paid 7%
construction tax
Educational surcharges Based on VAT effectively paid 3%
Local education Based on VAT effectively paid 2%
surcharges
Property tax For housing property levied on the basis of price, housing 1.2%, 12%

property tax is levied at the rate of 1.2% of the balance
after deducting 30% of the cost; for housing property
levied on the basis of rent, housing property tax is
levied at the rate of 12%

The statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and Holly Capital Management Co., Ltd. GAXE
AEBHRAT) (“Holly Capital’), a domestic subsidiary of the Company, is 25%, and the statutory income
tax rate applicable to Holly International Financial Holdings Limited (3A 2B 4 g3 AR AR A 7)) (“Holly
International Financial Holdings”) and Holly International Asset Management Company Limited (5AZ BB & &
EIRHMR AT (“‘Holly International Assets”), being overseas subsidiaries of the Company, is 16.5%.
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From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements

sM noqy

Unless otherwise stated, in respect of the following data disclosed in the financial statements, “the beginning
of the year”, “the end of the year”, “the year” and “last year” refer to 1 January 2024, 31 December 2024,
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, and 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, respectively, while the

currency unit is RMB.

1. Monetary funds

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Cash
Bank deposit 7,038,694,981.90 4,801,790,844.06
Including: Futures margin 6,778,156,567.10 4,426,745,702.71
Own funds 260,538,414.80 375,045,141.35
Other Monetary funds 147,982,311.66 13,981,221.48
Accrued interest on Monetary funds 22,126,815.65 25,051,648.79
Total 7,208,804,109.21 4,840,823,714.33
Including: Total amount deposited overseas 304,477,319.26 318,376,918.01

(1) Futures margin deposit breakdown

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

ltem Closing balance Opening balance

CITIC Bank 2,321,829,307.41 1,781,787,053.62

Minsheng Bank 79,020,134.97 652,052,687.10

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd 680,251,687.71 490,228,883.87

SPD Bank 300,166,113.91 100,500,255.05

Bank of Commmunications 18,948,843.75 530,066,254.86

China Guangfa Bank 251,318.55 1,332,588.21

Bank of China 20,060,580.09 89,226,470.24

Agricultural Bank of China 1,000,037,414.29 867,637.75

China Construction Bank 40,934.53 778,547.09

China Merchants Bank 91,888.07 100,467,745.25 -

ICBC 5,424,497.18 7,113,733.43 3

Ping An Bank 2,351,883,401.01 641,941,091.19 g.

China Everbright Bank 149,914.57 30,382,054.12 §

HSBC 531.06 700.93 5)

Total 6,778,156,567.10 4,426,745,702.71 g
o
=]

(2) Use of restricted funds at the end of the period

See Note V.59.
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From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. Currency deposits receivable

(1) By exchange/clearer

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Shanghai Futures Exchange 802,071,484.62 741,912,018.17
Dalian Commodity Exchange 550,535,581.06 591,825,087.77
Zhengzhou Commaodity Exchange 321,437,179.70 625,846,425.84
China Financial Futures Exchange 640,340,183.92 760,999,082.04
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation

Limited 129,536,627.82 121,309,944.34
Shanghai International Energy Exchange 62,251,024.56 119,164,843.10
The Guangzhou Futures Exchange 69,286,117.70 109,508,061.12
PHILLIPFUTURESPTELTD 91,720,603.24 54,960,458.15
Phillip Commodities (HK) Limited 3,615,206.86 4,994,614.72
Marex Financial 144,869,271.86 129,381,241.08
G.H. Financials (Hong Kong) Limited 21,871,956.39 90,468,325.36
PHILLIPSECURITIESPTELTD 4,876,665.82 1,706,326.61
Phillip Securities Ltd 14,632.93 18,624.30
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited 7,505,922.10 3,939,183.53
Subtotal 2,849,932,458.58 3,356,034,236.13
Less: Provision for impairment 1,372,371.30 1,427,343.87
Total 2,848,560,087.28 3,354,606,892.26

(2) By category

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Settlement Reserve Funds 375,898,065.17 592,395,041.26
Trading margin 2,199,560,134.21 2,478,170,421.12
Offshore futures brokers 274,474,259.20 285,468,773.75
Subtotal 2,849,932,458.58 3,356,034,236.13
Less: Provision for impairment 1,372,371.30 1,427,343.87
Total 2,848,560,087.28 3,354,606,892.26
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V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
3. Pledged deposits receivable

sM noqy

(1) Breakdown of Exchanges

ltem Closing balance Opening balance \
Shanghai Futures Exchange 154,050,696.00 61,590,912.00 p
Dalian Commodity Exchange 512,304.00 18,022,400.00
Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange 133,575,600.00
Total 288,138,600.00 79,613,312.00 =
10)
5
(2) Breakdown of pledges =
Market value Amount at the é)
Category at the end of year Discount rate end of year %
Shanghai Futures Exchange %
Including: Shanghai Silver 13,686,570.00 80% 10,949,256.00
Shanghai Nickel 178,876,800.00 80% 143,101,440.00 N\
Dalian Commaodity Exchange
Including: PVC 640,380.00 80% 512,304.00
Zhengzhou Commaodity Exchange o
Including: Silicon iron 5,729,360.00 80% 4,583,488.00 o
Manganese silicon 34,795,800.00 80% 27,836,640.00 _8
PTA 119,500,000.00 80% 95,600,000.00 %
Rapeseed il 6,944,340.00 80% 5,555,472.00 o)
o
Total 360,173,250.00 288,138,600.00 =
S
5
Market value at the Amount at the 8
Type of Pledge beginning of year Discount rate beginning of year \
Shanghai Futures Exchange
Including: Shanghai Tin 76,988,640.00 80% 61,590,912.00
Dalian Commodity Exchange
Including: PVC 22,528,000.00 80% 18,022,400.00
Total 99,516,640.00 79,618,312.00

uoljeLwou| [eroueul
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V.
4.

(1)

@)

224

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Advance to customers
Category of advance to customers

[tem Closing balance Opening balance

Domestic

Including: Individual
Institutional

Less: Provision for impairment

Subtotal of book value

Overseas 3,555,624.51 26,852,750.66
Including: Individual 3,555,623.70 10,563,258.11

Institutional 0.81 16,289,492.55
Less: Provision for impairment 17,778.13 134,263.75
Subtotal of book value 3,537,846.38 26,718,486.91
Total 3,537,846.38 26,718,486.91

Collateral information

Fair value of collaterals provided by customers to the Company for margin financing and securities lending
business:

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Stock 18,155,162.37 91,097,674.88
Total 18,155,162.37 91,097,674.88

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
4. Advance to customers (Continued)

sM noqy

(3)  Provision for impairment

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Expected
Expected credit losses Expected
credit losses  for the lifetime credit loss

for the future (No credit  for the lifetime

Bad debt provision 12 months impairment) (Credit impaired)

Balance as at 1 January 2024 134,263.75 134,263.75
Book balance of advance to
customers as at 1 January 2024
in the current year - - - -
— Transfer to Stage 2
— Transfer to Stage 3
— Transfer back to Stage 2
— Transfer back to Stage 1
Provision in the current year -116,485.62 -116,485.62
Reversal in the current year
Write-off in the current year
Cancellation in the current year
Other changes

Balance as at 31 December 2024 17,778.13 17,778.13

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (
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V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Derivative financial instruments

Closing balance

Fair value

Nominal amount Liabilities

Commodity derivative financial

instruments
Including: Futures contracts 5,696,266,286.02 16,690,880.00 4,044,305.00
Option contracts 1,766,458,955.60 11,556,875.02 9,859,658.01
Total 7,462,725,241.62 28,247,755.02 13,903,963.01
Less: Settlement amount 16,690,880.00 4,044,305.00
Net amount 11,556,875.02 9,859,658.01

Opening balance

Fair value

Nominal amount Assets Liabilities

Commodity derivative financial

instruments
Including: Futures contracts 2,186,376,444.00 47,756,813.91 44,080,410.20
Option contracts 2,363,260,879.14 5,212,428.02 14,064,892.26
Total 4,549,637,323.14 52,969,241.93 58,145,302.46
Less: Settlement amount 47,756,813.91 44,080,410.20
Net amount 5,212,428.02 14,064,892.26

6. Settlement guarantee deposits receivable

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
China Financial Futures Exchange 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Total 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
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>
o
. . o)
V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) =
C
7.  Other receivables @
ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Interest receivables
Dividend receivables p\
Other receivables 12,644,472.25 32,744,189.68
Total 12,644,472.25 32,744,189.68
O
§S]
7.1 Other receivables g
(1) Other receivables by nature g
O
Closing book Opening book g
Nature balance balance %
Refundable payment for PTA spot transactions 10,000,644.61 %
Dividends and redemptions receivable from funds and
asset management plans 578,727.70 635,799.24 N\
Securities settlement accounts receivable 3,948,308.60 9,625,473.20
OTC option margin receivable 4,062,136.51 9,520,213.07
Deposit 3,474,253.76 4,971,076.64 -
Risk loss receivable 229,541.25 463,107.84 o
Other 828,559.27 7,400,945.64 8
Total 13,121,527.09 42,617,260.24 g*
®
2
2) Other receivables by aging o)
=]
Closing book Opening book %
Aging balance balance @
Within 1 year (Inclusive) 9,207,199.44 28,723,250.71 N\
1to 2 years 2,187,959.18 682,544.65
2 to 3 years 491,171.78 846,600.99
Over 3 years 1,235,196.69 12,364,863.89
Total 13,121,527.09 42,617,260.24

uoljeLwou| [eroueul
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continved
7.  Other receivables (Continued)

7.1 Other receivables (Continued)

€] Provision for bad debts on other receivables

Closing balance

Closing balance Bad debt provision

Provision
Category Amount Percentage (%) Amount ratio (%)

Bad debt provision made on a line-by-

Book value

line basis
Provision for bad debts by portfolio 13,121,527.09 100.00 477,054.84 3.64 12,644,472.25
Combination: Liquidation combination 4,527,036.30 34.50 4,527,036.30
Margin and deposit 7,536,390.27 57.44 75,363.90 1.00 7,461,026.37
Other combination 1,058,100.52 8.06 401,690.94 37.96 656,409.58
Total 13,121,527.09 100.00 477,054.84 3.64 12,644,472.25

Opening balance
Book balance Bad debt provision

Provi

ision

Category Amount Percentage (%) Amount ratio (%)

Bad debt provision made on a line-by-

Book value

line basis 10,000,644.61 23.47 9,106,090.80 91.06 894,553.81
Provision for bad debts by portfolio 32,616,615.63 76.53 766,979.76 2.35 31,849,635.87
Combination: Liquidation combination 10,261,272.44 24.08 10,261,272.44

Margin and deposit 14,491,289.71 34.00 144,912.91 1.00 14,346,376.80
Other combination 7,864,063.48 18.45 622,066.85 791 7,241,986.63
Total 42,617,260.24 100.00 9,873,070.56 23.17 32,744,189.68
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

Provision for bad debts on other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables with provision for bad debts on a portfolio

Closing balance

basis

Closing balance

Bad debt provision Provision ratio (%)

Within 1 year (Inclusive) 9,207,199.44 76,360.04 0.83
1to 2 years 2,187,959.18 26,886.63 1.23
2 to 3 years 491,171.78 4,911.72 1.00
Over 3 years 1,235,196.69 368,896.45 29.87
Total 13,121,527.09 477,054.84 -

Other receivables with provision for bad debts made under the general model of expected credit losses

Stage 1

Expected
credit loss
for future
12 months

546,195.34
Book balance of other receivables as -

Bad debt provision

Balance as at 1 January 2024

at 1 January 2024 in the current
year
— Transfer to Stage 2 -33,452.58
— Transfer to Stage 3
—Transfer back to Stage 2
—Transfer back to Stage 1
Provision in the current year -425,067.44
Reversal in the current year
Write-off in the current year
Cancellation in the current year

Other changes

Stage 2 Stage 3

Expected
credit loss Expected
for lifetime credit loss

(No credit
impairment) (Credit impaired)

220,784.42 9,106,090.80 9,873,070.56

for lifetime

33,452.58

135,142.52 -289,924.92

9,106,090.80 9,106,090.80

Balance as at 31 December 2024 87,675.32

389,379.52 477,054.84
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
7. Other receivables (continued)
7.1  Other receivables (Continued)

4) Provision, recovery or reversal of bad debt provision on other receivables in the current year

Amount of change in the current year

Opening Recovery or Transfer or Closing
Category balance Provision reversal written-off Others balance
Other receivables 9,873,070.56 -289,924.92 9,106,090.80 477,054.84
Total 9,873,070.56 -289,924.92 9,106,090.80 477,054.84

) Other receivables actually written-off in the current year

Amount written off
9,106,090.80

[tem

Hanbang (Jiangyin) Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (ZFB(TE)A{LBE A 7))

(6) Other receivables grouped by debtor, ranked by year-end balance (top 5)

Proportion
to closing
balance
of other Closing
receivables balance of
Closing as at the end bad debt
Name of entity Category book balance of the year (%) provision
Huanong Property & OTC option margin 1,395,877.63 Within 1 year 10.64% 13,958.78
Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. receivable
ERMERBRROBRAF)
People’s Insurance Company ~ OTC option margin 1,091,133.55 Within 1 year 8.32% 10,911.34
of China Limited, Sugian receivable
Branch (B A R#E R
RERARBETHAR)
Trisight Ltd and Dynasty Deposit 506,921.70 Within 2-3 years 3.86% 5,069.22
Hotel Ltd
Qingdao Hengshi OTC option margin 438,639.46 Within 1 year 3.72% 4,886.39
Intercontinental Trading Co., receivable
Ltd. (ESRAMEESHER
N
Jiangsu Zhongen International ~ OTC option margin 424,560.88 Within 1 year 3.24% 4,245.61
Trading Co., Ltd.(T&HEE  receivable
RESERAR)
Total 3,907,133.22 - 29.78% 39,071.34
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

Borrowings due from employees

As at the end of the Reporting Period, there were no borrowings due from employees.

Financial assets held under resale agreements

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Treasury bond reverse repurchase 96,252,523.09 1,948,419.75
Total 96,252,523.09 1,948,419.75
Financial assets held for trading
Breakdown
[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Including: Investments in debt instruments 59,788,335.70 220,764,797.88
Investments in equity instruments 220,908,272.92 213,921,966.36
Total 280,696,608.62 434,686,764.24

For details of the financial assets held for trading with commitment conditions or restrictions, see Note V. 59
Assets with restricted ownership or use rights.

Other debt investments

Other debt investments
Cumulative
provision for
impairment
Changesin recognized
fair value for Cumulative in other
Opening Accrued Interest the current Closing changes  comprehensive
balance interest  adjustment year balance Cost infair value income Remarks
Corporate Bonds 36360685 44003392 2083608 8824536.85 8,00000000  20,836.08
Total 363606.85 44003392  20836.08 8824536.85 8,00000000  20,836.08 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
10. Other debt investments (continued)

(2)  No provision for impairment for other debt investments for the year

(3) Significant other debt investments at the end of the year

Closing balance Opening balance

Nominal Coupon  Effective Principal Nominal Coupon Effective Principal

value rate interestrate  Maturity  pastdue value rate  interest rate Maturity past due

21XigaoBonds ~ 8,000,000.00 5.990% 4172%  2028/3/31

Total 8,000,000.00 - - - = - -

(4) No other debt investments that were actually written-off in the year

11. Investment in other equity instruments

Increase/decrease for the current period

Profit
included  Lossincluded Dividend Proft Loss
in other in other income  accumulated  accumulated
comprehensive  comprehensive recognized in other in other
Opening Additional Investment  income forthe  income for the Closing inthe current  comprehensive  comprehensive
balance investment reduction  currentperiod  current period halance period income [
Futures membership 1863,110.00 991000 1,863,020.00
investment
Non-trading sectrites 28.331,738.70 17492246 116371204 14731940 21,873,208.88 56880446 1,163,712.04 144731940
Totd 186311000 28,331,738.70 17492246 116371204 14731940 991000 2973622888 56880446 1,163,712.04 144731940
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)
12. Inventory (Continued)

sM noqy

(1) Category of investory

Closing balance Opening balance

Provision for Provision for

decline in value decline in value

of inventories/ of inventories/

provision for provision for

impairment impairment

of contract of contract

performance performance
Book balance (L Book value Book balance cost Book value
Goods in stock 421,003,300.47  11,376,949.55 409,626,350.92  64,018,473.68 64,018,473.68
Total 421,003,300.47  11,376,949.55 409,626,350.92  64,018,473.68 64,018,473.68

(2) Provision for decrease in value of inventories

Increase in the current year Decrease in the current year

Opening Reversal Closing
balance Provision Others or resale Others balance
Goods in stock 11,376,949.55 11,376,949.55
Total 11,376,949.55 11,376,949.55

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
13. Long-term equity investment

Change for this year
Balance of the Investment Balance of the
provision for gainfloss Other provision for
Opening  impairment at recognized  comprehensive Declared cash Closing  impairment at
balance  thebeginning  Additional Investment  under equity income  Changesin dividendor Provision for balance the end
Investee (book value)  oftheyear Investment reduction method  adjustment  other equity profit  impairment Others  (book valug) of the year
|, Joint ventures
I Associates
Jangsu Hongrui New 6,109.358.88 463,406.1 6,572,765.03
Fra Venture Captal Co.,
Lid. (TERLRHERE
FRERRAT)
Jiangsu Hongrui Growth -~~~ 2,143,199.16 £,18991 2,137,009.25
Venture Capte
Co, Lid. (THLRRE
EERERRAR)
Totd 8252,558,04 45721624 8,709,774.28

14. Investment properties
(1) Investment properties measured by fair value model

ltem Plants and buildings Total

I. Opening balance 48,573,122.00 48,573,122.00
Il. Change for the current year
Add: Purchases
Transfer from inventories/fixed assets/work in progress
Increase in business combinations
Less: Disposal
Other transfers
Add: Changes in fair value -106,044.00 -106,044.00

lll. Closing balance 48,467,078.00 48,467,078.00

2) At the end of the period, there was no investment property in existence without property right certificate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueo)
15. Fixed assets

ltem Closing book value

Fixed assets 305,242,162.41

Disposal of fixed assets

Opening book value

317,738,489.85

Total 305,242,162.41

317,738,489.85

15.1 Fixed assets

(1) Details of fixed assets

Plants and Motor Office
buildings vehicles equipment
. Book cost
1. Opening balance 309,678,954.40 4,530,441.60 6,632,059.43
2. Increase in the current year 5,600,000.00 492,614.48 136,814.63
(1) Purchase 5,600,000.00 492,614.48 136,814.63
(2) Transfer from work in
progress
(3) Increase in business
combinations
3. Decrease in the current year 366,999.68
(1) Disposal or scrap 366,999.68
(2) Transfer to work in
process
4. Exchange difference 2,178.08
5. Closing balance 315,278,954.40 5,023,056.08 6,404,052.46
II. Cumulative depreciation
1. Opening balance 12,365,798.08 3,961,809.21 1,566,259.46
2. Increase in the current year 12,455,948.34 60,213.18 1,213,126.70
(1) Provision 12,455,948.34 60,213.18 1,213,126.70
3. Decrease in the current year 346,334.24
(1) Disposal or scrap 346,334.24
(2) Transfer to work in
process
4. Exchange difference 1,848.67
5. Closing balance 24,821,746.42 4,022,022.39 2,434,900.59
IIl. Provision for impairment
IV. Book value
1. Closing book value 290,457,207.98 1,001,033.69 3,969,151.87
2. Opening book value 297,313,156.32 568,632.39 5,065,799.97

Electronic

equipment

57,280,797.38
296,683.59
296,683.59

1,258,041.30
1,258,041.30

39,806.70
56,359,246.37

42,489,896.21
5,241,851.24
5,241,851.24
1,224,501.92
1,224,501.92

37,231.97
46,544,477.50

9,814,768.87
14,790,901.17

378,122,252.81
6,526,112.70
6,626,112.70

1,625,040.98
1,625,040.98

41,984.78
383,065,309.31

60,383,762.96
18,971,139.46
18,971,139.46
1,570,836.16
1,570,836.16

39,080.64
77,823,146.90

305,242,162.41
317,738,489.85
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
15. Fixed assets (Continued)

15.1 Fixed assets (Continued)

2) Fixed assets without registered title certificates

Reasons for failure to

[tem Book value obtain the certificate of title

Underground parking space in 38,500,403 98

Hexi Financial City

Not yet surveyed and mapped
by Housing Authority

) At the end of the Reporting Period, there was no sign of impairment on fixed assets, thus no provision was

made for such impairment.

16. Right-of-use assets
(1)  Breakdown of right-of-use assets

[tem

|.  Book cost
1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the current year
(1) Leased-in
(2) Increase in business combinations
3. Decrease in the current year
(1) Disposal
4. Exchange difference
5. Closing balance
II.  Cumulative depreciation
1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the current year
(1) Provision
3. Decrease in the current year
(1) Disposal
4. Exchange difference
5. Closing balance
lIl. Provision for impairment
IV. Book value
1. Closing book value
2. Opening book value

Property leasing

101,637,497.44
7,380,032.39
7,380,032.39

12,263,186.83
12,263,186.83

221,252.40
96,975,595.40

78,614,343.25
15,137,245.33
15,137,245.33
12,263,186.83
12,263,186.83

156,817.99
81,645,219.74

15,330,375.66
23,023,154.19

Total

101,637,497.44

7,380,032.39
7,380,032.39

12,263,186.83
12,263,186.83

221,252.40
96,975,595.40

78,614,343.25
15,137,245.33
15,137,245.33
12,263,186.83
12,263,186.83

156,817.99
81,645,219.74

15,330,375.66
23,023,154.19
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

At the end of the Reporting Period, there was no sign of impairment on the right-of-use assets, thus there was
no provision for such impairment.

Intangible assets

Breakdown of intangible assets

[tem Software  Customer relations Total
|.  Book cost

1. Opening balance 7,790,727.02 6,100,000.00 18,890,727.02

2. Increase in the current period 687,093.01 687,093.01

(1) Purchase 687,093.01 687,093.01

3. Decrease in the current period
(1) Disposal or scrap

4. Exchange difference 14,369.67 14,369.67
5. Closing balance 8,492,189.70 6,100,000.00 14,592,189.70

[l. Cumulative amortisation
1. Opening balance 7,246,995.02 6,100,000.00 13,346,995.02
2. Increase in the current year 171,773.27 171,773.27
(1) Provision 171,773.27 171,773.27

3. Decrease in the current year
(1) Disposal or scrap
4. Exchange difference 2,477.67 2,477.67
5. Closing balance 7,421,245.96 6,100,000.00 13,5621,245.96
lIl. Provision for impairment
IV. Book value
1. Closing book value 1,070,943.74 1,070,943.74
2. Opening book value 543,732.00 543,732.00

At the end of the Reporting Period, there was no sign of impairment on the intangible assets, thus there was
no provision for such impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
18. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

(1) Deferred income tax assets not yet offset

Closing balance Opening balance

Deductible Deductible

temporary Deferred temporary Deferred

differences tax assets differences tax assets
Employee benefits payable 5,100,000.00 1,275,000.00 1,200,000.00 300,000.00
Credit impairment loss 465,133.39 116,283.35 10,619,346.70 2,590,417.46
Accrued expenses 165,888.33 41,472.08 367,367.61 91,841.90
Changes in the fair value of derivative

financial instruments 4,738,944.24 1,184,736.06

Provision for decline in value of inventories 11,376,949.55 2,844,237.39
Unrealized profit of internal transactions 43,709,129.72 10,927,282.43 54,069,408.60 13,517,352.15
Lease liabilities 14,312,470.68 3,578,117.67 20,667,289.56 5,166,822.39
Other 47,764,556.11 8,859,544.70 34,458,315.27 5,663,358.96
Total 122,894,127.78 27,641,937.62 126,120,671.98 28,614,528.92

(2) Deferred income tax liabilities without offset

Closing balance Opening balance

Taxable Deferred Taxable Deferred
temporary income tax temporary income tax

difference liabilities difference liabilities

Changes in the fair value of investment

properties 5,093,522.83 1,273,380.71 5,199,566.83 1,299,891.71
Changes in the fair value of financial assets/

liabilities held for trading 17,329,385.19 4,332,346.30 4,777,178.24 1,194,294.56
Right-of-use assets 13,972,589.65 3,493,147.41 20,077,051.70 5,019,262.93
Changes in the fair value of derivative

financial instruments 14,343,792.01 3,585,948.00
Total 50,739,289.68 12,684,822.42 30,053,796.77 7,513,449.20
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax assets or liabilities after offsetting

Closing amount of Closing balance of  Opening amount of ~ Opening balance of

deferred income  deferred income deferred income deferred income

tax assets and tax assets or tax assets and tax assets or

liabilities after liabilities after liabilities after liabilities after

offsetting offsetting offsetting offsetting

Deferred tax assets -9,292,352.77 18,349,584.85 -7,513,449.20 21,001,079.72
Deferred income tax liabilities -9,292,352.77 3,392,469.65 -7,613,449.20

Breakdown of unrecognised deferred income tax assets

ltem Closing amount Opening amount
Provision for impairment of goodwiill 53,167,251.21 53,167,251.21
Deductible losses 60,416,340.89 63,835,966.39
Total 113,583,592.10 117,008,217.60

The deductible loss of unrecognised deferred income tax assets will be due in the
following years

Under the current tax law, Holly International Financial’s deductible losses may be carried forward indefinitely
from the year in which they are incurred for tax deduction purposes.

Other assets

Breakdown
[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Advance payments 12,396,591.16 11,123,235.91
Prepaid expenses 5,765,679.02 6,614,928.65
Taxes to be refunded, deducted and settled 63,966,816.41 12,463,648.38
Overseas futures exchange deposit 1,692,376.85 1,517,404.28
Total 83,821,463.44 31,719,217.22
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Notes to the Financial Statements
From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
20. Short-term borrowings
(1) Category of short-term borrowings
[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Principal amount of credit borrowings 29,000,000.00 49,735,200.00
Accrued interest 18,850.00 47,662.90
Total 29,018,850.00 49,782,862.90
21. Currency deposits payable
(1) By customer category
Closing balance Opening balance
Customer category Amount Amount
Natural persons 98,063  3,820,942,886.69 94185  3,779,072,587.27
Legal persons 3,747  4,991,729,292.74 3,607 3,000,208,526.58
Total 101,810  8,812,672,179.43 97,792 6,779,281,113.85
(2) By exchange
Closing balance Opening balance
Exchange Amount
Domestic futures exchanges
Including: Shanghai Futures Exchange 2,563 921,148,336.20 2,316 716,472,501.67
Dalian Commodity Exchange 3,462 430,264,231.10 3,285 439,328,269.02
China Financial Futures Exchange 675 638,340,183.90 568 728,095,615.82
Zhengzhou Commodity Exchange 3,216 356,517,463.70 2,897 330,809,289.75
Shanghai International Energy
Exchange 233 39,166,334.70 290 39,224,954.20
China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited 16 2,685,210.10 9 7,207,033.66
Guangzhou Futures Exchange 467 64,292,330.10 308 39,985,190.50
Subtotal 10,632 2,452,414,089.80 9,673 2,301,122,854.62
Overseas futures brokers 5,081 464,941,146.98 4,861 507,857,510.15
Total 15,713 2,917,355,236.78 14,534 2,808,980,364.77
Note:  The customer margins stated by exchange shall not include the customer margins deposited in bank accounts or the
settlement reserves deposited at the exchanges.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Pledged deposits payable

By customer category
Closing balance Opening balance
Customer category Amount Amount
Legal persons 3 26,216,168.00 1 61,590,912.00
Total 3 26,216,168.00 1 61,590,912.00
By exchange
Exchange Closing balance Opening balance
Shanghai Futures Exchange 10,949,256.00 61,590,912.00
Dalian Commodity Exchange 512,304.00
Zhengzhou Commaodity Exchange 14,754,608.00
Total 26,216,168.00 61,590,912.00

Financial liabilities held for trading

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 7,912,762.09 61,534,340.24
Including: Accounts payable 7,912,762.09 61,534,340.24

For the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, the changes of their fair values are listed below:

Cumulative
changes of fair

Changes of values due to

fair value changes of their

at the end of year own credit risks
Trade Payable -87,572.36 Nil

At the end of Reporting Period, there was no difference between the book value of the financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss and the amount payable to creditors under contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V.
24.

(1)

@)

25,
(1)

&)

26.
(1)

&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

By business category

[tem Closing balance Opening balance

Bonds 4,298,255.52 56,687,229.99

Total 4,298,255.52 56,687,229.99
Security information

[tem Closing balance Opening balance

Bonds 49,736,241.85 90,901,734.50

Total 49,736,241.85 90,901,734.50

Futures risk reserve

Breakdown
[tem Opening balance  Current increase Current decrease Closing balance
Futures risk provision 169,222,360.19 7,524,365.16 176,746,725.35
Total 169,222,360.19 7,524,365.16 176,746,725.35

Description of accrual method and ratio of futures risk provision

The futures risk provision is accrued at 5% of the parent company’s net agency fee income and is included in
the current period’s profit or loss.

Futures investors protection funds payable
Breakdown

[tem Opening balance  Current increase Current decrease Closing balance

Futures investors protection funds
payable 310,592.85 427,837.33 310,299.81 428,130.37

Total 310,592.85 427,837.33 310,299.81 428,130.37

Description of accrual method and ratio of payable to futures investors protection fund

According to the CSRC Decree No. 129: Decision to Modify the Interim Measures for the Administration of
Futures Investor Safeguard Funds (dated 8 November 2016) (ARMEM<EI SR EEREEL BB EITIVE
>HYRTE), starting from 8 December 2016, the Company should make payment to this fund at a rate of six in
100 million of the broker transaction volume instead of six in 10 million.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Employee benefits payable

Employee compensation payable by category

ltem Opening balance  Current increase Current decrease Closing balance
Short-term compensation 2,303,860.56 163,704,671.79 159,204,383.53 6,804,148.82
Post-employment benefits-Defined

Contribution Plan 24,319,819.10  24,293,854.94 25,964.16
Dismissal benefits 1,360,403.65 1,360,403.65
Total 2,303,860.56 189,384,894.54 184,858,642.12 6,830,112.98

Short-term compensation

[tem Opening balance Current increase  Current decrease  Closing balance
Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 1,740,576.22 128,385,932.91 124,014,907.61 6,111,601.52
Workers’ benefits 10,184,231.52 10,184,231.52
Social insurance premiums 11,445,947.82 11,445,947.82

Including: Medical insurance premiums - 10,535,169.17 10,535,169.17
Work injury insurance
premiums = 224,314.56 224,314.56
Maternity insurance premiums = 686,464.09 686,464.09
Housing reserve fund 16,710.01 11,181,769.96 11,198,479.97
Labour union funding and employee
education funding 546,574.33 2,506,789.58 2,360,816.61 692,547.30
Total 2,303,860.56 163,704,671.79 159,204,383.53 6,804,148.82

Defined Contribution Plan

ltem Opening balance  Current increase Current decrease Closing balance

Basic pension 17,088,967.48 17,063,003.32 25,964.16
Unemployment insurance 543,582.73 543,582.73
Enterprise annuity contributions 6,687,268.89 6,687,268.89
Total 24,319,819.10 24,293,854.94 25,964.16

The Group has contribution schemes only, mainly endowment insurance, annuity, and unemployment
insurance, and the Group cannot use the endowment insurance and enterprise annuity deposited for
employees, and the Company’s employees can only receive their contributions to endowment insurance and
enterprise annuity when they reach the retirement age stipulated by the state. Also, the Group does not apply
defined benefit schemes (defined benefit schemes).

For each of the two financial years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024, there were no forfeited contributions

under the Group’s defined contribution schemes (represented by employees who left the schemes before the
contributions were fully vested) available to the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V.
28.

29.

30.

244

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Taxes payable

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Enterprise income tax 75,993.63 669,321.47
VAT 1,026,799.00 709,229.11
Taxes and surcharges 389,995.57 584,182.98
Withholding of personal income tax 421,267.37 91,863.69
Total 1,914,055.57 2,054,597.25
Bills payable

Type of bills Closing balance Opening balance
Banker’s acceptance bills 237,954,486.22

Total 237,954,486.22

There was no matured but unpaid bills payable as of the end of the period.

Contract liabilities

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Receipts in advance 446,185.04
Total 446,185.04

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements
From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. Other payables

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Interest payable
Dividend payable
Other payables 489,672,703.56 183,508,959.48
Total 489,672,703.56 183,508,959.48
31.1 Other payables
ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Margins payable 177,653,464.02 125,442,231.49
Construction payable 7,155,454.63 16,267,959.69
Amounts pending settlement of asset management plans 18,157,751.20 3,209,023.53
Risk guarantee payable 4,721,366.24 4,393,114.21
Auditor’s fee payable 2,480,000.00 2,580,000.00
Amounts due to the Distributor Fund 10,025,003.14 111.86
Customers’ equity payable 1,511,923.57 1,183,337.26
Warrant pledge payment payable 261,922,432.00 18,022,400.00
Others 6,045,308.76 12,410,781.44
Total 489,672,703.56 183,508,959.48
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
32. Long-term borrowings
(1) Category of long-term borrowings

[tem Closing balance

Principal amount of mortgage borrowings
Accrued interest

Opening balance

60,984,050.00
1568,716.81

Total

61,142,766.81

(2) Profile of maturity dates of long-term borrowings

Type of borrowings Closing balance

Mortgage borrowings

Opening balance

61,142,766.81

Total

61,142,766.81

The carrying amount of the aforementioned
borrowings shall be repaid in the following periods:
Within one year
After one year from the balance sheet date but
within two years
After two years from the balance sheet date but
within five years

28,129,684.81

27,970,968.00

5,042,114.00

Total

61,142,766.81

33. Lease liabilities

[tem Closing balance Opening balance
Within 1 year 10,432,579.90 14,911,256.81
11to 2 years 3,664,751.26 7,326,887.35
2 to 5 years 1,577,079.64 1,415,020.81
Book value of lease liability 15,674,410.80 23,653,164.97
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36.

Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Share capital

Change for the current year (+/-)

Provident fund
Opening balance New issue Bonus issue conversion Qthers Subtotal ~ Closing balance

Total shares 1,007,777,778.00 - - 1,007,777,778.00

Capital reserve

ltem Opening balance  Current increase Current decrease Closing balance

Share premium 593,701,109.72 593,701,109.72
Others 4,701,890.00 4,701,890.00
Total 598,402,999.72 598,402,999.72

Other comprehensive income

Amount incurred in the current year

Less: Less:

Transfer from  Transfer from

previous other  previous other
Amount comprehensive comprehensive Attrioutatle
incurred before income to income to Attributableto to minortty

Opening incometax  current profit current refained  Less: Income ~ theparent ~ shareholders Closing

balance  for the year orloss gamings  tax expense after tax after tax balance

|. Other comprehensive income that cannot

be reclassified into profit or loss -283,607.36 7090184 -212,705.62 -212,705.52
Changes in fair value of Investment in
other equity instruments -283,607.36 7090184  -212,705.52 -212,705.52
Il. Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit and loss 6,646,700.10  3,708,175.98 -5209.02  3,702,966.96 10,349,667.16
Change in fair value of other debt
investments 20,836.08 520902 15,627.06 15,627.06
Translation difference of foreign
currency financial statements 6,646,700.10  3,687,339.90 3,687,339.90 10,334,040.00
Others
Total other comprehensive income 6,646,700.10  3,424,568.62 65,692.82  3,490,261.44 10,136,961.54
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
37. Surplus reserve

Opening Current Current Closing
ltem balance increase decrease balance
Statutory surplus reserve 71,425,437.16 2,472,955.02 73,898,392.18
Total 71,425,437.16 2,472,955.02 73,898,392.18

38. General risk reserve

Opening Current Current Closing
[tem balance increase decrease balance
General risk reserve 97,305,014.53 2,472,955.02 99,777,969.55
Total 97,305,014.53 2,472,955.02 99,777,969.55
39. Retained earnings
[tem Current year Last year

Retained earnings at the end of the previous year before

adjustment 65,935,375.99 60,537,412.94
Adjustments to total undistributed profits at the beginning

of the year (+ for increase and — for decrease
Undistributed profits at the beginning of the year after

adjustment 65,935,375.99 60,537,412.94
Add: Current net profit attributable to shareholders of
parent company 29,826,197.50 7,791,496.31
Less: Statutory surplus reserve 2,472,955.02 1,196,766.63
Appropriation for general risk reserve 2,472,955.02 1,196,766.63
Dividend payable on ordinary shares 4,031,111.11
Balance at the end of current year 86,784,552.34 65,935,375.99
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
40. Net handling fee and commission income

sM noqy

(1) Breakdown of net handling fee and commission income

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Net brokerage fee income 39,907,185.05 39,813,976.81
Exchange fee reduction deemed as income 133,412,015.37 157,229,593.33
Subtotal of net brokerage fee income 173,319,200.42 197,043,570.14
Income from asset management business 6,001,893.13 6,099,313.93
Total 179,321,093.55 203,142,884.07

(2) Net handling fee and commission income by business offices in administrative regions

Amount incurred in the current year Amount incurred in the last year

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

Net handling Net handling
fee and fee and
Number of commission Number of commission
Administrative regions branches income branches income
Jiangsu Province 19  133,814,373.73 22 162,067,938.68
Fujian Province 2 3,129,317.32 2 4,641,227.25
Shanghai 2 4,905,359.91 2 3,029,648.22
Zhejiang Province 2 3,813,414.53 2 4,667,945.66
Henan Province 1 2,920,852.19 1 1,926,138.18
Guangdong Province 2 1,882,461.67 8 1,536,304.23
Beijing 2 1,270,430.78 2 1,284,200.61
Hong Kong, China 1 10,215,552.88 1 7,751,586.22
Shandong Province 2 3,550,910.47 2 3,074,298.59
Shaanxi Province 1 2,822,217.66 1 2,070,682.46
Anhui Province 2 2,374,345.38 2 2,225,613.03
Liaoning Province 2 2,625,186.91 2 1,901,853.35
Guangxi Province 1 1,272,211.77 1 1,042,989.45 M
Hunan Province 1 1,565,985.16 1 1,243,894.79 3
Chongging 1 1,853,625.78 1 3,485,416.41 é.
Sichuan Province 1 1567,080.96 —
Shanxi Province 1 1,130,979.91 1 679,029.86 g"
Hainan Province 1 173,867.50 1 457,036.12 g
Total 43  179,321,093.55 48  203,142,884.07 §'
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Notes to the Financial Statements
From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

41. Net interest income

[tem

Interest income

Including: Interest income from customer fund deposits
Interest income from own funds deposit
Interest income from repurchase agreements

Amount incurred

in the current year

Amount incurred
in the last year

85,361,582.33
25,190,760.02
1,340,171.81

83,438,712.27
18,121,955.34
1,286,583.75

Total interest income

111,892,514.16 102,847,251.36

Interest expense
Including: Interest expense on sale and repurchase

535,694.39 1,247,828.44

Total interest expenses

535,694.39 1,247,828.44

Net interest income

111,356,819.77 101,5699,422.92

42. Investment gains

(i) Investment gains breakdown

[tem

Long term equity investment gains calculated with cost
method

Long term equity investment gains calculated with equity

method
Including: Gains on investment in associates
Gains on investment in joint ventures
Investment gains from disposal of long term equity
investment
Financial instrument investment gains
Including: Grains on financial instrument during
holding period
— Financial instrument held for trading
— Other debt investments
— Investment in other equity instruments
Proceeds from disposal
— Derivative financial instruments
— Financial instrument held for trading
— Other debt investments

Amount incurred
in the current year

Amount incurred
in the last year

457,216.24 212.54
457,216.24 212.54
72,402,390.93 -26,380,375.26
3,182,160.36 10,379,305.28
2,579,546.68 10,379,305.28
33,809.22
568,804.46
69,220,230.57 -36,759,680.54
63,663,718.16 -15,872,937.62
5,392,258.35 -20,886,742.92
164,254.06

Total

72,859,607.17 -26,380,162.72
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43.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Investment gains (Continued)

Gains from investment in associates

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Jiangsu Hongrui New Era Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
(LER AT BRI ERR LN RF) 463,406.15 3,470.61
Jiangsu Hongrui Growth Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
(L#ERsAImAX R EIZERE FR A7) -6,189.91 -3,258.07
Total 457,216.24 212.54

There is no significant restriction on repatriation of investment gains.

Other gains
Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Government subsidies 1,003,936.94 445,288.93
Individual income tax refund 107,260.96 23,938.38
Total 1,111,197.90 469,227.31

Government subsidies included in profit or loss for the year

Related to
Subsidy Amount  assets/gains  Issuing authority Approval document
Job stabilization 1,679.00  Related to Office of Jiangsu Provincial Implementation Opinions of the Provincial
subsidy income People’s Government Government on Implementing Employment

Priority Policies and Further Doing a Good Job of
Stabilizing Employment (Su Zheng Fa [2020] No.

53)
Job stabilization ~ 6,232.00 Relatedto ~ Employment and Talent Circular of Liaoning Province on Optimizing and
subsidy income Service Center of Liaoning Adjusting Policies and Measures for Stabilizing
Province Employment Stabilization Policies to Further

Promote Development, Benefit the People’s
Livelihood and Assist Revitalization (Liao Zheng
Ban Fa No. [2023] 8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
43. Other incomes (Continued)

(1)  Government subsidies included in profit or loss for the year (Continued)

Related to
Subsidy Amount  assets/gains  Issuing authority Approval document
Job stabilization 4,071.46  Related to Department of Human Notice of the Fujian Province Department of
subsidy income Resources and Social Human Resources and Social Security and the
Security of Fujian Province, Fujian Province Department of Finance Fujian
Department of Finance Province State Administration of Taxation on
of Fujian Province, Fujian the Implementation of the Policy of Assistance
Provincial Taxation Bureau to Enterprises and Stabilization of Posts by
of the State Administration Unemployment Insurance (Fujian Province Human
of Taxation Resource and Social Security Department, Fujian
Province) (Min Ren She Wen [2024] No. 56)
Job stabilization ~ 7,959.00  Related to Office of Jiangsu Provincial Notice of Office of Jiangsu Provincial People’s
subsidy income People’s Government Government on Optimizing and Adjusting

Employment Stabilization Policies and Measures
for Promoting Development to Benefit Citizens (Su
Zheng Ban Fa [2023] No. 33)

Job stabilization ~ 5,170.64  Related to Department of Human Notice of the Department of Human Resources and
subsidy income Resources and Social Social Security of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Security of Guangxi Region, the Department of Finance of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Zhuang Autonomous Region and the Tax
Region, Department Bureau of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region
of Finance of Guangxi of the State Administration of Taxation on
Zhuang Autonomous the Continuation of the Implementation of the
Region, Guangxi Zhuang Unemployment Insurance Assistance Stabilization
Autonomous Region Tax Policy (Gui Ren She Fa [2024] No. 26)
Service, State Taxation
Administration
Job stabilization 532400 Related to Jincheng Municipal Human Notice of the Department of Human Resources
subsidy income Resources and Social and Social Security of Shanxi Province, the
Security Bureau Department of Finance of Shanxi Province and

the State Administration of Taxation on Issues
Relating to the Continued Implementation of the
Policy of Unemployment Insurance in Support
of Enterprises and Stabilization of Posts in the
Province (Jin Ren She Ting Fa [2024] No. 28)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continueo)
43. Other incomes (Continued)

(1)  Government subsidies included in profit or loss for the year (Continued)

Subsidy

Job stabilization
subsidy

Job stabilization

subsidy

Job stabilization
subsidy

Job stabilization
subsidy

Related to

assets/gains  Issuing authority

5818.98  Related to Department of Human

income Resources and Social
Security of Jiangsu Province,
Department of Finance of
Jiangsu Province, Jiangsu
Commission of Health,
Bureau of Medical Security
of Jiangsu Province, and
Administrative Office of
Jiangsu Province

3,000.00 Related to Department of Human

income Resources and Social
Security of Jiangsu
Province, Jiangsu Education
Department, Department of
Finance of Jiangsu Province

10,669.56  Related to Department of Human

income Resources and Social
Security of Hunan Province,
Department of Finance of
Hunan Province, Hunan
Provincial Department of
Finance, Hunan Healthcare
Security Administration,
Hunan Provincial Tax
Service, State Taxation
Administration

12,124.84  Related to Ministry of Human Resources

income and Social Security,
MOF, State Taxation
Administration

Approval document

Circular of the Provincial Department of Human
Resources and Social Security, the Provincial
Department of Finance, the Provincial Department
of Health and Healthcare Commission, the
Provincial Medical Security Bureau and the
Provincial Administrative Office on Matters
Relating to Corporate Social Insurance Subsidies
during Maternity Leave (Su Ren She Fa [2022]
No. 47)

Notice of the Provincial Department of Human
Resources and Social Security, the Provincial
Department of Education and the Provincial
Department of Finance on the Continued
Implementation of the One-time Expansion
Subsidy Policy (Su Ren She Fa [2023] No. 42)

Notice of the Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Hunan Province, the
Department of Finance Hunan Province, the
Hunan Provincial Medical Security Bureau and
the Hunan Provincial Tax Bureau of the State
Administration of Taxation on Enhancing the
Implementation of Unemployment Insurance
to Support Enterprise Stability and Ensure the
Livelihoods of Unemployed Workers (Xiang Ren
She Gui [2024] No. 8)

Circular of the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security, Ministry of Finance, and
State Taxation Administration on the Work of
Stabilizing Jobs and Enhancing Skills to Prevent
Unemployment (Ren She Bu Fa [2022] No. 23)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
43. Other incomes (Continued)
(1)  Government subsidies included in profit or loss for the year (Continued)

Related to

Subsidy Amount  assets/gains Approval document

Issuing authority

254

Security of Jiangsu Province,
Department of Finance of
Jiangsu Province, Jiangsu
Provincial Tax Service, State
Taxation Administration

Job stabilization ~ 7,053.58  Related to Department of Human Notice of Four Departments Including Department
subsidy income Resources and Social of Human Resources and Social Security of
Security of Shandong Shandong Province on Ensuring the Effective
Province, Department Implementation of Unemployment Insurance
of Finance of Shandong Palicies to Support Enterprise Stability (Lu Ren
Province, Shandong She Fa [2024] No. 8)
Provincial Tax Service, State
Taxation Administration,
Qingdao Tax Service, State
Taxation Administration
Job stabilization 1,000.00 Related to Human Resources and Social ~ Administrative Procedures for Guangdong
subsidy income Security Department of Province’s Unemployment Insurance Job-
Guangdong Province Stabilization Refunds (Yue Ren She Gui [2024]
No. 19)
Job stabilization ~ 7,928.18  Related to Ministry of Human Resources ~ Notice of the Ministry of Human Resources and
subsidy income and Social Security, Social Security, MOF and the State Administration
MOF, State Taxation of Taxation on the Continued Implementation of
Administration the Policy of Unemployment Insurance to Assist
Enterprises in Stabilizing Their Posts (Ren She Bu
Fa [2024] No. 40)
Job stabilization 1,600.00 Related to Department of Human Circular of the Office of the Provincial Department
subsidy income Resources and Social of Human Resources and Social Security on
Security of Jiangsu Province Ensuring the Effective Implementation of the One-
time Expansion Subsidy Policy Implementation
Procedure (Su Ren She Ban Fa Han [2024] No.
97)
Job stabilization 246,923.00 Relatedto  Department of Human Notice of the Provincial Department of Human
subsidy income Resources and Social Resources and Social Security, the Provincial

Department of Finance and the Tax Bureau of
Jiangsu Province of the State Administration of
Taxation on the Continued Implementation of

the Policy of Assisting Enterprises and Stabilizing
Their Posts through Unemployment Insurance (Su
Ren She Fa [2024] No. 31)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
43. Other incomes (Continued)

(1)  Government subsidies included in profit or loss for the year (Continued)

Related to
Subsidy assets/gains  Issuing authority Approval document
Job stabilization 657,400.00 Related to Nanshan District People’s Notice of the People’s Government of Nanshan
subsidy income Government of Shenzhen District of Shenzhen on the Printing and Issuance

of the Measures for the Administration of Special
Funds for Promoting High-Quality Development of
Industries in Nanshan District and Other Policies
for Supporting Industries (Shen Nan Fu Gui [2024]

No. 2)
Job stabilization  20,082.70  Related to General Office of the Shanghai  Notice of the Office of Shanghai Municipal People’s
subsidy income Municipal People’s Government on the Printing and Issuance of the
Government “Notice of Certain Policy Measures of Shanghai

on Reducing the Burden of Enterprises and
Supporting the Development of Small and
Medium-sized Enterprises” (Hu Fu Ban Gui [2024]

No. 4)
Total 1,003,936.94
44. Gains from changes in fair value
Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the currrent year in the last year
Financial assets held for trading 18,816,830.22 31,584,224.64
Investment properties -106,044.00 152,394.00
Financial liabilities held for trading 538,183.08 -11,158,881.42
Derivative financial instruments 19,519,852.54 5,860,609.20
Total 38,768,821.84 26,438,346.42
45. Foreign exchange gains
Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Foreign exchange gains -308,589.19 302,679.87
Total -308,589.19 302,679.87
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continueq)
46. Income from other business activities

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Spot sales revenue 2,464,560,107.63 1,632,227,241.38
Revenue of Insurance + Futures business 5,756,051.25 3,181,132.07
Leasing income 2,400,854.15 2,355,866.71
Total 2,472,717,013.03 1,637,764,240.16

47. Profit from disposal of assets

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Gain on disposal of fixed assets -40,341.09 -118,519.94
Total -40,341.09 -118,5619.94

48. Futures risk reserve expenses

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Provision for futures risk reserve 7,524,365.16 8,370,982.49
Total 7,524,365.16 8,370,982.49

49. Taxes and surcharges

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
City maintenance and construction tax 331,928.03 304,332.35
Educational surcharges 142,208.64 129,665.02
Local education surcharges 94,805.82 86,443.35
Property tax 1,994,388.42 2,397,617.26
Other 1,512,009.80 875,871.45
Total 4,075,340.71 3,793,929.43
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
50. Operating and management expenses

sM noqy

Amount incurred Amount incurred

[tem in the current year in the last year

Staff benefits 187,701,669.38 181,712,365.97
Office expenses 42,831,015.31 38,861,416.48
Depreciation & amortization 34,280,158.06 33,758,765.43
Rent 7,237,618.63 5,721,320.87
Finance costs 6,016,106.96 6,428,668.48
Insurance, brokerage and consulting services fees 12,057,289.56 5,143,377.14

Including: Audit fee 1,301,886.79 1,396,226.42
Investor Protection Fund 403,447.44 292,868.29
Maintenance fees 3,864,576.62 6,035,853.97
R&D costs 1,761,496.15 2,045,984.26
Other 13,832,464.13 9,500,971.66
Total 309,985,842.24 289,501,592.55

51. Credit impairment loss

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Impairment loss on currency deposits receivable -84,953.16 722,725.55
Bad debt loss on other receivables -290,179.57 -240,147.85
Bad debt loss on advance to customers -117,708.24 72,762.52
Total -492,840.97 555,340.22
52. Other assets impairment loss
Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Loss on decline in value of inventories 11,376,949.55
Total 11,376,949.55 s
5
53. Other operating cost %i
Amount incurred Amount incurred g"
[tem in the current year in the last year g
Cost of sales of spot goods 2,502,571,512.91 1,631,287,874.94 g'
Cost of Insurance + Futures business 6,101,633.14 3,158,419.43
Total 2,508,673,146.05 1,634,446,294.37
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From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
54. Non-operating income
(1)  Breakdown of non-operating income

Amount included

in non-recurring

Amount incurred Amount incurred profit or loss

in the current year in the last year for the year

Government subsidy 2,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
Exchange subsidy 931,981.12 810,849.06 931,981.12
Liquidated damages 1,716,248.39 1,716,248.39
Others 171,759.19 507,558.02 171,759.19
Total 4,819,988.70 4,318,407.08 4,819,988.70

(2) Government subsidies included in profit or loss for the year

Whether the subsidy ~— Whether it

Reason for issuing the affects theproftor s a spec Amountincurred ~ Amount incurred Related fo
Subsidy Issuing authortty Subsicles Nature loss for the year Subsicy in the current year inthe last year assets/income
Prelminary Janye Inteim Measures on Preimnary ~ Yes No 2,000,000.00 300000000 Related toincome
subsidies DistrictFinancial Supporting High-Qualty subsidies
Supenisory Development of Financial
Authorty Industres and Capttal

Markets in Jianye Distict

Totd 2,000,000.00 3,000,000.00

55. Non-operating expenses

Amount included

in non-recurring

Amount incurred Amount incurred profit or loss

in the current year in the last year for the year

Late payment expenses 97,710.23 97,710.23
Litigation compensation expenses 388,744.00 171,381.00 388,744.00
Others 687,402.43 224,952.90 687,402.43
Total 1,173,856.66 396,333.90 1,173,856.66
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
Income tax expense

Breakdown of income tax expense

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Current income tax expense 2,225,066.65 6,967,739.49
Deferred income tax expense 6,237,688.13 -4,287,183.59
Total 8,462,754.78 2,680,555.90

Accounting profit and income tax expense adjustments

Amount incurred

[tem in the current year
Total profit of the current period 38,288,952.28
Income tax expense calculated at the statutory/applicable tax rate 9,572,238.07
Impact of different tax rates applied to subsidiaries -442,034.72
Impact of accelerated deduction on R&D expenses -440,374.04
Impact of non-taxable income -398,428.13
Impact of non-deductible costs, expenses and losses 745,296.95
Effect of unrecognized deductible losses on deferred income tax assets in prior

periods of use -573,943.35
Income tax expense 8,462,754.78

Additional information on cash flow statement

Cash related to operating activities

Other cash received related to operating activities

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Securities settlement or redemption payments received 5,677,164.60
Pending settlement payments received 48,329,039.27 53,590,528.84
Standard warrant pledge received 243,900,032.00 18,022,400.00
Margin and commission received 229,776,354.78 104,479,372.08
Non-operating income and other income 5,931,186.60 4,787,634.39
Other 31,573,984.06 3,960,112.13
Total 565,187,761.31 184,840,047.44
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continueq)
57. Additional information on cash flow statement (Continued)
(1) Cash related to operating activities (Continued)

2) Cash paid for other operating activities

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Funds paid by other holders of structured entity 53,083,395.07 36,069,942.55
Payment of amount to be settled 4,176,714.04 48,495,377.95
Margin and commission paid 172,107,045.69 34,795,894.85
Litigation compensation 388,744.00 171,381.00
Other 30,205,085.08 26,732,633.20
Total 259,960,983.88 146,265,229.55
(2) Cash related to investing activities
1) Material cash received related to investing activities
Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Treasury bond reverse repurchase 16,342,727,000.00 11,328,887,000.00
Total 16,342,727,000.00 11,328,887,000.00

2) Material cash paid related to investing activities

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Treasury bond reverse repurchase 16,490,545,000.00 11,859,351,000.00
Total 16,490,545,000.00 11,859,351,000.00

(3) Cash related to financing activities

1) Other cash paid related to financing activities
Amount incurred Amount incurred
ltem in the current year in the last year
Expenses related to financing 1,849,056.60
Total 1,849,056.60
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
58. Additional information on cash flow statement

SN 1hoqy

(1)  Additional information on cash flow statement

Others
Net cash flow from operating activities

. Major investment and financing activities that do
not involve cash receipts and expenditures:
Conversion of debt into capital
Convertible corporate bonds due within one year
Finance lease fixed assets

. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash balance at the end of period
Less: Cash balance at the beginning of period
Add: Cash equivalent balance at the end of period
Less: Cash equivalent balance at the beginning of period
Net increase of cash and cash equivalents

2,348,081,169.59

7,036,460,835.63
4,812,444,833.69

2,224,016,001.94

Amount incurred Amount incurred \
in the current year in the last year AN
1. Adjustment of net profit to cash flow from operating
activities:
Net profit 29,826,197.50 7,791,496.31 [®)
Add: Impairment loss on assets 11,376,949.55 _8
Credit impairment loss -492,840.97 555,340.22 g_
Depreciation of fixed assets, depreciation of oil and =
gas assets, depreciation of productive biological (c:)
assets 18,971,139.46 18,3583,069.58 =
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15,137,245.33 15,405,695.85 gﬁ
Amortization of intangible assets 171,773.27 >
Amortization of long-term deferred expenses
Loss (“-” for gain) from disposal of fixed assets, intangible \}
assets and other long term assets 40,341.09 118,519.94 ~——
Fixed assets scrap loss (“-” for gain)
Loss (“-” for gain) from changes in fair value -19,248,969.30 -20,577,737.22
Financial expense (“-” for income) 3,174,880.61 5,740,652.60 g)
Exchange losses (“-” for income) 308,589.19 -302,679.87 o
Investment loss (“-” for gain) -9,195,889.01 4.,821,007.84 8
Decrease (“-” for increase) of deferred income tax assets 2,651,494.87 -4,287,183.59 o
Increase (“-” for decrease) of deferred income tax liabilities 3,392,469.65 g)
Decrease (“-” for increase) of inventories -356,984,826.79 -64,018,473.68 é
Decrease (“-” for increase) of operating receivables 174,216,569.99 -414,520,735.15 g
Increase (“-” for decrease) of operating payables 2,468,016,157.41 -1,174,562,071.76 8
Net interest income -804,477.42 -38,755.31 @
Futures risk reserve expenses 7,524,365.16 8,370,982.49 N\

-1,617,150,871.75

4,812,444,833.69
6,316,445,892.54

-1,504,001,058.85
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continueq)
58. Additional information on cash flow statement (Continued)

@)

Cash and cash equivalents

Amount incurred
[tem

Cash
Including: Cash on hand

in the current year

Bank deposit immediately available 7,021,676,172.13

Amount incurred
in the last year

4,798,463,612.21

Other Monetary funds immediately available 14,784,663.50 13,981,221.48
Cash equivalents
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 7,036,460,835.63 4,812,444,833.69

3

Monetary funds that are not cash and cash equivalents

Amount for Amount for

the year previous year

Reasons not

belonging to

cash and cash
equivalents

Monetary funds 150,216,457.93 3,327,231.85 Restricted in use
Monetary funds 22,126,815.65 25,051,648.79 Accrued interest on

Monetary funds
Total 172,343,273.58 28,378,880.64 -

59. Assets with restricted ownership or use rights

Closing balance

17,018,809.77

Monetary funds
Monetary funds 133,197,648.16

Financial assets held for trading 49,736,241.85

At the end of the year
Type of
Book value restriction Restriction status
17,018,809.77 Frozen Product Fund
Raising Account
133,197,648.16 Frozen Note Margin
49,736,241.85 Pledge Pledge for sale

and repurchase

Total 199,952,699.78

199,952,699.78 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
59. Assets with restricted ownership or use rights (Continued)

sM noqy

At the beginning of the year
Type of r

Closing balance Book value estriction Restriction status

Monetary funds 3,327,231.85 3,327,231.85 Frozen Product Fund
Raising Account

Financial assets held for trading 90,901,734.50 90,901,734.50 Pledge Pledge for sale
and repurchase

Fixed assets 274,678,954.40  263,320,732.12 Mortgage Mortgage of
long-term borrowings

Investment properties 48,573,122.00 48,573,122.00 Mortgage Mortgage of

long-term borrowings

Total 417,481,042.75  406,122,820.47 — —

60. Foreign currency monetary items

(1)  Foreign currency monetary items

Foreign currency

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

balance at the Year-end balance
end of the year Exchange rate  in RMB equivalent
Monetary funds
Including: USD 26,526,191.99 7.1884 190,680,878.50
HKD 119,934,891.92 0.92604 111,064,507.31
JPY 1.00 0.046233 0.05
Financing capital
Including: HKD 3,820,403.42 0.92604 3,537,846.38
Currency deposits receivable
Including: HKD 294,913,705.56 0.92604 273,101,887.90

(2) Important overseas business entity

Principal place Accounting Basis for selection of

Name of entity of business currency accounting currency

Holly International Financial Holdings Hong Kong HKD Local currency
Limited (GAX B & BIERE R R))

uoljeLwou| [eroueul
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

V. Notes to Financial Statements (continueo)
61. Lease

(1)  The Group as lessee

Amount incurred Amount incurred

[tem in the current year in the last year

Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,423,100.97 1,297,236.79
Expenses relating to short-term leases accounted for

current profit or loss under the simplified approach 7,237,618.63 5,721,320.87

Lease expenses relating to low value asset accounted for
current profit or loss under the simplified approach
(other than short-term leases)

Variable lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of the lease liabilities

Including: Portion arising from sale-and-leaseback

transactions
Income from subletting of right-to-use assets
Total cash outflows relating to leases 16,043,796.07 16,066,598.85
Relevant profit or loss arising from sale-and-
leaseback transactions
Cash inflows from leaseback transactions
Cash outflows from leaseback transactions

(2) The Group as lessor

1) Operating leases where the Group is a lessor

Including: Income

related to variable
lease payments
not included in

Leasing income lease receipts
Lease housing 2,400,854.15
Total 2,400,854.15
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

VI. Research and development expenditure

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Direct investment 78,270.99 826,338.34
Staff cost 1,683,225.16 1,219,645.92
Total 1,761,496.15 2,045,984.26
Including: Expensed research and development expenditure 1,761,496.15 2,045,984.26

Capitalised research and development
expenditure

VIIl. Changes in the Scope of the Consolidated Statements

()

(1

(1)

(V)

?A

Business combination not under the same control

In 2024, the Group had no subsidiary acquired through business combination not under the same control.

Business combination under the same control

In 2024, the Group had no subsidiary acquired through business combination under the same control.

Reverse takeover

In 2024, the Group had no subsidiary acquired through reverse takeover.

Disposal of subsidiary

In 2024, the Group had no disposal of subsidiary.

Changes in the scope of consolidation for other reasons
New subsidiary

In 2024, there was no new subsidiary or entity to be consolidated.

Reduction of subsidiaries by deregistration or otherwise

In 2024, there was no reduction of subsidiaries by deregistration or other means.

Structured entities

During the year 2024, the Group consolidated one additional structured entity, namely the “Holly Flexible
Allocation Ruijin Multi-Strategy Single Asset Management Plann (SAZEE AL B $1 i Z R E — B EEIETE),
however, such consolidation did not have significant impact on the financial conditions, operating results and
cash flow of the Group for the year 2024.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

VIl.Interests in Other Entities
(I) Interests in subsidiaries

1. Members of the Group

(1) Subsidiaries

Shareholding %
Principal place of ~ Place of
Subsidiary name Registered capital business registration  Business nature Direct Indlrect  Reason
Holly Gapital Management Co., Ltd. RMB500 milion Nanjing Shenzhen  Commodty trading and 100% Establishment
FAREAERABRA) fisk managerent
Holly Intemational Financial Holdings ~~ HKD240 millon Hong Kong HongKong  Futures brokerage 100% Business
Limited A EIR 2 BERBRAR) combination under
common control
Holly Interational Asset Management ~ HKD20 millon Hong Kong HongKong  Assets management 100%  Establishment
Company Limited
(L¥EAREEERARAR)
Holl Intermational Fund Series SPC USD1 Hong Kong Cayman~ Fund investment 100%  Establishment
(AEERES 5 SPO)
Holl Intemational Fixed Income Fund -~ USD100 Hong Kong Cayman Fund investment 100%  Establishment
[LFERERNEES)

Note: A domestic enterprise registered under the laws of the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

VIIl. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

()
1.

2

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)
Members of the Group (Continued)
Structured entities

Under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“ASBE”) No. 33: Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Group regards itself as the manager of structured entities, or as the main responsible person
for the structured entities, and the Group will include the structured entities where the Group participates with
its own funds, which fall in the definition of “control” in the updated ASBE, into the scope of the consolidated
statements.

On 31 December 2024, the net assets managed under the consolidated asset management plans and fund
amounted to RMB91,554,804.94, and meanwhile, the book value of the Group’s interests in the consolidated
asset management plans reached RMB83,642,042.85, which was recognised in “financial assets held for

” o«

trading”, “Monetary funds”, “other receivables” and “other payables” in the financial report.

The Group’s actual

capital contribution at

Structured entity name the end of period

Holly Volatility Gain Phase | Collective Asset Management  Asset management RMB2,000,000
Plan GA¥RENIER1 IR S EEE R E) plan

Holly Hongsheng FOF2301 Single Asset Management Asset management RMB22,000,000
Plan (5A%5AFFOF2301 8 — & E B 1251 E) plan

Holly Flexible Allocation Ruijin Multi-Strategy Single Asset ~ Asset management RMB4,980,000
Management Plan plan
CARBEEREHESRIKE —EEEIETE)

Holly International Fixed Income Fund Fund USDS8,441,472.79
(BB EE W B ®)

Soho Overseas Fixed Income Fund (#R585MNE Y ES)  Fund USD2,181,731.48

Holly International Global Opportunity Fund SP Fund USD5,752,455.62

CARBIBRRIREBES SP)

The Group had no significant non-wholly owned subsidiary.

There is no financial or other support provided by the Group to structured entities included in the scope of the
consolidated financial statements.

There was no change in the Group’s share of ownership interests in subsidiaries in which the Group still
controlled the subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2024, no subsidiaries of the Company issued share capital or debt securities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

VIil.Interests in Other Entities (continued)
(1) Interests in joint ventures or associates

1. Important associates

___ Shareholding%  Accounting method

Principal place  Place of Business for investments in

Associate of business registration nature Direct  Indirect  associates
Jiangsu Hongrui New Era Jiangsu Jiangsu Risk investment 22.00 Equity method

Venture Capital Co., Ltd. etc.

(LERsLImATES (BRI E

BRERT)
Jiangsu Hongrui Growth Jiangsu Jiangsu Risk investment 9.901 Equity method

Venture Capital Co., Ltd. etc.

(TR LmAREIRRE

BRAR)

Note:  Within the Reporting Period, the Group and the Company held 9.901% equity of Jiangsu Hongrui Growth Venture Capital
Co., Ltd. (T#rsA¥RR RAIZIZLEFRAR]) (‘Hongrui Growth”). According to Hongrui Growth’s Articles of Association,
the Group and the Company would appoint a member of Board of Directors. The Group and the Company would impose
significant influence on the invested company through participation in its production or operating decisions; Accordingly,
Hongrui Growth is included in the financial statements of the Group and the Company as an associate.

2. Financial highlights of key associates

Closing balance/Amount incurred Opening balance/Amount incurred
in the current year in the last year

Hongrui New Era  Hongrui Growth Hongrui New Era Hongrui Growth

Current assets 28,043,744.09 263,528.54 25,914,946.26 325,422.78

Non-current assets 1,854,866.79 22,000,000.00 1,854,866.79 22,000,000.00

Total assets 29,898,610.88 22,263,528.54 27,769,813.05 22,325,422.78

Current liabilities 22,406.24 678,533.61 6,487.97 677,939.56
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities 22,406.24 678,533.61 6,487.97 677,939.56

Net profit 2,106,391.59 -62,518.00 15,775.51 -32,906.50
Total comprehensive

income 2,106,391.59 -62,518.00 15,775.51 -33,322.68
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

VIIl. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

(1)  Interests in joint ventures or associates
3. Summary of insignificant associates

SN 1hoqy

Nil
4. Joint ventures or associates were not restricted to transfer funds into the Company.
5 There was no excessive loss incurred by any joint venture or associate of the Group.
6. The Group had no unrecognised commitment related to investment in joint ventures.
7. The Group had no contingent liability related to investment in joint ventures or associates.

(1) Structured entities not included in the scope of consolidated financial
statements

On 31 December 2024, the net assets of structured entities established by the Group but not included into
the consolidated financial statements amounted to RMB16,100,019,734.82.

The Group has interests in the structured entities sponsored by third party institutions through directly holding
investments. The assets and liabilities items in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group relating to the
interests of the Group in the structured entities sponsored by third party institutions through directly holding

investments and their carrying amounts/maximum risk exposure are as follows:

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

Closing balance Opening balance
Financial assets Financial assets
held for trading held for trading
Funds 61,559,879.34 97,819,772.63
Trust schemes 11,701,713.77 80,874,791.75
Asset management plans 87,109,128.31 84,240,236.50
Total 160,370,721.42 262,934,800.88

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s maximum risk exposure arising from investments in the
aforesaid funds, trust schemes, asset management plans and wealth management products was their fair
value at the reporting date.

uoljeLwou| [eroueul
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

IX. Government Grants

1. Government grants recognized at the end of the year on the basis of
amounts receivable

Nil

2. Liabilities involving government grants

Nil

3. Government grants recognized in profit or loss

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Other gains 1,003,936.94 445,288.93
Non-operating income 2,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Financial Instruments and Risk Management

The objectives of the Group’s risk management are to seek appropriate balance between the risks and
returns, and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial instruments have on the Group’s financial
performance. Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate and acceptable risk limits and design corresponding
internal control procedures, and to monitor risks. The Group regularly reviews risk management policies and
the relevant internal control systems to cope with the changes in market conditions or the Group’s operating
activities.

Market Risk
Foreign currency risk

As the Group’s business is mainly concentrated in Mainland China and settled in Renminbi, the Group is
not subject to any material foreign currency risk save for the bank deposits denominated in Hong Kong
dollars resulting from the issuance of shares. The currencies giving rise to foreign currency risk are primarily
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. As the majority of the proceeds from issue of shares had been
converted into Renminbi during the Reporting Period and not much business of the Group is denominated in
United States dollars, the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is low.

For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are denominated in Renminbi, translated using the
spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Differences resulting from the translation of foreign currency
financial statements are excluded. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk for assets and liabilities as at

the end of the year is as follows:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Balance in Balance in Balance in Balance in
foreign currency RMB equivalent foreign currency RMB equivalent
Monetary funds
HKD 6,707,006.97 6,210,956.73 6,693,271.24 6,065,576.26
usD 44,683.12 321,200.17 44,659.22 316,307.86

Analysis on the exchange rates for Renminbi against foreign currencies applied by the Group

Average rates Reporting date mid-spot rate
2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
HKD 0.91275 0.90018 0.92604 0.90622
usb 7.12168 7.0467 7.1884 7.0827
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

X.

()
1.

3

272

Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming all other risk variables remained constant (except for foreign exchange rate), a 10% strengthening
of the Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars at the end of the year would have
decreased the Group’s shareholders’ equity and net profit by the amount shown below, Whose effect was in
Renminbi and translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet date:

[tem 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Net profit and shareholders’ equity

[tems denominated in HKD -465,821.75 -454,918.22
[tems denominated in USD -24,090.01 -23,723.09

A 10% weakening of the Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars would have had the
equal but opposite effect to the Group’s shareholders’ equity and net profit by the amounts shown above, on
the basis that all other variables remained constant.

The table above shows the immediate impacts of the changes in exchange rates on the net profit and
shareholders’ equity of the Group had the HKD and USD amounts been converted into RMB as at the end of
the Reporting Period.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group or the Company which exposed the Group to foreign
currency risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis above excludes differences that would result from
the translation of foreign currency financial statements. The analysis is performed on the same basis using
identical methods for previous periods.

Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at fixed rates and at floating rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk, respectively. The Group determines the appropriate weightings of
the fixed and floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the current market conditions and performs
regular reviews and monitoring to maintain an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate instruments. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk.
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From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest-bearing financial instruments held by the Group at the end of year

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Effective interest rate Amount  Effective interest rate Amount

Financial instruments at fixed
interest rate
Financial assets

Monetary funds
Including: Futures margin 1.89%-3.00% 3,228,520,800.00 2.37%-5.54% 3,061,534,211.14
Own funds 1.75%-3.65% 86,988,874.81 4.37%-4.58% 9,256,228.46
Other monetary
funds 1.50%-1.75% 133,197,648.16
Currency deposits receivable
and pledged deposits
receivable 1.66% 375,898,065.17 1.50-1.66% 628,053,489.55
Financial assets held under
resale agreements 1.78% 96,252,523.09 3.13% 1,948,419.75
Financial assets held for
trading
Including: Bonds held for
trading 3.19%-3.59% 48,086,621.93 2.9%-6.4% 154,626,006.13
Trust schemes 6.1%-6.7% 11,701,713.77 4.55%-7.00% 66,138,791.75
Other debt investments 417% 8,824,536.85
Financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings 2.6%-3.45% 29,000,000.00 3.45% 49,735,200.00
Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements 217% 4,298,255.52 5.49%-5.65% 56,640,229.46
Long-term borrowings 4.50% 60,984,050.00
Net amount 3,956,172,528.26 3,754,197,667.32
Floating rate financial instruments
Financial assets
Monetary funds
Including: Futures margin 0.001%-1.50% 3,549,635,767.10 0.001%-3.50% 1,365,211,491.57
Own funds 0.001%-0.35% 173,549,539.99 0.001%-1.70% 365,788,912.90
Other Monetary
funds 0.35% 14,773,586.54 0.35% 13,981,221.48
Net amount 3,737,958,893.63 1,744,981,625.95
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Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate financial instruments

As of 31 December 2024, with all other variables held constant, an increase in interest rate of 100 basis points
would have increased the shareholders’ equity and net profit of the Group by RMB27,063,658.47; and a
decrease in interest rate of 100 basis points would have reduced the shareholders’ equity and net profit of the
Group by RMB27,032,246.03.

As of 31 December 2023, with all other variables held constant, an increase in interest rate of 100 basis
points would have reduced the shareholders’ equity and net profit of the Group by RMB19,257,090.83; and
a decrease in interest rate of 100 basis points would have increased the shareholders’ equity and net profit of
the Group by RMB19,056,177.16.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate financial instruments

As of 31 December 2024, with all other variables held constant, an increase in interest rate of 100 basis points
would have increased the shareholders’ equity and net profit of the Group by RMB27,853,292.30; and a
decrease in interest rate of 100 basis points would have reduced the shareholders’ equity and net profit of the
Group by RMB25,610,781.41.

As of 31 December 2023, with all other variables held constant, an increase in interest rate of 100 basis points
would have increased the shareholders’ equity and net profit of the Group by RMB13,087,362.19; and a
decrease in interest rate of 100 basis points would have reduced the shareholders’ equity and net profit of the
Group by RMB6,630,833.08.

In respect of the cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments, which were
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on the Group’s net profit and shareholders’ equity
mentioned in the above sensitivity analysis was estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis using identical
methods for previous years.
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From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk (Continued)
Other price risk

Other price risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of equity financial instruments held by
the Group will fluctuate due to changes in market price factors other than market interest rates and exchange
rates. The Group mainly invests in stocks and funds listed on stock exchanges, and the maximum market
price risk is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments held by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The following analysis shows the impacts of a 10% increase or decrease in the share price and commodity
price on net profit and equity of the Group, with all other variables held constant.

Net profit

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Change in share price

10% increase 540,557.28 1,012,233.76

10% decrease -540,557.28 -1,012,233.76
Change in commodity price

10% increase 480,806,316.70 728,494.35

10% decrease -480,806,316.70 -728,494.35

Shareholders’ equity

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Change in share price

10% increase 540,557.28 1,012,233.76

10% decrease -540,557.28 -1,012,233.76
Change in commaodity price

10% increase 480,806,316.70 728,494.35

10% decrease -480,806,316.70 -728,494.35

Changes in the price of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (REITSs)
10% increase 2,787,320.89 728,494.35
10% decrease -2,787,320.89 -728,494.35
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Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates that, assuming there were changes in the stock market indexes, real estate
investment trusts (REITs) and commodity futures markets as at the end of the relevant period which had been
used to re-measure the aforesaid financial instruments held by the Group (which may cause the Group to be
exposed to the risks from share and commodity price fluctuations as at the end of the relevant period), there
may be temporary changes in the net profit and shareholders’ equity of the Group. In addition, it is assumed
that the fair values of the equity investments and hedging investments of the Group will change based on
historical correlations among relevant stock market indexes, REITs and commodity futures prices, with all
other variables held constant. The analysis for prior years was performed based on the same assumption and
method.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to Monetary funds,
currency deposits receivable, financial assets held under resale agreements, financial assets held for trading,
derivative financial assets, other receivables and other assets. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by
management on an ongoing basis.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
(including derivative financial instruments) in the balance sheet.

The Group’s Monetary funds other than cash are mainly deposited with reputable financial institutions and
therefore the Management considers that there are no material risks associated with the Monetary funds and
the corresponding interest generated.

As to currency deposits receivable deposited with domestic exchanges and other financial institutions, the
Group believes there is low level of credit risk because such financial institutions have good reputation and asset
conditions.

As to currency deposits receivable deposited with overseas futures brokers, at the end of Reporting Period,
the Group would prudently make provision for loss equivalent to the expected credit loss within the entire
duration, by reference to historic credit loss experience, considering current situation and future economic
forecasting.
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X.
(1)

Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
Credit Risk (continued)

As to accounts receivable and other receivables, the Group regularly would assess customers trading with
credit. According to the assessment results, the Group would select to trade with recognised customers
of good standing, and monitor the balance of accounts receivable and other receivables. As to accounts
receivable and other receivables, at the end of Reporting Period, the Group would prudently calculate the
expected credit loss and make provision for impairment by reference to historic credit loss experience,
considering current situation and future economic forecasting, through the Exposure at Default (EAD) at
the expected credit loss rate within future 12 months or within the entire duration. As to impaired accounts
receivable, the Group would actively urge the debtors to pay by written notice or arbitration, and may make
provision for loss equivalent to the expected credit loss within the entire duration after considering the
recoverable amount.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had no external guarantee. Therefore, regardless of the available
collateral or other credit enhancements, the maximum credit risk exposure of the Group on the balance sheet
date is the book value of the Group’s financial assets less the corresponding provision for impairment. The
Group’s maximum credit risk exposure is listed as follows:

[tem 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Monetary funds 7,208,804,109.21 4,840,823,714.33
Currency deposits receivable 2,848,560,087.28 3,354,606,892.26
Pledged deposits receivable 288,138,600.00 79,613,312.00
Derivative financial assets 11,556,875.02 5,212,428.02
Financing capital 3,537,846.38 26,718,486.91
Financial assets held for trading 280,696,608.62 434,686,764.24
Financial assets held under resale agreements 96,252,523.09 1,948,419.75
Other receivables 12,644,472.25 32,744,189.68
Other debt investments 8,824,536.85

Investment in other equity instruments 29,736,228.88 1,853,110.00
Total maximum risk exposure 10,788,751,887.58 8,778,207,317.19
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

X. Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of a shortage of funds for a company to fuffill its obligation of settlement in cash
or other financial assets. The Company and its subsidiaries are responsible for their own cash management,
including short-term investment and borrowing to meet estimated cash requirements (Any borrowing above
the preset upper limit of authority should be approved by the Company’s Board of Directors). The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure sufficient cash reserves to meet short-term
and long-term liquidity requirements.

The remaining contract period of the Group’s financial liabilities on the balance sheet date based on the
undiscounted contractual cash flows (including interest calculated at the contract rate (if it is a floating rate,

the current rate at the end of the year)), and the earliest date of required payment are as follows:

1. 31 December 2024

Balance Sheet
Item Current Within 1 year 1-5 years Total Book value
Currency deposits payable 8,812,672,179.43 8,812,672,179.43  8,812,672,179.43
Pledged deposits payable 26,216,168.00 26,216,168.00 26,216,168.00
Futures investors protection funds
payable 428,130.37 428,130.37 428,130.37
Short-term borrowings 29,018,850.00 29,018,850.00 29,018,850.00
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 4,298,255.52 4,298,255,52 4,298,255.52
Financial liabilities held for trading 7,912,762.09 7,912,762.09 7,912,762.09
Derivative financial liabilities 9,859,658.01 9,859,658.01 9,859,658.01
Bills payable 237,954,486.22 237,954,486.22 237,954,486.22
Other payables 489,672,703.56 489,672,703.56 489,672,703.56
Lease liabilities 10,870,482.60 5,406,593.69 16,277,076.29 15,674,410.80
Total 8,838,888,347.43 790,015,328.37 5,406,593.69  9,634,310,269.49  9,633,707,604.00
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Financial Instruments and Risk Management (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
31 December 2023

Balance Sheet
Within 1 year 1-5 years Book value
Currency deposits payable 6,779,281,113.85 6,779,281,113.85  6,779,281,113.85
Pledged deposits payable 61,590,912.00 61,590,912.00 61,590,912.00
Futures investors protection funds
payable 310,592.85 310,592.85 310,592.85
Short-term borrowings 49,782,862.90 49,782,862.90 49,782,862.90
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 56,687,229.99 56,687,229.99 56,687,229.99
Financial liabilities held for trading 61,534,340.24 61,534,340.24 61,534,340.24
Derivative financial liabilities 14,064,892.26 14,064,892.26 14,064,892.26
Employee benefits payable 2,303,860.56 2,303,860.56 2,303,860.56
Contract liabilities 446,185.04 446,185.04 446,185.04
Other payables 183,508,959.48 183,508,959.48 183,508,959.48
Lease liabilities 16,356,919.36 8,846,671.76 25,203,591.12 23,653,164.97
Long-term borrowings 30,213,751.38 33,876,868.13 64,090,619.51 61,142,766.81
Total 6,840,872,025.85 415,209,594.06 42,723,639.89  7,298,805,159.80  7,294,306,880.95

Operational risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss due to unreasonable internal process settings, employee operating
errors or failure to strictly implement processes, IT system problems, and external events of a company. In
response to operational risks, the Group established a compliant, applicable and clear daily operation system,
designed strict business processes and authority division, improved the business system, adopted double
reviews for important positions, reduced the probability of human negligence, and established a sound
performance examination mechanism. At the same time, by establishing emergency plans, carrying out
system testing, and strengthening the construction of emergency backup channels, the Group avoided the
risks caused by errors in trading and risk control system. In addition, the Group strengthened internal training,
continues to improve the professional capabilities of employees, and reduced the probability and possibility of
pricing errors in product design and other aspects.

Annual Report 2024 279

SN 1hoqy

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

uoljeLwou| [eroueul



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XI. Fair Value Disclosure Management

() The amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the levels of
fair value measurement

1. Year-end fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Summary of Fair value at the end of the year

Fair value Fair value Fair value
measurement measurement measurement
within Level 1 within Level 2 within level 3

I. Ongoing fair value measurement

() Financial assets held for trading 55,294,052.33 210,427,649.58 14,974,906.71 280,696,608.62
1. Financial assets at fair value through 55,294,052.33 210,427,649.58 14,974,906.71 280,696,608.62
profit or loss

(1) Debt instrument investment 48,086,621.93 11,701,713.77 59,788,335.70
(2) Equity instrument investment 7,207,430.40 210,427,649.58 3,273,192.94 220,908,272.92
(I) Derivative financial assets 19,460.00 11,537,415.02 11,556,875.02
(Il Investment properties 48,467,078.00 48,467,078.00
1. Buildings for rent 48,467,078.00 48,467,078.00
(IV)Other debt investments 8,824,536.85 8,824,536.85
(V) Investment in other equity instruments 27,873,208.88 1,863,020.00 29,736,228.88
Total assets measured at fair value on an 92,011,258.06 258,894,727.58 28,375,341.73 379,281,327.37

ongoing basis
(IV)Financial liabilities held for trading 7,912,762.09 7,912,762.09
(V) Derivative financial liabilities 3,736,160.00 6,123,498.01 9,859,658.01
Total financial liabilities measured at fair 3,736,160.00 14,036,260.10 17,772,420.10

value on an ongoing basis

II. Non-ongoing fair value measurement

Total financial assets measured at fair
value not on an ongoing basis

Total financial liabilities measured at fair
value not on an ongoing basis

During the Reporting Period, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 or transfers into or out of
level 3 for the Group. The Group’s policy is to identify the actual level transfers between levels at the end of
the reporting date.
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Fair Value Disclosure Management (continued)

The amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the levels of
fair value measurement (Continued)

Year-end fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Continued)
Level 1 fair value measurement

The fair value of a financial instrument traded in an active market is determined by its quoted price in the
active market. The quoted price in the active market means a quoted price readily available from exchanges,
securities companies, brokers, industry associations, pricing agencies and regulators which can represent the
price of an actual fair market transaction.

Level 2 fair value measurement

The fair value of a financial instrument not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the financial instrument is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs are not based
on observable market data, the financial instrument is included in level 3.

The valuation techniques for the financial instruments of the Group as at the end of the Reporting Period are as
follows:

For listed equity securities, fair value is determined based on the closing price of the equity securities as at
the end of the Reporting Period, within bid-ask spread. If there is no quoted market price as at the end of the
Reporting Period and there have been significant changes in the economic environment after the most recent
trading date, valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value.

For exchange-listed investment funds, fair value is determined based on the closing price within bid-ask
spread as at the end of the Reporting Period or the most recent trading date. For unlisted open-end funds,
fair value is determined by quoted price which is based on the net asset value as at the end of the Reporting
Period.

For futures traded through over-the-counter market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques based
on observable commodity futures market data with similar characteristics.

For open-market debt investments, fair value is determined using the price quoted in the valuation system of

the relevant bonds registration and settlement institution, which adopts observable inputs reflecting market
conditions in reaching quotes.
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Fair Value Disclosure Management (continued)

The amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the levels of
fair value measurement (Continued)

Year-end fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Continued)
Level 2 fair value measurement (Continued)

For asset management plans for which there is no open market, fair value is determined through quoted net
asset values based on the end date of the reporting period.

For investment property items where the fair value is available from the real estate market with examples of
transactions comparable to the subject of the valuation and where earnings can be ascertained, the market
approach or the income approach is used for valuation.

During the Reporting Period, there were no changes in the valuation techniques adopted in the aforesaid
recurring level 2 fair value measurement of the Group.

Level 3 fair value measurement

For level 3 financial instruments, the Group determines their values through the discounted cash flow model
and other similar valuation techniques. Whether it is classified as level 3 valuation techniques is generally
based on the importance of non-observable market data to the whole fair value measurement. The following
table shows the relevant valuation techniques and parameters of the main level 3 financial instruments:

Relationship between

Significant unobservable inputs
Financial instruments Valuation technique unobservable inputs  and fair value
Asset management plans,  Discounted cash flows Risk-adjusted The higher the risk-
trust schemes, wealth discount rate adjusted discount
management products rate, the lower the fair
and assets-backed value
securities
Over-the-counter options Bloomberg OVML Implied volatility The higher the implied
function, Black-Scholes volatility, the higher
PDE, Clark Nielsen the fair value

finite difference method
for solving partial
differential equations

Financial liabilities held Valuation of underlying Contract allocation The higher the contract
for trading Including: financial instruments rate allocation rate, the
Payables designated as Contract allocation higher (for gain)/the
measured at fair value method lower (for loss) the fair

value
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Xl. Fair Value Disclosure Management (continued)

() The amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the levels of
fair value measurement (Continued)

sM noqy

1. Year-end fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Continued)
)] Level 3 fair value measurement (Continued)

At the end of the Reporting Period, there were no changes in the valuation techniques for the fair values of the
assets and liabilities of level 3 fair value measurement.

The reconciliation between the opening balance and closing balance of the assets and liabilities of recurring
level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

For assets held

and liabilities

assumed at the

end of the Period,

Total gains or unrealised gains
losses for the or losses for the

Opening  year Included in Settlement Period included

balance profit or loss Purchase andsale  Closing balance in profit or loss

Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading
Includling: Investments in

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

debt instruments ~ 66,138,791.75 -2,322,182.73 249,745.53 52,364,640.78 11,701,713.77 -342,715.84
Equity instrument
investment 3,629,507.10 8,036,425.82 22,692.72 8,415,432.70 3,213,192.94 223,609.78
Investment in other equity
instruments 1,853,110.00 9,910.00 1,863,020.00
Derivative financial assets 5,205,890.52 6,331,524.50 11,537,415.02 11,556,875.02
Subtotal of financial assets 76,827,299.37 12,055,677.59 272,438.25 60,780,073.48 28,375,341.73 11,437,768.96

Financial liabilities

Subtotal of financial
liabilities 71,915,865.00 -4,796,209.83 53,083,395.07 14,036,260.10 6,035,925.65

Net amount 4,911,434.37 16,851,887.42 272,438.25 7,696,678.41 14,339,081.63 5,401,843.31

Financial liabilties held for '3"'
trading =
Including: Financial liabilties 8-
designated as at g

FVTPL 61,534,340.24 -538,183.08 53,083,395.07 7,912,762.09 -87,572.36 éh

Derivative financial liabilities 10,381,524.76 -4,258,026.75 6,123,498.01 6,123,498.01 g
o

=]
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Xl. Fair Value Disclosure Management (continued)

() The amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the levels of
fair value measurement (Continued)

2. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value

The financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value of the Group or the Company mainly
include: Monetary funds, currency deposits receivable, pledged deposits receivable, financing capital,
settlement deposits receivable, financial assets held under resale agreements, other receivables, currency
deposits payable, pledged deposits payable, futures investors protection funds payable, trade payables and
other payables. As at the end of the Reporting Period, there was no significant difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the above financial assets and financial liabilities.

XIll. Related Parties and Connected Transactions
() Relations with related parties

1. Controlling shareholder and ultimate controller

(1) Controlling shareholder and ultimate controller

Parent's
Parent's  shareholding

sharenolding ~ voting power

Name of Parent Place of percentageof  percentageof  Ultimate controller
Company registration Business nature Registered capital ~ the Company ~ the Company  of the Company

Jiangsu SOHO Jiangsu Province  Financial investment, industrial 2,000,000,000.00 21.33% 21.33%  Jiangsu Provincial People’s
Holdings Group investment, operation and Government
Co., Ltd. management of state-owned assets
(LEREEHE2R within the scope of authorization;
EEERAR) intemational trade; housing

leasing; production, research and
development and sales of cocoon
sik, textile and clothing

2) Changes in controlling shareholder’s registered capital

Nil

2. Subsidiaries of the Company

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Notes “VII” and “VIIL(I)".
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XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)

()

The amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the levels of

fair value measurement (Continued)

Associates of the Company

For details of the Company’s joint ventures and associates, see Note “VIII. (Il)”.

Other important related parties of the Company

Other related parties Relation

Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
(IEHEHRZEREBFR A A)

Soho Holly Corporation (g 5z 55 %% 15 B FR A &)

Jiangsu Holly Su Industrial Co., Ltd. (T #RsABR & Z AR A 7))

Jiangsu High Hope International Group Co., Ltd.
(VT %k 15 B R &= B AR 1) B PR 2 7])

Jiangsu SOHO Investment Group Company Limited
(IEEFIREEERRAQR)

Jiangsu SOHO International Group Corporation
(T ak = BIFR &= B A B PR 2 =)

Jiangsu Soho Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
(LEHFZRFRHARAE)

Jiangsu Aitao Space Culture Technology Development Co., Ltd.*
(IHBREBXRRERERAR)

SOHO Culture Group Company Limited
EZEXLEEARAR)

Jiangsu SOHO Artall Culture Group Co., Ltd.
(IE#RE R XL B R A A)

Jiangsu Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.
(I&EFSRZERARAR)

Jiangsu Holly Environmental Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.
(IERLAEIRREIREEBRAR)

Jiangsu Chemical Fertilizer Co., Ltd.
(IFELETEERAR)

Jiangsu SOHO Assets Operation Group Co., Ltd.
(IEFHmEEBEEEFRAT)

Jiangsu SOHO Health Industry Co., Ltd.
(LR s R ERE X AR A7)

Jiangsu Holly International Engineering Co., Ltd.
(T#RoLEBIFR BT T2 BRR A F))

Shareholder of the Group/Company

Shareholder of the Group/Company
Shareholder of the Group/Company
Shareholder of the Group/Company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIll. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)

() The amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the levels of
fair value measurement (Continued)

4. Other important related parties of the Company (Continued)

Other related parties Relation

286

Jiangsu Holly Yongchang (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
(IERLEKEEB)BRAR)

Aitao Cultural (UK) Co., Ltd.
(ERXE(EE)FOBRAF)

Artall Culture Trade (Netherland) Company Limited
(ERXLE ) BRATF)

Jiangsu Holly International Logistics Corporation
(LéErsA B YRAR A7)

Liaoning Litian New Material Co., Ltd.
(REBRIMEBRAR)

Jiangsu SOHO Real Estate Operation and Management Co., Ltd.

(IEFHR T HELELEEFRAA)

Jiangsu High Hope Wisdom Co., Ltd.
(IFEREAKREEEERAF)

Jiangsu High Hope Arser Co., Ltd.
(IFER D RBERE S ERAF)

Yangzhou HONG Yuan Shoes Co., Ltd.
HBENBTEERRAR)

Jiangsu OVERSEAS Rubber Co., Ltd.
(IEFEBRERBERLQR)

Jiangsu Nonferrous Metals I/E Corp. Ltd.
(IHEELBELOERAR)

High Hope Int’l Group Jiangsu Champion Holdings Limited
(L AREE 7S BIFR &= E o SR 1 AR B IR 2 A))

Jiangsu SOHO Private Equity Fund Management Co., Ltd.
(I#HHZLEESEEERAT)

Jiangsu Dongsheng Material Trading Co., Ltd.
(IHRRRMEE HERAF)

Jiangsu Tianhong Hengde Motor Vehicle Appraisal Co., Ltd.
(L& ARBLBEEE BT (EERAR)

Zhan Jieying

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the same ultimate
holding company

Senior management
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
(I) Transactions with related parties

sM noqy

1. Purchase of goods/Acceptance of services

Amount Whether the
incurred Number of transaction Amount &
Related party in the current transactions limit is incurred in the
Related parties transaction year approved exceeded ast year
Jiangsu Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. Labour cost 412,563.00 412,563.00 No 337,567.50 _OO
(IEeRERERAR) 3
Jiangsu Soho Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Publicity cost No 34,325.67 5
(THEZHTREARAT) s
Jiangsu Holly Environmental Technology Procurement 8,800.73 8,809.73 No 513.27 g
Industrial Co., Ltd. cost S
(THLEBRNAELERAR) =
Jiangsu SOHO International Group Corporation - Advertising 144,502.67 144,502.67 No @
(IHHRERSERMBRAF) and publicity \
expenses ~—
Jiangsu Holly International Engineering Co., Safety production No 10,619.47
Ltd. (TELRER R TRRARA) fee
Jiangsu SOHO Investment Group Company ~ Cafeteria service  1,813,175.04 1,813,175.04 No 1,323,400.55 8’
Limited (BB ERAEMARAF) charge S
Jiangsu OVERSEAS Rubber Co., Ltd. Payment for No  11,381,628.31 §
(IEHELBEBERDF) goods %
Jiangsu Tianhong Hengde Motor Vehicle Motor Vehicle 792.08 792.08 e
Appraisal Co., Ltd. (TE A3 BE#E) = Appraisal %
FHEAERAT) 5
Total 2,379,842.52 2,379,842.52 - 13,088,054.77 @

uoljeLwou| [eroueul
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
(I)  Transactions with related parties (Continued)

2. Sales of goods/Provision of services

Amount Amount
Related party incurred in the incurred in the
Related parties transaction current year last year
Jiangsu SOHO Investment Group Company  Asset management 34,539.99 35,550.02
Limited (L& #5118 & SE AR A A) business income/Others
Jiangsu SOHO Artall Culture Group Co., Ltd.  Asset management 9,080.48
(IHHREEULARDR) business income
Soho Holly Corporation Asset management 4,377.08
business income
Jiangsu SOHO Assets Operation Group Co.,  Asset management 19,578.48 1,682.91
Lid. (IH#HRAEBESBBRAA) business income
Zhan Jieying Asset management 1,264.23 3,370.72
business income
Jiangsu Chemical Fertilizer Co., Ltd. Fee income 1,235.45 4,034.22
(IHE(LIEIEBRAR)
Liaoning Litian New Material Co., Ltd. Fee income 139.72 1,285.28
(BEBERIMEARAR)
Soho Holly Corporation Fee income 43.66 59.29
Jiangsu Dongsheng Material Trading Co., Ltd. Fee income 246.79
(IHREMEEHERRLDE)
High Hope Int’l Group Jiangsu Champion Fee income 8.18
Holdings Limited (T #rEE & BB & B 67
ERARAT)
Jiangsu SOHO Holdings Group Co., Ltd. Others 42,452.83
(IEHEHFERERRRAR)
Jiangsu Holly Yongchang (Hong Kong) Co.,  Asset management 387,375.41
Limited (L& 555K & (BH)ERAF) business income
Aitao Cultural (UK) Co., Ltd. Asset management 4,935.89
(BEXEEB)ROARATF) business income
Jiangsu Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. Asset management 12,225.06 52,891.21
(TEHERIERER AR business income
Total 69,281.56 547,095.34
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
(I)  Transactions with related parties (Continued)

sM noqy

3. Related lease
(1) Lease

Expenses relating to Short-term
lease and leases of low-value assets Variable lease payments not included
applied the practical expedlent

in the measurement of lease liabilties

4.

(i applicable) (it applicable) Rental paid Inferest expense of lease liabities  Adtion of right-fo-use assets
Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
incurred incurred incurred incurred incurred incurred incurred incurred incurred ncurred
Types of inthe inthe  inthe current inthe inthe nthe inthe inthe inthe inthe
Name of lessor leased assets  current year Jast year year astyear current year lastyear  current year [astyear current year last year
Soho Holly Corporation  Plants and 70840550 80960629
EERAEROER buidings
)
Jiangsu SOHO Real Plants and 171983020 321586707  286,718.12  359,60841 10,207,691.47
Estate Operationand ~ buidings
Management Co, Ltd.
(IEEFTHELE
ERARAT)
Total 70840550  809,60629 171983020 327586707  286,718.12 35960341 10297,691.47

Other Transactions with related parties

Related parties

Soho Holly Corporation N/A Net Investment/Disposal -5,268,551.22
EFSoAERNERAA) of Asset Management
Plans
Jiangsu SOHO Artall Culture Group  N/A Net Investment/Disposal -5,184,752.03
Co., Ltd. (TE&REEXLER of Asset Management
NG Plans
Jiangsu Holly Yongchang N/A Net Investment/Disposal -32,224,633.95
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited of Asset Management
(L& LFEXEBEB)ERATF) Plans
Artall Culture Trade N/A Net Investment/Disposal -5,376,819.81 'S"'
(Netherland) Company Limited of Asset Management o
EELES(WB)ERATR) Plans 8.
Jiangsu Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. N/A Net Investment/Disposal -5,773,522.76 5,780,640.00 -
(IEFeRIERERAR) of Asset Management gh
Plans 3
Zhan Jieying N/A Net Investment/Disposal -504,559.81 500,000.00 %’.
of Asset Management S

Related party
transaction

Plans

Amount incurred
in the current year

Amount incurred
in the last year
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
(1) Balance of transactions with related parties

1. Amount due from related parties

Related Related Closing book Opening book
[tem partytransaction parties balance balance
Other receivables  Housing leasing Soho Holly Corporation 71,000.00 71,000.00
deposits ERSOAERMDBR AR
Other receivables Housing leasing Jiangsu SOHO Real 257,231.82 257,231.82
deposits Estate Operation and

Management Co., Ltd.
(I T BELE

ERBRDA)
2. Amounts due to related parties

ltem Related parties Closing balance Opening balance

Currency deposits payable  Jiangsu SOHO International Group 1,001.00 1,001.00
Corporation (/T #ré# 5 B & B A%
nBRAE])

Currency deposits payable  Jiangsu Chemical Fertilizer Co., Ltd. 2,242,857.44 1,653,483.56
(I#ALETEERAR)

Currency deposits payable ~ SOHO Culture Group Company 1,500.00 1,500.00
Limited (&5 X (L £E AR )

Currency deposits payable ~ Soho Holly Corporation 53,455.98 3,205,695.06
EFFOLAERNBRAFR)

Currency deposits payable  Jiangsu High Hope Wisdom Co., Ltd. 1,001.00 1,001.00
(TH#EBEFEEEREERAR)

Currency deposits payable  Liaoning Litian New Material Co., Ltd. 3,813,149.50 4,285,322.60
(EEBERIMEERAR)

Currency deposits payable  Jiangsu High Hope Arser Co., Ltd. 1,001.00
(L#RE BB E HERAR)

Currency deposits payable  Yangzhou HONG Yuan Shoes Co., 1,001.00
Ltd. (/N BTTEEER A R)

Currency deposits payable  Jiangsu Nonferrous Metals I/E Corp. 1,001.00

Ltd. (TE#A B BEL AR ATF)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
(Im) Balance of transactions with related parties (continued)

sM noqy

2. Amounts due to related parties (Continued)

[tem Related parties Closing balance Opening balance
Currency deposits payable  Jiangsu Dongsheng Material Trading 2,000.00

Co., Ltd. (THREMWEE AR

NG
Currency deposits payable  High Hope Int” | Group Jiangsu 1,001.00

Champion Holdings Limited (/T &k
TSR EE AP SRIER AR AR)

Other payables Jiangsu SOHO Investment Group 971,529.72 1,323,400.55
Company Limited (T#fgr 5% &
EEERAF)

Other payables Jiangsu SOHO Real Estate Operation 1,146,553.46

and Management Co., Ltd. (T &k#&k
FTPEMEETARAT)

3. Others
Related party
Related parties [tem transaction Closing balance Opening balance
Jiangsu SOHO Private Equity Fund  Financial assets ~ Private Equity 1,003,177.20 2,709,359.73
Management Co., Ltd. held for trading
(IHHSALBEESERARAT)
Soho Holly Corporation Other assets Prepayment of 106,260.83

Rent

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
(IV) Remuneration of directors, supervisors and staff

1. Compensation of senior management
Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
1. Compensation of senior management 3,925,912.99 3,871,974.51

2. Directors’ emoluments

Details of Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

Salaries,
allowances Pension

Director’s and other Discretionary scheme

fees benefits bonuses contributions

Amount incurred in the
current year
Chairman
— Chu Kairong 429,784.00 353,547.11 783,331.11
Executive Directors
— Zhao Weixiong
(September to December) 151,928.00 151,928.00
Non-executive Directors
— Xue Binghai
- Jiang Lin
Supervisor
- Yu Hong (January August)
- Huang Dongyan

(September to December) 122,464.00 314,847.00 437,311.00
- Chen Liang
- Zhang Lei 104,700.00 123,075.42 227,775.42
Independent non-executive

Directors
- Zhang Hongfa 119,042.88 119,042.88
- Huang Dechun 119,042.88 119,042.88
- Lo Wah Wai 132,132.14 132,132.14
Total 370,217.90 808,876.00 791,469.53 1,970,563.43
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIl. Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
(IV) Remuneration of directors, supervisors and staff (Continued)

SN 1hoqy

2. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Salaries,
allowances Pension

Director’s and other  Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonuses  contributions

Amount incurred in the last

N—
-

year g
Chairman 5
- Zhou Jiangiu 314,244.00 126,201.00 440,445.00 %
Executive Directors S
— Chu Kairong 449,192.00 101,373.00 550,565.00 %
Non-executive Directors 8
_ Xue Binghai ?
—Jiang Lin N\
Supervisors
- Yu Hong 35,303.00 35,303.00
— Chen Liang
- Yao Alli (January to March) 33,765.00 40,470.00 74,235.00 S
—Zhang Lei (April to December) 81,715.00 99,209.58 180,924.58 _8
Independent non-executive %

Directors 0]
- Wang Yuetang (January-July) 69,441.68 69,441.68 %
— Zhang Hongfa (August-December) 49,601.20 49,601.20 S
— Huang Dechun 119,042.88 119,042.88 %
- Lo Wah Wai 130,074.99 130,074.99 ®
Total 368,160.75 878,916.00 402,556.58 1,649,633.33 p

In 2024, Xue Binghai and Jiang Lin, both being non-executive directors, Yu Hong and Chen Liang, both
being supervisors did not receive any fees or emoluments in respect of their services to the Group during the
Reporting Period as they were paid by the Group’s ultimate holding company SOHO Holdings.

During the Reporting Period, remuneration paid to all non-independent Directors and Supervisors (excluding
Chu Kairong) was attributable to services rendered in their capacity as managers of the Company or its
subsidiaries, rather than for their roles as Directors or Supervisors.

uoljeLwou| [eroueul

Remuneration paid to Chu Kairong, the chairman of the Board, during the Reporting Period reflected services
provided in his capacity as a Director.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XiIl.

(V)
3.

294

Related Parties and Connected Transactions (continued)
Remuneration of directors, supervisors and staff (Continued)
Five Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the year, one (last year: none) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in Note “XIl. (IV)1”. Emoluments in respect of the other four (last year: five)

individuals are as follows:

Amount incurred Amount incurred

in the current year in the last year

Salaries, allowances and benefits 1,090,660.09 904,878.00
Discretionary bonuses 2,251,895.66 3,365,397.43
Pension scheme contributions 205,271.19 230,803.20
Total 3,547,826.94 4,501,078.63

The range of emoluments is as follows:

Number of individualsNumber of individuals in

in the current year  the last year

Below HKD1,000,000 3 2
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1 3
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000

During the Track Record Period, no Directors have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. During the
Track Record Period, no emoluments are paid to any Directors, Supervisors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company or as compensation for loss of office.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XIll.Commitments and Contingent Events

()
1.

(1)

Material commitments

External investment contracts contracted but not performed or not completely
performed

Capital commitments Closing balance Opening balance
Contracts contracted but not performed 42,000,000.00 42,000,000.00
Contracts authorized but not contracted 78,000,000.00 78,000,000.00
Total 120,000,000.00 120,000,000.00

Contingent events

Significant pending litigation or arbitration

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had not been involved in any major legal, arbitration or administrative
litigation that may have a material adverse effect on the financial status and operating results of the Group.
Other contingent events

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had no other significant contingencies to be disclosed.

XIV.Subsequent Events

1.

Profit distribution after the balance sheet date

Item Content

Profits or dividends to be distributed 10,077,777.78 (note)
Profits or dividends declared to distribute after review and approval -

Note:  Pursuant to the resolution of the 2nd meeting of the 5th session of the Board of the Company held on 28 March 2025, the
above profit distribution proposal is subject to the approval at the general meetings of the Company.

Save for the above, as of the date of this Report, the Group had no material subsequent events.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XV.

()

296

Other Important Matters
Segment reports

The Group has two reporting Segments, 1) Futures Brokerage and Asset Management Business Division,
and 2) Commodity Trading and Risk Management Business Division. Each reporting division is a separate
business division that offers different products and services. As each division requires different technologies
and market strategies, it needs to be managed separately.

The Futures Brokerage and Asset Management Business Division participates in the transactions of
commodity futures and financial futures on behalf of customers. Meanwhile, it participates in the development
and sales of asset management products and services based on the asset size and customer demands. In
addition, this division also operate investment activities in asset management plans, bank wealth management
products, listed and unlisted securities, trust schemes, funds, and derivative financial instruments.

The Commodity Trading and Risk Management Business Division participates in the provision of bulk
commodity purchase and resale, futures arbitrage, basis trading and hedging services.

Division operating results refer to the income generated by each business division (including foreign
transaction income and inter-divisional transaction income), deducting the expenses incurred by each division,
the depreciation, amortization and impairment of assets attributable to each division, the net amount of bank
deposits and bank borrowings directly attributable to a division after the net interest expenses incurred.
The transfer pricing of revenue between the two divisions is calculated on terms similar to other external
transactions. The Group did not allocate non-operating income and expenditure and income tax expenses to
each division.

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XV. Other Important Matters (continued)

Segment reports (Continued)

Segment reports of profit (loss), assets and liabilities by business type

sM noqy

2. Segment reports of profit (loss), assets and liabilities by geographic region

The Group’s external transaction income by region is listed below. External transaction income is classified by
the location of the clients who accepted services or bought products from the Group.

Futures \
Brokerage and The commodity L
Asset trading and
Management risk management Offset
Business business between divisions O
§S]
External operating income 338,035,508.22  2,537,750,114.76 2,875,785,622.98 g
Inter-divisional operating income -11,915,156.26 26,183,531.36 -14,268,375.10 g
Operating expenses -296,898,664.89  -2,544,244,137.85 -2,841,142,802.74 %
Non-operating income and expenditure 2,514,803.65 1,131,328.39 3,646,132.04 g
Total profit 31,736,490.72 20,820,836.66 -14,268,375.10 38,288,952.28 %
Income tax expense -1,806,532.06 -5,223,316.50 -1,432,906.22 -8,462,754.78 g
(7]
Net profit 29,929,958.66 15,597,520.16 -15,701,281.32 29,826,197.50
Total assets 10,879,412,271.88  1,261,178,246.27 -441,220,897.27  11,699,369,620.88 N\
Total liabilities 9,500,685,564.34 719,417,170.76 -397,511,767.55  9,822,590,967.55
Other important items:
Including: Net interest income 101,538,260.81 9,818,558.96 111,356,819.77 o
Depreciation and amortization 32,646,624.59 1,633,533.47 34,280,158.06 o
Increase in non-current assets other than 3
long-term equity investment 1,518,226.59 5,694,979.12 7,213,205.71 g..
®
o)
<
)
S
Q
=)
)
®

Total external

[tem transaction income

Mainland China 2,853,389,239.31
Hong Kong, China 22,396,383.67

Total 2,875,785,622.98

uoljeLwou| [eroueul
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XV. Other Important Matters (continved)
(1)  Other Important Matters

The Company will implement the Rules for the Management of Commodity Risk Management Business

by Futures Risk Management Companies (hereinafter referred to as the “Management Rules”) effective

from January 1, 2025. Previously, the Company recognized basis trade revenue using the gross method in

accordance with accounting standards. In compliance with the regulatory requirements, the Company will

now recognize revenue for related transactions using the net method as stipulated by the Management Rules.

This adjustment will accordingly result in a significant reduction in other business revenue and other business

costs.

As of 31 December 2024, save for the above, the Group had no other important matters to be disclosed.

XVI.Notes to Parent’s Financial Statements
1. Long-term equity investment

(1)  Breakdown of long-term equity investment

ltem Closing balance Opening balance
Investment in subsidiaries 700,448,579.81 700,448,579.81
Investment in joint ventures or associates 8,709,774.28 8,252,558.04
Total long-term equity investments 709,158,354.09 708,701,137.85
Less: Provision for impairment of long-term equity

investments
Net long-term equity investment 709,158,354.09 708,701,137.85
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XVI.Notes to Parent’s Financial Statements (continueo)
1. Long-term equity investment (Continued)

sM noqy

(2) Investment in subsidiaries

Current changes

Provision for Provision for
impairment as at Closing impairment
Opening balance the beginning Additional Investment  Provision for balance  asattheend

Investee (Book value) of the year Investment reduction  impairment Others  (Book value) of the year

Holly Capital Management Co., Ltd.
CAFERERERAR) 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Holly International Financial

Holdings Limited
GLERRERIERERAT) 20044857981 200,448,579.81
Tota 700,448 57981 700,448579.81

(3) Investment in joint ventures or associates

( 90UBUJIBAOY) 91e10dI0D) ( suolpuo) bunessdo (

Current changes
Provision for Investment Other
impairment gain/loss  recognised Provision for
Opening asatthe recognised comprehensive Declared cash Closing impairment as
balance beginningof  Additional  Investment  under equity income ~ Otherequity  dividend or  Provision for balance  at the end of
Investee (Book valug) theyear  Investment  reduction method  adjustment change profit  impairment Others ~ (Book value) the year
Associate
Jangsu HongruiNew  6,109,358.88 463,406.15 6,572,765.03
Era Venture Capttal
Co, Ltd. (T&r30a
HEREZRER
RAR)
Jiangsu Hongrui 2,143,199.16 -6,189.91 2,137,000.25
Growth Venture -
Captal Co,, Ltd. g
et £ S
(L&A RAIE 0.
§ W)
RERRAT) -
=4
Totdl 8,252,558.04 457,216.24 8,700,774.28 o
=
3
Q
(=
o
S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XVI.Notes to Parent’s Financial Statements (continued)
2. Net handling fee and commission income
(1)  Net handling fee and commission income breakdown

Amount incurred

Amount incurred

[tem in the current year in the last year
Net brokerage fee income 150,484,221.72 167,888,252.81
Income from asset management business 6,086,679.88 6,592,588.10
Investment advisory income 3,155,110.40 1,698,049.48
Total 159,726,012.00 176,178,890.39

(2) Branches and fee income by administrative region

Amount incurred in the current year

300

Number of
branches

Administrative regions

Fee income

Number of
branches

Amount incurred in the last year

Fee income

Jiangsu Province 18 124,434,845.06 21 142,855,531.22
Fujian Province 2 3,129,317.32 2 4,541,227.25
Shanghai 2 4,905,359.91 2 3,029,648.22
Zhejiang Province 2 3,813,414.53 2 4,667,945.66
Henan Province 1 2,920,852.19 1 1,926,138.18
Guangdong Province 2 1,882,461.67 8 1,536,304.23
Beijing 2 1,270,430.78 2 1,284,200.61
Shandong Province 2 3,550,910.47 2 3,074,298.59
Shaanxi Province 1 2,822,217.66 1 2,070,682.46
Anhui Province 2 2,374,345.38 2 2,225,613.03
Liaoning Province 2 2,625,186.91 2 1,901,853.35
Guangxi Province 1 1,272,211.77 1 1,042,989.45
Hunan Province 1 1,565,985.16 1 1,243,894.79
Chongaing 1 1,853,625.78 1 3,485,416.41
Sichuan Province 1 157,080.96
Shanxi Province 1 1,130,979.91 1 679,029.86
Hainan Province 1 173,867.50 1 457,036.12
Total 41 159,726,012.00 46 176,178,890.39

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XVI.Notes to Parent’s Financial Statements (continueq)
3. Net interest income

Amount incurred

in the current year

Interest income

Amount incurred

in the last year

Including: Interest income from customer fund deposits 78,086,304.43 78,936,566.41
Interest income from own funds deposit 13,285,536.20 11,836,710.13
Interest income from repurchase agreements 1,338,997.72 1,286,583.75

Total interest income 92,710,838.35 92,059,860.29

Interest expense

Including: Interest expense on sale and repurchase 535,694.39 1,247,828.44

Total interest expenses 535,694.39 1,247,828.44

Net interest income 92,175,143.96 90,812,031.85
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Notes to the Financial Statements
From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XVI.Notes to Parent’s Financial Statements (continueo)

4.
(1)

302

Investment gains

Breakdown of investment gains

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Long term equity investment gains calculated with cost
method 20,000,000.00
Long term equity investment gains calculated with equity
method 457,216.24 212.54
Including: Gains on investment in associates 457,216.24 212.54
Gains on investment in joint ventures
Investment gains from disposal of long term equity
investment
Financial instrument investment gains 10,468,926.89 -13,401,571.73
Including: Grains on financial instrument during holding
period 2,893,054.64 7,842,848.35
— Financial instrument held for trading 2,290,440.96 7,842,848.35
— Other debt investments 33,809.22
— Investment in other equity instruments 568,804.46
— Gains from disposal 7,575,872.25 -21,244,420.08
— Financial instrument held for trading 7,411,618.19 -21,244,420.08
— Other debt investments 164,254.06
Total 30,926,143.13 -13,401,359.19

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.



Notes to the Financial Statements

From 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
(All amounts in RMB unless otherwise stated in the notes to these financial statements)

XVI.Notes to Parent’s Financial Statements (continueq)
4. Investment gains (Continued)

(2) Gains from investment in associates

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Jiangsu Hongrui New Era Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
(LER AT LB IR ERR LA 463,406.15 3,470.61
Jiangsu Hongrui Growth Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
(L#ERsAImAK REIZEIRE FR A7) -6,189.91 -3,258.07
Total 457,216.24 212.54

(3) There is no significant restriction on repatriation of investment gains.

5. Gains from changes in fair value

Amount incurred Amount incurred
[tem in the current year in the last year
Financial assets held for trading 12,362,215.58 18,652,084.20
Including: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12,362,215.58 18,652,084.20
Investment properties -106,044.00 152,394.00
Total 12,256,171.58 18,804,478.20
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Additional information on the Financial Statements

(Unless otherwise specified, amounts are expressed in RMB)

1. Extraordinary profit and loss statement

[tem Amount for the year

Profit or loss on disposal of non-current assets -40,341.09
Tax rebate or tax concessions with unauthorised approval or without official approval

documents or on an occasional basis
Government grants recognized in profit or loss for the period 3,003,936.94
Profit or loss from changes in fair value of investment properties using the fair value

model for subsequent measurement -106,044.00
Other non-operating income and expenses other than the foregoing items 1,753,393.00
Other profit and loss items falling within the meaning of extraordinary profit and loss
Subtotal 4,610,944.85
Less: Effect of income tax 1,323,772.58
Effect of minority interests (after tax)

Total 3,287,172.27

2. Returns on net assets and earnings per share

Earnings per share (RMB/share)
Weighted average

return on net  Basic earnings Diluted earnings

Profit of the Reporting Period assets (%) per share per share

Net profit attributable to equity holders of the

parent company 1.6017 0.0296 0.0296
Net profit attributable to equity holders of

the parent company after deducting non-

recurring gains and losses 1.4252 0.0263 0.0263

Holly Futures Co., Ltd.
28 March 2025
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